polarıs

Cataloging Guide

7.0

© 2021



World Headquarters 1900 Powell Street, Suite 400 Emeryville, CA 94608 +1.510.655.6200

Legal Notices

© Innovative Interfaces Incorporated and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. All trademarks shown are the property of their respective owners.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

The software and related documentation are provided under an agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of the software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

Contents

Getting Started in Cataloging	1
Polaris Cataloging Overview	1
Cataloging Options on the Shortcut Bar	
Cataloging Records	5
Methods for Adding New Records	
Finding Cataloging Records	
Creating, Copying, and Editing MARC Records	71
Creating MARC Records	71
Copying MARC Records	76
Editing MARC Records	79
Browse Headings Display	
Using Cataloging Templates	
Save an Existing Record as a Template	
Create a Template from the Shortcut Bar	
Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records	
Setting Up Import Profiles	
Importing Records	
Using the Import Jobs Queue	
Automatic Processes During Import	
Checking Cataloging Records	
Checking Authority Headings	
Checking MARC Format	
Checking for Duplicate Records	

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Maintaining Item Records	
Creating Item Records	
Changing Item Records	
Printing Cataloging Labels	
Working with Multiple Cataloging Records	
Using Cataloging Record Sets	
Maintaining Your Catalog	
Exporting Cataloging Records	244
Cleaning Up the Catalog	
Integration with Polaris and eContent Vendors	
Managing Patron Access to eContent Using Resource Groups	
Setting Up a Digital Branch for Integrated EContent	
Resource Entities	
Axis 360 EContent Integration	
OverDrive EContent Integration	296
cloudLibrary eContent Integration	
RBdigital EContent Integration	
EContent in the Polaris Staff Client	
Polaris API Consumer Services	
Suspending and Reactivating an Integrated Vendor Account	
Non-Integrated EContent in Polaris	
Managing Promotions	
Creating and Editing Promotion Records	
Cataloging Bound-With Materials	
Host Bibliographic Records	
Constituent Bibliographic Records	
Finding Bound-With Bibliographic Records in the Staff Client	

Preventing Multiple Host Item Records	403
Displaying Constituent Call Numbers	403
Modifying, Deleting, Importing, and Exporting Bound-With Bibs	404
Indexing for Bound-With Groups	406
Bibliographic Records With No Linked Items Report	407
Multiple Copies of the Same Constituent Title	407
Bibs That Cannot Be Members of a Bound-With Group	407
Bound-With Workflow	407
Create a Bound-With Group	408
Type of Material Codes (TOMs)	411
TOMs and MARC Coding	411
Multiple TOMs - Order of Precedence	428
Setting Up Labels	431
Recommendations for Label Types and Content	431
Set Label Profiles	432
Configuring Existing Label Types	434
Creating Custom Labels	441
Setting the Default Label Printers	443
Carousel Toolkit	
Generating and Copying Content Carousel Code	
Placing Multiple Carousels on a Page	
Cataloging Shortcut Keys	451
Glossary	
Index	463

Getting Started in Cataloging

Polaris Cataloging provides options for adding, modifying, deleting, and managing cataloging records.

See also:

- Cataloging Options on the Shortcut Bar
- <u>Cataloging Records</u>
- <u>Methods for Adding New Records</u>
- Finding Cataloging Records

Polaris Cataloging Overview

Polaris Cataloging records provide the core data upon which all other functions in Polaris depend. Bibliographic and item records are used throughout the Polaris staff client, and they determine the PAC display. Authority records provide standardized access points to indexes and headings in the public catalog. Community records provide information about community organizations. Promotion records enable the library to promote titles, Web sites, community organizations, and events in Polaris PowerPAC.

To streamline your cataloging tasks, Polaris provides tools such as: import profiles for efficiently importing records; bulk creation of item records; bulk change for bibliographic and item records; remote database searching for easy copy cataloging; automatic remote authority control; bibliographic record replacement; and templates to ensure record consistency. Quick navigation between linked records also enhances efficiency.

When you need to create original MARC records, you select from dialog boxes that present the appropriate values based on previous selections. And, you can immediately preview how the title will appear in the PAC.

Your Polaris Administrator can use a variety of options to manage cataloging records and specify how titles are displayed in the PAC. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide.

For more information on the features and functions available in Polaris Cataloging, see these topics:

Getting Started in Cataloging

Overview of Polaris cataloging records; methods for creating new records; how to search for and display bibliographic, authority, and item records.

Creating, Copying, and Editing MARC Records

Creating original MARC records; copying MARC records from remote sources; editing MARC records.

Using Cataloging Templates

Using templates to streamline your cataloging processes.

Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records

Setting up import profiles; importing records into your Polaris catalog.

Checking Cataloging Records

Checking records for headings, MARC format, and duplicates.

Maintaining Item Records

Creating item records and preparing items for circulation; printing labels.

Working with Multiple Cataloging Records

Grouping related cataloging records in record sets for bulk processing.

Maintaining Your Catalog

Maintaining your catalog; exporting records; identifying unlinked records; deleting records; and using reports to identify problems.

Managing Promotions

Creating and editing promotion records to feature resources in PAC.

Cataloging Bound-With Materials

When cataloging pamphlets or other materials that have individual titles and individual bibliographic records, but are bound together in physical volumes, libraries can group bibliographic records together.

Setting Up Labels

Setting up labels; customizing labels; defining label content; specifying label printers.

Generating and Copying Content Carousel Code

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Using the Carousel Toolkit (available by separate license) to copy code snippets for content carousels from the Polaris ILS to external web sites.

Type of Material Codes (TOMs)

Lists the Type of Material Codes (TOMs); the MARC codes required to produce specific TOMs; order of precedence to determine primary TOM.

Cataloging Shortcut Keys

List of Cataloging shortcut keys.

Cataloging Options on the Shortcut Bar

From the Polaris Shortcut Bar, you can create new cataloging records, find existing records, import or export records, and initiate automatic processing of cataloging records. Specific permissions are required for creating, modifying, deleting, and processing cataloging records. Course Reserves, Community Records, Promotions, Campaigns, and Carousel Toolkit are available if your library has licenses for these products. For information on the permissions required to do cataloging tasks, see Cataloging Permissions.

Tip:

You can also click the blue orb to expand the Cataloging toolbar. Then, click the icons to open the Find Tool and search for existing Cataloging

records. For example, click 🔲 to search for an existing bibliographic record.

See also:

- <u>Creating New Cataloging Records</u>
- <u>Accessing Existing Cataloging Records</u>
- Start Cataloging Records Processing

Creating New Cataloging Records

Tip:

In the New dialog box, select **Cataloging Objects** in the **View** box to list only Cataloging records.

To create a new Cataloging record, select **File** > **New**, press **CTRL+N** or click **New** dialog box appears. If the record type has templates defined, you can select **Existing Template** and choose a template to create a new record. If you are creating several records of the same type using the same template, you can select an existing template, and then click **Make session default**. When you create the next record of the same type, the template you selected will be used. If the record type does not have templates defined, or you want to create a new record without a template, click **OK**. See Methods for Adding New Records.

Accessing Existing Cataloging Records

Select **Cataloging** and select a menu option. The Find Tool opens for the selected record type. See <u>Finding Cataloging Records</u>.

Start Cataloging Records Processing

Select **Utilities** > **Cataloging Processing**. The Cataloging Processing submenu displays the processing utilities, such as purging cataloging records and managing the bulk change queue. See <u>Cleaning Up the Catalog</u>



Accessing the Carousel Toolkit

If your library has a license for this product, the Carousel Toolkit is available from the Polaris Shortcut Bar. For more information, see <u>Carousel Toolkit</u>.

Cataloging Records

Polaris Cataloging uses bibliographic records, authority records, item records, and templates. Bibliographic records can be linked to multiple item records and multiple authority records. Authority records can be linked to multiple bibliographic records and multiple authority records, but they are not linked to item records. An item record is linked to a single bibliographic record, and multiple item records can be linked to the same bibliographic record. Item records can also be linked to other item records.

Depending on your library's Polaris licenses, other selections may be available on the Cataloging menu. If your library has a license for Polaris Feature It, you can use Promotion records to feature titles, events, or community records in Polaris PowerPAC. If your library has a license for Polaris Community Profiles, you can create community records in Cataloging and then designate the organization representative who can update the record from the PAC.

See also:

- Bibliographic Records
- Item Records
- <u>Authority Records</u>
- <u>Cataloging Templates</u>
- <u>Record Sets</u>
- Promotion Records
- <u>Community Records</u>

Bibliographic Records

Every title in the library's catalog is represented by a bibliographic record saved in the Polaris database in MARC 21 Format for Bibliographic Data. Each bibliographic record is identified by a unique control number recorded in the 001 tag. You can add bibliographic records for new titles by importing records, copy cataloging, or original cataloging. See <u>Methods for Adding New Records</u>. A bibliographic record must have a Leader and an 008 tag to be saved in the Polaris database.

When you save a bibliographic record, it is checked for the correct MARC format and for possible duplicate records already in the catalog. When duplicate bibliographic records are found, you can automatically replace them. You can also replace records that were not identified as duplicates. In addition, headings are checked against authority records

to maintain consistent authority control. See <u>Checking Authority Headings</u>. You can create linked item records from the Tools menu on the Bibliographic Record workform. See <u>Creating Item Records</u>.



Viewing Circulation Statistics and Linked Item Records

Bibliographic records may be linked to multiple item records, each representing a distinct physical item. The total number of linked items is displayed in the Bibliographic Record workform header. To view the circulation statistics for all items linked to the bibliographic record, select **Tools > Show Usage Statistics** or press **CTRL+R** from the Bibliographic Record workform. You can also select a bibliographic record in the Find Tool results list, right-click and select **Preview**. The preview window's top pane displays the brief bibliographic view, the middle pane displays the usage statistics for linked items, and the bottom pane displays the list of linked items.

The usage statistics in the middle pane include the total number of items and circulations for all branches, and a list of the items and circulations by branch. The popularity of the title is displayed as **High**, **Medium**, or **Low**, based on the number of

circulations and holds. The titles with a popularity of High have circulated *and* had holds placed on the linked items within the last 120 days. The titles with a popularity of Medium have linked items that either circulated *or* had holds placed on them within the last 120 days. The titles that have a popularity ranking of Low have not had any linked items circulated or held within the last 120 days.

All the individual items linked to this bibliographic record are displayed in a list in the bottom pane of the window. You can do the following in the list of items:

- To sort the list, click on a column header.
- To open an item in the Item Record workform, double-click.
- To perform actions on a single item record, right-click and select an option from the menu.
- To perform actions on multiple item records, multi-select the items, right-click, and select an option from the menu.

Example:

Select the linked item records in the list, right-click, and select **Ad hoc Bulk Change**. The Item Bulk Change dialog box opens. See <u>Changing</u> <u>Multiple Item Records</u>.

P QA-PLATO	-R2 - Polaris Database (Bibliographic Rec	ord 414	320)			×
1	LCCN: 99023982					
	ISBN: 9780439136365 (pbk.):\$8.99			🗵 Displ	ay In P/	AC I
	9780439136358 :\$22.99					
	0439554926 (hc) :\$24.95					
	0439136369 (pbk.) :\$8.99					
	0439136350:\$19.95					
Other Contr	ol No: AGG-2466					
ρ	uthor: Howing, J. K.		K. Davidson (
	Grandpre.	ný by J.	K Howing:	nuseacons by	wary	
le la	nprint: New York : Arthur A. Levine Books/Sch	olaștic, c	1999.			1
Descri	ption: 435 p.: ill.: 24 cm.					
Q	menuer. During his third come at Houseaute Relays	d fere Milite	downed marel 14	Generaliza Manana	Onter	
Total numb	er of active holds: 0 Grand Tot	al Circu	lation (lifet	ime): 5310		1
Branch Nan	ne	No. (Ci of Items Y1	rc Circ TD Prev YTD	Circ Lifetim	e Y
Totals:			270 2	2 13	5305	
Amsterdem F	ree Librery (AMS)		a 0	0	115	
Activite Free I	ibrary (ABG)		3 0	0	27	
- Martine -	and points					
· Langerson and a second						620 7
Title	Assign Colle Ma Sh Call V.	. St	Barcode	Lest Ac	R. Co	x *
Horry Potter Harry Potter	C					
	Upen		000430033	10,000	F 22	
Herry Potter	Checkin	In Lost	000430033	10/23/	F. 20 F. 20 F. 20	3 2
Herry Potter Harry Potter	Open Check In Piace Hold	In Lost Lost	000430022 000430003 000430003	10/23/ 2/26/2 11/3/2	F. 20 F. 20 F. 20 F. 20	5 2 5
Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter	Open Check In Piace Hold	in Lost Lost	000430022 000430023 000430037 000430037	10/23/ 2/26/2 11/3/2 2/23/2	F. 20 F. 20 F. 20 F. 20 F. 20 F. 20	5
Herry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Herry Potter	Open Check In Piace Hold Print	In Lost Lost Lost In	00430033 000430022 000430043 000430045 000430046	10/23/ 2/20/2 11/3/2 2/23/2 0/29/2	F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200	5 2 5 5
Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter	Check In Piace Hold Print • Add to Record Set •	In Lost Lost Lost In Lost	000430033 000430033 000430037 000430035 000430046 000430051	14/23/ 2/26/2 11/3/2 2/23/2 0/29/2 4/2/2007	F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200 F. 200	3 3 5 5 7
Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter Herry Potter	Check In Piace Hold Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List	In Lost Lost In Lost Lost	000430032 000430033 000430033 000430035 000430035 000430051 000430035	14/23/ 2/26/2 11/3/2 2/23/2 11/3/2 11/3/2 11/3/2 4/2/2007 3/13/2	F. 20 F. 20	3 2 5 5 7 5
Harry Petter Harry Petter Harry Petter Harry Petter Harry Petter Harry Petter Harry Petter	Check In Place Hold Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List Remove from Route List	in Lost Lost In Lost Lost Lost In In	00430022 00430022 00430033 000430035 000430046 000430051 000430051 0004300512 000260512	 10/23/ 10/23/ 2/26/2 11/3/2 2/23/2 8/29/2 4/2/2007 3/13/2 3/31/2 2/31/2 	F. 20 F.	 μ μ λ λ
Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter Harry Patter	Check In Piace Hold Print Add to Record Set Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change	in In Lost Lost In Lost Lost In In In In In	00430033 000430022 000430033 000430037 000430046 000430055 000430061 000260012 000260012	 10/23/ 10/23/ 2/2b/2 11/3/2 1/23/2 N/29/2 4/2/2007 3/13/2 3/31/2 7/30/2 0/12/2. 	E. 20 E.	λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ λ
Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter Harry Potter	Check In Piace Hold Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change	in Lost Lost Lost Lost In In In In Nu	600430002 600430022 600430037 600430036 600430035 600430035 600430051 600260012 600260012 600260013 600260013		 E. 20 E. 21 <	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Herry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter Horry Potter	Check In Place Hold Print Add to Record Set Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change Create	in In Lost Lost In Lost Lost In In In M W	600430003 600430022 600430037 600430037 600430035 600430051 600430051 600260012 600260012 600260013 600260013 600260013 600260014		E. 20 E. 20	3 2 3 3 3 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3
Herry Potter Harry Potter	Ciperi Check In Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change Create • Links •	in In Lost Lost In Lost In In In In M, W	000430032 000430033 000430033 000430035 000430035 000430055 000430055 000260012 000260012 000260012 000260041 000000041		 F. 200 F. 201 F. 20	1 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Herry Potter Harry Potter	Ciperi Check In Priace Hold Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change Create • Links • Delete	in la Lost Lost Lost Lost In In In Mill Will Will Will Will In	000430033 000430032 000430032 000430035 000430035 000430035 000430035 000260012 000260012 000260012 000260012		E. 200 E.	Image: Amage of the second s
Herry Potter Horry Potter	Ciperi Check In Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Roote List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change Create • Links • Delete Undelete	n Lost Lost Lost Lost Lost Lost In In In W In Lost N In Lost	000430022 000430022 000430037 000430045 000430045 000430045 000430045 000260042 000260042 000260042 000260041 000260044 000260045 000260045			3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3
Herry Potter Harry Potter	Ciperi Check In Print • Add to Record Set • Add to Route List Remove from Route List Ad hoc Bulk Change Create • Links • Delete Undelete Properties	n ba Lost Lost Lost Inst Inst In M W In Lost In In Lost In	000430032 000430042 000430042 000430042 000430042 000430042 000430042 000430042 000430042 000260042 000260042 000260042 000200044 000200044 000200044		E. 200 E.	3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3 5 3
Herry Potter Herry Potter	Create Create	n ba Lost Lost Lost In Lost In M W In Lost In In	00430022 00430022 0043003 0043003 0043003 0043003 00043003 000430032 00026003 00026003 00026003 00026003 00026003 00026003 00026003 00026003 0002004 000200000000		E. 200 E. 201 E.	3 3 5 3

Preview the Title Display in the PAC

Tips:

Click to display the PAC view. A Polaris Administration profile can be set to always open the Bibliographic Record workform to the PAC view.

Select **View > PAC** to preview the title's bibliographic data display in Polaris PowerPAC. The view of the PAC from the Bibliographic Record is the same as it appears for your patrons, including all the customization you have set up for your PAC. Some actions that are possible from the PAC may not be possible from this view, such as searching for other records or actions that require the PAC user to log in. Links to external sites open in a new browser window. Web links are active from the PAC view if the record has an 856 tag. For more information on how Web links are displayed in the PAC, see <u>Web</u> <u>Links Display in the PAC</u>.

If you have not resized the bibliographic record workform from its default size, the PAC view appears as it would on a tablet device. If you make the workform larger, the display may change to the way it would appear on a desktop computer. That is, action buttons such as **Availability** and **Full Display** may move from below the title metadata to the right side of the data. The example shows the display at the default workform size.

Note:

The title information that is displayed in the PAC can be customized in Polaris Administration. See the Public Access Administration PDF Guide, Configuring the PowerPAC Title Display..



Web Links Display in the PAC

The clickable Web link text that displays in the PAC full and brief displays for a title is determined by the subfields in the 856 tag as follows:

• 856\$u - URL - If the bibliographic record has an 856\$u without a \$y, \$3, or \$z, the default text Web Link is displayed in PowerPAC instead of the URL.



• 856\$y - Link Text - If the bibliographic record has an 856\$y, the text in the first occurrence of this tag is used for the Web link display instead of the URL in the 856\$u.



• 856\$3 - Material Specified - If the bibliographic record does not have an 856\$y, but it does have an 856\$3, the text in the first occurrence of this tag is used for the

Web link display instead of the URL in the **856\$u**.

3Publisher description uhttp://www.loc.gov/catdir/description/mh031/2002035104.html

MATTIC LEARNER BRILLE AND STRATEGIES	 Little League drills and strategies : imaginative practice drills to improve skills and attitude by McIntosh, Ned. Published: c2003. 	AVAILABILITY FULL DISPLAY
2003	- Little League drills and strategies : imaginative practice drills to improve skills and attitude / Ned McIntosh and Rich Publisher, Date: Chicago : Contemporary Books, c2003. otten test entity Includes index. C - Publisher description Description: xii, 172 p. : ill.; 24 cm. Series: Little League baseball guide.	Add to My List
	Available system-wide: 4 (of 4) Call Number: 796.357 McI Format (Primary): Book	

• 856\$z - Public Note - If the bibliographic record has an 856\$u with an 856\$z, the default text Web Link is the clickable link, and the text in subfield z appears after the link.

856 40	puhttp://palmsprings.lib.overdrive.com/ContentDetails.htm?ID=E405A7FD-109F-4328-925E-B38AA26DD345
LARA ADRIAN DARKER	1. Darker after midnight [electronic resource] : a midnight breed FULL DISPLAY novel by Adrian, Lara.
	Publisher, Date: <u>New York : Random</u> House, 2012. Web Site: C Web Link Click here Description: 1 onine resource
2012	Series: Adrian, Lara. Midnight breed series ; bk. 10.
User rating Rate or review	
► Add to Shelf	
see reviews/add a re view ; 10 reviews (★★★★) Coogle Preview	

Item Records

856

An item record represents a unique physical or electronic copy of the bibliographic record title to which it is linked. Although information from the linked bibliographic record appears in the Item Record workform's header, item records do not contain

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

MARC 21 data. Several item records, each representing a separate item, may be linked to the same bibliographic record. Item records are not necessary for ebook titles if the ebook vendor does not integrate with Polaris Circulation.

Note:

If you select **File** | **New, Item Record** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, the New Item Record Options dialog box appears. Use this dialog box to create multiple items linked to the same bibliographic record. See <u>Creating Item Records</u>. If you are creating one record, you can click **OK** to go to the Item Record workform.

Tip:

On the Bibliographic Record workform, select Links, Item Records, press

CTRL+T or click **1** to see all the other item records that are linked to the same bibliographic record.

By default, the initial view of the Item Record workform depends on how you open the record. When you are creating a new item record, the workform opens to the Cataloging view. When you open an item record from a purchase order line item or invoice line item, the workform opens to the Source and Acquisition view. In all other cases, the workform opens to the Circulation view. However, you can set a Polaris Administration profile so that the Item Record workform always opens to a particular view.

			Item Record 2049	753 - Circ	ulation - Polaris	1		- 🗆 🗙
File Ed	lit View Link	s Tools Help						
	🚅 🔒	🕾 - 🗙 🔀 🗾	• 🖸 🖺 4	r 🔨	i 🏐 🦾 I	8 17		
7	Barcode:	0004300346626	Record status: Final		ILL EC	ontent	Non-circulating	Display in PAC
no	Title:	Harry Potter and the Chamber of Se	ecrets			Find	Bib control number:	406869
S S	Author:	Rowling, J. K.			Parent item:		Item control number:	2049753
R	Call number:	YA Fict Row			Price: \$	6.99	Issue control no.:	
ш	Owner:	Amsterdam Free Library (br)		¥	Shelf location:	(None)		¥
Ite	Assigned:	Amsterdam Free Library (AMS)		¥	Temporary location	:		
a	Collection:	(None)		¥	Circulation status:	Withdrawn	¥	
						In-trans	sit/Transferred	
	Due date:		Current borrower:			From:	:	
	Check-out date	:	Loaning branch:					
2						Sent:		
=	Renewals taken	1 Limit: 1	Held for patron:			To:		
R	Last renew date	2:	Held at:					
	Original due dat	te:				Recei	ved:	
	Last location		Last use					
	Check-in at:		Last borrower:	100430000	8449			
			Loaning branch:	Amsterdam	Free Library			
	Date:							
	Wks/User:		Last circulated:	6/12/2007	4:50:19 PM			
								La la marte
For Help,	press F1							NUM

Authority Records

Polaris uses the MARC 21 Format for Authority Data for authority records, which are linked to bibliographic records or other authority records. When you change an authority record, the change is applied to all linked records. Authority records are identified by a unique control number recorded in the 001 tag of the authority record. Like bibliographic records, authority records are subject to MARC 21 validation (tag checking) to help you maintain correct and consistent records. For more information, see <u>Create a new</u> authority record.

A			Authority Record 938808 - MARC21 - Polaris – 🗖 🔀
File Ed	lit View	Links	Tools Help
	2 (» - 🗙 🖄 🐁 🖻 🕿 🕿 🚟 🚾 2, 💑 💰 🖆 😭
гd	Control	number:	938808 Record status: Final
CO	Heading	g:	Rowling, J. K.
Se	Tee	المعا	Deta
		Ind	Data
	LDR		cz 22 n 4500
	001		938808
6	003		Polars lest
<u>q</u>	005		20130/29991810.0
lt.	008		9/1028nj azannaabn ja aaa
	010		
	035		
	035		1a1000318
	035		131220602
	035		1a/PolarisTest)938220
	040		
			‡aDLC‡beng‡erda‡cDLC‡dUPB‡dIAhCCS‡dDLC‡dOCl‡dOCoLC‡dNNC‡dDLC‡dINU‡dIU±dIEN‡dOrU±dUPB‡dIEN
			‡dOCoLC‡dDLC‡dUPB‡dWaU
	053	0	‡aPR6068.093
	100	1	‡aRowling, J. K.
	400	1	‡aRowling, Joanne K.
	400	1	‡aRowling, Jo
	400	1	‡aRoling, G'e. Ķe
	400	1	‡aRowlingová, Joanne K.
	1.000	-	A-Datid Rul V
For Help,	press F1		NUM

Automatic Authority Control Using a Remote Database

If you have a subscription to Polaris ZMARC, you can find and save a new authority record from ZMARC when you save a bibliographic record and no matching authority record is found in the local database. The new authority record is saved and the bibliographic record is linked. See <u>ZMARC Remote Authority Control</u>.

Authorities Weekly Update Service

If you have a subscription to Polaris Authorities Weekly, Innovative Interfaces installs a job at your site that tracks your authority records. When updates are issued by the Library of Congress, the system checks the records to see if any match the authority records your library has. If matches are found, and there are updates, an e-mail message informs your administrator and provides the location of the file containing the updated authorities. You can then import the authority records and overlay your existing ones using the import profile **Authority Update Import**. See <u>Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records</u>.

Cataloging Templates

Cataloging templates help your library maintain consistent records and reduce the number of keystrokes required to create new cataloging records. You can create bibliographic, authority, and item templates by manually entering data or by saving existing records as templates, and then editing the data. See <u>Using Cataloging</u> <u>Templates</u> for more information.

Record Sets

Tip:

You can bulk change item records from lists, such as the Find Tool search results or linked list boxes, without putting the items in a record set. See <u>Changing Multiple Item Records</u>.

Record sets group related records together so you can retrieve them in one step. Bibliographic and item records in a record set can be changed or processed in one step. For example, you can gather bibliographic records in a record set, and then use the bulk change process to make the same changes to all the records in one step. You can create record sets of bibliographic, item, or authority records, but you cannot have different types of records in one record set. See <u>Working With Multiple Records</u>.

When you import bibliographic or authority records, you can specify a destination record set to group them. This allows for more efficient retrieval and manipulation of the imported records. See <u>Set import options for record sets</u>.

			Record Set 6	529 - Po	olaris				-	. 🗆	×
File Ed	it View	Tools Help									
et	Name:	Camping	Owner:	ong Lake L	ibrary (bi	r)		✓ Re	cord type:	Bibliographic	:
1 S	Note:							Nu	mber of recor	ds: 17	
Sorc								Q 🖷 🗕	i 🖻 🖨	- 🖻 🖳	<
lec	Title		Author	Format	Link	Holds	Publi	Call Number	Control	Status	^
L C C	The boy's	s book of backyard camping	Macfarlan, Allan A.	Book	1	0	1974	J 796.54 M	6872	Final	
U U	The budg	et backpacker : how to select or make,	Zakreski, L. A.	Book	1	0	1977	688.76 Z	861164	Final	
5	Camp Da	vid : peacemaking and politics	Quandt, William B.	Book	2	0	1986	327.73 Q	34330	Final	
2	Camp Kee	eWee's secret weapon	Schulman, Janet.	Book	7	0	1979	JE Fict Sch	3931	Final	
3	Camp out	t	Stine, R. L.	Book	3	0	1998	Fict Sti YA	327980	Final	
2	Camping		Hundal, Nancy, 1	Book	2	0	2002	jP Fict Hun	513396	Final	
0	Camping	: a complete guide to why, how, and w	Carra, Andrew J.	Book	14	0	1978	796.54 C	1870	Final	
9.	Canoe ca	Imping	Evans, George He	Book	28	0	1977	797.12 E92c	118	Final	
	The comp	olete wilderness paddler	Davidson, James	Book	7	0	1976	797.122 Dav	6672	Final	
it.	Fives, six	es and sevens	Stephenson, Marj	Book	3	0	1968	j 821.08 S	78545	Final	
E C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Grin and	bear it	LaFoy, Leslie.	Book	4	0	2005	LaF	687227	Final	
	Hail, hail,	Camp Timberwood	Conford, Ellen.	Book	7	0	1978	J Fict Con	2869	Final	
RS	How to b	uild a comfortable campsite	Sherwood, Marth	Book	2	0	1979	685.53 S	6566	Final	
	Just once	2	Christian, Mary Bl	Book	3	0	1990	Fict	359940	Final	
	Light weig	ght camping equipment and how to mak	Cunningham, Gerry.	Book	1	0	1976	796.54 C	10391	Final	
	The Rand	lom House handbook	Crews, Frederick C.	Book	5	0	1977	425 C92	991	Final	~
For Help,	press F1							17 of	17 record(s) i	retrieved	

Promotion Records

If your library has a license for Polaris Feature It, Promotion records are used to feature titles, events, or community records in Polaris PowerPAC. Staff members select the featured resources and specify the conditions under which the resources are featured. The library can specify the materials in the library's collection, Web sites, community organizations, events, and services. For more information, see <u>Creating and Editing</u> <u>Promotion Records</u>.



Community Records

If your library has purchased Polaris Community Profiles, a separately licensed product, a staff member with the appropriate permissions can create or edit a community record using the Community Record workform. After the community record is created, a staff member can designate a patron as a community representative who can update and modify the record from Polaris PowerPAC.

-X-	2 19			
Organization name				
Easts ide Community	Center			
Control number:	Owner			Pecord status
1530	Community Library (Cableskil) (br)		¥	Final
	ContentXChange widgets link to:			Organization type:
Deplay in PAC	Community Library (Cobieskil) (br)		v	Organization or Club
Profile Mansinto E	vente Social Services Subjects Orga	nization Rep Preview Statistics		
Lego	1			
-	English on the second second section while	REATING STRUCTURE TANKS IN		Auto To Tank Manadal SD
CO.	untract datase conversion set. Include	3930148L200HA456K02740H2800	0612LJIBC	dora i tri este vitrate su
AL AND	Logo description:			
0.5	Eastside Community Center			
	"logo size will not exceed 100 pisels X	100 pawla		
Prenary address	Atomato address			
Address:				
826 Euclid Ave.				
City:		State / Province:	P	setal code:
Syracuse		NY	1	3210
Phone number:		TTY	-	as number:
315-111-1111				
Contact person:		E-mail address:		

Methods for Adding New Records

You can add bibliographic and authority records to the Polaris catalog database by manually entering original records using the MARC Editor, importing records from other sources, and copying records from remote databases. In most libraries, original cataloging is done infrequently. Instead, catalog records are usually converted from other library automation systems, produced by library vendors and conversion services, imported, or copied from other sources.

Polaris also provides multiple methods for creating item records. You can quickly create multiple items for copies of the same title by entering information common to all the items, and then entering the branch and collection for each copy. If you are creating a single item record, you can enter the information on the Item Record workform. In either case, whether you are creating a single or multiple item records, you can use an item record template. In addition, item records can be created automatically by importing bibliographic records with embedded holdings.

See also:

- Original Cataloging
- Importing Records

- <u>Copying MARC Records from Other Sources</u>
- Creating Preliminary Bib Records in Acquisitions
- Creating Multiple Items for a Single Title
- Automatic Remote Authority Control
- Creating Digital-Collection Bibliographic Records in Polaris Fusion

Original Cataloging

Polaris has several tools to make original cataloging faster and easier. With the MARC Editor, you can select data from lists, check the MARC format, enter international characters, and use macros to automatically enter standard information. In addition, you can use templates that have default cataloging data already filled in. For more information, see <u>Creating MARC Records</u>.

Importing Records

Importing is the process of moving multiple MARC 21-formatted records into the Polaris database from an outside source. You can import bibliographic and authority records, and item records can be created from embedded holdings data in 852 tags (or other locally-defined tags, such as the 949 tag) in the imported bibliographic records. For more information, see <u>Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records</u>.

Copying MARC Records from Other Sources

You can modify an existing record in Polaris, or you can display and copy bibliographic and authority records from other sources. Such sources may be other libraries, suppliers, or cataloging services that make their catalog records available at no cost or for a fee. If you subscribe to ZMARC, you can search for and save bibliographic or authority records from the ZMARC database. See <u>Copying MARC records</u>.

Creating Preliminary Bib Records in Acquisitions

You can create brief bibliographic records by typing the bibliographic information in a purchase order line item, or by pulling in title information from a supplier's database using Titles to Go. See the Acquisitions PDF Guide, Ordering topic.

Creating Multiple Items for a Single Title

You can create multiple item records linked to the same bibliographic record using the New Item Record Options dialog box where you specify the distribution information for

each item. See Create multiple item records for a single title.

Automatic Remote Authority Control

If your library has a subscription to a remote database of authority records, the remote database is automatically searched when no matching authority record is found. The new authority record is saved in the database and linked to the new bibliographic records. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Managing Authority Control..

Creating Digital-Collection Bibliographic Records in Polaris Fusion

Records created in Polaris Fusion are automatically saved as bibliographic records in the Polaris database with a type of material of digital collection. For more information, see Polaris Fusion online Help.

Finding Cataloging Records

You can use the Polaris Find Tool to search your library's catalog, catalogs of other libraries using Polaris, catalogs of remote libraries that do not use Polaris, and other remote databases. When you search for bibliographic records in languages other than English, you can enter diacritics and special characters. If you have a subscription to ZMARC, you can also search the ZMARC records directly from Polaris. MARC records from these outside sources can be previewed and then saved to the Polaris database.

Important:

Before you can search remote databases from the Polaris Find Tool, your Polaris administrator must set up the remote databases as targets.

When you do a search, the records are displayed in the results list, or if you selected **Count Only**, a count of the matching records is displayed. You can select a **Sort by** option to sort the records so that they display in a specified order. From the results list, you can open the record in the appropriate workform, or you can right-click the record and perform other actions from the context menu. The results list can be sorted and printed to create a quick report. You can also send the records to a record set from the Find Tool, with or without displaying them in the results list. For basic information about using the Find Tool, see <u>Finding Polaris Records</u>.

See also:

- Searching Tips
- Shortcut Keys to Find Bibliographic and Item Records
- Viewing Serial Item Records in the Polaris Find Tool
- <u>Access Points for Cataloging Records</u>
- Searching for Items or Bib Records by RFID Tag
- Sorting the Results List
- <u>Automatic Suggestions for Keyword & Phrase Searches</u>
- Linking Between Records
- Find Cataloging Records in Your Library's Database
- Preview Bibliographic Records from the Find Tool

Searching Tips

You can reduce typing by using an implicitly truncated search. For example, a title search for "bulletin" could be done using the following string: **bulle**. You have the option to use the wild card character * at the beginning and end of a search string. For example, an author search for Isaac Asimov could be done by inputting: **Asimov***. The results would contain all instances of Asimov as an author in the catalog.

Note:

When you do a phrase or keyword search for a title that includes an ampersand (&), the search treats the ampersand the same as the word "and". The ampersand and the word "and" are not interchangeable for exact match or browse searches.

Ignore Initial Articles in Titles

If the **Use Initial Articles** check box is checked, the initial article in a title is ignored or "stripped out" if that article is defined in the Initial Articles table in Polaris Administration. You can clear the **Use Initial Articles Table** check box to help find records where the non-filing indicators are set improperly.

The **Use Initial Articles** check box is active only when the search type is **Exact match** (either implicitly or explicitly truncated), and you are searching for the following records:

- Authority Records (Heading, Tracing/Reference)
- Bibliographic Records (Title and Series)
- Serials Check In Records (Title)

- Claims (Title) (both for Acquisitions and Serial versions)
- Course Reserve Records (Title)
- Hold Requests (Title)
- ILL Requests (Title)
- Invoice Line Items (Title)
- Issue Records (Title)
- Item Records (Title and Series)
- Part Records (Title)
- Purchase Order Line Items (Title)
- Reserve Item Records (Title)
- Route Lists (Title)
- Selection List Line Items (Title)
- Serial Holdings Records (Title)
- Subscription Records (Title)

Shortcut Keys to Find Bibliographic and Item Records

From anywhere in the Polaris application, you can use the following shortcut keys to bring up the Find Tool to search for cataloging records.

- Bibliographic Records F12
- Item Records Ctrl+Alt+F9

For a list of other shortcut keys, see Cataloging Shortcut Keys.

Viewing Serial Item Records in the Polaris Find Tool

When you search for serial item records, you may need to expand the **Title** column in the Polaris Find Tool results list to see the serial item's designation because it is appended to the title. You can drag the bottom right corner of the window, then drag the **Title** column border right to expand it. The serial item's designation is displayed at the end of the title.

39,9,9,9, 39	ttings Scoping Branches Collection	o Databases	1				Easth
Object:	Item Records	· Linit by:	Type of material	Search Mode			acaiun
Search by:	Tite	w Values:	(ner) Serial	Power			Stop
Typer	Exect match (implicitly truncated)	•	[rec] Sound Recording [art] Three Dimensional Object (Ar	C SQL			New Search
Soct by	Tide		vid Wdearecarding	Count Only			Gear
Por:	against the grain	*	[vis] Visual Materials				Help
ītle				Assigned Branch	Collect	Materi	Shelf L.
					Dedaca		
gainst the	grain : knicing publishers, vendors ar	id librarians i	. 23 # 5 (November 2011)	Stillwater Public -	norcice	- rendules	and the
Against the Against the	grain : linking publishers, vendors ar grain : linking publishers, vendors ar	nd librarians o nd librarians o	. 23 # 5 (November 2011) . 23 # 4 (September 2011)	Stilwater Public	Refere	Periodi	
Against the Against the Against the	grain Linking publishers, vendors at grain : linking publishers, vendors at grain : linking publishers, vendors at	nd Horarians v nd Horarians v nd Horarians v	.23 # 3 (November 2011) .23 # 4 (September 2011) .23 # 3 (June 2011)	Stillwater Public Stillwater Public	Refere	Periodi	
Against the Against the Against the Against the	grain : Enking publishes, vendos ar grain : Enking publishes, vendos ar grain : Enking publishes, vendos ar grain : Enking publishes, vendos ar	of Ribrarians v of Ribrarians v of Ribrarians v of Ribrarians v	223 # 5 (Maxember 2011) .23 # 4 (September 2011) .23 # 3 (June 2011) .23 # 2 (April 2011)	Stillwater Public Stillwater Public Stillwater Public	Refere Refere Refere	Periodi Periodi Periodi	
Against the Against the Against the Against the Against the	grain : linking publishers, vanders ar grain : linking publishers, vendors ar grain : linking publishers, vendors ar grain : linking publishers, vendors ar	od librarians v od librarians v od librarians v od librarians v od librarians v	23 # 3 (Movember 2011) 23 # 4 (September 2011) 23 # 3 (Une 2011) 23 # 2 (April 2011) 23 # 1 (February 2011)	Stillwater Public Stillwater Public Stillwater Public Stillwater Public	Refere Refere Refere Refere	Periodi Periodi Periodi	

Access Points for Cataloging Records

Tip:

Searching a remote database for bibliographic records requires the access point to have a standard Bib-1 Use Attribute, which are not defined for some access points, such as UPC. If you are searching a remote database for bibliographic records by UPC, select the access point **Standard system number**, and enter the UPC barcode number.

The **Search by** box on the Find Tool contains index criteria specific to the type of record you want to find. The available search types depend on what is selected in the **By** box. You can narrow your search using a **Limit By** option and entering a limit by value.

You can customize the Find Tool with your preference for searching by setting up your search for a specific type of record, and then selecting **Options > Save as User Default**. See <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>.

Searching for Items or Bib Records by RFID Tag

The option to search by RFID tag is located under the **Tools** menu. When **RFID Read Tag** is selected, the **Search by** selection is set to **Barcode** automatically. You can also search for the linked bibliographic record by scanning the RFID tag. Select **Tools**, **RFID Read Tag** and scan the tag using the RFID reader. The item record is displayed in the Find Tool results.

Sorting the Results List

You can select a **Sort by** option to sort the results before they are displayed. The **Sort by** options depend on the type of record selected. For example, you could search for bibliographic records by subject and sort by **Title, then Author, then Type of Material**. Sorting options can also be saved as a user default.

Automatic Suggestions for Keyword & Phrase Searches

As you type a keyword or phrase for a bibliographic, item, or authority record, suggested titles or headings appear if the **Auto-suggest feature enabled** Cataloging parameter is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration. Select one of the suggestions to see the matching records. You can turn off automatic suggestions by clicking on **Hide Suggestions**. To

show suggestions when they are hidden, click right side of the text entry box.

Linking Between Records

Certain types of cataloging records are linked in Polaris. For example, item records are always linked to a bibliographic record. You can easily navigate from a record to its linked records by selecting **Links** from a workform menu, or from the right-click menu in a list of records.

Find Cataloging Records in Your Library's Database

To find and list bibliographic records, item records, authority records, templates, or record sets in your local database:

Note:

The available tabs in the Find Tool depend on the type of record selected.

Tip:

To search for bibliographic records from anywhere in the Polaris application, press **F12**. To search for item records, press **Ctrl+Alt+F9**.

- 1. From the Polaris Shortcut Bar, select **Cataloging**, or press **ALT+C** to display the Cataloging menu.
- 2. Select a record type from the Cataloging menu.

The Polaris Find Tool appears.

Tip: You can tab from field to field in the Find Tool.

You can change the type of record in the **Object** box.

3. Select the search access point in the **Search By** box.

Tip:

If you are searching for a bibliographic record, you can search for a 10-digit or 13-digit ISBN. You can also search by the Other Standard Identifier (which can be a UPC code or stock number). The Other Standard Identifier may be used when searching for non-print items that do not have an ISBN.

- 4. Select the search type in the **Type** box:
 - To find anything that begins with the contents of the **For** box, select **Exact match (implicitly truncated)**.
 - To find anything that has exactly the contents of the **For** box, select **Exact match (explicitly truncated)**.
 - To open an index that begins with the contents of the **For** box, select **Browse**.
 - To find any occurrence of the contents in the **For** box, select **Keyword search**.
 - To find the entries in the **For** box adjacent to each other in the data, and in order, select **Phrase search**.
- 5. To sort the search results, select an option in the **Sort by** box. Sort is not available in Browse searches.

Tip:

If you are doing a keyword or phrase search for a bibliographic or authority record, you may see automatic suggestions as you type.

- 6. Type your search text in the **For** box.
- 7. To limit your search results, select an option in the Limit by box, and either select a value or type it in the Value box. Some Limit by options have pre-set selections in the Value box. For example, if you select Language, a list of languages appears in the Value box. If you select Author, you type the author's name in the Value box.

8. If you would typically search for this type of record using the same search criteria, select **Options** > **User Default** to save your search options. To set the option back to the system default, select **Options** > **Revert to System Default**.

Note:

Limit by values selected from a drop-down list are saved in the user default, but free-text values are not saved. For example, if the **Limit by** selection is **Subject** and you enter **history** in the **Values** box, the value is not saved.

Tip:

If you just want a count of the records without seeing them in a list, click **Count Only**.

9. Click Search, or press Enter or ALT+S.

A list of records matching your search criteria appears at the bottom of the Find Tool (unless you selected **Count Only**). You can use the scroll bar to scroll through the list of results, or use the up and down arrows on your keyboard.

10. Double-click the record to open the record in its workform, or right-click and choose an option from the context menu. Depending on the record type, you can perform various actions on the record without opening it in the workform.

Related Information

- Setting limits on the number of records returned Set Find Tool Results Limits
- Searching databases other than your library's database <u>Searching Remote Data-bases</u>
- Searching using an SQL query <u>Setting Up SQL Searches</u>
- Using the Power Search option Doing Power Searches
- Using scoping to narrow your search <u>Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items</u>

Preview Bibliographic Records from the Find Tool

To preview bibliographic records from the Find Tool results list without opening the records:

 Select Cataloging > Bibliographic Records from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, or press F12.

The Find Tool appears.

Tip:

You can preview bibliographic records from remote databases, but the circulation statistics do not appear.

2. Search for the bibliographic record or records. See <u>Find cataloging records in your</u> <u>library's database</u>.

The records that match the search criteria appear in the results list.

3. Select the bibliographic record that you want to preview, right-click, and select **Pre-view**.

Tip:

To see more of any part of the window, drag the panel edges.

The Preview window opens. For more information, see <u>Viewing Circulation</u> <u>Statistics and Linked Item Records</u>.

4. To preview other bibliographic records in the list, leave the Preview window open, click in the Find Tool results list, and press the down arrow key.

Finding Polaris Records

You use the Polaris Find Tool to search for existing records in your local database and to perform actions with these records without having to open them. You can use the Find Tool to do a basic search, or you can use various options to focus your search more precisely. If your library has established connections to other remote databases, you can also use the Polaris Find Tool to search these databases.

Note:

For information about searching for Polaris Administration records, such as libraries, branches, staff members or workstations, see the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Find an administration record. For information about searching for permissions, see the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Finding Permissions.

See also:

- Polaris Find Tool Overview
- Doing a Basic Search
- Doing a Browse Search
- Doing a Keyword Search

- Doing a Phrase Search
- Doing Power Searches
- Setting Up SQL Searches
- <u>Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items</u>
- Searching Branches
- Searching Collections
- Searching Remote Databases

Polaris Find Tool Overview

With over 600 access points as well as relevancy ranking, sorting, limiting, proximity searching, CCL queries, scoping, SQL searches, and automatic suggestions, the Polaris Find Tool provides search options for all types of tasks. You can save user defaults for the types of searches you do most often.

The "count only" option gives you a simple count, such as the number of DVDs in a certain collection, without returning the search result list. You can add records to a record set from a "count only" search without returning the records in a the results list, or you can select the records from the results list and put them in a record set.

Your library can set up Z39.50 targets for external databases that you can search directly from the Find Tool - allowing you to save new records to the local database in one step.

If you have the required permissions, you can create and save a SQL search in the Polaris Find Tool. SQL searches are used for data retrieval only; data cannot be manipulated through the Find Tool. Once a SQL query is saved, other staff members can use the saved search even if they do not have permission to create and save one.

In addition to the many methods and access points available for searching in the Find Tool, you can perform tasks on single or multiple records listed in search results, provided you have the required permissions. If you select a single record, you can select **Links** to access the linked records. From the bibliographic search results, you can select **Preview** to see the titles' circulation statistics. Other options include checking in multiple serial issues and bulk-changing multiple item records.

You can also use the Polaris Find Tool to create quick reports from the search results list. For example, if the library needs to see a list of items in a certain collection that have not circulated in the last three years, you can create a report in the Find Tool by printing the results list.

See also:

- Find Tool Tab Display
- Set Find Tool results limits
- Get a count of records without displaying them
- Customize the Find Tool by user

Find Tool Tab Display

When you search for bibliographic or item records, all the Find Tool tabs are displayed: **General**, **Settings**, **Scoping**, **Branches**, **Collections**, and **Databases**.

All tabs are also displayed when you search for an object that has bibliographic or item records in the **Object** list. For example, when you search for Community Records, Bibliographic Records or Item Records can be selected in the **Object** list.

However, if the tab cannot be used in the context of the search, a message appears on the tab. For example, if you are searching for a bibliographic record using a Browse search type, and you select the Scoping tab, the message **Scoping is not applicable in this context** appears.

For most other records (objects), such as Acquisitions, Serials, and Patron records, only the General and Settings tabs are displayed.

Set Find Tool Results Limits

The greater the number of records retrieved and displayed in the results list, the slower the retrieval time. To ensure optimal performance, a default retrieval limit is set in Polaris Administration, but you can change the limit for a specific search. You can also increase the amount of time the system will search before timing out. For information on Find Tool error messages and how you can resolve them, see <u>Resolving Find Tool</u> <u>Search Issues</u>.

Note:

For more information on the Find Tool profiles in Polaris Administration, see the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Setting Find Tool Profiles.

To specify how you want retrieval results to be handled:

- 1. Open the Find Tool.
- 2. Create your search query, but do not click **Search** yet.
- 3. Select the **Settings** tab.

Tip:

These settings remain in effect until you click New search or close the

Find Tool. Changing the settings here does not affect the default settings in Polaris Administration. You can restore the default settings by clicking **Reset to Default**.

The Settings tab appears.

- If you want to create a record set from the results, check Send Results to a New Record Set. Search the Polaris help for "Create a record set from all the Find Tool results."
- 5. If you want to change the default settings, do the following:

Tip:

If the number of records returned in a search is equal to the retrieval limit, increase the retrieval limit to make sure all records that meet your search criteria are retrieved.

- Type a different number to change the number of records that are retrieved in the Retrieval Limit box. The default limit is set in Polaris Administration with the profile Find Tool: Default number of records to return in a result set. See the Polaris Administration Guide, Set Find Tool defaults. To set the retrieval limit back to the default, click Reset to Default.
- Type a different number in the **Search Timeout (sec)** to increase or decrease the amount of time (in seconds) that the system will search before timing out. The default is 30 seconds.

Tip:

If you want Polaris to sort records, you must select a **Sort by** option on the Find Tool's General page.

• Check or clear the **Use Initial Articles Table** check box. If this box is checked, the initial article in a title is ignored if that article is defined in the Initial Articles table (see the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Defining Leading Articles).

Get a Count of Records Without Displaying Them

You can use the **Count only** option with any type of search, including an SQL search. To search for specific types of records and get a count of the records without displaying them in a list:

- 1. Enter your search criteria on the Find Tool- General tab.
- 2. Select **Count only**.

Tip:

If you want to add the records to a record set, go to the **Settings** tab and enter the information for the record set before clicking **Search**.

3. Click **Search**. A count of the records appears in the status line of the Find Tool.

🔊 Item Records - Circulation status Find Tool		_	
File Edit Tools Options Help			
General Settings Scoping Branches Collections	Databases		
Object: Item Percende	Limit by (Mono)	Search Mode	Search
object:	cimic by: (None)	Normal	Stop
Search by: Circulation status ~	Value:	OPower	0.00
Type: Exact match (implicitly truncated) \sim		⊖ SQL	New Search
Sort by: (None) ~		Count Only	Clear
For: Lost ~]		Help
Done	Stay on Select 🧠 6	2796 record(s) fo	und User de

Note:

When you select **Count only**, the **Retrieval Limit** on the **Settings** tab is ignored so that the count includes all records that meet the selected criteria, but the **Search timeout** setting is still in effect.

Customize the Find Tool

You can customize the Find Tool to <u>save default general search criteria</u> and, for bibliographic record searches, to save default remote search databases.

Your custom default search settings are associated with your user account and are used each time you sign in with your user ID. You can change your default search settings at any time.

Save Default General Search Criteria

You can set the Find Tool to default to the same selections in the **Search by**, **Type**, **Sort by**, and **Limit by** boxes each time you search for the same type of record.

Values that can be selected from drop-down lists are also saved, but free-text values are not. For example, if you select **Genre** in the **Search by** or **Limit by** box, enter a free-text value, and select **Save as User Default > Genre** will be retained, but not the free-text value.

To customize the Find Tool:
- 1. Open the Find Tool.
- 2. Select the record type you want to find.
- 3. Select an option from the list in the **Search by** box.
- 4. If you want the search results sorted the same way every time you search for that type of record, select an option in the **Sort by** box.
- 5. If you want the search results limited in the same way every time you search for that type of record, select an option in the **Limit by** box, and select a value in the **Limit by** values box.

Note:

Limit by values selected from a drop-down list are saved in the user default, but free-text values are not saved. For example, if the **Limit by** selection is **Subject** and you enter **history** in the **Values** box, the value is not saved.

6. Select **Options > Save as User Default** from the Find Tool menu bar.

Tip:

If you save a Power search as the user default, the Find Tool will open to the Power Search tab the next time you search for the same type of record, but the search criteria are not saved.

The Find Tool is customized to search for the record by the option you selected in the **Search by** box. To set the Search by option back to the default for the record type, select **Revert to System Default**.

Note:

If you set user defaults for the bibliographic or item record Find Tool, these defaults are in effect in the Find Tool shortcuts (**F12** for bibs and **Ctrl+Alt+F9** for items).

Save Default Remote Search Databases

Note:

Default search databases can only be saved for bibliographic record searches.

To save default search databases:

- 1. Open the Find Tool for bibliographic records and navigate to the **Databases** tab.
- 2. Select the remote databases you would like to search.
- 3. Select **Options > Save as User Default**.

Polaris saves your preferred remote search databases. When you open the Find Tool for bibliographic records in the future, your preferred search databases are already selected.

To clear saved default search databases:

- 1. Open the Find Tool for bibliographic records, and navigate to the **Databases** tab.
- 2. Select Options > Revert to System Default.

Resolving Find Tool Search Issues

If you enter the search criteria and the results do not appear or are fewer than expected, try the following:

- On the **Settings** tab, increase the number in the **Retrieval Limit** box. This resets the retrieval limit for the current search only. If you select **New Search**, the retrieval limit reverts to the default set in Polaris Administration.
- Select the **Count only** check box with the same search criteria selected. This will give you the actual count of all the records that meet your search criteria, regardless of the number in the **Retrieval Limit** box.
- On the Settings tab, increase the number in the Search Timeout (sec) box.
- If you enter the search criteria, and you encounter a CCL Syntax error that states, Invalid Search. Please verify the query and then resubmit the search., you can enter the primary search criteria on the General tab and then use the Scoping tab to refine the search. For example, the Invalid Search message appears if you select Type of material in the Limit by box and select all values except for Book. In this case, the Limit by option is being used to exclude the Book type of material, but include all other values.
- Instead of using the Limit by option to exclude a specific type of material, you could enter the primary search criteria, on the General tab, then go to the Scoping tab to exclude the book format. The search results display the bibliographic records with that title in every format except book.

Doing a Basic Search

The Find Tool appears when you select a subsystem and record type from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, or when you click **Find** on workforms and dialog boxes. You can also press **F12** from anywhere in the Polaris staff client application to open the Find Tool and search for bibliographic records, or **Ctrl+Alt+F9** to search for item records.

When the Find Tool opens, select the type of record to search for (object), the access point to search by, and the type of search. Then type the word or phrase to use for the search. In addition, you can use various options on the Find Tool to narrow your search results, specify how to sort the results, or get a simple count of the number of records.

Depending on the type of record, you can display the records in the Find Tool results list and add them to a record set, or select **Count only** and add them all to a record set without having to display them in a list. If you want to add specific records to a record set, you can display them in the results list, right-click the selected records, and select **Add to Record Set** from the context menu.

If you usually search for records using the same criteria, you can save the search options as your user default. For example, if you usually search for bibliographic records by title and limit the search by material type, you can set this up as your default. You can also specify sorting options as part of your user default. Each time you search for bibliographic records, the options are set automatically. For more information, see <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>.

You can have multiple Find Tools open at once. The title bar of each Find Tool displays the object and access point selected for that search. For example, if you are searching for an item record by barcode, the title bar displays **Item Records - Barcode Find Tool**.

Important:

Your Polaris administrator may set the Find Tool so that search results are filtered according to your staff member permissions and those of the workstation you are using. In Polaris Administration, if the Staff Client profile **Find Tool: Filter search results by permission** is set to **Ye**s, you will see only the records for which you have **Access** permission. If it is set to **No**, you can see records in the search results even if you do not have permission to access (open) them.

See also:

- Set Up a Search
- Search for a record

Set Up a Search

A search query is a structured request for database information. The simplest query uses default settings, and you simply type a word or phrase to describe the records. This word or phrase might be, for example, a full or partial title, the last name of an author, a patron's name, or a purchase order number.

A standard search query on the Find Tool requires the following four criteria:

- Record (**Object**)
- Access point (Search by)
- Type of search (**Type**)
- Search string (For)

You can also narrow your search by selecting an option in the **Limit by** box, and then a value in the **Value** box. To sort the results before they are returned, select an option in the **Sort by** box. The options in the **Limit by** and **Sort by** boxes depend on the type of record you selected in the **Object** box.

Record (Object)

The record types that you can select in the **Object** box depend on the menu option, workform, or field where you accessed the Find Tool. For example, in a Purchase Order workform, if you click **Find** in the Supplier field, the Find Tool opens with **Supplier** in the **Object** box. When you open the Find Tool from the **Funds** field, **Fund** is selected in the **Object** box.

Access Point (Search by)

You select the access point in the **Search by** box. The list of access points depends on the record type you selected in the **Object** box. For example, access points for bibliographic records include **Title**, **Author**, and **Subject** (among others). You can set your own default **Search by** access point for each record type. Then, whenever you log on with your user ID and search for a record using the Find Tool, the **Search by** option is automatically set for the record type. See <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>. You can set the option back to the system default at any time.

Search Type

The available search types depend on your selections in the **Object** box and the **Search by** box.

When you do a title search, Polaris checks fields in the bibliographic record indexed for title searching, such as the 245, 246, 440, and 740 tags.

• Exact match (implicitly truncated) - Displays all the records beginning with the letters or numbers in the **For** box. No asterisk is needed after the term in this type of search. However, you may want to enter an asterisk before the search term. See Using Wildcard Characters in Searches.

Example:

Type **energy** in the **For** box for a bibliographic title search. The results list includes all titles that begin with energy.

• Exact match (explicitly truncated) - Displays only the records that exactly match the letters or numbers in the **For** box. If you use an asterisk, the Results list displays the same records as those of an implicitly truncated search.

Example:

Type **energy** in the **For** box for a bibliographic title search. The results list includes only items titled energy.

If you type **energy***, the results are the same as for an implicit search of energy.

- Browse Display the specified index headings, beginning with entries that start with text similar to the text in the For box. For example, a browse title search for trains displays the portion of the title index containing the first title that starts with trains. Browse searching is Unicode-compliant, so you can enter diacritics or special characters and the headings display that begin with the characters. See <u>Doing</u> <u>a Browse Search</u>.
- Keyword search Finds records that include the exact search term or terms you input, in any order. There is an implied and between multiple words. For example, a keyword title search for trains displays a list of items that have the word trains anywhere in the title. See <u>Doing a Keyword Search</u>.
- Phrase search A special kind of keyword search for multiple words in the exact order in which you entered them. See <u>Doing a Phrase Search</u>.

Sort By

Tip:

The **Sort by** option is not available for browse searching.

If you want search results to display in a specific order, you can select an option in the **Sort by** box. The sort option can be part of your user default settings when you are searching for a specific type of record. For information on setting a user default search, see <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>.

The available options in the **Sort by** box depend on the record. For example, if you are searching for a bibliographic record, you can select from the following sort options:

- Author
- Author, the Publication Date
- Author, then Title
- Call Number
- Call Number, then Author
- Call Number, then Publication Date
- Call Number, then Title
- Control Number
- Most Popular
- Publication Date
- Publication Date, then Author
- Publication Date, then Relevance
- Publication Date, then Title
- Relevance
- Title
- Title, then Author
- Title, then Author, then Type of Material
- Title, then Publication Date
- Title, then Type of Material
- Type of Material

Search String (For)

You specify the search string in the **For** box by typing one or more characters. Polaris ignores letter case, multiple spaces, and all punctuation (except quotation marks) entered in the **For** box. The search does consider special characters and diacritics. Consider the following when entering text in the **For** box:

Initial articles

If the **Use Initial Articles Table** check box is checked on the Settings tab, the initial article in a title is ignored or "stripped out" if that article is defined in the Initial Articles table in Polaris Administration (see the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Defining Leading Articles.).

Example:

Searching for *The Great Gatsby* yields the same results as searching for *Great Gatsby*.

The check box is used when the search type is **Exact match** (either implicitly or explicitly truncated), and you are searching for the following records:

- Authority Records (Heading, Tracing/Reference)
- Bibliographic Records (Title and Series)
- Check In Records (Title)
- Claims (Title) (both for Acquisitions and Serial versions)
- Course Reserve Records (Title)
- Hold Requests (Title)
- ILL Requests (Title)
- Invoice Line Items (Title)
- Issue Records (Title)
- Item Records (Title and Series)
- Part Records (Title)
- Purchase Order Line Items (Title)
- Reserve Item Records (Title)
- Route Lists (Title)
- Selection List Line Items (Title)
- Serial Holdings Records (Title)
- Subscription Records (Title)

Reusing a search string

All the search strings you type in the **For** box are retained during a Polaris session. To use a search string for another search, select the string in the **For** box.

Using an implicitly truncated search - A title search for "bulletin" could be done using the following string: **bulle**.

Note:

If you can use an ampersand (&) in a search string for phrase and keyword searching, it is equivalent to the word **and**. The ampersand and the word **and** are not interchangeable for exact match or browse searching.

Using Wildcard Characters in Searches

Wildcard characters are the special characters asterisk * or question mark ?, which you can use in a search to represent the rest of the word in keyword and exact match - implicitly truncated searches. A wildcard character is not necessary after the search term in an exact match - implicitly truncated search because the truncation is implied. However, you may want to enter an asterisk before your search term if you are not sure if something comes before the search term.

Examples:

Keyword searching - The entry **King*** for a keyword author search yields results such as King, Kingsley, and Kingford. The entry *King* for a keyword author search yields results such as *Talking Heads*, *Dykinga*, and *Polkinghorne*.

Exact match (implicitly truncated) -The entry **material** for a selection list line item notes search gets no search results. However ***material** finds the selection list line item that has the note: **This is printed music, but the material type is set to 28 Youth**. The search finds the results because it looks for **material** anywhere in the note.

Limit By

Tip:

The Limit by option is not available in Browse searches.

You can limit your search to narrow the results. For example, you can search for a title and limit the format to **DVD**. Some **Limit by** options have pre-set selections in the **Value** box. For example, if you select **Language**, a list of languages appears in the **Value** box. But, if you select **Author**, you type the author's name in the **Value** box. You must be precise when you enter free text in the **Value** box because there is no implicit truncation. When you enter only a part of the value you want to limit by, you must also enter an asterisk.

Example:

If you are searching for item records by title, and you limit by **Current borrower**, type the patron's name in the **Value** box in these formats:

last name*

last name, first name*

last name, first name middle name

You must include the comma and the wildcard character as shown. The last name alone will not work in the **Value** box.

The specific languages listed in the **Value** box are set in the **MARC Language Scoping Display** policy table. This list is used if the Staff Client profile **Find tool: Use language scoping display** is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration. See the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Setting Language Display.

Search for a Record

To do a simple search for records:

Note:

If you encounter any issues with your search, see <u>Resolving Find Tool</u> <u>Search Issues</u>.

- 1. Open the Find Tool using one of these methods:
- Select a menu option from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.
- Click **Find** on a workform.
- If you are searching for a bibliographic record, press F12.

The General tabbed page of the Find Tool appears.

2. If the object selected is not what you wanted to search for, select the record type to search for in the **Object** box.

Tip:

To quickly locate an item in a list box, type the first letter. For example, to search by genre, open the **Search by** list and press **G**.

3. Select the access point to search by in the **Search by** box.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Note:

If you select a date option in the **Search by** box (for example, you are searching for serial issues and select **Expected arrival date**), the Find Tool displays date range boxes where you select the beginning and ending dates from a calendar.

4. Select the type of search in the **Type** box.

Tip:

If you have selected an access point and a search type, but then decide to change the access point, the search type is retained. For example, if the search type is **Keyword** and the access point is **Author**, you can switch the access point to **Title** and the search type will be retained because both access points can be used with keyword searching.

- 5. If you want to sort the results before they appear in the list, select an option in the **Sort by** box.
- 6. Type a search string in the **For** box.

If you have entered a search string but decide to search for a different object, you can switch the object while retaining the same search string.

Example:

You search for bibliographic records by author and then you want to search for item records with the same author. You can select **Item Records** in the **Object** box and the author's name remains in the **For** box.

7. If you want to narrow your search, select an option in the **Limit by** box, and select or type a value in the **Value** box.

Note:

The Value box lists options for some Limit by settings, while other settings require a text entry in the Value box. For example, if you select Language in the Limit by box, the Value box contains a list of languages. If you select Author in the Limit by box, you type the author's name in the Value box. If you enter a portion of a Limit by value, you must enter an asterisk. For example, select Author in the Limit by box and enter Kin* in the Value box to display works by authors named King, Kings, Kingsley, and others. See Limit By.

The results list automatically clears when you start another search. You can also click **New Search** to close the results list, return the Find Tool to its default settings, and clear the **For** box.

8. Click **Search** or press **ENTER**. If you want to cancel the search, click **Stop** or start a new search with a different query. The results list appears in the Find Tool window.

Important:

If you see the message **Could not connect to the Z3950 search engine**, try increasing the search timeout limit. Select the **Settings** tab, and type a larger number in the **Search Timeout (sec.)** box. For example, if the timeout is set to 30 seconds, increase it to 60 seconds. The search process continues for 60 seconds, if necessary.

Tip:

Check the status line to see if all results are displayed. If not, you can press **CTRL+SHIFT+A** to return all results.

To sort the list after the results appear, you can click on the column headers.

- 9. To work with a record in the results list, do one of the following actions:
- Double-click a line item to open the record in a workform (search Polaris help for "Using Polaris Workforms").
- Right-click a line item, and select an option from the context menu. The specific context menu options depend on the selected record type. Search the Polaris help for "Use the context menu in the Find Tool results list." .

Related Information

- <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>
- Doing a Browse Search
- Doing a Keyword Search
- Doing a Phrase Search
- Doing Power Searches

- Setting Up SQL Searches
- Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items

Doing a Browse Search

You can select **Browse** as a search type only when you are searching for bibliographic records by **Author**, **Call number**, **Series**, **Subject**, or **Title**. When you browse by author, series, or subject, the index opens to the authorized heading that begins with what you entered in the **For** box. You select the heading to display the titles associated with it. When you browse by title, the results list displays the portion of the alphabetical title index that begins with the text you typed. When you browse by call number, the portion of the catalog that begins with the call number is displayed. Browse searching includes Unicode support for searching by author, subject, series, and title. You can enter diacritics and other characters when browse searching.

Note:

The **Limit by**, **Count only**, **Sort by** and **Add to Record Set** options do not apply to browse searches.

See also:

- Browse by Author, Series, or Subject
- Browse by Call Number or Title

Browse by Author, Series, or Subject

To browse search for bibliographic records by author, series, or subject authorized headings:

Note:

You cannot browse by author, series, or subject when using the Find Tool from within a workform.

- 1. On the Find Tool, General tabbed page, select **Bibliographic Records** in the **Object** box.
- 2. Select Author, Series, or Subject in the Search by box.
- 3. Select **Browse** in the **Type** box.

Tip:

Type the name of the author using the format: *last name first*

name. For example, type William Shakespeare as **Shakespeare William**.

4. Type the name of the author, the series name, or the subject word in the **For** box.

Note: You do not need to type the entire index heading.

5. Click **Search** to begin searching. Author, subject, or series headings appear in the results list. The numbers in the **Count** column specify how many records are associated with that heading.

NI	oto	•
	ole	•

You can select a See or See Also cross reference.

Conseral O	ri - Donning Brenches Onlineform	Database	3		
seneral S	etings Scoping Branches Collections	Databases	1		Search
Object:	Bibliographic Records	Umit by 🕕	kone) 🖛	Search Mode	Slop
Search by	Subject	Value:		Power	New Search
Type:	Browse	1		© sqL	Clear
Sort by:	(None) *			Count Only	Help
For:	Latin America				
Heading				Count	•
atin Amer	rica			12	
atin Amer	ricaAntiquities			10	
atin Amer	ricaArmed Forces			1	
atin Amer	ricaBiography			9	1
atin Amer	ricaCensusMicroform catalogs			1	
atin Amer	ricaChurch history			1	
atin Amer	ricaCivilization			16	
atin Amer	ricaCivilizationAfrican influences			1	
atin Amer	ricaCivilizationAfrican influences	Dictionaries	2	1	
atin Amer	ricaCivilizationStudy and teaching			1	
atin Amer	ricaCommerce			1	
atin Amer	ricaDescription and travel			13	
atin Amer	ricaDescription and travel1951-19	80			
				12	

6. Double-click a heading. The Heading dialog box displays the titles associated with the heading.

Tèle	Author	Format	Links	Public
Hispanic America and its civilizations : Spanish Americans and Anglo-Americans	Urbański, Edmund Stefan.	Book	1	1978
latin America : the development of its civilization.	Bailey, Helen Miller-	Book	1	1960
latin America : the development of its civilization	Bailey, Helen Miller.	Book	1	1973
A concise history of Latin American culture.	Henriquez Ureña, Pedro, 1884-1946.	Book	1	1965
A cultural history of Spanish America : from conquest to independence.	Picón-Salas, Mariano, 1901-1965.	Book	Z	1962
Ten keys to Latin America.	Jannanbeum, Frank, 1893-1969.	Book	2	1962
literary currents in Hispanic America	Henriquez Ureña, Pedro, 1884-1945.	Book	1	1945
The people and politics of Latin America.	Williams, Mary Wilhelmine, 1878-1944	Book	1	1955
The buried mirror : reflections on Spain and the New World.	Fuentes, Carlos-	Book	3	1992
A century of Latin American thought	Crawford, William Res, 1898-	Book	1	1944
The Virgin and the bull [videorecording]		Videotape	1	1991
Conflict of the gods [videorecording]		Videotope	1	1991
The Age of gold (videorecording)		Videotape	1	1991
The Price of freedom [Videorecording]		Videotape	1	1991
Unfinished business [videorecording]		Videotape	1	1991
The decline and fall of the lettered city : Latin America in the Cold War	Franco, Jean.	Book	1	2002
(

7. If you want to open the record, double-click it in the list. The Bibliographic Record workform opens for the title you selected.

Browse by Call Number or Title

To browse search for bibliographic records by bib call number or title:

- 1. On the Find Tool, General tabbed page, select **Bibliographic Records** in the **Object** box.
- 2. Select **Call number** or **Title** in the **Search by** box.
- 3. Select **Browse** in the **Type** box.
- 4. Type the call number or title in the **For** box. You do not need to type the entire title or call number.
- 5. Click **Search**. The results list displays the portion of the title or call number index that begins with your search text.

seneral S	ettings Scoping Branches Collections Detabases	
Object: Search by: Type: Sart by: For:	Bibliographic Records Unit by: (hone) : Title Yelves Brewse • (hoppy •	Search Mode Search Mode Solution Solution Count Only
Heading		Count
KEE Rock		2
SEE: Muni	ical Sound Recording	1
Happy 4th	of July, Jenny Sweeney!	1
Happy a su	uspense thriller (DVD)	1
Нарру всс	idents	2
SEE: DVD		1
SEE: Video	otzpe	1
Нарру асс	idents i serendipity in modern medical breakthroughs	1
Happy Add Happy Add	option Day:	1
Hanny 2014	the time La novel	1
and the second sec	and annual a normal	*
SEE: Rook	r	,

6. Right-click a title line item, and select **Open** from the context menu to display the record in the Bibliographic Record workform.

Doing a Keyword Search

When you select a record type in the Object box and an access point in the Search by box, Keyword search appears in the Type list if available for this combination of record type and access point.

For some types of records, keyword searching is available because the selected Search by access point actually searches in linked records. For example, when you search by Title for a line item in a selection list, purchase order, or invoice, Keyword search appears in the Type box because the system searches for the line item by the title in the linked bibliographic record.

Keyword searching is available for the following types of records (depending on the selection in the Search by box):

- Acquisitions
 - Claims
 - Invoice Line Items

- Purchase Order Line Items
- Selection List Line Items
- Cataloging
 - Authority
 - Bibliographic
 - Community
 - Course Reserves
 - Items
 - Promotions
 - Reserve Items
- Patron Services/Circulation
 - Course Reserves
 - Hold Requests
 - ILL
 - Patron Records
- Serials
 - Claims
 - Issues
 - Parts
 - Route Lists
 - Subscriptions

See also:

- Automatic Suggestions in Keyword or Phrase Searching
- Search by keyword

Automatic Suggestions in Keyword or Phrase Searching

If your library system has the Cataloging parameter **Auto-suggest feature enabled** set to **Yes**, a list of suggestions appears as you type if you are doing a keyword or phrase search for a record by an access point that is keyword-indexed. Automatic suggestions do not appear if you are searching a remote database. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Managing Auto-Search Suggestions..

Note:

You can turn automatic suggestions off by selecting Hide Suggestions at

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

the bottom of the list of suggestions. To turn them back on, click in the **For** box.

Automatic suggestions for patron records

When you do a keyword or phrase search for a patron record using any of the following access points, a list of suggestions appears automatically as you type:

- Phone Number
- Address (StreetOne, StreetTwo)
- City, State PostalCode (ZipPlusFour)
- Email Address
- Name (First, Middle Last)
- Name (Last, First Middle)

Automatic suggestions for bibliographic or item records

When you do a keyword or phrase search for a bibliographic record or item record using any of the following access points, a list of suggestions appears automatically as you type:

- Author
- General notes
- Genre
- Publisher
- Subject
- Title

Automatic suggestions for authority records

When you do a keyword or phrase search for an authority record using any of the following access points, a list of suggestions appears automatically as you type:

- Heading
- All keyword fields
- Conference name
- Corporate name
- Genre/Form subject
- Geographic name

- LC children's subject
- LC subject
- Name
- Personal name
- Subdivision heading
- Topic term
- Tracing/Reference

Search by Keyword

To find records using keyword searching:

- 1. On the Find Tool, General tabbed page, select the record type that uses keyword searching in the **Object** box.
- 2. Select an access point for which you can use keyword searching in the **Search by** box:
- 3. Select **Keyword search** in the **Type** box.

Tip:

You can type part of a word and use a wildcard character. For example, if you type **King*** for a keyword author search, then the results list includes works by authors named King, Kings, Kingsley, and others. You can also use wildcards in the beginning of a word to indicate that something may come before it. See <u>Using Wildcard Characters in Searches</u>.

4. Type one or more keywords, in any order, in the **For** box.

Note:

Automatic suggestions may appear as you type. See <u>Automatic</u> Suggestions in Keyword or Phrase Searching.

- 5. If automatic suggestions appear, and one is the search term you want to use, select it. The results appear as soon as you select an automatic suggestion.
- 6. If no automatic suggestions appear, or they are not useful, click **Search** to begin searching. Titles appear in the results list.

W Bibliographic Records - Tride Fund Topk2 Nie Edit Optices Help				
Derings Scoping Besings Scoping Besings Besings March Mode Qrietti Besingsahls Records Unit byn (Pama) (Pama)<!--</th--><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Seaton Space New Seatch Dear SHD</th>				Seaton Space New Seatch Dear SHD
Tale	Author .	Forwat	Linker L.	Publicatio ⁽¹⁾
Spoin in our hearts : hyran to the plones of the people of war = Espana en el concon : himno a las glories del pueblo en guerra	Neruda, Pablo, 1904-1973.	Beek	2	3005
A prece of my nearting pedecito de recorración (the art of Carmen Corres Garta	Garza, Canner Lomas	Book	1	1991
Disecto at caractin [compact autio doc]	Santa Roca, Girberto.	Music CD	1	2086
Viage al normotiv de Culta	Montanes, Calloc Alberto.	Book:	1	1999 1
Dott [compact subio dic].	Netroliko, Anno.	Muse CD	1	2007
Pau-latina (compact audio dec)	Rubio, Paulina.	Music CD	1	2084
Lagrimes regas [compect sublo disc]	Valdes, Babo, 1915-	Music CD	1	2083
3121 : [compart audio dirc] fre music	Prince.	Music CD	3	2005
Sopa da pollo para al altras i relation que contrutaven el constitin y porten fuego en el espíritu		Sock	1	1995
Un Tercer plate de sepa de polio para el alma i nuevos relates que contraspien el caracte y panen falego en el espíritu		Sock	1	L997 8
Sope de pello pare el alme de la medra: neevali al neavas) relatos que commueven el consotn y ponen fuega en el esparta		Book:	1	1999 8
Control Appling to power	Nerfel, Lourie, 1948-	Book	3	1997 5
Constant Acaims : the stary of a revolution	Kerniset Lucy, 1942-	Book	1	1997 0
Corezon Acaino	Chen-Exam, Howard,	Book	9	1988
Contain depine	Wiveney, 18 C., 1954-	Book	1	1991 8
The putses life of Constan dopino	Scarano, Margaret.	ilook:	1	1987 🛬
X		and access		1,55555
Dane Stay or Select -	ld of 40 woordig) retrieved	00000000	3-10-3-20	istan-la

Doing a Phrase Search

A phrase search looks for multiple words in the exact order you type them. You can do a phrase search for bibliographic and item records. When you select **Phrase** in the **Type** box and type a phrase in the **For** box, the search looks in all indexed fields for that phrase in the same word order. You can also narrow the search to look for the phrase in specific fields. Phrase searching is not available for all access points. For example, if you are searching for a bibliographic record and select **Call number** in the **Search by** box, phrase searching is not available in the **Type** box.

To do a phrase search:

1. On the Find Tool, General tabbed page, select **Bibliographic Records** or **Item Records** in the **Object** box.

Tip:

You can use wildcards in the beginning, middle, or end of phrase search strings to indicate that other words come before, in the middle, or at the end of the search string.

- 2. Select one of the following access points in the Search by box:
 - All Keyword Indexed Fields
 - Author
 - General notes
 - Genre

- Series
- Subject
- Title
- 3. Select **Phrase** in the **Type** box.
- 4. Type the phrase in the **For** box.

Note:

A list of suggestions may appear as you type. See <u>Automatic Suggestions</u> in Keyword or Phrase Searching.

- 5. If automatic suggestions appear, and one of the suggestions is the phrase you want to search by, select it. The results appear as soon as you select an automatic suggestion.
- 6. If no automatic suggestions appear, or they are not useful, continue typing the entire phrase, and click **Search**. Titles appear in the results list.

Doing Power Searches

With power searching, you can construct complex, precise searches by writing Common Command Language (CCL) queries. Power searching is a good way to list records that share a combination of very specific characteristics. To construct a power search, you can begin with a basic search expression and then add more search expressions to it, or you can write the entire query.

Note:

You can do complex searches for cataloging records and have Polaris format the information you provide into CCL for you. See <u>Scoping</u> <u>Searches for Bibs and Items</u>.

See also:

- <u>Setting Up CCL Queries</u>
- <u>Mnemonic Codes for Access Points</u>
- <u>CCL Operators</u>
- Wildcard Characters
- Quotation Marks in Power Searching
- Power-Searching for Multiple ISBNs
- Write a power search query

Setting Up CCL Queries

CCL queries in the Find Tool consist of one or more search expressions. Each search expression is a search string and a series of symbols and operators specifying the desired search results.

Tip:

You can change the time out for the search from the default of 30 seconds to another length of time by typing TIMEOUT=(number). For example, if you want to search for United States and increase the time out to 60 seconds, type:

KW=United States and TIMEOUT=60

A search expression includes the following components:

- Access point A search field identifier, such as author or title. Also known as a qualifier.
- Operator The logical link between an access point and a search string, or between search expressions.
- Search string A string of characters identifying the item for which you are searching. Also known as an item description, search term, or value.

Example:

The following query, composed of two search expressions linked by AND, finds the works of author Asimov published in or after 1970:

AU=asimov AND PD >= 1970

where

AU and PD are access points (Author and Publication Date) =, AND, >= are operators asimov and 1970 are search strings

You can group search expressions with parentheses to direct the order of operations.

Mnemonic Codes for Access Points

When you are creating queries, you must use the mnemonic code, and not the full term, for the following access points:

Note:

Branches and collections are available only with normal searches.

- Find Tool Search by options
- Language (LA)
- Target audience (TA)
- Collection (COL) Click the Collections tab on the Find Tool to see the abbreviations for your system.
- Assigned Branch (AB) Click the **Branches** tab on the Find Tool to see the abbreviations for your system.

CCL Operators

The following are CCL operators:

- Boolean (logical) operators AND, OR, NOT logically connect items
- Proximity (nearness) operators Specify the location of and distance between items
- Relational operators Specify comparative relationships between items, such as greater than, less than, or equal to

Boolean Operators

The Boolean operators AND, OR, and NOT combine search expressions in logical sequences:

• AND - A record must match both the search expression before and the expression after the operator to be included in the search results.

Example: AU=isaac asimov AND TI=planets

Finds only the items written by Isaac Asimov that have the word planets in the title.

• OR - A record must match either the search expression before or the expression after the operator, or both, to be included in the search results.

Example: AU=isaac asimov OR TI=planets

Finds all items written by Isaac Asimov and all items with the word planets in the title by any author.

 NOT - A record must match the search expression before the operator, but not the expression after the operator to be included in the search results. The expression after the operator must be enclosed in parentheses.

```
Example:
AU=isaac asimov NOT (TI=planets)
```

Finds only those items written by Isaac Asimov that do not have the word planets in the title.

You may build a more complex query using the Boolean operators. When using multiple operators in the same query, use parentheses to group the search expressions so that they are done in the correct order, from left to right.

Proximity Operators

The proximity operators N, Nn, W, and Wn specify the relative position of search terms in the search results. Proximity operators are used with a number representing the distance between the two terms (the proximity distance). Adjacent terms have a proximity distance equal to 1, and the default proximity relation is LE (less than or equal to).

If the proximity operator begins with **N**, it indicates the search terms may be separated by the specified number of words in any order. For example, a power search for **KW="United States" N2:EQ KW="Union**" searches for records where the phrase **United States** appears exactly two words before or after the keyword **Union**.

If the proximity operator begins with **W**, it indicates the search terms must be within the specified number of words in the specified order. For example, a power search for **KW="Harry Potter" W10:LT KW="J.K. Rowling**" searches for records where the phrase **Harry Potter** appears less than 10 words before the phrase **J.K. Rowling**.

• N or % - Indicates the search terms should be next to each other in any order.

Examples: AU="james" N AU="joyce" AU="james" % AU="joyce" Finds any items with authors that have the names James and Joyce next to each other, such as James Joyce or Joyce James.

• Nn - Indicates the search terms may be separated by the specified number of words (*n*) in any order, where n is a number between 1 and 9.

Example: AU="james" N4 AU="joyce"

Finds any items with authors that have the names James within four words of the name Joyce, such as James C. Joyce or Joyce and Roberta James.

• W or ! - The search terms must be next to each other in the specified order.

```
Examples:
AU="james" W AU="joyce"
AU="james" ! AU="joyce"
```

Finds any items written by James Joyce, but ignores items written by Joyce James.

• Wn - The search terms must be within the specified number of words (*n*) in the specified order, where n is a number between one and nine.

Examples: AU="james" W4 AU="joyce" AU="james" !4 AU="joyce"

Finds any items written by James C. Joyce and James Robert Collins Joyce, but ignores items written by Joyce C. James.

Relative Operators

The relative operators include the following mnemonic codes for comparing items:

Operation	Mnemonic Code/Relative Operator
Equal to specified item	EQ or =

Operation	Mnemonic Code/Relative Operator
Not equal to specified item	NE or <>
Less than specified item	LT or <
Less than or equal to specified item	LE or <=
Greater than specified item	GT or >
Greater than or equal to specified item	GE or >=
Equal to specified item	EQ or =

Examples:

- The following example finds items published in or after 1987:

PD GE 1987

- The following example finds items published before 1932 that have the words solar system in any indexed field:

KW=solar system AND PD < 1932

Wildcard Characters

You can use the following special characters to search for character pattern matches to the item description:

Tip:

Enter as much of the base search term as you can because the shorter the base, the more imprecise the search. For example, entering **bee*** can yield search results of **bees**, **beer**, or **Beecher**.

- Question mark (?) Indicates 0 or more characters. For example, type **child**? to find child, children, child's, and so forth.
- Asterisk (*) Indicates 0 or more characters. For example, type west* to find west, western, West's, and so forth.
- Number sign (#) Indicates 0 or 1 character. For example, type **wash**# to find **wash**, **washi**, **washy**, and so forth.

Quotation Marks in Power Searching

Tip:

You can enclose any search string in quotation marks. If you are not sure whether to enclose the search string in quotation marks, you can always safely use them.

Strings containing the following words and characters must be enclosed in quotation marks if they are used as part of an item description in a CCL search:

Tip:

The number sign (#) is treated as a single-character wildcard and not as the character itself. Therefore, a power search for TI="#*" does not limit the results to records with # in the title. Instead, use an embedded SQL search with 9999 as the Bib-1 Use attribute for ADHOC.

To search for bibliographic records with **#** in the title, enter the following in the Power Search Criteria box:

[9999]="SELECT RecordID FROM Z3950_AP_BR_TI_S WHERE Term LIKE '#%'"

To search for item records with **#** in the title, enter the following in the Power Search Criteria box:

[9999]="SELECT RecordID FROM Z3950_AP_IR_TI_S WHERE Term LIKE '#%'"

Ν	?
N[1-9]	#
%	=
W	<>
W[1-9]	eq
!	gt
and	lt

or	ge
not	le
*	-
&	

Examples:

- To find the title Bud, Not Buddy, you type the following command: **TI = "bud not buddy"**

The string must be enclosed in quotation marks because in a CCL command, **not** is ordinarily a Boolean operator.

- To find the telephone number 453-7890, you type the following command:

PHONE = "453-7890"

The string must be enclosed in quotation marks because in a CCL command, the hyphen (-) ordinarily separates two values, indicating a range of values between the two.

Power-Searching for Multiple ISBNs

Tip:

If you are pasting the ISBNs from another source (such as a Word document) that uses the curved "smart quote" characters, change the quotation marks to straight quotes in the search command.

The internal limit to the number of search terms you can enter with no parentheses is 10. If you search for multiple ISBNs, you can avoid this limit by placing each ISBN in quotation marks. The example shows the syntax you can use:

Example:

Each number represents an ISBN. ISBN={"1", "2", "3", "4"}

Write a Power Search Query

To do a complex, precise search by writing a query in Common Command Language (CCL):

Note:

Search expressions are not case-sensitive. That is, you can use uppercase

letters, lowercase letters, or a combination of both. They do not affect the results.

Tip:

To delete all the information in the **Power Search Criteria** box, click **Clear**. To start a new search with a basic search expression, click **New Search**.

- 1. To create a basic query first, select a record type in the **Object** box and enter the search criteria in the **Search by**, **Type**, and **For** boxes on the Find Tool General tabbed page. See **Doing a Basic Search**.
- 2. Click **Power**. The General page displays a **Power Search Criteria** box. If you created a query in the previous step, the query appears in the **Power Search Criteria** box.

Important:

You must write your power search queries precisely. This means you may need to edit search expressions that are carried over to the **Power Search Criteria** box. For example, to find the works of all authors with names beginning with Shake, type **AU=shake*** in the **Power Search Criteria** box. If you type **AU=shake**, only the works of authors named Shake are found.

- 3. Input additional criteria or edit existing criteria in the **Power Search Criteria** box, using CCL syntax.
- 4. Click **Search** to begin searching. The results list appears.

Setting Up SQL Searches

You can do a search for records using Structured Query Language (SQL). SQL is a computer language used to create, modify, retrieve and manipulate data from relational database management systems, such as Polaris. In the Polaris Find Tool, SQL is used for data retrieval only. You cannot manipulate data in the Polaris database through SQL searching.

To use all the options for SQL searching in the Find Tool, you must have permissions set in Polaris Administration. Separate permissions are required for accessing the SQL searching mode and saving search strings to the database. See the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Special Permissions for SQL Searches in the Find Tool.

Tip:

You can save text, even if it is not a legitimate SQL search, as a rough SQL

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

template that users can use as a basis for searching. They can edit the search in the Search Criteria box without saving the changes to the template.

In the Polaris Find Tool, the SQL query must use the following structure: **SELECT** *Column* **From** *Table* **Where** *Limit criteria*. The column name must match the column name in the database.

Examples:

To find item records without an assigned collection, type: SELECT ItemRecordID FROM CircItemRecords WHERE AssignedCollectionID IS NULL

To find item records with no statistical code, type:SELECT ItemRecordID FROM CircItemRecords WHERE StatisticalCodeID IS NULL

To find item records with the circulation status of Lost, type:**SELECT ItemRecordID FROM CircItemRecords WHERE ItemStatusID = 7**

To find item records that have a temporary shelf location, type:SELECT ItemRecordID FROM ItemRecordDetails WHERE TemporaryShelfLocation IS not NULL

To find patron records where the registration expiration date is before or equal to October 31, 2009, type:**SELECT PatronID from PatronRegistration WHERE ExpirationDate <= '10/31/09'**

The **SELECT** command retrieves zero or more rows from one or more tables in a database. Commonly available keywords related to **SELECT** include:

- **FROM** Indicates the tables from which the data is to be taken, as well as how the tables join to each other.
- WHERE Identifies which rows to retrieve, or applied to GROUP BY.
- GROUP BY Combines rows with related values into elements of a smaller set of rows.

- HAVING Identifies which of the "combined rows" are to be retrieved.
 HAVING acts much like WHERE, but it operates on the results of the GROUP BY function.
- ORDER BY Identifies which columns are used to sort the resulting data.

When the search results are displayed, you can print the results for a quick report. Search Polaris help for "Print search results from the Find Tool."

See also:

- Do a SQL search
- Search using a saved SQL search

Do a SQL Search

To search using SQL:

1. Select the type of record you want to search for in the **Object** box on the General tab of the Find Tool.

Tip:

You can save the SQL search mode as the default search mode setting. See <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>.

2. Select **SQL**. The SQL Search Criteria box appears.

Note:

To search using an existing SQL search, see <u>Search using a saved SQL</u> <u>search</u>.

- 3. Type the SQL search criteria and click **Search**.
- 4. If you want to save the SQL search criteria, click **Save**, type the name of the saved search in the Save SQL Search dialog box, and click **OK**. You can use this saved search when you search for the same type of record (object).
- 5. Click **Search**. The search results appear.

Search Using a Saved SQL Search

To use a saved SQL search:

1. Select the type of record you want to search for in the **Object** box on the General tab of the Find Tool.

You can save the SQL search mode as the default search mode setting. See <u>Customize the Find Tool by user</u>.

2. Select SQL. The SQL Search Criteria box appears.



3. Select the saved search in the **Open** box.

Note:

The saved SQL searches listed in the **Open** box are those associated with the selected record (object).

The saved SQL search appears in the Search Criteria box.

4. Click Search.

Note:

If you have permission, you can edit a saved search, and click **Save As...** to rename it. See the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Special Permissions for SQL Searches in the Find Tool. .

Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items

Scoping is a method of further focusing your search beyond the basic search expression. Scoping, like power searching, allows you to conduct complex, precise searches with the Common Command Language (CCL). However, power searching requires you to know CCL and write your own queries. With scoping, you select the access points (qualifiers), operators, and search strings (values), and Polaris formats the information into CCL. You can use scoping with exact match, keyword, and phrase searches for bibliographic and item records.

To do a complex, precise search by scoping:

- 1. On the Find Tool General tabbed page, fill in the **Object**, **Search by**, **Type**, and **For** boxes (see <u>Doing a Basic Search</u>).
- 2. Click the **Scoping** tab to display the Scoping tabbed page. The search expression you created on the General tabbed page appears in the **Current Criteria** box.
- 3. Choose one of the following Boolean operators (see **Boolean Operators**):
 - If the search results must match both search expressions, click And.
 - If the search results can match either search expression, click **Or**.
 - If the search results must match the first search expression, but not the second one, click **Not**.
- 4. Select an access point or modifier in the **Qualifier** box.
- 5. Choose one of the following relative operators:

You can choose **[=]** or **[<>]** for all the qualifiers. You can choose the following relative operators for the Publication date only: **[<]**, **[<=]**, **[>]**, or **[>=]**.

- Click **[=]** for results equal to the value.
- Click [<>] for results not equal to (excluding) the value.
- Click [<] for publication dates less than the value.
- Click [<=] for publication dates less than or equal to the value.
- Click [>] for publication dates greater than the value.
- Click [>=] for publication dates greater than or equal to the value.
- 6. Select or type a value for the query in the **Value** box. For additional information, see:
- Proximity Operators
- <u>Wildcard Characters</u>
- Quotation Marks in Power Searching
- 7. Click **Add** to add the search expression to the **Current Criteria** box. If the search expression is longer than the width of the **Current Criteria** box, a horizontal scroll bar is displayed. The status bar displays **SC** to indicate scoping is in effect.
- 8. To add another search expression, do these steps:

The original search expression, created on the General page, can be modified on the General page.

- a. In the **Current Criteria** box, select the expression which you want to precede the new expression.
- b. Select a Boolean operator, qualifier, relative operator, and value.
- c. Click Add to add the search expression to the Current Criteria box.

Tip:

To remove a search expression created on the Scoping page, select it in the **Current Criteria** box and click **Remove**. To delete all the search expressions, *except* for the expression that you created on the General tabbed page, click **Clear**.

- 9. To edit a search expression created on the scoping page, do these steps:
 - a. Select the search expression in the Current Criteria box.
 - b. Change the operators, qualifier, or values.
 - c. Click Update to update the search expression in the Current Criteria box.
- 10. Click **Search** to begin searching. The results list appears.

Searching Branches

When you are searching for bibliographic and item records, you can choose which branches you want Polaris to search, as well as which collections to search within each branch. The Find Tool's Branches tabbed page lists all the assigned branches, along with their collections, in your library system. Searches for bibliographic records by branch or collection return results based on the linked item records. If the bibliographic record is not linked to any item records with that assigned branch, it does not appear in the results list on the Branches tab. If the bibliographic record is not linked to any item records with that collection, it does not appear in the results list on the Collections tab. Bibliographic records without linked item records do not appear in the results list.

Important:

Search results, except for bibliographic titles and call number browse searches, may be filtered so the results list includes only those results that you have permission to access. If the Staff Client profile **Find Tool: Filter search results by permission** is set to **Yes**, you will see only those records for which you have **Access** permission. For more information about setting permissions in Polaris, see the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Setting Administration Permissions.

Tip:

If you want to find bibliographic records owned by a certain branch but with no linked item records, do a Scoping search instead of a Branch search. A branch search looks for bibliographic records with linked items assigned to the branch. If no items are linked, the bibliographic record is not found.

To search for bibliographic and item records by branch and by collection associated with each branch:

Note:

You can search by branches only in normal search mode.

- 1. On the Find Tool General tabbed page, fill in the **Object**, **Search by**, **Type**, and **For** boxes (see <u>Doing a Basic Search</u>).
- 2. Click the **Branches** tab to display the Branches tabbed page.

By default, all branches and collections are selected.

Tip:

To search all branches, click Select All.

- 3. Click **Unselect All** to clear the check boxes for all branches and collections. The status bar displays **BR** to indicate that you are searching by branch.
- 4. If you want to search all the collections in a branch, select the check box next to each branch to be searched.
- 5. If you want to search by particular collections in a branch, follow these steps:
- a. Click the plus sign [+] next to the branch. The plus sign is replaced by a minus sign [-]. All the collections for the branch appear.
- b. Select the check box next to each collection you want to search. The check box next to the branch is grayed out to indicate that one or more collections are not to be searched within the branch.

To start a new search, click **New Search**. The General tabbed page appears. To reset the list, click **Reset**.

6. Click **Search** to begin the search. The results list appears.

Related Information

When searching by branch and collection, you can also use other searching features. See also:

- Write a Power Search Query
- Do a SQL search
- <u>Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items</u>

Searching Collections

You can search for item records or bibliographic records by collection, but when you search for bibliographic records by collection, the search is actually looking for the linked item records with the selected collection. If the bibliographic record has no linked items in that collection, the bibliographic record is not included in the results. The Find Tool's Collections tabbed page lists all the assigned collections in the system, along with their associated branches. You can search by collection and by the branches that share the collection.

To search for bibliographic and item records by collection and by branch:

Note: You can search using collections only in normal search mode.

1. On the Find Tool - General tabbed page, fill in the **Object**, **Search by**, **Type**, and **For** boxes (see <u>Doing a Basic Search</u>).

Tip:

If you search for bibliographic records by collection, the search looks for bibliographic records linked to item records in that collection. Bibliographic records that are not linked to item records do not appear in the results list.

2. Click the **Collections** tab to display the Collections tabbed page.

By default, all collections and the branches that use each collection are selected.

Tip: To search all collections, click **Select All**.

- 3. Click **Unselect All** to clear the check boxes for all collections and their branches. The status bar displays **CO** to indicate that you are searching by collection.
- 4. If you want to search all the branches that use a collection, select the check box next to each collection to be searched.
- 5. If you want to search by particular branches associated with a collection, follow these steps:
- a. Click the plus sign [+] next to the collection. The plus sign is replaced by a minus sign [-]. All the branches for the collection appear.
- b. Select the check box next to each branch you want to search. The check box next to the collection is grayed out to indicate that one or more branches that use the collection are not to be searched.

Tip:

To start a new search, click **New Search**. The General tabbed page appears. To reset the list, click **Reset**.

6. Click **Search** to begin the search. The results list appears.

Related Information

When searching by branch and collection, you can also use other searching features. See also:

- Do a power search
- Do a SQL search
- Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items

Searching Remote Databases

When you are searching for bibliographic records, you may be able to search remote sites using Z39.50 standard search protocol. If you have a subscription to Polaris ZMARC, the Polaris ZMARC databases appear in the list of databases. You can choose to search the local Polaris database simultaneously along with one or more remote databases.

Z39.50 searching depends on standard Bib-1 Use attributes for search access points. If a standard Bib-1 Use attribute has not been defined for a search access point, Polaris
relies on proprietary Bib-1 Use attributes. (Bib-1 Use attributes between 5,000 and 10,000 are reserved for these proprietary attributes). These non-standard search access points may not work with Z39.50 target sites. For example, the UPC barcode does not have a standard Bib-1 Use attribute. If you search bibliographic records at a Z39.50 target site for the UPC barcode number, setting the **Search by** field to **UPC number** in the Polaris Find Tool, the search will likely fail. However, if you search for the UPC barcode number (a standard access point), you will likely find the title. For a list of standard and proprietary Bib-1 Use Attributes, see the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Bib-1 Use Attributes in Polaris Searches. .

Note:

Before you are able to search a remote database, it must be registered as a Z39.50 target and set to display in the Find Tool. See the Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Registering Remote Resource Servers and Controlling Database Access in the Staff Client.

To search for records in multiple and remote databases:

Note:

You can search remote databases in normal and power search modes.

- 1. On the Find Tool General tabbed page, fill in the **Object**, **Search by**, **Type**, and **For** boxes on the General tabbed page (see <u>Doing a Basic Search</u>).
- 2. Click the **Databases** tab.



If you have saved default search databases, they are selected on the **Databases** tab. If you have not saved default search databases, your Polaris database is selected by default. For more information about saving default search databases, see <u>Customize the Find Tool</u>.

3. Select the databases to be searched:

Tip:

Click the minus (-) sign next to a site to display only the site, without its associated databases. Click the plus (+) sign next to a site to display the site's associated databases.

- To select the Polaris databases and all remote sites' databases, click Select All.
- To select one or more sites (including all the listed databases at the sites), select the check box next to each site.
- To select one or more databases at a site, select the check box next to each database that you want to search. The check box next to the site is automatically selected, but it is also dimmed to indicate that one or more databases at the site are not selected.

The status bar displays **DB** to indicate that you are searching by database.

```
Tip:
To start a new search, click New search. The General tabbed page appears.
To reset the list, click Reset.
```

4. Click **Search** to begin searching.

The database results list appears with a count of the records found. If you searched multiple databases, the records from each database are displayed in separate result sets.

General Settings Scoping Branches Collectore	Detabases						
					Select Al	Stop New Search Clear Help	
[]	Author	Format	Line	Publa	Call Number	Contro	
Title	Author Olson, Ray	Format	Lin	Publ.	Call Number	Contro	
Title Yesses and Vectoris Three Continues of Busidian Joint Ac 50, And Forever Young (Entertainment;	Author Olson, Ray Gates, David	Format Serial	Lin Q Q	Publ 2008 2008	Call Number	Contro EAIM EAIM	
Title Verses and Versions: Three Centuries of Rossian Latits At 50, And Forever Young (Entertainment) Latits At Middle Age/Critical essay)	Author Olson, Ray Gates, David Kincaid, James R.	Format Serial Serial	Lin 0 0	Publ 2008 2008	Call Number	Contro EAIM EAIM EAIM	
Title Verses and Versions: Three Certains of Bussian Lafits At 50, And Forever Young (Entertainment; Joins at Middle Age/Critical essay) The facts of fiction, or the figure of Viadimir Nab	Author Olson, Ray Gates, David Kin caid, James R. de la Durantaye,	Format Serial Serial Serial	Lin 0 0 0	Pulpl 2008 2008 2008 2008	Call Number	Contro EAIM EAIM EAIM EAIM	
Title Verses and Versions Three Contarts of Russian Lalita At 50, And Forever Young (Entertainment) Lolita at Middle Age/Critical essay) The facts of fiction, or the figure of Vladimir Nab The Fifty-year-old fine.(Lolita)	Author Olson, Ray Gates, David Kincaid, James R. de la Durantaye, Wainman, Sarah	Format Serial Serial Serial Serial Serial	Lin 0 0 0 0	Pulpl 2008 2008 2008 2008 2008	Call Number	Contro EAUM EAUM EAUM EAUM EAUM	

- 5. Double-click a database to display its results. A dialog box displays the list of records for the selected database.
- 6. Double-click a record in the list to open it in a Polaris workform.

Related Information

- Do a power search
- Do a SQL search
- Scoping Searches for Bibs and Items
- Copy a MARC record from a remote source

Creating, Copying, and Editing MARC Records

You can create an original bibliographic or authority record in the Bibliographic or Authority Record workform using various editing features. You can also search a remote database and copy a MARC record to create a new one in Polaris.

For information on creating item records, see <u>Maintaining Item Records</u>.

Note:

You can also add MARC records to your catalog by importing or copying them. See <u>Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records</u>

See also:

- <u>Creating MARC Records</u>
- <u>Copying MARC Records</u>
- Editing MARC Records
- Browse Headings Display

For more information on MARC 21 Format for Bibliographic records, see the Library of Congress web site at:

http://www.loc.gov/marc/bibliographic/ecbdhome.html

For more information on MARC 21 Format for Authority records, see the Library of Congress web site at:

http://www.loc.gov/marc/authority/ecadhome.html

Creating MARC Records

When you create an original bibliographic record, you can save it with a status of provisional or final. Provisional records are not displayed in the public catalog, they are not indexed, and they cannot be linked to final item records. Final records are fully indexed for searching and you can choose to display them in the PAC.

The contents of Polaris bibliographic records are displayed in the MARC Editor view of the Bibliographic Record workform. This view shows the MARC Leader, tag number, indicator, subfield, and data format. You can also preview how the record displays in the public access catalog. To change the record, you can edit it in the MARC Editor view.

Note:

Using Polaris Administration settings, your Polaris Administrator specifies whether call number and price fields are copied from bibliographic records to their linked item records. If the options are set to copy the call number and price data, your Polaris Administrator also defines the order in which specific bib tags are checked for the call number and price data. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Copying Bib Data to Items.

Authority records provide uniformity in the forms of names and some types of titles and subject headings. They also provide a system of cross-references to "instead of" headings (See references), and references to other related "like" headings (See Also references).

Note:

When you save a bibliographic record and there are no matching authority records for a heading, you can automatically create an authority record to match the heading. See List and resolve unlinked headings.

See also:

- Create a new bibliographic record
- Create a new authority record

Create a New Bibliographic Record

To manually create a new bibliographic record in the Polaris database:

1. Select **File** > **New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click **r** on the Shortcut Bar.

The New dialog box appears.

- 2. Select Bibliographic Record from the Objects list.
- 3. To use a template to create the new bibliographic record, do the following steps:

Note:

For more information on creating templates, see <u>Using</u> <u>Cataloging Templates</u>. a. Select **Existing Template**, and select a bibliographic template from the list.

Note:

If you are creating multiple records using the same template, you can select the **Make default** box. When you create the next bibliographic record in the same session, the template you chose will be selected automatically as the default.

b. Click OK.

The Bibliographic Record workform appears with the information from the template. Depending on the data already in the template, you may or may not need to do all the steps in this procedure.

- 4. Indicate whether you want the record to display in the public catalog by selecting the **Display in PAC** check box to display the title in the PAC, or by clearing the check box to limit the title to staff display only.
- 5. Select the owner of the bibliographic record in the **Owner** box.

Note:

The record owner is the organization that can determine the permissions for the record.

6. Double-click **LDR** in the Tag column.

Tip:

If **LDR** does not appear, place the cursor in the first position (far left) of the Tag column, and press **CTRL+L**.

- 7. Enter the values for Leader positions 05, 06, 07, 08, 17, 18, and 19. See <u>Change the</u> <u>MARC Leader</u>.
- 8. Edit the values for the 006, 007, or 008 fixed fields, as needed. See Edit the 008 field in a MARC record or Add 006 and 007 fixed fields.

Tip:

To insert subfield delimiters, press CTRL+Q.

- 9. Type additional tags, subfields, and enter data.
- 10. When you finish adding the bibliographic tags, save the record by choosing one of the following options:

 If the record is ready for use in Polaris, select File > Save, press CTRL+S or click the Save button.

Tip:

Non-provisional records are saved with a status of final if no errors are found in the headings and tags. If there are errors in the record, an error dialog box appears.

• To save the bibliographic record provisionally, select **File** > **Save Provisionally**. To edit the record later, save it provisionally.

If the Cataloging profile **Bibliographic records: Warning for records saved with display in PAC unchecked** is set to **Yes**, a warning message appears if the **Display in PAC** check box is unchecked. You can check the **Display in PAC** check box on the Bibliographic Record workform, or you can continue to save the record. For more information on the Cataloging profile, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Set message for bibs that do not display in PAC.

11. To see how the title will display in the PAC, select **View, PAC.**

Related Information

- Preview the Title Display in the PAC
- Web Links Display in the PAC
- Editing MARC Records
- <u>Checking Authority Headings</u>
- <u>Checking MARC Format</u>
- <u>Checking for Duplicate Records</u>
- Type of Material Codes (TOMs)

Create a new authority record

To create an original authority record in Polaris:

- 1. Select **File** | **New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click New from the Polaris Shortcut Bar to display the New dialog box.
- 2. Select Authority Record from the Objects list.
- 3. To use a template to create the new authority record, do the following steps:

Note:

For more information on creating templates, see <u>Using Cataloging</u> <u>Templates</u>.

a. Select **Existing Template**, and select an authority record template from the list.

Note:

If you are creating multiple records using the same template, you can select the **Make session default** box. When you create the next authority record in the same session, the template you chose will be selected automatically as the default.

b. Click OK.

The Authority Record workform appears with the information from the template filled in. If you chose **No Template**, a blank Authority Record workform appears.

Tip:

You can set Authority Leader positions 05, 06, and 17. The remaining positions are supplied automatically.

c. Use the MARC Editor commands to add tags and subfields as needed. See Editing MARC Records.

Note:

When you save an authority record, it is automatically checked for MARC format, duplicates, and authority headings. However, you can resolve any problems before saving the record by performing these checks first (see <u>Checking Cataloging</u> <u>Records</u>).

4. Select **File** | **Save** to save the authority record.

The record was saved successfully appears if no errors were found.

Related Information

- <u>Checking MARC Format</u>
- <u>Checking for Duplicate Records</u>

• Checking Authority Headings

Copying MARC Records

You can locate bibliographic or authority records in remote databases (such as the Polaris ZMARC database) and copy them into the Polaris database. To search a remote database, it must be configured in Polaris Administration and identified for your organization in the Search Database policy table. See the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Controlling Database Access in the Staff Client. To subscribe to the Polaris ZMARC database, contact your Polaris Site Manager.

If you want to remove specific MARC tags from remote records when they are saved to your library's local database, the tags must be defined in the Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table, and the **Delete MARC tags when saving Z39.50 records to local database** profile must be set to **Yes**. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Deleting MARC Tags from Incoming Bibs.

To copy bibliographic or authority control records from a remote database:

Important:

When you are copying records, you should always check for potential duplicates that may exist in your database, and you should check the format and headings.

1. From the Polaris Shortcut Bar, select **Cataloging** and select **Bibliographic Records** or **Authority Records**

The Polaris Find Tool appears.

2. In the **Search by** box, select the access point by which to find the record.

Note:

You can search for a 10-digit or 13-digit ISBN. The search process checks for a matching ISBN in the 020 tag and in the 024 tag with a 3 in the first indicator.

3. Select the type of search in the **Type** box.

Note:

The target database may not allow some of the Find Tool search types. Many remote catalogs support only keyword searches. Also, sorting search results may not work with remote databases. See <u>Results</u> <u>Returned from Remote Databases</u>.

4. Type the description of the item in the **For** box.

Note:

Implicit truncation is not supported when searching remote databases. End the search for text with the wild card symbol (*) if you are unsure of an exact match. For example, type **Asimov, Isaac***.

- 5. Select **Databases** to display the remote databases.
- 6. Select the check box next to the remote database or databases you want to search.
- 7. Click **Search** to start the catalog search.

A dialog box appears with a list of the bibliographic records in the selected database that match your query.

8. Double-click the record, or right-click and select **Open** from the context menu.

The selected record appears in the Bibliographic Record or the Authority Record workform. The **Record status** and **Control Number** boxes are blank because this record does not yet belong to your Polaris catalog.

9. Do the following checks as needed:

Note:

These checks are automatically done when you save the record as final. You do not necessarily need to do these checks as part of your workflow.

- To check for duplicate records, select Tools > Check For Duplicates (see <u>Checking</u> for Duplicate Records).
- To check authority headings, select Tools > Check Headings on the Bibliographic Record workform or Tools > Check See Also From References on the Authority Record workform. See <u>Checking Authority Headings</u> for detailed instructions on checking headings.
- To check MARC format, select Tools > Check MARC21 Format. See <u>Checking</u> MARC Format for detailed instructions on using this tool.
- 10. Make changes to the record as needed.

11. Select **File** > **Save**, press **CTRL+S**, or click **I** to save your record.

Polaris checks the MARC 21 format and headings, and checks for any duplicate records. If no errors are found, **Record was saved successfully** appears in the status bar. If any problems are listed, correct the problems as directed by your library cataloging policy to finish saving the record. When the record is saved, a control number and record status are assigned automatically.

Results Returned from Remote Databases

Most Likely to Return Results	May Not Be Indexed in Target Catalog (Less Likely to Return results)
All indexed fields (both searches)	CODEN
Author (bibliographic search)	Dewey Clas- sification
Heading (authority search)	General Notes
ISBN (bibliographic search)	Genre
ISSN (bibliographic search)	Gov Doc Clas- sification
LCCN (both searches)	LC Classification
Series (bibliographic search)	NAL Clas- sification
Subject (bib- liographic search)	NLC Clas- sification
Title (bibliographic search)	NLM Clas- sification

Most Likely to Return Results	May Not Be Indexed in Target Catalog (Less Likely to Return results)
Tracing/Reference (authority)	Other system con- trol number
	Publisher
	Publisher's Num- ber
	STRN
	UDC Clas- sification

Related Information

- Set up a remote database target See the Polaris *Administration Guide*, Set up a server record for a Z39.50 or other search server.
- Polaris ZMARC Innovative Interfaces offers a subscription to the Polaris ZMARC database that gives you access to over 11 million bibliographic records and 7 million authority records cataloged by the Library of Congress. Innovative Interfaces sets up ZMARC as a Z39.50 target in Polaris Administration. You can select the ZMARC databases from the list of established targets on the Database tabbed page of the Polaris Find Tool. After ZMARC is established as a remote database that you can search, you can set it up for a source of authority records for automatic authority control. See <u>Checking Authority Headings</u>.

Editing MARC Records

The MARC 21 views of the Bibliographic Record workform and the Authority Record workform display the MARC coding. The MARC 21 view includes the following features that help improve efficiency and accuracy when you enter MARC data:

Tip:

To see how the title will appear in Polaris PowerPAC, select View >

PAC on the Bibliographic Record workform. The type of material icon that displays in Polaris PowerPAC is determined by the primary type of material. For more information, see <u>Type of Material Codes (TOMs)</u>.

- Shortcut key combinations See Cataloging Shortcut Keys.
- Copy and paste capability You can copy and paste text from other Polaris records and third-party records, such as LC subject headings and Classification Plus. When you paste the text, it conforms to the default font, size, and color used in this view.
- Dialog boxes for selecting the leader and fixed fields The available values in the dialog boxes depend on the selections in other fields. For example, the dialog box that appears in the 008 field depends on the type of record specified in the leader.
- Macros Record and then "play back" frequently-used text and command sequences.
- Automatic sorting of MARC data Enter fields in any order, and automatically sort the order according to the MARC Validation Editor settings. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Administering MARC Validation and Display.
- MARC field descriptions The descriptions display automatically in the bottom of the MARC 21 view if your administrator has turned on the automatic display. If the description does not display automatically, you can press CTRL+L, or select Display Description from the context menu. Your Polaris administrator can customize the descriptions that appear. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Administering MARC Validation and Display.
- Automatic checking when you save the record The record is checked for MARC format and for duplicate records. For more information, see <u>Checking Cataloging</u> <u>Records</u>.

Tip:

If you enter MARC data using an international keyboard, the keyboard shortcuts may not work correctly. Change the keyboard back to English to use keyboard shortcuts.

Ability to enter diacritics or vernacular script -You can use a character picker dialog box to enter single characters or a diacritical mark. Or, if you frequently enter text in languages other than English, you can change your keyboard settings in Windows to add an international keyboard. See <u>Enter diacritics/characters using an IME keyboard</u>. The Polaris catalog supports full UTF-16 Unicode.

See also:

- Change the MARC Leader
- Edit the 008 field in a MARC record
- Add 006 and 007 fixed fields
- Add a MARC tag to a record
- Insert a subfield in a MARC record
- Move a block of text
- Enter diacritics/characters using an IME keyboard
- <u>Choose characters/diacritics from a chart</u>
- Insert a character/diacritic using a code
- <u>Record a macro</u>
- <u>Apply a Macro to Edit a MARC Record</u>
- <u>Change a macro</u>
- Delete a macro

Change the MARC Leader

To change the values for the Leader positions in a bibliographic or authority record:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.

When you open a new bibliographic or authority record, the following information appears in the Leader data column:

- For a new bibliographic record, the default data in the Leader is **NAM**. This indicates that the record status is new, the type of record is language material, and the bibliographic level is monograph/item.
- For a new authority record, the default data in the Leader is **nz 22 n 4500**. This indicates that the record status is new, the type of record is authority dateless, the record is in MARC format, and the encoding level is complete authority record.

Tip:

If the record does not have a leader tag, press **CTRL+L** to insert the LDR tag.

2. Double-click **LDR** in the **Tag** column.

Tag	Ind	Data		
LDR 008)	nam 061229	22	4500

The Leader - Bibliographic Data or the Leader - Authority Data dialog box appears.

3. Enter or change the values in the Leader positions as required.

Tip:

The Type of Record (LDR/06) and Bibliographic Level (LDR/07) values determine which dialog boxes are available to set the 008 fixed data.

- 4. Select from the lists to change the information in the leader.
- 5. Click OK.

The selections you chose appear in the **LDR** data column.

Coding the MARC Leader for Digital Collections

If you are creating the MARC record to be used in Polaris Fusion, select **m** Computer File in LDR 06 and **c** Collection in LDR 07. For more information, see Polaris Fusion online Help.

Edit the 008 Field in a MARC Record

When you create a new bibliographic or authority record, the Leader and the 008 fixed field automatically appear. The data in the 008 fixed field is the current date. You can add data to the field by typing in the Data column or by using the dialog box.

To edit the values in the 008 fixed field:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.

Tip:

Click the **Help** button in any of these dialog boxes to get help with the MARC codes.

2. Double-click the 008 tag.

A dialog box appears.

Note:

The dialog box that appears depends on what type of record you specified in the Leader.

- 3. Choose the appropriate options in the dialog box to change the data in the 008 fixed field.
- 4. Click **OK**.

The 008 field is updated.

Add 006 and 007 Fixed Fields

To add more information regarding the physical characteristics of the material, use the 006 and 007 fixed fields. To add the 006 and 007 fixed fields in a bibliographic record:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record workform.
- 2. Position the cursor after the Leader or at the end of any line.
- 3. Press **Enter** to insert a new line.
- 4. In the **Tag** column, type one of the following codes:
- Type **007** for a physical description fixed field.
- Type **006** for an additional material characteristics field.
- 5. Double-click the 006 or 007 tag, or position the cursor on the tag and press **CTRL+E**.

The Bibliographic Fixed Field Selection dialog box appears.

6. Select a form or category of material, and click **OK**.

A dialog box appears where you can enter more specifics regarding the material. The dialog box that appears depends on the entry you choose in the Bibliographic Fixed Field Selection dialog box.

7. Select from the list boxes to further define the material, and click **OK**.

The MARC 21 view displays the completed 006 or 007 tag.

Add a MARC Tag to a Record

To add a tag to a MARC record:

Tip:

The description of the field displays at the bottom edge of the workform. If the workform is positioned too far down on the screen, you may not be able to see the description. Move the workform toward the top of the screen, if necessary.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Place the cursor at the end of a line.
- 3. Press Enter to insert a new line.
- 4. Enter the tag number in the **Tag** column of the new line.
- 5. Enter indicators, subfields, and data as required for the tag.

Insert a Subfield in a MARC Record

To insert a subfield into a tag in a MARC record:

Important:

The keyboard shortcut to insert the subfield delimiter is **CTRL+Q**. Do not use **CTRL+D** because this key combination deletes the displayed record.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Position the text cursor in the field where you want to insert the subfield.

Note:

At the beginning of a field, it is not necessary to insert the delimiter. Type the subfield code and the delimiter is inserted automatically.

- 3. Select **Tools** > **Insert Delimiter**, or press **CTRL+Q** to insert the subfield delimiter.
- 4. Type the subfield code.
- 5. Type the subfield information.

Move a Block of Text in a MARC Record

To select and move a line or multiple lines of text in a MARC record:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Select (highlight) the text you want to move.
- 3. Position the cursor over the selected text.

Tip:

Alternatively, you can Press **CTRL+X** to cut the highlighted text. Position the cursor where you want to move the text, and press **CTRL+V** to paste it.

- 4. Press and hold the command (left) button on the mouse.
- 5. Move the cursor to the location where you want to move the text.

Important:

Be sure you do not move the text into the middle of a tag line or subfield.

6. Release the command button.

The highlighted text appears in the new location.

Enter Diacritics/Characters Using an IME Keyboard

Note:

For optimal display of all characters, be sure Arial Unicode MS font is installed on the workstation.

If you frequently enter diacritics or vernacular script using non-Roman characters, add Input Method Editor (IME) keyboards so you can switch back and forth between English and other languages using the keyboard. To enter single characters or diacritics, you can select characters from a dialog box. See <u>Choose characters/diacritics from a chart</u>.

To enter diacritics or non-Roman characters using an Input Method Editor (IME) keyboard:

Tip:

The steps for using IME keyboards differ slightly depending on which version of Windows is installed. For more information, see Microsoft's web site at **www.microsoft.com**.

- 1. Go to **Settings** on the PC.
- 2. Select Time & Language.
- 3. Select Region & language
- 4. Select Add a language.
- 5. On the Add a language dialog box, start typing the language to add.

Add a language		
Sp	×	
<mark>Español</mark> Spanish		

The language appears.

- 6. If the language has variants by region, select the appropriate regional language.
- 7. In the Region & language window, select the added language, and select **Options**.
- 8. Select Add a keyboard and select the keyboard to add.
- 9. In the taskbar, select the keyboard (ENG US), and all keyboards appear.



- 10. Select the added keyboard from the list.
- 11. Start typing in the MARC Editor.
- 12. When you are finished with the added keyboard, press the Windows key and then the spacebar.

The keyboard changes.

Important:

Set up all your cataloging templates with the English keyboard selected because keyboard combinations, such as **CTRL+Q** for inserting a delimiter, may not work if you have an international keyboard selected.

Choose Characters/Diacritics a Dialog Box

To insert an international character into a MARC record by selecting the character or diacritic mark from the Character Picker dialog box:

Tip:

If you frequently enter diacritics, you can add Input Method Editor (IME) keyboards and switch back and forth from the English keyboard to the

international keyboards. See <u>Enter diacritics/characters using an IME</u> keyboard.

Important:

When you enter a combining diacritic mark next to a subfield designator, insert the base character before the combining mark.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Position the text cursor where you want to insert the character.
- 3. Select **Tools**, **Diacritics** or right-click anywhere in the workform, and select **Diacritics** from the context menu. Or, press **ALT+D**. The Character Picker dialog box opens with the (MARC-8)Basic Latin code chart displayed and a space selected.

				Ch	aracti	er Pic	:ker			x
Graph	nic set	: (M/	RC-8) Bas	ic Lati	n		•		A
	!	"	#	\$	%	&	•	(^	
)	*	+	,	-	-	7	0	1		
2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	:		
;	<	=	>	?	@	А	В	С		
D	Е	F	G	н	1	J	κ	L		
М	Ν	0	Ρ	Q	R	s	Т	U		
٧	W	Х	Y	Ζ	[١]	۸		
_	•	а	b	с	d	е	f	g		
h	i	j	k	ł	m	n	0	р		
q	r	s	t	u	v	w	x	у		
z	{	1	}	~						
									<u> </u>	
Short	cut ke	y:				Γ	Inco	+ 7	angel	Holo
						L	msei		Jancer	neip

4. Select the graphic set in the **Graphic set** box.

Note:

The Graphic set drop-down list contains the traditional MARC 8 code

ranges and most Unicode code charts. When you select a graphic set, the characters belonging to the selected graphic set appear.

		Character Picker
Graph	nic set:	(MARC-8) Basic Arabic (MARC-8) Basic Cyrillic
1		(MARC-8) Basic Hebrew (MARC-8) Basic Latin
*	+	(MARC-8) Breek Symbols (MARC-8) East Asian (MARC-9) Extended Arabia
۳	٤	(MARC-8) Extended Cyrillic (MARC-8) Extended Latin
<	=	(MARC-8) Greek (MARC-8) Subscripts
s	1	(MARC-8) Superscripts Alphabetic Presentation Forms
د	ذ	Arabic Arabic Extended-A
ظ	3	Arabic Presentation Forms-A Arabic Presentation Forms-B Arabic Supplement
J	م	Amenian Liasturor
0	ō	Arrows Balineso
		Bamum Basic Latin Batak Bengali Block Elements Bopomofo Bopomofo Extended Box Drawing
Short	cut key	Insert Cancel Help

- 5. Position the cursor where you want to insert the character.
- 6. Double-click the character, or select the character and click **Insert**.

The selected character is displayed in the MARC 21 view. If a particular character cannot be displayed using the fonts that are available to the workstation, a missing glyph box displays where the character would normally appear. When the missing glyph box is displayed, the correct Unicode character is stored in the record.

Insert a Character/Diacritic Using a Code

To insert an international character into a MARC record by typing the character code on the numeric keypad:

Tip:

To see the Unicode value of a character already in the MARC record, select the character in the MARC 21 view, and press **Alt+Shift+X**. Press **Alt+X** to re-display the character.

Important:

When you enter a combining diacritic mark next to a subfield designator, insert the base character before the combining mark.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Position the text cursor where you want to insert the international character.
- 3. If you are combining characters, type the base character.
- 4. Press and hold **ALT** while you type the decimal character code on the numeric keypad.

The numeric codes are displayed on the Character Picker dialog box.

Example:

To insert a Latin capital letter O with a tilde diacritic (\tilde{O}), type **o**. Then hold down the **ALT** key while typing the numbers **0771** using the numeric keypad. (Do not use the number keys above the letter keys on the keyboard.) When you release the **ALT** key, the tilde appears over the O.

5. Release the **ALT** key after you finish typing the character code numbers.

The international character is displayed in the MARC 21 view.

Record a Macro

If you frequently use the same text in your MARC records, you can record the keystrokes and save them in a macro that you can use again. Your macros are available when you log on.

To record the keyboard actions to include in a macro:

Note:

Plan the tags and fields you want in the macro before recording it.

Tip: Press ALT+F8 to display the Macros tool bar.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Select **Tools** | **Macros** to display the Macros tool bar.

Macros	×
New Macro (Ctrl+Shift+F)	Edit Show All

- 3. Place the cursor in the MARC record where you want to begin the keyboard actions that you want to record.
- 4. Click 💽 (Record button) to open the Record Macro dialog box.

Tip:

You can stop recording the macro at any time by clicking **Cancel** on the Record Macro dialog box.

5. Type a name for the macro in the **Name** box.

The macro name must be different from the other names in your macro list. The name you define is displayed in the Macros box on the Macros tool bar after you record the macro. You can use up to 50 alphabetic characters, numbers, and spaces to name the macro.

6. Type text describing the macro in the **Description** box.

Your description should be a short explanation of the purpose of the macro. You can use up to 255 alphabetic characters, numbers, spaces, and punctuation in your description.

7. In the **Press new shortcut key** box, press the keys for the keyboard shortcut.

Example:

You could use **SHIFT+CTRL+B** as the shortcut to start the macro that enters data for a bindery.

Important:

You cannot use key sequences **CTRL+A** through **CTRL+Z** or function keys in macros because they are reserved for Microsoft Windows or Polaris functions.

8. Click Start Recording.

The Record Macro dialog box closes.

9. Type the tags, fields, and subfields exactly as you want them to be stored in the macro.

Tip:

Test your macro on a disposable MARC record before you use the macro in your regular workflow.

10. After you have completed all of the actions you want recorded, click 🔳 (Stop button).

The macro is listed in the Macros box on the Macros tool bar.

Related Information

- Apply a macro
- Change a macro
- Delete a macro
- Print macros You can print reports that list authority record and bibliographic record macros. Search Polaris help for "Cataloging Reports."

Apply a Macro to Edit a MARC Record

To use a macro to edit a MARC record:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Place the cursor in the MARC record where you want the macro playback to occur.

Tip:

If you know the keyboard shortcut, you can quickly apply the macro.

3. Select **Tools > Macros** to display the Macros tool bar.

If you have created macros, they appear in the list box.

4. To see all the macros, click Show All.

The Macro Selection dialog box appears.

5. Select the macro in the Macro box and click 🗩 (Run) on the Macros tool bar, or use its associated keyboard shortcut.

The character sequence stored in the macro is entered in the Editor view of the record.

Change a Macro

To change the name, description, or shortcut key of an existing macro in your macro list:

Note:

You cannot change the recorded contents of the macro.

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.

Tip:

Press ALT+F8 to display the Macros tool bar.

- 2. Select **Tools > Macros** to display the Macros tool bar.
- 3. Select the name of the macro you want to change, and click **Edit**.

The Edit Macro dialog box appears.

- 4. Change the information in the **Name**, **Description**, and **Press new shortcut key** boxes.
- 5. Click Save.

The macro is changed.

Delete a Macro

To delete a macro:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.

Tip: Press **ALT+F8** to display the Macros tool bar.

- 2. Select **Tools > Macros** to display the Macros tool bar.
- 3. Select the name of the macro to change, and click **Edit**.

The Edit Macro dialog box appears.

4. Click Delete.

Browse Headings Display

The browse headings that display in browse search results for author, title, subject, or series are based on the first occurrence of the heading that was entered in the Polaris database. For example, a brief bibliographic record is created, and the heading displays in all uppercase letters because it is the first instance of that heading. Another example is an author browse heading that is missing accents. You can select which browse heading to display (when the count is greater than 1 and it is not a *See* or *See Also* heading). The selected heading is displayed for browse searching in the Find Tool and in the PAC.

To update a browse display heading:

1. Browse search in the Find Tool for a bibliographic record by title, author, subject, or series.

The browse search results appear.

2. Select the heading you want to update, right-click and choose **Select display heading** from the context menu.

The Select Heading Results dialog box appears.

3. Select the heading you want to display, and click the **Update Browse Display** button.

The heading display is updated both in the Find Tool and PAC browse search results.

- 4. (Optional) To update the bibliographic records that are linked to the unwanted heading, do the following:
 - a. Select the heading that you **do not** want to display.
 - b. Click **Show Bib Records**. A list box displays the bibliographic records that have this heading.
 - c. Double-click on the bibliographic records to open them, change the records to match the preferred heading, and save them.

Using Cataloging Templates

Using templates to create bibliographic, authority, and item records greatly reduces the time it takes to do original cataloging because much of the information is already present in the template. In addition, templates ensure consistency in your records and facilitate acquisitions and serials processing workflows. You can create a template by renaming an existing template or by saving an item, bibliographic, or authority record as a template.

Note:

If you have a contract with an eContent vendor that integrates with Polaris, eContent item records are created automatically using an ebook item template.

In addition, you can create several templates for the same type of record. For example, you can have separate bibliographic templates for books, music, videos, and other types of items. The more standard information you can enter in the template, the less you need to enter when you create a new record. To set up templates for specific material types, see Type of Material Codes (TOMs).

If you are creating new cataloging records and you want to use the same template for all the records, you can choose a template as the template default; it is used to create subsequent records of the same type for the duration of the time you are logged in.

The following types of templates are used outside of Cataloging:

- On-order bibliographic templates Available from a purchase order line item to create brief bibliographic records from title information added to a purchase order line item.
- On-order item templates Automatically create on-order item records when purchase orders are released.
- On-the-fly item templates Used for circulating uncataloged materials.
- Reserve item templates Used for circulating uncataloged materials and instructor-supplied course reserve materials.
- **INN-Reach ILL item templates** Used for circulating items requested through INN-Reach if your library has a license to use INN-Reach.

See also:

- Save an existing record as a template
- Create a template from the Shortcut Bar

Save an Existing Record as a Template

To create a new template based on an existing bibliographic, authority, or item record:

- 1. Open the Item Record, Bibliographic Record, or Authority Record workform.
- 2. Select **File > Save As Template** to save the record as a template.

The Template Setup dialog box appears.

- 3. Type the name of the template in the **Name** box.
- 4. Select the template's owner in the **Owner** box.
- 5. Click **OK** to submit your settings.
 - If the template's name and owner combination are being used, a message appears, and you cannot save the template until you change the name, owner or both.
 - If the template's name and owner combination is unique in your system, the message The record was saved as a template successfully appears in the workform status bar.

The new template is displayed in the appropriate cataloging workform.

- 6. Change the template to remove information specific to the original record and make any other changes.
- 7. Select **File** > **Save** to save the template.

Create a Template from the Shortcut Bar

To create a bibliographic, authority, or item record template from the Shortcut Bar:

- 1. Select **File** > **New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click **New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar to display the New dialog box.
- 2. Select one of the following template types from the Objects list, and click OK:
 - Bibliographic Template
 - Authority Template

• Item Template

The appropriate template workform appears.

- 3. Specify a name and owner for the template using the appropriate method:
 - If you are creating an item template, specify the name and owner in the fields at the top of the workform.
 - If you are creating an authority or bibliographic template, select File > Template setup and specify the name and owner on the Template Setup dialog box.
- 4. Select **File** > **Save** to save the template.

The template is saved in the database and added to the list of available templates.

Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records

Innovative Interfaces provides read-only import profiles (identified by the owner **PolarisExec**) designed for specific purposes, such as importing brief records for purchase orders or importing updated authority records. Although you cannot change the settings in a PolarisExec import profile, you can copy the profile, rename it, and then modify the settings. See <u>Polaris Read-Only Import Profiles</u> for a list of the PolarisExec import profiles and their uses.

Tip:

For information on implementing the Authorities Weekly service, contact your Polaris Site Manager.

Staff members with the appropriate permissions can set the following automatic processing options, among others, in the Import Setup window:

- Perform MARC validation
- Save records as provisional or final
- Check duplicates based on system- or profile-defined rules
- Specify tags to retain from overlaid records using system- or profile-defined tags
- · Specify tags to delete using system- or profile-defined tags
- Check the preferred cataloging source when merging duplicate authority records
- Create or update item records from embedded holdings data in the bibliographic records
- Protect the incoming records from being overlaid in the future
- Group the imported records in record sets for easy retrieval and bulk processing.

Before you can import bibliographic or authority records, the MARC or MARCXML record files must be downloaded from the cataloging source or materials vendor to your computer's desktop or another accessible network location. Then, select the import profile and specify the location of the files to import.

All import processing takes place on the server, so once an import is launched, the Polaris Staff Client can be used for other tasks. Users with the required permissions can manage import jobs and specify blackout times when importing jobs cannot be run. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Specify import blackout times. When you import bibliographic records with a LDR/05 of d (deleted), a bibliographic record with a status of deleted is created and saved if the Polaris Administration profile **Retain deleted bibliographic records** is set to **Yes**. If the incoming bibliographic record is a duplicate of an existing record, the incoming record overlays the existing record (unless it has unbreakable links to other records). Both the incoming record with a status of deleted and the existing record with a status of deleted are put into a record set, if one is specified. You can then permanently delete all the records in that record set, or you can use the purge process to remove records with a deleted status from the database. See <u>Purge cataloging records</u>. If the Polaris Administration profile **Retain deleted bibliographic records** is set to **No**, imported records with a deleted status overlay existing duplicate records, and both the incoming and existing record are removed from the database.

See also:

- <u>Setting Up Import Profiles</u>
- Importing Records
- Using the Import Jobs Queue
- Automatic Processes During Import

Setting Up Import Profiles

You can set up import profiles and then use them whenever you are importing records into the Polaris database. For best results, start with a Polaris read-only profile that is designed for a specific type of import, copy the profile and rename it. For example, if you are importing bibliographic records with embedded holdings data, you can select the **Polaris default (with item creation)** profile, copy it, and save it with a different name.

Tip:

To review all the settings in an import profile, you can print a report from the Import Profile Manager. See Print an import profile.

The following permissions, set at the System level, control who can work with import profiles: **Import profiles: Access, Create, Delete,** and **Modify**.

See also:

- Polaris Read-Only Import Profiles
- Copy a Polaris Read-Only Import Profile

- <u>Create a New Import Profile</u>
- Set Import Options for Bibliographic Records
- Set Import Options for Item Records
- Set Import Options for Authority Records
- Set Import Options for Record Sets
- Print an Import Profile
- Modify an Import Profile
- Delete an Import Profile

Polaris Read-Only Import Profiles

To see the Polaris read-only import profiles defined for specific types of import processing, select **Utilities, Importing, Profile Manager.**



The Import Profile window opens.

Select PolarisExec in the **Creator** box to limit the list to only the Polaris read-only import profiles.

Polaris includes the following read-only import profiles that are designed for specific types of import processing: Acquisitions Bibs Import Profile, Authority Update Import, Enriched EDI Orders, Integrated ebook Bibs, Polaris default, and Polaris default (with item creation). The Integrated ebook Bibs import profile is used exclusively for importing eContent bibliographic records.

Acquisitions Bibs Import Profile

When you import bibliographic records using an online collection development tool, you can use the **Acquisitions Bibs** profile. The profile is set to ignore MARC validation errors because the incoming records are brief and do not require validation. When a duplicate is found, the incoming record is rejected, and the 970 tags from both records are retained in the full bibliographic record.

Copy the Acquisitions Bibs profile for each vendor you use to import records, name each copy of the Acquisitions Bibs profile with the name of the vendor, and make any changes to the settings.

Important:

To ensure that the most-recently entered ISBN or UPC is retained, you **must** add the 020 (ISBN) and 024 (UPC) tags to the profile-defined retention tags. When these tags are retained from an incoming record that is a duplicate of an existing record, and the existing record has multiple ISBNs or UPCs, the most-recently added ISBN or UPC is at the top of the list in a purchase order line item.

Authority Update Import Profile

If you use the Authorities Weekly service to keep your authority records current, use the import profile **Authority Update Import** to import the updated authority records. Innovative Interfaces sets up this profile specifically for importing updated authority records. This import profile is set to perform duplicate detection using system-defined duplicate detection rules, and if duplicates are found, merge the duplicate records based on which record has a higher ranking in the Authority Record Import Preferred Cataloging Source policy table at the System level.

Important:

The Authority Update Import profile is set to check the Authority Record Import: Preferred Cataloging Source policy table at the system level. To ensure that the updated records from ZMARC files always overlay existing records, delete all entries in the table at the system level. Then, enter the preferred sources in the Preferred Cataloging Source policy table at the branch level so that the branch determines the preferred cataloging source for non-ZMARC imports. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Specify preferred cataloging sources for authority records.

Enriched EDI Orders Import Profile

The Enriched EDI Orders profile is set up specifically to import full bibliographic records from your book vendor and create "shelf-ready" item records, including location and collection information (and the call number fields, if your supplier can process this data). It is set to perform MARC validation, authority control, and duplicate detection. If a duplicate is found, the record with the highest encoding level is saved and 949 tags are retained. If you send enriched EDI orders to vendors through Acquisitions, copy this profile to reflect the vendor's name, but leave most of the settings as they are.

The Item Records tab of the Enriched EDI Orders import profile is set to build item records from the data in the 949 tag. If your library and supplier decide to embed the holdings data in a tag other than the 949 tag, you can change the profile to indicate the correct tag.

Tip:

When **Update items (enriched EDI)** is selected, you cannot enter a value in the **Circ Status** box in the Embedded holdings field/MARC subfield mapping list.

The system matches the content of the 949\$e in the incoming bibliographic record to the purchase order line item segment, and the linked on-order item is updated with the full item data from the imported bibliographic record. The updated item is ready to circulate once it is checked in.

However, if there are 949 tags with a purchase order line item segment ID in tag 949 \$e and a volume designation in 949 \$v, a final item record will be created even if no matching on-order item is found. The new final item record is linked to the purchase order line item segment in \$e. This allows holds that were placed at the bibliographic level for an on-order set to go to the first volume of the set.

Polaris Default Import Profile

This is a general profile for importing bibliographic records. It is set up to perform MARC validation and duplicate detection, and to save records as provisional if any MARC formatting errors or duplicate records are found.

Polaris Default (with item creation) Import Profile

The Polaris Default (with item creation) import profile has the same settings on the Bibliographic Records tab as the Polaris Default import profile, but the Item Records tab is set to create item records from embedded holdings data in 852 tags.

Copy a Polaris Read-Only Import Profile

You can start with an existing Polaris read-only import profile and copy it. See <u>Polaris</u> <u>Read-Only Import Profiles</u> for a list of the Polaris import profiles and their intended purpose. The advantage to starting with one of these existing profiles is that they are already set up to handle duplicate detection, overlay, and other processing. You can rename the profile to make it more descriptive and make slight changes without affecting the overall efficiency of the automatic processing. For information on the permissions required for creating and modifying import profiles, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Set Cataloging Security topic.

Tip:

You can print an import profile and review all the settings. See Print an import profile.

To create a new import profile from an existing Polaris read-only profile:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Profile Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.



The Import Profile Manager appears.

2. In the **Creator** box, select **PolarisExec** to limit the view to only the Polaris read-only profiles.

7		Import Profile Manager - Polaris -	- 🗆 🗙
File Edit	t View Help		
🗋 🖻	i 🕹 · 🗙 😭 🗸		
ß	Filter By Creator: PolarisExec		
🔝 Import Profil	Profile Name Acquisitions Bibs Authority Update Import Enriched EDI Orders Integrated ebook Bibs Polaris default Polaris default (with Itam creation)	Description C For Bib records from vendor selection tools (read only) P Authority Update Import profile (read only) P Enriched EDI Orders (read only) P This is the default profile for imported bib records for P Polaris default import profile (read only) P Polaris default with item creation (read only) F	Jrazbor TolarisExec TolarisExec TolarisExec TolarisExec TolarisExec TolarisExec
For Help,	press F1		j.

3. Select the read-only Polaris import profile you want to copy, right-click, and select **Copy**.

The Create Import profile window appears with the name of the profile you copied.

	Create Import Profile - (copied from Acquisitions Bibs profile)
Profile Setup (8	bilographic Racards Itom Records Authenty Records Record Selo
Hanes:	Dedur: per
Description:	For Ells records from vendor selection tools (read anly)
Source file re	erre:
Veedor acca	int: (Pione) v
	Блиб Осел Ниф

4. Type a name for the profile in the **Name** box, and an optional description in the **Description** box.

Tip:

Name the profile so it is easy for users to identify, for example, **LSSIAuthority** or **OCLCBibliographic**. If you are copying the Acquisitions Bibs or Enriched EDI Orders profile, name the profile with the vendor's name, for example **Baker & Taylor**.
5. (Optional) Click **Browse** and go to a specific file if you want to save the file name in the profile, or go to a directory if you want to save the directory location in the profile. If the file name is saved in the profile, the file will be selected automatically (if it exists) when a cataloger imports records using this profile. If a directory is saved in the profile, the directory location automatically displays when a cataloger clicks the **Add** button to add the files to be imported.

The file name or directory location appear in the **Source file name** box.

6. Click Save.

The profile is saved. The Create Import Profile window remains open.

- 7. If you need to make changes to the import profile, click the following tabs and set the import options:
 - Bibliographic Records See <u>Set import options for bibliographic records</u>.
 - Item Records See Set import options for item records.
 - Authority Records See Set import options for authority records.
 - Record Sets See Set import options for record sets .
- 8. When you have finished setting up the relevant import options, click **Save**, and click **Close** to close the saved profile.

Create a New Import Profile

Although it is preferable to start with an existing Polaris read-only import profile and copy it, you can create your own import profiles and set all the options on each tab of the Import Profile window.

To create a new import profile:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Profile Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Import Profile Manager appears.

2. Select **File > New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click the New button.

The Create Import Profile window appears.

	graphic records	Item Records 7	Authority Records	Record Sets			
Name:					Creator:	laura.peer	
Description:							
ource file name	:					E	Browse
'endor account:	(None)			~			

- 3. Type a name for the profile in the **Name** box.
- 4. Type a description for the profile in the **Description** box.
- 5. (Optional) If you want to include a default source file name or directory in the import profile, click **Browse** and locate the source file or directory location.

Note:

If the MARC or MARCXML files for this import profile are always saved in the same desktop or network location, you can save the file or directory location in the profile. If a file name is saved in the profile, the file will be selected automatically (if it exists) when a user imports records using this profile. If a directory is saved in the profile, the directory location will automatically display when a user clicks the **Add** button.

6. Click **Save** to save the new import profile.

When you save the import profile, the title of the dialog box changes to Modify Import Profile.

Note:

The **Vendor account** is used only when you are setting up an import profile for an ebook vendor.

- 7. Select the following tabs and set the import options:
 - Bibliographic Records See Set import options for bibliographic records.
 - Item Records See <u>Set import options for item records</u>.

- Authority Records See Set import options for authority records.
- Record Sets See Set import options for record sets .
- 8. After setting up the relevant options on each tab, click **Save** to save the new import profile.
- 9. Click **Close** to close the saved profile.

Set Import Options for Bibliographic Records

To set the import profile options for bibliographic records:

1. Select the **Bibliographic Records** tab in the Modify Import Profile window.

The Bibliographic Records tabbed page appears.

Note:

To create item records from embedded holdings when importing bibliographic records, see <u>Set Import Options for Item Records</u>.

Modify Import Profile - New Import Profile 1			×
Profile Setup Bibliographic Records Item Records Authority Bibliographic Save Options Save all records as final Do not save any records Record owner: QA-POLARIS 6.0 (sys)	r Records Record Se y in PAC t overlay	ts Delete MARC Tags on incoming record System defined deletion tags Profile defined deletion tags	
When Saving Bibliographic Records as Final Perform MARC 21 Validation If validation errors are found: Save record as provisional Jignore errors; save record as final	Perform Autho If no matchin Automa Do not	rity Control g heading is found: tically create new authority record; save bibliographic record as final create authority record; save bibliographic record as final create authority record; save bibliographic record as provisional	
Perform Duplicate Detection Use system defined duplicate detection rules Use profile defined duplicate detection rules If a suspected duplicate is found: Save incoming record as provisional			
Save incoming record as final; do not replace databas Save incoming record as final; replace database record Save record with highest encoding level. If encoding Save incoming record as final; replace databas Reject incoming record Save incoming record; add MARC retention tags to	ise record ord levels match: ee record eep MARC Tags ¹) database record	Keep MARC Tags System defined overlay retention tags Profile defined overlay retention tags	
		Save Close H	elp

2. Select the organization that will own the records in the **Record owner** box.

Note:

The record owner is the organization that can determine the permissions related to the record.

- 3. Select one of the following options under **Bibliographic Save Options**:
 - Save all records as final to save all the incoming records as final.
 - Save all records as provisional to save the incoming records as provisional.
 - Do not save any records to reject all incoming bibliographic records.

Note:

You could select this option when importing a mixed file with bibliographic and authority records, and you only want to save the authority records.

- 4. If you do not want the imported records to display in the PAC, clear the **Display in PAC** check box. The **Display in PAC** box is checked by default.
- 5. To protect all incoming records that are saved to the database so that they cannot be overlaid in future processing, select the **Do not overlay** box. All other import processing defined in the import profile is performed first, and only records that are saved to the database are flagged with the **Do not overlay** check box that prevents the records from being overlaid.
- 6. To delete specific MARC tags from incoming records as they are saved to the database, select the **Delete MARC Tags on incoming records** check box, and select one of the following options:
 - System defined deletion tags Deletes the tags that are defined in the Bibliographic Tags Retain/Delete policy table in Polaris Administration. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Specify Tags to Retain from Overlaid Bibs."
 - **Profile defined deletion tags** Deletes tags that are defined in the import profile.
- 7. If you select **Profile defined deletion tags**, do the following steps to specify the tags you want to delete:
 - a. Select 🚺 to add a deletion tag.

The Delete Tags dialog box appears.

b. In the **Tag** box, type the tag you want to delete from the incoming record.

c. If you want all indicator values included, leave all the values in the Indicator
 1 and Indicator 2 boxes highlighted.

Note:

Select a highlighted indicator value to remove it.

d. Select **OK** to add the tag and indicator values to the list of tags to be deleted.

Tip:

If you are importing brief bibliographic records to be used to create purchase orders, select **Ignore errors; save record as final**.

- 8. To check the MARC format of records you are saving as final, select **Perform MARC 21 Validation**, and choose one of the following options:
 - Save record as provisional Records with MARC format errors are saved as provisional.
 - **Ignore errors; save record as final** Records are saved as final even when they have MARC format errors.

Note:

Bibliographic records must have a Leader and 008 tag to be imported and saved in the Polaris database even if MARC validation is not performed.

Records in MARC XML format are validated using the **MARC** validation: Bibliographic profile in Polaris Administration. In addition, the XML structure of the file is checked to ensure it conforms to the MARC XML standard. If the file does not conform to the standard, the records are not imported, and an error appears in the import report.

Tip:

If your library has a subscription to a remote database of authority records, the remote database is automatically searched when no matching authority record is found. The new authority record is saved in the database and linked to the new bibliographic records.

- 9. If you select **Perform Authority Control**, select one of the following options:
 - Automatically create new authority record; save bibliographic record as final A new authority record is created, and the bibliographic record is saved as final.
 - Do not create authority record; save bibliographic record as final No authority record is created, and the bibliographic record is saved as final.
 - Do not create authority record; save bibliographic record as provisional -No authority record is created, and the bibliographic record is saved as provisional.
- 10. To check for duplicate bibliographic records that already exist in the Polaris database, select **Perform Duplicate Detection**, and choose one of the following options:
 - Use system defined duplicate detection rules Use the standard duplicate detection rules that are set in Polaris Administration. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Managing Duplicate MARC Records."
 - Use profile defined duplicate detection rules Use the duplicate detection rules that are set up in the profile. If you select this option, you must define the duplicate detection rules.
- 11. If you selected **Use profile defined duplicate detection rules**, do the following steps:

Note:

Skip this step if you selected **Use system defined duplicate detection rules**.

- a. Select the duplicate detection rules from the Rules to select list.
- b. Select is to add the rule to the **Rules to apply (as unique groups)** list.

Note:

You can select more than one rule, but these rules are applied as separate groups, so only one of the rules needs to be met for a record to be considered a duplicate. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Change bibliographic or authority deduplication tables."

- 12. If you selected **Perform Duplicate Detection**, indicate how you want Polaris to handle duplicate records by selecting one of the following options under **If a suspected duplicate is found**:
 - Save incoming record as provisional The incoming duplicate record is saved as provisional. Only the resident record with a status of final is indexed.
 - Save incoming record as final; do not replace database record The incoming duplicate record is saved as final but does not replace the database record. Two similar or identical bibliographic records are saved to the database and both are indexed and searchable.

Tip:

The import report indicates if any database records that would have been replaced are protected from being overlaid because they are flagged with a **Do not overlay** check box.

- Save incoming record as final; replace database record The existing record is overlayed by the new incoming record but its control number is retained. You can also select Keep MARC tags and select System defined overlay retention tags or Profile defined overlay retention tags.
- Save record with highest encoding level. If encoding levels match:
 - Save incoming record as final; replace database record This option is selected by default. You can also choose to reject the incoming record or save the incoming record as provisional. The control number is retained only when saving the record as final. You can also select Keep MARC tags (either system- or profile-defined) to retain specific tags from the replaced database record.

Tip:

For information on how records get overlaid based on encoding levels, see <u>Bibliographic Overlay Based on</u> Encoding Level.

• **Reject incoming record -** If this option is selected, you can also select **Keep MARC tags** (either system- or profile-defined) to retain tags from

the incoming record that was rejected.

 Save incoming record as provisional (Ignore 'Keep MARC tags') - If this option is selected, the incoming record is saved provisionally, and the database record remains. Even if the Keep MARC tags box is checked, the import ignores the setting.

Tip:

When an existing bibliographic record is overlaid with a new bibliographic record, the links to the item records are maintained and the circulation counts remain. In addition, any holds attached to the old record are transferred to the new record. These requests maintain their position in the holds queue. See the *Patron Services Guide*, "Working with Hold Requests."

- Reject incoming record; add MARC retention tags to database record
 The incoming duplicate record is deleted, but any system-defined or profile-defined MARC tags are retained from the incoming record and appended to the database record. When you select this option, Keep MARC tags is selected automatically. You can select System defined overlay retention tags or Profile defined overlay retention tags.
- 13. If not already selected, select **Keep MARC tags** to retain specific tags from records that are overlaid or rejected, and select one of the following options:

Important:

When the profile is set to reject incoming duplicate records but retain certain MARC tags, these tags are retained in the database record, and the database record is added to the record set. See <u>Set</u> import options for record sets.

• System defined overlay retention tags - Retains the tags that are defined in the Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table in Polaris Administration policy tables. For more information about how retentions and deletions are processed, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Specify tags to retain from overlaid bibs."

• **Profile defined overlay retention tags** - Retains tags that are defined in the profile.

Note:

If you are using a profile that is set to overlay or reject the incoming records and retain 970 tags (such as the Acquisitions Bibs profile), you may want to specify additional tags to retain such as the 020 (ISBN) or 024 (UPC). When these tags are retained from an incoming record that is a duplicate of an existing record, and the existing record has multiple ISBNs or UPCs, the most-recently added ISBN or UPC is at the top of the list in a purchase order line item.

- 14. If you select **Profile defined overlay retention tags**, do the following steps to specify the tags you want to retain:
 - a. Select ito add a retention tag.

The Retain Tags dialog box appears.

- b. In the **Tag** box, type the tag you want to retain from the existing record.
- c. If you want all indicator values included, leave all the values in the Indicator
 1 and Indicator 2 boxes highlighted.

Note:

Select a highlighted indicator value to remove it.

- d. Select **OK** to add the tag and indicator values to the list of tags to be retained.
- 15. Select **Save** to save the profile.
- 16. Select **Close** to close the profile or select another tab to make other settings.

Setting Profile-Defined Duplicate Detection Rules

Only one rule needs to be met to identify the records as duplicates.

Duplicate Detection on the 024 (Other standard identifier)

If you are importing bibliographic records with an 024, Other Standard Identifier, select the **Profile defined duplicate detection rules** option in the import profile, and select the rules as follows:

If the first indicator is 1 - Universal Product Code, select the incoming UPC = existing UPC rule.

Perform Duplicate Detection	Rules to select	-	 Rules to apply (as unique groups)
 Use system defined duplicate detection rules Use profile defined duplicate detection rules 	incoming 035 te = existing 001 incoming 035 te = existing 035 te		 incoming UPC = existing UPC

 If the first indicator is 3 - International Article Number, select the incoming ISBN = existing ISBN rule.

and the second sec					
Perform Duplicate Detection	Rules to select			Rules to apply (as unique groups)	1
 Lise system defined duplicate detection rules 	incoming 035 *a = existing 001.		-	incoming ISBN - existing ISBN	11
Use profile defined duplicate detection rules	incoming 035 ta = existing 035 ta	18	K-		

If the first indicator is anything other than 1 or 3, select the incoming 024\$a = existing 024\$a rule.

Perform Duplicate Detection	Rules to select	*		Rules to apply (as unique groups)
 Use system defined duplicate detection rules 	incoming 101/003 - existing 835 fa	π	_	incoming 024 to = existing 024 to
Use profile defined duplicate detection rules	incoming 001 - existing 010 *a		1	

Set Import Options for Item Records

To set the import profile options for item records:

Tip:

You can select the system import profile **Polaris default with item creation** to create item records using default settings. To make changes to this profile, you can copy it and save it with a different name. If you are copying an import profile, and your vendor does not use a subfield, make sure you remove the subfield mapping from the profile on the Item Records tab. See <u>Copy a Polaris read-only import profile</u>.

1. Click the Item Records tab in the Create Import Profile window.

The Item Records tabbed page appears.

to sature indianomiale managing them Security Authority Record Security	ii ii	
Ann Saving Ablographic Recards as Final	Embedded holdings field/MARC (ar	Meld magano
auld dem recarde	unidense for a set	
🛞 Lising embedded holdings fields only	Horango cay increa	RC+1)
🛞 using template/oyetem default values anly	Assigned Branch:	Loarable dutade system:
🛞 Using off systemistic holdings/form fields	Assigned Collection:	Material Type:
(Fin staplicate rect) rectors (tantome) in faunce:	Rancadec	Name Of Rece:
O save duplicate item record as provisional	Cell Number Prefoc	Non Circulating:
(i) Do nat save duplicate item record	Coll Number Suffix	Non Public Note :
tfino itani vacoro (pavcoso) il found:	Circulation Status:	Owning Branch:
Since its mirecord as final	classification to other (thereal meetings
(i) save tem record as provisients		regional Generation
O bo net save item record	Copy Rumber:	POLI-Segment ID:
	Outter Humber:	Pricec
()) Depity in PAC (when not explicitly found)	Display In FAC:	Public Note:
New template (for Fields that are missing):	Pine Code:	Renewed Umits
ų	Free Text Black	shelf Locations
The stand based (associated and)	Fanding Searce:	Shelving Schemes
CD shore act o frances and	Holdablec	Statutical Code:
It is update end is includiened	Library Assigned Bodic	Temperary Shelf Location:
Save form record as provide rail		
Do not save item recont	Loon Period Code:	Volume Number:

2. To create item records when you import bibliographic records, select the **Build item records** check box.

The other options for building item records become active when you select **Build item records**.

- 3. If you selected **Build item records**, select one of the following options for creating item records:
 - Using embedded holdings fields only Items are created from the embedded holdings data in the 852, 949 or other tag in the bibliographic record.
 - Using template/system default values only Items are created from the information in the template and any system defaults for item records. No embedded holdings tags are used to create the item records.
 - Using all available holdings/item fields Items are created from holdings information, if it is available. If the holdings tag does not contain the information but the template does, the field on the item record is filled in from the template.
- 4. Under **If a duplicate item record (barcode) is found**, select one of the following options to indicate how you want duplicate item record barcodes to be handled:
 - Save duplicate item record as provisional to save duplicates as provisional records.

- **Do not save duplicate item record** if you do not want duplicate item records to be saved.
- 5. Under **If no item record barcode is found**, select one of the following options to indicate how you want item records without barcodes to be saved.
 - Save item record as final Saves the new item records as final records, even if they do not have barcodes.
 - Save item record as provisional Saves the new items as provisional records if they do not have a barcode.
 - Do not save item record If there is no barcode, the item record is not saved.
- 6. If you do not want the item records to display in the PAC, clear the **Display in PAC** (when not explicitly found) check box. This option is checked as the default.

Note:

If you use a template, the setting for **Display in PAC** in the item template overrides any setting made here.

7. To use a template to fill in information not specified in the holdings data, select **Item template (for fields that are missing)** and select the item template from the list.

Note:

The **Update items (enriched EDI)** option is used only if you are importing full MARC records and creating shelf-ready items. **The Enriched EDI Order import profile is already set up to update these items. See Enriched EDI** Orders Import Profile.

8. Under **Embedded holdings field/MARC subfield mapping**, type the tag number where the holdings data is located in the **Holdings tag number** box.

Tip:

The data in the circ status subfield of the embedded holdings field is used except if the circ status code would result in a circulation status that is not allowed for new item records. If the circ status in the embedded holdings is a status such as Lost or Held, the template value is used (if a template is specified) or the item circ status gets the default value of In.

9. In each item record field box, type the subfield letter or number for the bibliographic subfield in the embedded holdings tag that contains this information.

Important:

To create item records from embedded holdings in imported bibliographic records, the data in certain required fields must match the data in Polaris. For example, if your profile has defined 852 tag subfield a for the Assigned Branch, the data in \$a must match an ID or abbreviation for a branch in your system, and it must not exceed 15 characters. For information on the data conventions in embedded holdings data, see Item Records Created from Embedded Holdings Tags.

- 10. Click **Save** to save the import profile.
- 11. Click **Close** to close the profile or click another tab to make other settings.

Related Information

- Embedded holdings data details and data entry conventions See <u>Item Records</u> <u>Created from Embedded Holdings Tags</u>.
- Holdings tags retained during overlay marked with \$9 If the import profile is set to retain embedded holdings tags (such as the 852 or 949) from overlaid records, the specified tags are retained in the bibliographic record before item records are created. If the bibliographic record also has existing embedded holdings tags, they are marked with a \$9 and the text Tag retained from duplicate overlay. Item records are not created from embedded holdings tags marked with a subfield \$9.
 See Bib Tags Marked to Prevent Creation/Updates of Items.
- Mark embedded holdings tags as processed If this Polaris Administration parameter is set to Yes, when item records are created successfully from embedded holdings tags, a \$9 is inserted into the embedded holdings tags in the bibliographic records with the following automatic processing information: Item generated mmm dd yyyy hh:mm[AM/PM]. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Mark embedded holdings data as processed.
- Clean up embedded holdings tags marked with \$9 A utility can be set up to delete embedded holdings tags and other tags (970s) marked with a subfield 9 and specific system-generated text. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Set up the Subfield 9 cleanup utility.
- Polaris read-only import profiles Polaris has read-only import profiles set up to do certain types of processing. You can use these import profiles or rename them while keeping all the settings. See <u>Polaris Read-Only Import Profiles</u>.

Shelving scheme - The shelving scheme comes from the subfield in the Embedded holdings field/MARC subfield mapping. If no subfield is specified there, the shelving scheme comes from the template selected in the Item template (for fields that are missing) box. If no template is selected, or if the template does not include a shelving scheme, and the embedded holdings are in the 852 tag, the shelving scheme comes from the first indicator of the 852 tag. If the first indicator of the 852 tag has an invalid value, or the embedded holdings are contained in a different tag, use the default shelving scheme defined in the Polaris Administration Cataloging profile Default shelving scheme for new item records. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Setting Item Copy & Save Options.

Set Import Options for Authority Records

To set the import profile options for authority records:

1. Click the Authority Records tab in the Create Import Profile window.

The Authority Records tabbed page appears.

	Create Import Profile
nofile Setup Bibliographic Records Item Records Author	rity Necerifs Record Sets
Authority Save Options Save all records as final Save all record	Is as provisional O a not save any records
When Saving Authority Recards as Final	
Perform MARC 21. Volicitian J validation arrays are found: Save record as provisional Cancer ensu: www.record as final	Perform Duplicate Detection Bas system duplicate detection rules Use castam duplicate detection rules
If no existing heading is found: If no existing heading is found: Automotically oracle new set also reference: sere authority recard as final Do not smale see also reference; sere authority recard as final	F a supecied displicate is feasif:
Do not preate see also reference; save authority recard as provisional	Save incoming as provisional Save incoming as final: do not replace existing Nerge duplicate records Proference cataloging source for
	Sove Cose He

Tip:

You can choose not to save any authority records if you are importing a mixed file with bibliographic and authority records, and you only want to

save the bibliographic records. You can also run an import without saving records to see the types of errors encountered.

- 2. Select one of the following save options:
 - Save all records as final
 - Save all records as provisional
 - Do not save any records
- 3. If you chose to save the incoming authority records as final, and you want to check the MARC format, select the **Perform MARC 21 Validation** check box, and choose one of the following options:
 - Select **Save record as provisional** to save the record provisionally if errors in MARC format are detected.
 - Select **Ignore errors; save record as final** to save authority records as final when they have errors in MARC format.
- 4. To check for duplicate authority records that already exist in the Polaris database, select **Perform Duplicate Detection**, and choose one of the following options:
 - Select **Use system duplicate detection rules** to use the standard duplicate detection rules.
 - Select Use custom duplicate detection rules to specify what tags will be used to match the incoming records with existing records to identify duplicates.
- 5. If you selected **Use custom duplication detection rules**, do the following steps:
 - a. Select the duplication detection rules from the Rules to select list.
 - b. Click with the rule to the **Rules to apply (as unique groups)** list.
- 6. If you selected **Perform Duplicate Detection**, indicate how you want Polaris to handle duplicate records by selecting one of the following options:
 - Select **Save incoming as provisional** to save the incoming duplicate records as provisional.
 - Select **Save incoming as final; do not replace existing** to save the incoming duplicate records as final but not replace the existing records.
 - Select **Merge duplicate records** to merge incoming authority records with duplicate authority records already in your database.
- 7. If you selected **Merge duplicate records**, select the branch whose preferred cataloging source you want to use in the **Preferred cataloging source for** box.

- 8. To perform See Also From reference linking when no match exists in the database, select the **Perform See Also From Reference Linking** check box, and select one of the following options:
 - Select Automatically create new see also reference; save authority record as final to create a new "see also" reference and save the record as final.
 - Select **Do not create see also reference; save authority record as final** if you do not want to create a "see also" reference, and you want to save the record as final.
 - Select Do not create see also reference; save authority record as provisional if you do not want to create a "see also" reference, and you want to save the record as provisional.
- 9. Click **Save** to save the profile, and click another tab or close the profile.

Set Import Options for Record Sets

When you are importing records, you can specify that certain types of records are to be grouped in record sets to facilitate record retrieval or bulk processing. If you are importing multiple files in a single import job, each file of MARC records has its own record set. You can set up record sets for grouping the following types of cataloging records: final bibliographic records, provisional bibliographic records, bibliographic records, authority records, provisional authority records, authority records, and provisional item records.

To set the profile options for record sets:

Note:

If you specify a bibliographic record set, the imported records are added to it. However, if the profile is set to reject incoming duplicate bibliographic records but retain specific tags from the rejected records, the resident bibliographic record with the retained tags is added to the record set. For example, if you import brief bibliographic records with 970 tags for creating purchase orders, the profile is set to reject incoming duplicate records, but retain the 970 tags. The 970 tags are saved in the resident record, and it is added to the record set. When the record set is bulk-added to a purchase order, the 970 tags automatically create the purchase order line item distribution grid.

1. Click the **Record Sets** tab in the Create Import Profile window.

The Record Sets tabbed page appears.

bliographic Record Set Final		Authority Record Set Final	
Save to new record set	Sove to existing record set	Save to new recerd set	Save to existing record set
Name:	Find Replace	Nomes	Fiel Ropend
dwner:	*	Owner:	~
Provisional		Provisional	
Save to new record set	Save to existing record set	Sove to new record set	Sove to existing record set
Marrie:	Find Peplane	N2M4:	Pind () Replace
Owner:		Owner:	
Deleted		Deleted	
Save to new record set	Save to existing recend set	Save to new racord set	Save to existing record set
Name:	Find Appand	Name:	Find Prod
Owner:		Owner:	
em Record Set		Provide and	
			Care to existing record ast
Save to new record per	Append	Selive to new record set	Append
Name:	Find Inspices	Hame:	Fiel Replace
Owner:		Owner:	v.

Tip:

Name record sets so your staff can easily identify them when searching for records. If you are setting up a profile for importing records to bulk add to purchase orders, name the record set to identify the vendor. You can use the profile each time you import records from that vendor. Also, you may want to set the branch as the record set's owner because if the owner is a staff member, only that staff member can modify the record set.

- 2. For each cataloging record type, choose one of the following options:
 - Select **Save to new record set**, type the name of the record set in the **Name** box, and select the owner in the **Owner** box.
 - Select **Save to existing record set**, click **Find** to locate the record set, and select **Append** or **Replace**.

Note:

If you have specified a record set for records with a status of Deleted, imported records with a status of Deleted are put in a record set. In addition, existing records that are overlaid by duplicate incoming records are put in the Deleted record set. 3. Click **Save** to save the profile, and click **Close** to close it or click another tab to make other settings.

Print an Import Profile

To print an import profile.

- 1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Profile Manager** to open the Import Profile Manager.
- 2. Select the profile, right-click and select **Print> Profile** or click the down arrow next to the printer icon in the toolbar and select **Profile**.

		Import	Profile Manager - Polaris	
Ed	it View Help			
) 🖻	🖌 🕘 🗙 🖾			
5	Filter By	888999	والمحافظ والمرجع والمرجل والمحاور والمحافظ والمحافظ والمراجع	
ŭ	Creator: PolarisExec			
Ξ				
0	Profile Name		Description	Creator
2	Acquisitions Bibs		For 8tb records from vendor selection tools (read only)	PolarisExec
. I	Authority Update Import		Authority Update Import profile (read only)	PolarisExec
	Integrated abook Dibe		The sithe default profile for imported bib records for	PolerisExec
Ы	Polaris default	Open		PolarisExec
È.	Polaris default (with iten	Print +	List View h Item creation (read only)	PolerisExec
5		Сору	Profile	
	E E	Delete		

The Import Profile document appears in the report preview window.

	Import Profile	
Name: Acq. Baker & Taylor 2 Deportption: Baker & Taylor Acquid	Kora Bila	
Creater: pere	Modifier:	
Creation date: 10/202080.2.10.3	PM Multi-state	
Dishing-raphine name raphine Street at Record owner: DA-Plate 4.1 Clust NM/PC validation: No NA/PC valid Authority-control Na surfaceivo Duplicate derivertions: Perform duplic encoding landers	n final ar Text System Jatics and and detection. If enous are found spaces to match, save incoming rescard as there Betwinden. Yme with	Bioplay in PAC: Yes and estimote encoding level not tocknot. If splace divelations record
Ore system objects of twice of twice Dislographic duplicate of twice Sign 1939 Just The and LCCN Rule group 1 Rule group 2 Tele JCCN	74000 19000 100 V	
Retention tag	Indicator one	Indicator live
Authority sever ration: Do not on		
here any option: On not o	210	
Bikingraphic final record ant. Nama (semar): New proxiding:	AcquicKenzäithsFiest(GA-Plats 4.1 C) New	lutter Test System)
Bibliographic provisional second set: Name (swner): New or existing:	Acquicitional BoProvisional (QA-Plate New	4.1 Cluster Teat System)

3. Select **File > Print** from the menu in the report preview window.

Modify an Import Profile

If you have the required permissions, you can modify import profiles except for those created by Polaris. These read-only profiles have the creator name **PolarisExec**. You can copy and rename PolarisExec import profiles. See <u>Copy a Polaris read-only import</u> profile.

To modify an import profile other than a PolarisExec profile:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Profile Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Import Profile Manager appears.

- 2. Select a username other than PolarisExec in the **Creator** box.
- 3. Double-click the profile you want to modify, or right-click and select **Open** from the context menu.

The Modify Import Profile window appears.

	enground hourse - wanness as morelly hourse Results Sets		
iame:	Acques tions (Bbs (2)	Creator: peer	
excription:	For Bb records from vendor selection tools (read only)		
ource file ne	ene: C:UsersPeerDesktop/MARCImport		Browse

- 4. To change the name of the profile, type the new name in the **Name** box.
- 5. To change the description of the profile, type the new description in the **Description** box.
- 6. To change the default directory or source file, click Browse to browse to the new location.
- 7. Click the tab containing the options you want to modify, and see the following sections for instructions on modifying these import options:
 - Set import options for bibliographic records
 - Set import options for item records
 - Set import options for authority records
 - Set import options for record sets
- 8. Click **Save** to save the profile when you have finished making modifications.

Note:

You can check your settings by printing the profile. See <u>Print an import</u> <u>profile</u>.

9. Click **Close** to close the profile after you have saved it.

Delete an Import Profile

To delete an import profile:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Profile Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

5 5		Import Profile Manager - Polaris	_ 🗆 🗙
ile Edit	t View Help		
🗋 🔛	🕹 🕘 • 🗙 😭 👘		
10	Filter By		
ĕ	Creator: PolarisExec		
N ¹			
2	Profile Name	Description	Creator
σ.	Acquisitions Bibs Authority Lindate Import	For Bib records from vendor selection tools (read only) Authority Update Import profile (read only)	PolarisExec
2	Enriched EDI Orders	Enriched EDI Orders (read only)	PolarisExec
6	Integrated ebook 8/bs	This is the default profile for imported bib records for	PolarisExec
Q.	Polaris default	Polaris default import profile (read only)	PolarisExec
8	Polaris default (with item creation)	Polaris default with item creation (read only)	PolarisExec
3			
<u> </u>			
ir Help,	press F1		

The Import Profile Manager appears.

2. Right-click the profile you want to delete, and select **Delete** from the context menu.

A confirmation message appears.

3. Click **Yes** to delete the profile.

Importing Records

When you select **Utilities, Importing** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, there are two options for importing: **Express Import** and **Full Import**. If you select **Express Import**, you can change settings on the Profile Setup and Record Set tabs, but you cannot change the settings for bibliographic, authority, or item records. If you select **Full Import**, you can change settings on all the tabs in the Polaris Import Setup window if you have the appropriate permissions.

Note:

Separate permissions control express and full importing. For more information, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide* .

Before you can import MARC or MARCXML records, they must be downloaded from the cataloging source or materials vendor and saved in a file on your computer's desktop or in another location where you can easily find them. To select the file or files to be imported, you click **Add** in the Polaris Import Setup window, and locate the file(s). If the

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

profile was saved with a specific import file name, the file is selected automatically (if it exists). If the profile was saved with a directory location for the source files, the window opens to that directory.

Note:

Importing large quantities of records may slow response times for other processes in Polaris. Therefore, you may want to start the import process when the library is closed and when it will not interfere with scheduled system backups.

Use Express Import to Import Records

The Express Import option allows staff members to import records using an existing profile that specifies the appropriate importing options. The only settings that can be changed for an express import are the source file name, the report name, and the options on the Record Sets tabbed page. To import records using the Express Import option:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Express Import** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Polaris Import Setup window appears.

Purifie Name Observation Celator Malaust Tape Hang york Tapet Purifie Bib raise for importing MAT bible Raid Malaust Tape Hang york Tapet Purifie Bib raise for importing MAT bible Raid Malaust Tape Hang york Tapet Purifie The bit for viewing affers the US Raid Malaust Tape Hang York Part MLS member Viewing affers the US Raid Malaust Tape Tapet Part MLS member Viewing affers the US Raid Malaust Tape Tapet The Is the description field. The effect it remainers Other Status of table Participation of the description field. The effect it remainers Other Status of table Participation of the description field. The effect it remainers Other Status of table Participation of the exercision Participation Malaust affects Participation of the exercision Participation Name of table Interactive of the exercision Participation	Ceator Raid Aden Raid sofren peer Oden coan Coan Coan Rolendtee
Aldewart Topos Harp price Lapport Firefals Bib Jake for inporting MVT Bale Road Method for maximum The is Jain for viewing alternative U/C Aldern Nadai Multiple Lapport The is Jain for viewing alternative U/C Nadai Multiple Lapport Firef MLS, method transmitter U/C Nadai Multiple Lapport Firef MLS, method transmitter U/C Aldern Multiple Lapport Firef MLS, method transmitter U/C Delay Delay Tables The is the description field. The edited it zeros metrics Delay Delay Labora Palein alderal all offs The conduct register (metrics) Delay Labora Native Artificial (rolt time sensitive) Palein alderals with time sensitive (metrics) Palein alderals with time sensitive (metrics) Import Files If the allexted	Raid Alden Haid Istorien Deer Oben Ditter Robert Ro
Next Structure The black for views defaulties UCs Aden Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next Next	Aden Hand Stofen Deler Citien Citien Deler Polechilise
Napie server super test in Nadio NAL Net Dear Net Wild Stream Str	Nad stohen pier Otien cotien cotien Poleničkos
NU Net Deary Provide State Sta	stibilen paer Olden ISBAN ISBAN Robeltallisee Polestallisee
memory	peer Otten Ditten Poleistifikas Poleistifikas
Other This is the dead blice flat. Other Other State State State State State State State State State State State State State State State State State State State S	Otten Ditten PolentiCox PolentiCox
CDMV INI 2 DDMV INI 2 DDMV Palen default (rel river resulter) Delete default result profile (ved orb) DeleteCroc Nairs default (rel river resulter) Palen default orb river resulter (resulter)) Palendaree report likes 1 files alrichtd	CEDAN Polinti Conc Polinti Conc
Hern of Au Marin default (offe time reaction) Polants default rouns (or All of Au Marin default (offe time reaction) Polants default with time reaction (react only) Polants regeont Silence 1 filter articular	Polental con Polental con
Nairs default (rith Her swetter) Poleis default offi Her swetter (swetter) Poleisdree mport likes i files alsotad	Poletalises
	Contraction of Contraction
	408.0
(Fin	Patricia

Tip:

If you are importing authority records from Polaris ZMARC automatic authority updates, select the profile Authority Update Import.

- 2. Select the profile from the list.
- 3. Click the **Add** button to browse to the import file(s) on the computer desktop or network.

Tip:

If the profile was saved with a specific import file name, the file is selected automatically (if it exists). If the profile was saved with a directory location for the source files, when you click **Add**, the window opens to that directory.

🕒 🕑 🖉 🕨 🕨 MAI	Cimp	ort		• 4g	Search MARCImport	م
Organize - New	folde				8E • 🛄	
☆ Favorites	*	Name	Date modified	Туре	* Size	
Desktop		Nov	6/10/2010 4:10 PM	MRC File	27	5 KB
🚡 Downloads		Zv500bb02142012_16129	2/14/2012 4:03 PM	MRC File	34	1 K8
Sal Recent Places	3	2,500ba03052009 151540	3/5/2009 3:15 PM	MRC File		6 KB

4. Select the MARC or MARCXML file or files, and click **Open**.

The files are listed in the Import Setup window.

- 5. To change the defaults for record sets, click the **Record Sets** tab, and follow the steps in <u>Set import options for record sets</u>.
- 6. Click **Import** to import the records.

An initializing dialog box displays for a few seconds. If necessary, you can cancel the import by clicking **Cancel** on the message box. Canceled jobs do not appear in the Import Jobs Queue.



When initializing has completed, another message box appears.

7. Click **OK** to see the Import Jobs Queue and the status of your import files.

Your files may be in a pending status for a few minutes before import processing begins.

Related Information

- View Import Jobs in the Queue
- Print Import Reports from the Import Jobs Queue

Use Full Import to Import Records

When you use the Full Import option, you can use a profile and accept all the settings, change the settings, or manually set all options on all tabs of the Polaris Import Setup window. To import records using the Full Import option:

1. Select Utilities, Importing, Full Import from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Polaris Import Setup - Full window appears.

Andie Tane Description Ocacity Model Tane Incomposition profile Bio Asia for Ingring MVT Ball Baal Model Tane Incomposition profile Bio Asia for Ingring MVT Ball Baal Model Tane Incomposition The Is Earlt for Venering AMT Ball Baal Model Tane Incomposition The Is Earlt for Venering AMT Ball Baal Model Tane Incomposition The Is Earlt for Venering AMT Ball Baal Model Tane Incomposition The Is Earlt for Venering AMT Ball Baal Mill (RELEARDY Model Tanes Towning AMT Ball Baal Dear Tani The Is the description Risk. The elevel of the Added Risk area tanking Amt Ball Baal Dear Tani The Is the description Risk. The elevel of the and tanks area tanking Other and tanking Dear Addinal Extend Addinals area tanking (and tanking tankin	roers octour.			
Maker Tipes Nan Oric Lippe Tindia Bib Alla fin Inporting WVT Bia Reid Maker Tipes Nan Oric Lippe Tindia Reid Reid Maker Tipes	Araffie Hane	Description	Creator	
Next for numerate The traff for verify diemsfre US Adden Next Tables 2019 (1997) (1997	Midwart Tape Non-print Import Profile	68b rules for importing PW/T bibs	Raid	
Nalpia Earls regions tata in Nalifia Kan Regions (Nalifia Construction) in Nalifia Earls (Nalifia Earls (Nalifia Construction) in Nalifia Earls (Nalifia Earls (N	Medel for nevisiens	This is just for viewing ditermetive UEs	Alden	
NL NetDary Pri MUS member formes Ownhood be Audobook phone poer vita for consustry Dear Test Dear Test Dear Set Dear Set Test and Au Phone Advance for a constraint Dear Set Advance Phone Advance (set (set one constraint)) Phone Phone Advance (set one constraint) Phone	Nultple path import test		Raid	
New York Bir Counsury per Conference on the Counser of the Counser	MNL RetLonary	For NILS member libraries Countradable Audiobooks	antoniem	
Oten Terri The is the description field. The effect is conserver Oten Territory Deter Set 2 The is the description field. The effect is conserver (and in the conserver (and in the conserver)) Oten Territory Deter Set and field (refer to ensure) Polents default (refer to ensure) Polents default (refer to ensure) Import Siles: 1 field cale to default Polents default (refer to ensure) Polents default (refer to ensure)	Nevi Prafle for Community		peer.	í é
Chan Mal 2 CTAN Serve status A CTAN A	Other Trait	This is the description field. The edited it some more	Othern	
Chance advances of the constraint of the constra	DEMO MEET		CE2641	_
Nark artsd (pile (ee version) Polein, drive) of (ee version (restants) Polein, drive) of (ee version (restants)) P	Polarie default	Polata dehalt incert profile (wad only)	Poleid ox	
	rapport Wees Diffuse associated			dd - more

- 2. To manually set the import options, see:
 - Set Import Options for Bibliographic records
 - Set Import Options for Item Records
 - Set Import Options for Authority Records
 - <u>Set Import Options for Record Sets</u>

Tip:

You can start with a profile that is not read-only, and change an option before starting the import.

- 3. To use a profile, select it from the list.
- 4. Select the profile from the list.

Tip:

If you are importing authority records from Polaris ZMARC automatic authority updates, select the profile **Authority Update Import**.

5. Click Add to browse to the import file(s) on the computer desktop or network.

Tip:

If the profile was saved with a specific import file name, the file is selected automatically (if it exists). If the profile was saved with a directory location for the source files, when you click **Add**, the window opens to that directory.

🕒 🔾 🔻 📕 🕨 MAF	Cimp	ort		🔻 🍫 Sear	ch MARCImport 🖇
Organize - New	folde				8H • 🔟 🔮
☆ Favorites	*	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
Desktop		E Nov	6/10/2010 4:10 PM	MRC File	275 KB
🚡 Downloads		E 2-5005ib02142012_16129	2/14/2012 4:03 PM	MRC File	341 K8
🔛 Recent Places	2	Z\500bib03052009 151540	3/5/2009 3:15 PM	MRC File	56 KB

6. Select the MARC or MARCXML file or files, and click **Open**.

Note:

You can import MARC and MARCXML files in the same import job.

The file or files are listed in the Import Setup window.

7. Click **Import** to import the records.

An initializing dialog box displays for a few seconds. If necessary, you can cancel the import by clicking **Cancel** on the message box. Canceled jobs do not appear in the Import Jobs Queue.



When initializing has completed, another message box appears.

8. Click **OK** to see the Import Jobs Queue and the status of your import files.

Your files may be in a pending status for a few minutes before import processing begins.

Related Information

- View Import Jobs in the Queue
- Print import reports from the Import Jobs Queue

Using the Import Jobs Queue

The Import Jobs Queue shows import jobs that are currently running, all pending jobs that have not yet run, and jobs that have completed. All import jobs for all clients that use the same server go to a single job queue in the order in which they were added to the queue, with the most recently-added jobs at the end of the queue. You can use the Import Jobs Queue to view jobs, stop jobs, print reports, and delete jobs.

The Import Jobs Queue contains the following columns:

- Path The complete path for the import file
- File The name of the import file
- Organization The organization for which the user is logged in
- User The user who launched the import job
- Workstation The workstation from which the import job was launched
- Type The type of records in the import
- **Status** The status of the import job (Initializing, Running, Pending, Completed, Stopped, Blacked out)
- Records Read The number of records in the import file
- Records Created The number of records created in the Polaris database
- Posted The date and time the import job was launched

See also:

- View Import Jobs in the Queue
- Stop an Import Job from the Import Jobs Queue
- Delete an Import Job from the Import Jobs Queue
- Print Import Reports from the Import Jobs Queue

View Import Jobs in the Queue

To view import jobs in the Import Jobs Queue:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue** to open the Import Jobs Queue window.

By default, the jobs are sorted by the date and time posted. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in

the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them. Automatic imports for eContent are also listed.

2. Click any column heading to sort the list.

Note:

Pending import jobs have been successfully initialized, but the import processing has not yet begun. Blacked out import jobs have been successfully initialized, or may have started running, but import processing is not currently allowed because a system- or user-defined blackout time is in effect. When the blackout time has ended, processing automatically begins or resumes.

P			Impo	ort Jobs C	(ueue			- 🗆 🗙
File Edit View Tools Help								
a 🗙 🖸 💿 🖻	depost 🕎							
Path F	File (Organiz	User	Worksta	Туре	Status	Records Read	Records Create
eContent automatic import e	eContent aut	QA-Plat.	PolarisE.	QA-4182	Bibliographic	Completed	17	33
\\QA-41R2\c\$\ProgramData L	LCAuthorityU	Saratog	Zukowski	Zukows	Authority	Completed	541	541
eContent automatic import e	eContent aut	QA-Plat	PolarisE	QA-41R2	Bibliographic	Completed	3	6
S:\FTPSecure\users\Zukowski	D121207.R48 9	Saratog	Zukowski	Zukows	Bibliographic	Completed	36857	13660
\\QA-41R2\c\$\ProgramData L	LCAuthorityU 9	Saratog	Zukowski	Zukows	Authority	Completed	745	745
eContent automatic import e	eContent aut	QA-Plat.	PolarisE	QA-41R2	Bibliographic	Completed	1769	3086
eContent automatic import e	eContent aut	QA-Plat	PolarisE	QA-41R2	Bibliographic	Completed	4463	10083
D:\MARC Examples\All_Expo A	All_Export_20.	Amster	Nilsen	Matt Nil	Bibliographic	Completed	1	1
U\\My Documents\DeleteTa., I	DeleteTag85	Saratog	Zukowski	Zukows	Bibliographic	Completed	3	3
<				1.	R	5	1	Ĩ
For Help, press F1				10	08 jobs			NUM .a

3. Click the Refresh button or press **F5** periodically to refresh the queue and see the most recent import jobs.

Related Information

- Delete an Import Job from the Import Jobs Queue
- Print Import Reports from the Import Jobs Queue

Stop an Import Job from the Import Jobs Queue

If you stop a pending import job, no import processing occurs. If you stop a running import job, any records that may have already been processed are not affected. This may mean that some records have been processed, and others have not, resulting in an incomplete record set and report. You cannot "roll back" records already imported, and stopped jobs cannot be restarted. If you stop a blacked out import job, only those

records that have not been imported are affected; any records already imported before the blackout time are not affected.

To stop an import job from the Import Jobs Queue:

Important:

If you have permission to do importing (either **Import bibliographic, item and authority records: Allow** or **Express importing: Allow**), you can stop or delete your own import jobs from the Import Jobs Queue. However, to stop or delete import jobs initiated by other staff members, you need the permission **Manage import jobs for this organization: Allow** for the system or branch organization where the job was initiated. Staff members who require control over importing for multiple (or all) branches must be granted the **Manage import jobs for this organization: Allow** permission at the system level.

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue**.

The Import Jobs Queue dialog box displays the details for each import job.

- 2. Before stopping an import job, refresh the Import Jobs Queue to make sure you are seeing the most recent status of the files.
- 3. Select the import job, and click the **Stop** button in the toolbar, or right-click, and select **Stop** from the context menu.

A message informs you that the stopped import job cannot be restarted and asks you to confirm that you want to stop the import job.

4. Click **Yes** to stop the import.

Delete an Import Job from the Import Jobs Queue

Import jobs remain in the Import Jobs Queue until they are manually deleted by an authorized user when there is no further use for them or the report.

To delete a completed import job:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue**.

The Import Jobs Queue dialog box displays the details for each import job.

- 2. Select the completed import job that you want to delete.
- 3. Right-click and selected **Delete** from the context menu.

Print Import Reports from the Import Jobs Queue

If you want details regarding a specific import job, you can print an import report in pdf format from the Import Jobs Queue. The Import Jobs Queue lists import jobs for both bibliographic and authority records.

Tip:

You can also print the New Titles Imported report from the Cataloging Reports menu. The New Titles Imported report shows the titles that were imported for an organization or organizations within a specific time period. For more information, search Polaris help for "Cataloging Reports."

To print details of an import job from the Import Jobs Queue:

1. Select Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue.

The Import Jobs Queue dialog box displays the details for each import job.

- 2. Double-click the import job you want to print. Or, select the import job and click the **Report** button, or right-click and select **Print Report**.
- 3. Select **File > Print** from the menu.

The Import Report pdf appears in the preview window.

4. Select **File > Print** to print the report displayed in the preview window.

Tip:

Import reports are not saved to the local computer. To save a copy of the report, open the report from the Import Jobs Queue, select **File > Save As**, and type a file name and path.

Import Report

The first section of the report lists the selected import options and the user ID of the staff member who imported the files.

	Imp	ort Report				
File: C:\User	rs\ \Downloads\DeleteTagTest.mrc					
Import type:	Full Source:	MARC File				
Submitted date:	3/21/2013 1:37:48 PM	Scheduled date:				
Profile used:	Polaris default					
Branch:	Saratoga Springs Public Library					
User:	User	Stopped by user:	No			
Workstation:		Stopped by system:	No			
Vendor account:	(None)					
Bibliographic save	e option: Save as final					
Record owner:	QA-Plato 4.1 R2	Dis	play in PAC: Yes			
Delete data: 1	Ves Use system deletion ru	iles: Yes Do	Not Overlay: No			
MARC validation: Perform validation. If errors are found, ignore and save record as final.						
Authority control:	No authority control					
Duplicate detection	m: Perform duplicate detection. If	errors are found, ignore and save re	cord as final.			
Use system dupli	cate rules: Yes					
Deletion tag	Indicator one		Indicator two			
19	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			
29	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			
938	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			
948	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			
952	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			
994	blank,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,	7,8,9 blan	k,0,1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9			

Following the import options, the report provides details for records that were imported, such as: MARC validation issues; duplicate detection and overlay; item records created; tags deleted from incoming records; tags retained from duplicate records; conflicts when the same tag is selected for deletion and retention; and resource entities created (for ebooks).

	Import Report							
Bibliographic	record: 914999							
Title: A c Giri yeti	atalogue of the pictures, sculpture sat Britain, at the Great Room in S or of their exhibition.).	es, models, drav Spring-Garden, C	ings, prints, &c. exhibited by the Society of Artists of Thating-Cross, May the 9th, 1761. (Being the second					
Begin time:	3/21/2013 1:38:00 PM		Record status: Final					
End time:	3/21/2013 1:38:01 PM		LDR status: 0					
Record set:	DeleteTagTect1 - F (GA-Pla	to 4.1 R2)						
Duplicate	Reason		Trile					
914888	Author/Title:Title/250 So		A catabooute of the pathwest, souppoints, models, drawings, prints, &c. exhibited by the Society of Artisto of Great Bittsin, at the Great Room in Spring-Statien, Charling- Crazz, May the 3th, 1761. (Being the second year of their exhibition.).					
914962	Rule group 2;Author/Title;Title	/260 \$c	A catalogue of the pictures, sculptures, models, drawings, prints, So, exhibited by the Society of Artists of Grane Brisian, at the Great Room in Spring-Garden, Charing- Cross, May the 9th, 1761. (Being the second vers of their exhibition.).					
Message(s)	1							
Tag was de	leted from incoming record: 938	±eKintat Techn	ologies, Inc. tbKRTStn529450					
Tag was de	leted from incoming record: 948	±HNO HOLDIN	GS IN GBR - 10 OTHER HOLDINGS					
Tag was de membertil	Tag was deleted from incoming record: 952 #a4988910#2YUS#bYALE UNIV LIBR#hFull OCLC memberatil.CCtu/20121220							
Tag was de BOTANICA	leted from incoming record: 952 L GARDEN±hFull±u20100729	\$8229258101#	2HUV=bHUNTINGTON LIBR ART &					
Tag was de LIBRthLes	Tag was deleted from incoming record: 952 #a612564927#zHHG#bHARVARD UNIV. HOUGHTON LISR#hLess+han-full batchtu20100919							
Tag was de	leted from incoming record: 952	±=702795849±	zYUS±5YALE UNIV LIBR±hFull±u20120229					
Tag was de	leted from incoming record: 994	≠aZ0≠bGBR						
Bibliographic	record: 915000							
Title: A g	arden for all seasons : choosing t plays	the best plants fo	r wonderful spring, summer, autumn and winter					
Begin time:	3/21/2013 1:38:01 PM		Record status: Final					
End time:	3/21/2013 1:38:02 PM		LDR status: c					
Record set:	DeleteTegTect1 - F (QA-Pla	to 4.1 R2)						
Duplicate	Reacon		Title					
914889	ISBN:Author/Title:Title/260 \$c	Just Title and	A garden for all seasons : choosing the best plants for wonderful spring, summer, autumn and winter displays					

The last section lists the import statistics.

		In	nport Report	t		
		,	MPORT STATISTICS			
Begin time: 3/27/2013 1	0:48:00 AM		End time:	3/27/201	3 10:48:40 AM	
Dibliographic records:						
Final 12	Provisional:		Deleted	0	Rejected:	0
Updated records: ()		Resource entities of	reated on	new records:	0
			Resource entities of	reated on	updated records	0
Authority records:						
Final 0	Provisional	0	Deleted	0	Rejected	0
Remote authority control generated: 0 System generated: 30						
item records:						
Final: 0	Provisional:	0	Updated	0	Rejected	0
Total records read from files	21					
Total records created:	51					

Automatic Processes During Import

When records are imported, they are processed according to settings in the import profile and in Polaris Administration. Some processing takes place before any records are created or updated, and other processing occurs when the data in the imported records are used to create or update records. This section covers the automatic processing you can choose to initiate in the import profile settings.

This topic contains the following sections:

- MARC Records Validated
- <u>Authority Control Performed</u>
- <u>Records Checked for Duplicates</u>
- Specific MARC Tags Removed from Incoming Bibs
- Incoming Bibs Protected from Being Overlaid
- Bib Tags Marked to Prevent Creation/Updates of Items
- <u>Authority Records Deleted</u>
- Item Records Created from Embedded Holdings Tags
- Duplicate Records Overlaid
- Tags Retained from Duplicate Records
- Bibliographic Overlay Based on Encoding Level
- Specific MARC Tags Removed from Incoming Bibs
- Authority Record Overlay Based on Cataloging Source

MARC Records Validated

If validation is selected in the import profile, the records are validated according to the following Polaris Administration Cataloging profiles: **MARC validation: Bibliographic** and **MARC validation: Authority**. However, if the incoming records contain indicators or subfields with data that cannot be validated, the data is replaced with the following defaults: Indicators default to ' and subfields default to '?'. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Administering MARC Validation and Display.

Authority Control Performed

If the options to **Perform authority control** and **Automatically create new authority record; save bibliographic record as final** are selected in the Bibliographic Records tab of the import profile, the system searches for an existing authority record for the heading. If no matching authority record is found in the local database, an authority record is created automatically and saved to the database. If your library has a subscription to a remote database of authority records, the remote database is automatically searched when no matching authority record is found. The new authority record is saved in the database and linked to the new bibliographic records. Search Polaris help for "Set import options for authority records."

Records Checked for Duplicates

If duplicate detection is selected in the profile, duplicates are identified according to the rules in the following Polaris Administration database tables: **Bibliographic Deduplicaton** or **Authority Deduplication**. For more information, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Change bibliographic or authority deduplication tables." You can also select the option **Use profile defined duplicate detection rules** in the import profile and select the rules to apply.

Specific MARC Tags Removed from Incoming Bibs

If the import profile is set up to automatically remove tags from incoming bibliographic records, the tags are removed from the records before they are saved in the Polaris database. Search Polaris help for "Set import options for bibliographic records."

Incoming Bibs Protected from Being Overlaid

If the import profile is set up to check the **Do not overlay** box on the incoming records, they are saved as protected records that cannot be overlaid. Search Polaris help for "Set import options for bibliographic records."

Bib Tags Marked to Prevent Creation/Updates of Items

If you are using an import profile that is set to create item records from embedded holdings tags, an automatic process first checks the bibliographic records for the presence of pre-existing holdings tags with the same tag number specified in the import profile. If pre-existing tags are found that match the retained tags under **Keep MARC tags** in the import profile, and these tags do not already have a \$9 subfield, then a system-supplied \$9 with the text **Tag retained from duplicate overlay** is inserted into the tag. Pre-existing embedded holdings tags that do not already have a \$9 subfield are marked automatically without a Polaris Administration parameter.

When embedded holdings tags are used to create new items or to update on-order items to shelf-ready items, a \$9 with the text **Item generated** is inserted into the tag if the Polaris Administration Cataloging parameter **MARC embedded holdings tags as processed** is set to **Yes**. During the import process, item records are not created or updated if the embedded holdings tags are marked as follows:

• \$9 Tag retained from duplicate overlaymmm dd yyyy hh:mm[AM/PM]

Or

• \$9 Item generated mmm dd yyyy hh:mm[AM/PM]

Your Polaris Administrator can use a utility to automatically scan for specific tags marked with \$9 and remove them. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Setting Utility to Delete Bib Tags Marked with Subfield 9.

Authority Records Deleted

If the incoming authority record status (Leader/05) is d, s, or x, the following deletion processing occurs during import:

- If the incoming authority record status is **d** (deleted), the following processing occurs:
- All bibliographic record links to and from the existing authority record are disconnected.
- If any authority record has the existing authority record 1xx field as a 4xx field, the cross-reference is logged in the import report.
- All authority record links to the existing authority record are disconnected.
- The existing authority record is replaced by the incoming record.
- The deleted record is logged in the import report.
- If the incoming authority record status (Leader/05) is **s** (deleted; heading split into two or more headings), the following processing occurs:
- All bibliographic and authority record links to and from the existing authority record are disconnected.
- All disconnected links are logged in the import report.
- The existing authority record is replaced by the incoming record.
- The deleted record is logged in the import report.

- If the incoming authority record status (Leader/05) is **x** (deleted; heading replaced by another heading), the following processing occurs:
- All bibliographic and authority record links to and from the existing authority record are disconnected.
- The existing authority record is replaced by the incoming record.
- The deleted record is logged in the import report.

Item Records Created from Embedded Holdings Tags

When you import bibliographic records using an import profile that is set to build item records from embedded holdings tags, the items are created automatically based on the holdings tag number and MARC subfield mapping specified on the Item Records tab. This table shows the default settings, requirements, and data entry conventions for item record creation from data in the 852 tag in the **Polaris default (with item creation)** profile. The data entry conventions apply to all profiles.

Polaris Item Record Field	Subfield	Required	Data Entry Con- ventions
Assigned (branch)	\$a	Yes	Must match a branch ID or abbreviation. 15 characters max.
Collection	\$b	No	Must match a collection ID or abbreviation. 15 characters max.
Barcode	\$p	No	20 characters max.
Call Number Prefix	\$k	No	60 characters max.
Call Number Suffix	\$m	No	60 characters max.
Circ Status	N/A	No	ID or description. 80 characters max. Certain circ statuses are not allowed in

Polaris Item Record Field	Subfield	Required	Data Entry Con- ventions
			new item records, for example Lost . If the ID or description in the circ status is not allowed, the circ status is taken from the template or from system defaults for item records.
Classification Number	\$h	No	60 characters max.
Copy Number	\$t	No	60 characters max.
Cutter Number	\$i	No	60 characters max.
Display in PAC	\$4	Yes	0 = No, 1 = Yes
Fine code	\$r	Yes	FineCodeID (ID or description). 80 characters max.
Free Text Block	N/A	No	255 characters max.
Funding Source	\$1	No	50 characters max.
Holdable	\$5	Yes	0 = No, 1 = Yes
Library Assigned Block	N/A	No	ID or description. 80 characters max.
Loan Period Code	\$u	Yes	LoanPeriodCodeID, ID, or description. 80 characters max.
Loanable Outside System	\$7	Yes	0 = No, 1 = Yes
Material Type	\$w	Yes	MaterialTypeID, ID, or description. 80
Polaris Item Record Field	Subfield	Required	Data Entry Con- ventions
------------------------------	----------	----------	--
			characters max.
Name of Piece	N/A	No	255 characters max.
Non Circulating	N/A	No	0=No, 1=Yes
Non-Public Note	\$x	No	255 characters max.
Owner (branch)	\$o	Yes	Must match a branch ID or abbreviation. 15 characters max.
Physical Condition	\$q	No	255 characters max.
POLI-Segment ID	N/A	No	Number
Price	\$0	No	Monetary value (Format: ##.## No '\$' should be in the subfield. Include a decimal where appropriate.)
Public Note	\$z	No	255 characters max.
Renewal Limit	\$y	Yes	0-99
Shelf Location	\$c	No	Must match shelf location ID or description. 80 characters max.
Shelving Scheme	\$j	Yes	0=No information,
			2=Library of Congress
			3=Dewey Decimal
			4=National Library of Medicine

Polaris Item Record Field	Subfield	Required	Data Entry Con- ventions
			5=Superintendent of Documents
			6=Shelving Control Number
			7=Title
			8=Shelved Separately
			9=Other
Statistical Code	\$d	No	ID or description. 80 characters max
Temporary Shelf Location	\$I	No	25 characters
Vol (volume)	\$v	No	60 characters max.

Duplicate Records Overlaid

If the import profile is set to perform duplicate detection, it can also specify how duplicate records are handled. For information regarding the process that compares the encoding level of duplicate bibliographic records, see <u>Bibliographic Overlay Based on</u> <u>Encoding Level</u>. For information regarding the process that compares the cataloging source of duplicate authority records, see <u>Authority Record Overlay Based on Cataloging Source</u>.

Tags Retained from Duplicate Records

The Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table is used to identify tags in bibliographic records to retain from duplicate records that are overlaid. The Authority Overlay Retention policy table is used to identify tags in authority records to retain from duplicate records that are overlaid.

Note:

The Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table can also be used to

identify tags to delete from incoming records whether they are duplicates or not.

For more information on these tables, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Specify Tags to Retain from Overlaid Bibs" and "Specify Tags to Retain from Overlaid Authority Records."

For bibliographic records, you can also select the option **Profile-defined overlay retention tags** in the import profile and select additional bibliographic tags to retain. See <u>Set import options for bibliographic records</u>.

Bibliographic Overlay Based on Encoding Level

If the import profile is set to compare the encoding levels of duplicate records, the value in Leader position 17 is checked.

Note:

Double-click on the Leader in the MARC21 view of the Bibliographic Record workform to see the encoding levels in Leader position 17:

space - Full level

- 1 Full level, material not examined
- 2 Less than full level, material not examined
- 3 Abbreviated level
- 4 Core level
- 5 Partial (preliminary) level
- 7 Minimal level
- 8 Prepublication level
- E System-identified MARC error in batchloaded record
- I Full-level input by OCLC participants
- J Deleted record
- K Less-than-full input by OCLC participants
- L Full-level input added from a batch process
- M Less-than-full added from a batch process
- u Unknown
- z Not applicable

The following table shows the values in the incoming record in Leader position 17 and the values in the existing record that allow or disallow an overlay. If the encoding levels are equal, the records are processed according to the setting in the import profile.

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
space	space	J
	1	
	2	
	3	
	4	
	5	
	7	
	8	
	u	
	Z	
	E	
	I	
	К	
	L	
	М	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
1	1	space
	2	I
	3	L
	4	J
	5	
	7	
	8	
	u	
	Z	
	E	
	К	
	М	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
2	2	space
	3	1
	4	7
	5	Ι
	8	L
	u	J
	Z	
	E	
	1	
	K	

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
3	3	space
	5	1
	8	2
	u	4
	Z	7
	E	I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
4	3	space
	4	1
	5	7
	8	I
	u	J
	Z	К
	E	L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
5	5	space
	u	1
	Z	2
	E	3
		4
		7
		8
		I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
7	2	space
	3	1
	4	I
	5	J
	7	L
	8	
	u	
	Z	
	E	
	К	
	М	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5	Cannot Overlay space
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay58	Cannot Overlay space 1
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 u	Cannot Overlay space 1 2
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 u z	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 u 2 Z E	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 4
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 U Z E	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 4 7
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 U Z E	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 4 7 I
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 U Z E	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 4 7 1 1 J
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 U Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 4 7 1 1 J K
Incoming LDR/17 Value 8	Can Overlay 5 8 U Can Control	Cannot Overlay space 1 2 3 3 4 7 1 7 1 1 J K L

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
u	u	space
	Z	1
	E	2
		3
		4
		5
		7
		8
		I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
Z	u	u
	Z	space
	E	1
		2
		3
		4
		5
		7
		8
		I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
E	E	u
		Z
		space
		1
		2
		3
		4
		5
		7
		8
		I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
Ι	space	J
	1	
	2	
	3	
	4	
	5	
	7	
	8	
	u	
	Z	
	E	
	I	
	К	
	L	
	Μ	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
J		space
		1
		2
		3
		4
		5
		7
		8
		1
		u
		Z
		E
		I
		J
		К
		L
		М
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
К	2	space
	3	1
	4	7
	5	I
	8	J
	u	L
	Z	
	E	
	К	
	М	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
L	space	J
	1	
	2	
	3	
	4	
	5	
	7	
	8	
	u	
	Z	
	E	
	I	
	К	
	L	
	М	
Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay

Incoming LDR/17 Value	Can Overlay	Cannot Overlay
М	2	space
	3	1
	4	7
	5	I
	8	J
	u	L
	Z	
	E	
	K	
	М	

Authority Record Overlay Based on Cataloging Source

If the option **Merge duplicate records** is selected when importing authority records, the 040 \$a of the incoming record is checked against the entries in the following Administration policy table: **Authority Record Import: Preferred Cataloging Source**. If the (040 \$a) code in the incoming record matches an entry in the table, the preference order of the code is checked. The incoming record overlays the database record if it has a higher level of preference than the code in the database record.

Note:

For information on setting up this policy table, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, "Specify preferred cataloging sources for authority records."

1. The original cataloging agency of the incoming record (tag 040 \$a) is matched to entries in the Authority Record Import: Preferred Cataloging Source policy table in Polaris Administration.

Preferred Cataloging Source Table Entries for Importing Library	Incoming Record Tag 040 \$a	Import Processing Status		
Has entries	Matches a table entry	Valid for import processing		
Has entries	Does not match a table entry	Invalid record is logged in the import report, but is not added to the catalog		
Has entries	No tag 040	Invalid record is logged in the import report, but is not added to the cata- log		
No entries	No tag 040	Incoming record is added to catalog as pro- visional. Logged in import report. Added to provisional record set if specified. Existing record is not changed.		
No entries	Has original cataloging source information	Valid for import processing		

2. If the imported authority record is from a preferred cataloging agency, the ranking of the agency is compared with the agency ranking of the existing record. The ranking of preferred cataloging agencies is determined by the agency's entry position in the Authority Record Import: Preferred Cataloging Source policy table in Polaris Administration.

Incoming Record Original Cata-	Processing Done for Incoming		
loging Agency Preference	Record		
Higher than the agency for the existing record	Processed according to value in record status (Leader/05)		

Incoming Record Original Cata- loging Agency Preference	Processing Done for Incoming Record
Equal to the agency for the existing record	Processed according to value in record status (Leader/05)
Existing record does not have a cataloging agency specified	Processed according to value in record status (Leader/05)
Lower than the agency for the existing record	Entry logged in import report. Incoming record is not added to catalog.

- 3. If the imported record has a higher or equal source preference than the existing record, the duplicate records are processed based on the record status (Lead-er/05) of the incoming record.
 - If the incoming record has a record status of n (new), c (corrected or revised), or a (increase in encoding level), Polaris does new or update processing.
 - If the incoming record has a record status of **d** (deleted), **s** (deleted with heading split), or **x** (deleted with heading replaced), Polaris does deletion processing.

Checking Cataloging Records

Several checking functions in Polaris Cataloging help you maintain accurate and complete records. When you save or import records, Polaris checks for matching authority headings, validates the MARC format, and checks to see if there are duplicate records already in the database. You can also use these tools to check records at any time.

If you change a heading in an authority record, a dialog box lists the linked records that are affected by the change. You can automatically change the headings in the linked records to match the change in the authority record.

See also:

- <u>Checking Authority Headings</u>
- <u>Checking MARC Format</u>
- <u>Checking for Duplicate Records</u>

Checking Authority Headings

Checking authority headings in bibliographic and authority records ensures consistency in indexing, so retrieval is reliable. Headings are checked when you save the record as final or when you select **Tools** > **Check Headings** on the Bibliographic Record workform, or **Tools** > **Check See Also From** on the Authority Record workform.

Note:

The headings check is not done automatically when you save the record as provisional.

If no invalid headings are found, the **Check Complete** message appears or the record is saved. If any unlinked headings are found, the Check Headings Assistant dialog box lists the problem headings. You can correct the problem heading in the record, create a new authority record to match the problem heading, or disregard the problem and leave the heading unlinked. You must have permission set in Polaris Administration to create authority records. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Cataloging Workflow Permissions .

You can also create links automatically from an open authority record to new bibliographic or authority records whose headings match, or are very close to, the

heading in the open record. When you make new links to authority records or update links, you can see the changes by selecting **Utilities** > **Cataloging Processing** > **Authority Create Links Queue** or the **Authority Update Links Queue**.

See also:

- Authority Control for Local Headings
- ZMARC Remote Authority Control
- List and resolve unlinked headings
- <u>Create links from authority records to other records</u>
- Edit authority records and update linked records
- Check the logs of the new or updated authority links

Authority Control for Local Headings

Note:

If you do not want authority control performed on these local headings, contact your Polaris Site Manager.

Polaris performs authority control for some local subject headings. Local subject headings must be in 690 and 691 fields, the second indicator must be 7, and the subfields must be similar to those specified in the MARC format for bibliographic 600, 650, and 651 fields. If your data does not meet these requirements, additional data analysis and processing fees may apply during data conversion.

When authority control for local headings is performed, the system attempts to match the local headings in bibliographic records with authority records as follows:

- 690 Subject Heading Local Topical Subject field with a second indicator value of '7' (source specified in subfield 2) is matched against authority records containing a 190 tag and a 008/11 value of 'z' (other). (The value in subfield 2 is not taken into account.)
- 691 Subject Heading Local Geographic Name field with a second indicator value of '7' (source specified in subfield 2) is matched against authority records containing a 191 tag and an 008/11 value of 'z' (other). (The value in subfield 2 is not taken into account.)

If a match is found and all other existing conditions for authority linking on non-local headings are met, a link is established between the bibliographic heading and the matching authority record.

In addition, links are automatically established between authority records as follows:

- 590 See Also From Tracing Local Topical Term is matched against an authority record's 190 tag.
- 591 See Also From Tracing Local Geographic Name is matched against an authority record's 191 tag.

ZMARC Remote Authority Control

If your library subscribes to Polaris ZMARC, the remote ZMARC or OCLC authority database is checked for matching authority records when no match is found in the Polaris database. When you save MARC records, import them, or check their headings, and no matching authority record is found in the local database, the remote database is checked automatically. If an exact match is found in the remote authority database, it is saved to the local database and a link is made to the existing or imported record.

An authority create links job is added to the queue automatically if other unlinked bibliographic or See Also headings in the database can be authorized by the new automatically-created authority record.

You enable remote automatic authority control through the **Remote automatic authority control** Cataloging profile in Polaris Administration. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Managing Authority Control..

List and Resolve Unlinked Headings

To check for unlinked headings in a bibliographic or authority record:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.

Tips:
Click 📴 to check headings in the bibliographic record.
Click Et to check see also references in the authority record.

2. Select **Tools** > **Check Heading(s)** on the Bibliographic Record workform, or select **Tools** > **Check See Also From References** on the Authority Record workform.

Note: If the headings are linked, the following message appears: **No**

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

heading problems were found. Click **OK** to acknowledge the message and skip the rest of these steps.

If you use remote automatic authority control and there are headings with no matching authority record, a message indicates that the system is searching for a matching authority record in the external database. If an exact match is found, the authority record is saved to the database and the link is automatically made.

If there are unauthorized headings, the Check Headings Assistant dialog box appears.

- 3. Select a single heading or multiple headings to edit:
 - If there are multiple headings and you want to create new headings or leave the bibliographic headings unlinked for all the headings listed, select all the headings and click **Details**. The Check Headings Details dialog box appears with the headings listed.
 - Select Create new authority record or Leave unlinked, and click OK.
 - To see more options, select a single heading, and click **Details** on the Check Headings Assistant or Check See Also From References Assistant dialog box. The Check Heading(s) Details dialog box appears with the other options.
- 4. Use one of the following options to resolve the unauthorized heading:
 - Change the heading to match an existing authority record If a heading is listed under Possible Authority Records, select it. Or, click Find and use the Authority Records Heading Find Tool to search for and select a valid authority record. The For option in the Find Tool is automatically populated when you are working with unlinked headings if that administrative setting has been enabled.

Authority	Records - Heading Find Tool		_	
File Edit Too	ls Options Help			
General Setti	ngs Databases			
	Authorith Descula		Search Mode	Search
Object: /	Authority Records	Climit by: (None)	Normal	Stop
Search by: H	Heading	✓ Value:	OPower	Otop
Type: E	Exact match (implicitly truncated)	\checkmark		New Search
Sort by: ((None)	~	Count Only	Clear
For:	Juvenile Fiction			Help
For Help, press	s F1	Close on Select		

Then, select **Adjust** on the Check Headings Details dialog box, and select one of the following options:

- bibliographic heading to match authority record or authority see also reference to match heading - Changes the heading in the record to match the authority heading you selected.
- **usage in authority record** Changes the usage of the authority record selected in the Possible Authority Records list to authorize the heading.
- **both** Changes both the usage and the heading.
- Create a new authority record to match the heading If no matching authority record is found, a new authority record can be created based on the heading in the bibliographic record. Select **Create new authority record**.
- Leave the heading or reference unlinked to an authority record Click Leave unlinked.
- Manually change the heading Click **Edit bibliographic heading** or **Edit authority heading**, and make changes to the heading in the box.
- 5. Click **OK** to close the Check Heading(s) Details dialog box.

The Check Headings Assistant dialog box displays the solution.

Tips:

To see how the authority heading appears in the record, click **Preview**. The Preview window appears.

If you created a new authority record, it is listed in a dialog box, and you can double-click to open it in the Authority Record workform.

6. Click **OK** on the Preview window if it is open, and click **Continue Saving** on the Check Headings Assistant dialog box, or just click **OK** on the Check Headings Assistant dialog box.

The Bibliographic Record workform or the Authority Record workform appears.

7. Select **File** > **Save** to save the record.

Related Information

Authority Reports - You can run a report to identify authority records where a See reference (4xx field) in one record matches a heading (1xx field) in another record in the database.

Create Links from Authority Records to Other Records

You can authorize headings by creating links to bibliographic or authority records from the Authority Record workform. If you have several records with the same headings that are not authorized, you can open the authority record in the Authority Record workform and create the links to the records.

To create links from an authority record to a bibliographic record or another authority record:

- 1. Open the Authority Record workform.
- 2. Select Tools > Create Links to Bibliographic Records or Tools > Create Links to Authority Records.

The Link Bibliographic Headings Assistant or Link Authority Headings Assistant dialog box appears with a list of authority headings that can link or are close. If the headings can be linked, they are listed in the top of the dialog box.

- 3. Do one of the following actions:
 - If the headings can be linked, select the headings and click Link Selected.
 - If the headings are close, double-click the close headings to open the records, and modify the heading to match the authorized heading. Then select Tools > Create Links again, select the fixed headings, and click Link Selected.

The linking process begins.

4. To check the linking job, or to generate a report that lists the new and updated links, see <u>View and Print Logs for New or Updated Authority Links</u>.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Edit Authority Records and Update Linked Records

When you modify and save an authority record, Polaris checks to see if there are bibliographic records with a heading linked to the authority record or cross-referenced headings in other authority records. You can also use the **Check For Linked Records** option on the **Tools** menu to check for linked records before saving the record. If there are linked records, and the heading or usage has changed, you can resolve the discrepancies automatically when you save the record.

To edit authority records and update linked records:

Tip:

To see a list of the bibliographic records linked to an authority record,

select Links > Bibliographic Records or click [78].

- 1. Open the Authority Record workform.
- 2. Edit the heading.
- 3. Save the authority record.

Note:

The options for automatically modifying the linked records appear only when you save the authority record.

If there are affected headings, the Check for Linked Records Results dialog box appears. The dialog box displays the number of bibliographic records and the number of *See also* references that will be affected by this change. It also displays reasons why the headings and/or references will become unlinked.

- 4. If there are linked bibliographic or authority records that will be affected by the change in the authority record, select one of the following options:
 - To leave the heading links as they are, do not select any option and click **Cancel**.
 - To modify the heading in the bibliographic or authority records to match the new heading in the edited authority record, click **Modify the headings (or references) to match the new authority heading**.
 - To delete the heading and tag in the bibliographic or authority records to which the edited authority record is linked, click **Delete the headings (or references)**.

- To remove links to any bibliographic headings linked to the edited authority record, click **Unlink the headings** (or **references)**. The heading remains in the bibliographic or authority record as an unauthorized heading.
- 5. Click **Continue Saving** to update the linked headings automatically.

Related Information

Check headings before saving changes to the authority record - To see the linked headings that would be affected by your changes, select **Tools** > **Check For Linked**

Records or click from the Authority Record workform. The Check for Linked Records Results dialog box appears if there are linked records that would be affected by the change. If no linked headings or no heading problems were found, a **No records were affected** message appears. You can click **Show Linked Bibliographic Headings** or **Show Linked See Also References** to see a list of the linked records.

View and Print Logs for New or Updated Authority Links

An authority create links job is added to the queue automatically if remote automatic authority control is enabled and other unlinked bibliographic or *See Also* headings in the database can be authorized by the new automatically-created authority record. To check the queue:

1. On the Polaris Shortcut Bar, select **Utilities > Cataloging Processing > Authority Create Links Queue** or **Authority Update Links Queue**.

A window lists the new or updated links.

2. Double-click the links job, or click

The log appears in the report preview window.

3. To print the log, select **File > Print** from the Adobe Acrobat menu.

Checking MARC Format

MARC format checking ensures the consistency and the quality of your MARC records. Polaris automatically checks MARC 21 tags when you save a record as final, but you can also check the MARC format before you save a record. When invalid tags and headings are detected, a list of the formatting problems appears. Polaris MARC validation uses the rules set in the MARC Validation Bibliographic and MARC Validation Authority profiles. Refer to the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Administering MARC Validation and Display for information about changing the validation tables. These system tables are based on rules outlined by the Library of Congress in the MARC 21 Standard Format For Bibliographic/Authority Data (ISBN 0-8444-0809-3). Refer to the appropriate Library of Congress document if you have any questions about MARC 21 format concepts and standards.

Depending on the MARC validation options set by your organization in Polaris Administration, you may or may not see validation messages for required, obsolete, or conditional content designators. You may choose not to correct invalid tags due to time constraints or local library policy.

Note:

The Leader and 008 tag are required when saving or importing bibliographic records, even if MARC validation is turned off.

See also:

- Check MARC format from a workform
- Change invalid fields

Check MARC Format from a Workform

To verify that the catalog record displayed in the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform meets the MARC 21 format guidelines:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record or Authority Record workform.



2. Select **Tools > Check MARC21 Format** from the workform menu bar.

Note:

If the content designators are valid, a **No MARC21 formatting problems were found** message box appears. Click **OK** to acknowledge the message and skip the rest of this procedure.

3. The Check MARC21 Format Results dialog box appears if there are formatting problems in the MARC record.

- 4. If the Check MARC21 Format Results dialog box appears, choose one of the following actions to resolve format issues:
 - To correct the invalid tags, do <u>Change invalid fields</u>.
 - To cancel the Check Tag procedure, click Cancel.
 - To continue saving the record without changing invalid tags, click **Continue Saving**. This option is available only when invalid tags are found while saving the record.

Change Invalid Fields

To change invalid content designators in the record:

1. Click Edit Record on the Check MARC21 Format Results dialog box.

The focus changes to the record workform.

2. Make the appropriate changes to the invalid tags.

Tip: 100 Click to check the format.

3. Select Tools > Check MARC21 Format to restart the MARC 21 check.

If all content designators are valid, **No MARC21 formatting problems were found** appears, or if the record still contains invalid fields, the Check USMARC Format Results dialog box appears.

- 4. Do one of the following actions:
 - If **No MARC21 formatting problems were found** is displayed, click **OK** to return to the workform.
 - If the Check MARC21 Format Results dialog box is displayed, repeat steps 2-3 of this procedure until all MARC 21 formatting problems are resolved.

Checking for Duplicate Records

Polaris duplicate detection helps you avoid adding duplicate bibliographic or authority records to your database. Duplicate detection is automatically run when you save a bibliographic or authority record. You can also select **Tools** > **Replace/Check for duplicates** from the Bibliographic Record workform, or **Tools** > **Check for Duplicates** on

the Authority Record workform. The following Polaris Administration settings control duplicate detection and how records are overlaid in Polaris Cataloging:

- Bibliographic and authority deduplication database tables
 The criteria for detecting duplicates are set in the Bibliographic Deduplication and
 the Authority Deduplication database tables at the system, library or branch levels
 in Polaris Administration. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Change bib liographic or authority deduplication tables.
- Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table
 When a record is overlaid, the 035 tag of the replaced record is saved in the new record as well as any tags specified for retention in the Bibliographic Tags to Retain/Delete policy table. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Specify tags to retain from overlaid bibs.
- Authority Overlay Retention policy table
 When an authority record is overlaid, the 035 tag of the replaced record is saved in the new record as well as any tags specified for retention in the Authority Overlay Retention policy table. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Specify tags to retain from overlaid authority records.
- MARC validation immediately after bib overlay cataloging profile Some of the tags retained from the overlaid records may be non-repeatable tags. You may want to set **MARC validation immediately after bib overlay** to **Yes** so that MARC validation is performed on the new record after the duplicates are overlaid. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Enable validation when duplicate bibs are replaced.
- Check headings immediately after bib overlay cataloging profile If this profile is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration, the headings are checked in the retained record after it overlays another bibliographic record or records. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Enable headings check when replacing bibs.
- Bibliographic record replace: maximum allowed in one operation Cataloging parameter - This system-level parameter limits the number of records that can be replaced at once. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Set the number of bibs that can be replaced at once.

Note:

For information on the duplicate detection process during import, see <u>Set</u> <u>import options for bibliographic records</u>.

See also:

- Detect duplicate or replace bibliographic records
- Detect duplicate authority records

Detect Duplicate or Replace Bibliographic Records

You can check for duplicate bibliographic records and replace them with a new or existing record. You can also replace records even if they were not determined to be duplicates. When you save a bibliographic record, it is automatically checked for duplicates, and if one or more duplicate records are found, the Replace/Check for duplicates dialog box appears with the duplicate records listed. If no duplicates are found when you save a record, the dialog box does not appear and the bibliographic record is saved.

If you attempt to replace a protected bibliographic record (the **Do not overlay** box is checked), the protected record that cannot be replaced appears in red in the **Records to replace** list. If you want to continue replacing the record, you can open it in the Bibliographic Record workform and uncheck the **Do not overlay** box, and save the record. Then, refresh the Replace/Check for Duplicates (Bibliographic Records) dialog box. The record is displayed in black text.

To check for duplicate bibliographic records and replace them, or replace records that are not determined to be duplicates:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record workform.
- 2. Do one of the following steps:
 - Select File > Save, click the Save button, or press CTRL+S. If you save the record and no duplicates are detected, the record is saved, and no additional message appears. If you save the record and duplicates are detected, the Replace/Check For Duplicates dialog box appears with the duplicates listed.

Replace / Check For Duplicates (Bibliographic Records)									
Retain this	record:								
Control n.	Owner QA-YODA	Title 6 Horses /	,		Author Reddick, Kate.	Format	Link 0	ed items	Status
Records to	Records to replace:								
Maint	Control nu 142273	Owner QA-YODA	Title Horses	Author Reddick,	Format Kate. Book	Linked items 3	Status Final	System-det LCCN;Auth	tected duplicate or/Title;Title/260 \$c;
5									
Replace All Replace Selected Cancel Help									

- Select Tools > Replace/Check for duplicates, click 2, or press Ctrl+I. If duplicates are detected, the Replace/Check For Duplicates lists them, including the reason they were determined to be duplicates. If no duplicates are detected, the Replace/Check For Duplicates dialog box appears with the message: No duplicates were found. You can select records to replace with the add button above.
- 3. If the Replace/Check for Duplicates dialog box appears, do one of the following:
 - Close the dialog box if no duplicates were detected Click **Cancel**.
 - Close the dialog box if duplicates were detected Click **Continue Saving** to save the duplicate record.
 - Open a record in the Records to replace list Select the record or records, and click Open.

Tip:

If a bibliographic record has a status of Deleted, it cannot be added to the list of records to replace.

• Add records to the **Records to replace** list - Click Polaris Find Tool. Search for and select single or multiple bibliographic records or bibliographic record sets, right-click and choose **Select.** To see the records in a record set, right-click and select **Open**. When you select a record set, all the member records are added to the list. • Remove records from the **Records to replace list** - Select the records

to remove, and click 🦳

 Replace the records displayed in the Records to replace list - Click Replace All. Or select specific records to replace using the Maintain control number column to select which of the Records to replace will have its control number retained, and click Replace Selected. Click Yes to confirm that you want to replace the record or records.

Note:

Records with a status of provisional are not eligible for this feature.

Note:

This feature applies only when new records are being saved, not when two existing records in your database are suspected of being duplicates. In that situation, you must perform the duplicate detection and replace operation from the record whose control number you wish to retain.

Tip:

If the overlaid records include tags listed in the Bibliographic Overlay Retention Tags policy table, these tags are copied to the new bibliographic record. See <u>Related Information</u> for more information on what gets saved in the retained record.

Related Information

- Records that cannot be added to the Records to Replace list:
 - Records with a Deleted status
 - Records linked to digital media in Polaris Fusion
- Setting deduplication rules The rules that detect duplicates are applied using rules groups in the Bibliographic Deduplication database table or the Authority Deduplication table.
- Results of replacing records When you choose to replace a record or records in the **Records to replace** list with the record displayed in the Bibliographic Record workform, the saved record has the following characteristics:

- The selected or single control number of the existing record(s) are retained.
- Specific tags from overlaid records are retained All 035 tags in the replaced records are copied to the new record, as well as any tags listed in the Bibliographic Overlay Retention policy table.
- Links from overlaid records are transferred to the newly saved record If the duplicate records had links to other records, they are maintained in the new record, including links to:
 - hold requests
 - item records
 - item templates
 - authority records
 - selection list line items
 - selection lists
 - promotion records
 - purchase order line items
 - purchase orders
 - invoice line items
 - invoices
 - serial holdings records
 - standing order parts
 - subscription records
 - record sets
- Non-MARC settings are specified in the newly saved record The **Display in PAC** setting and other non-MARC settings are not copied from the replaced records.
- First available date is earliest in any of the records The new bibliographic record's first available date is the earliest first available date of any of the records, including those that were overlaid. This means that in some situations the creation date of the retained record is after the first available date.
- Circulation counts increase The Lifetime circulation count and Lifetime inhouse circulation count are increased by the counts in the replaced records.

- If the MARC validation immediately after bib overlay Cataloging profile is set to Yes, MARC coding is checked after records are overlaid. This setting also ensures that non-repeatable tags from the overlaid records do not accumulate in the new bibliographic record.
- If the Check headings immediately after bib overlay Cataloging profile is set to Yes, headings are checked in the retained record. If any problems are detected with the headings, the Check headings assistant dialog box appears.

Detect Duplicate Authority Records

You can check for duplicate authority records and replace them with a new record. If any tags in the overlaid records are set to be retained, they are copied to the new record.

To check for existing authority records in the Polaris database that may be duplicates of the record displayed in the Authority Record workform:

- 1. Open the Authority Record workform.
- 2. Do one of the following steps:
 - Click 🔏 or select **Tools** > **Check for Duplicates**.
 - Select File > Save, press CTRL+S, or click the Save button to save the record.

Any suspected duplicates are listed in the Check For Duplicate Results dialog box. The reasons the record was identified as a duplicate are displayed in the **Reason** column. They refer to the applicable rule groups as defined in the Authority Deduplication database table.

3. If the Check For Duplicates Results dialog box appears, do one of the following:

Tip:

All options are available on the Check for Duplicates dialog box if you saved the record. However, if you selected **Tools > Check for Duplicates** without first saving the record, the only options available are **Open** and **Cancel**.

- To save the record displayed in the Authority Record workform even though it may be a duplicate of the record or records listed in the dialog box, click **Continue Saving**.
- To open a suspected duplicate, select the record, and click **Open**.

- To replace a suspected duplicate with the record displayed in the Authority Record workform, select the record, and click **Replace.** Then, click **OK** to confirm that you want to replace the record or records.
- Click **Cancel** to cancel and return to the workform.

Related Information

Setting deduplication rules - The rules that detect duplicates are applied using rules groups in the Authority Deduplication database table. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration Guide, Change bibliographic or authority deduplication tables.

Maintaining Item Records

Item records track the physical items in your library collection and show the availability of items in the public catalog. They store the title information, call number, location, copy number, status, circulation parameters, circulation history, holds information, blocks, statistics, and other information for each piece in a library's collection.

By default, the Item Record workform opens to the view that corresponds to the active subsystem. For example, when you are creating a new item record, the workform opens to the Cataloging view. However, you can set a profile in Polaris Administration so that the Item Record workform always opens to a specific view, regardless of how the item record is accessed. See Polaris Administration PDF Guide, Set the Item Record workform opening view.

Each item record is linked to a single bibliographic record, but multiple item records can be linked to the same bibliographic record. For example, your library may have several copies of *War and Peace*, each with its own item record, and all linked to the same bibliographic record. You can also associate item records with other item records, so you can track multi-part items, such as kits.

You can save item records as final or provisional records. When you save an item record as final, it is checked for duplicates in the database, and it appears in the public catalog if you have selected the option. Provisional item records are not checked for duplicates, and they do not appear in the public catalog. For information on deleting item records, see Delete bibliographic or item records.

If your Polaris system includes course reserve functionality, you can reserve items for courses. Information related to course reserves is stored in the Reserves view of the Item Record. When you reserve an item, you can assign circulation settings that are different from the normal settings on the Circulation view of the Item Record. See Edit item information for course reserves.

Note:

To specify how hold requests operate in your library, see the Patron Services Admininistration Guide, Setting Up Holds and ILL Request Processing Setting Up Hold and ILL Loan Request Processing.

See also:

- <u>Creating Item Records</u>
- <u>Changing Item Records</u>
• Printing Cataloging Labels

Creating Item Records

Before you can create an item record, a bibliographic record for the title must exist in the database. In addition to the methods covered in this section, you can also create item records automatically in the following ways:

- Import bibliographic records and automatically generate item records based on the holdings data in the 852 tag or in a locally-defined tag. See <u>Set import options</u> for item records.
- Release a purchase order and create on-order items. See the Acquisitions PDF Guide, Release a purchase order.
- Create an on-the-fly item at checkout The on-the-fly (OTF) function creates a minimal-level item record so items can be checked out before they are fully cataloged. See the Patron Services PDF Guide, Create an on-the-fly item at checkout.
- Import bibliographic records for eContent titles and automatically create eContent items - See <u>EContent Item Records</u>.

Note:

You can specify the default shelving scheme to use for all new item records for your organization. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Setting Item Copy & Save Options.

See also:

- Create multiple item records for a single title
- <u>Create a single new item record manually</u>
- Enter basic information for an item record
- Enter circulation information for an item record
- Enter notes and blocks for an item record
- Enter acquisitions information for an item record
- Edit item information for course reserves
- View item's circulation history and edit float setting
- Create a subordinate (child) item record
- Link subordinate items to different records

- View other item records linked to the same bib
- View the linked bib from an item record

Create multiple item records for a single title

To create one or more item records linked to the same bibliographic record:

Note:

Item records can be created automatically when importing bibliographic records with embedded holdings data. Search Polaris help for "Set import options for item records."

1. Do one of the following actions:

Tip:

If you are creating all items using the same template, you can select it on the New dialog box. If you are creating items using different templates, do not select a template on the New dialog box. Click **OK** without selecting a template and go to the New Item Record Options dialog box where you can select a different template for each item.

- From the Polaris Shortcut bar, select File > New, press CTRL+N, or click the New button and select Item Record from the New dialog box. Then, select a template or click OK.
- Press **F12** to open the Bibliographic Record Find Tool, search for the bibliographic record and open it in the Bibliographic Record workform.

Then, select Tools > Create Item Record, or click

• From the Item Record workform, select **Tools > Create Item Record**.

The New Item Record Options dialog box appears.

2. Click **Find** and select a bibliographic record if you started from the new dialog box or you want to change the bibliographic information.

The title, author, and bib control number boxes are copied from the bibliographic record to the New Item Record Options dialog box. If the bibliographic record contains call number information, it is also copied from the bibliographic record to the New Item Record Options dialog box if the **Bring call number fields from bib to item record when link is made** is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration. The price is

copied from the bibliographic record to the New Item Record Options dialog box if the profile **Bring price from bib to item record when link is made** is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration.

The Item Create Call Number Hierarchy and the Item Price Hierarchy database tables specify the order in which the tags in bibliographic records are checked for the call number and price.

Tip:

If you know the bibliographic control number, you can type it in the bib control number box, and press **Tab**. If you press **Enter**, the dialog box closes.

3. If you want to use item templates, click in the **Template** column on the first row of the distribution grid, and select a template from the list.

Note:

When a template is selected, the information from the template pre-fills the distribution information in the grid row. The **Use template values instead of these (if available)** check box is selected automatically. If this check box remains checked, the values from the template will be used in the new item records instead of the values in the New Item Record Options dialog box. If the template is missing information in any of these fields, the values in the New Item Record Options dialog box will be used.

However, the classification and cutter numbers are pulled from the template if at least one is found. If the template does not contain a classification or cutter number, and the shelving schemes are the same in the template and the dialog box, the classification and cutter numbers are pulled from the dialog box. If the shelving schemes are different, and the template does not have a classification or cutter number, the shelving scheme from the template is used and the classification and cutter numbers are pulled from the template is used and the classification and cutter numbers are pulled from the bibliographic record.

- 4. If you are creating multiple items for the same destination branch and collection, type the number of items in the **Items** column in the distribution grid.
- 5. Continue selecting templates in each row of the distribution grid.

Tip:

Each call number field can contain up to 60 characters.

6. If you are not using templates or you want to include information that may be missing in the item template or templates, do the following steps:

Notes:

If an item template is not selected, or the template does not have call number information, the call number information is copied from the dialog box. If both the selected template and the dialog box have call number information, the information is copied from the template if the **Use template values instead of these (if available)** check box is selected.

The classification and cutter numbers are always copied as a group from either the bibliographic record or the item template. The other elements of the call number (prefix, suffix, volume, and copy) are copied independently. For example, the classification and cutter numbers can be copied from the bibliographic record and the prefix can be copied from the item template.

a. Select the shelving scheme for the new item in the **Scheme** box.

Tip:

You can set the **Default shelving scheme for new item records** Cataloging profile in Polaris Administration to set the default shelving scheme in the New Item Record Options dialog box. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Specify the default shelving scheme for item/holdings records.

- b. Type the prefix for the call number in the **Prefix** box.
- c. Type the class number in the **Class** box.
- d. Type the cutter number in the **Cutter** box.
- e. Type the suffix for the call number in the **Suffix** box.
- f. Type the volume number in the **Vol** box if you are creating an item record for a volume in a multi-part monographic set.

Important:

If you enter a volume number, be sure to format it

according to your library's standard. A consistent format ensures that volume numbers are sorted correctly in the Find Tool. In addition, if your library allows first available copy holds for parts of multipart titles, the items attached to the multi-part title must have consistently-formatted volume numbers. This is because first available copy hold requests for multi-part titles depend on a characterfor-character match on the volume number.

Internal spaces and all punctuation affect a match:

Vol 1 and Vol1 do not match.Vol.1 and Vol1 do not match.Case does not matter.Vol.1 and vol.1 match.

Beginning and trailing spaces are ignored. [space] v.1 and [no space] v.1 match v.1 [space] and v.1 [no space] match

For more information, see the Patron Services Administration Guide, First Available Copy Requests and Multi-Part Titles.

- g. Type the copy number in the **Copy** box if you are creating an item record with copy information.
- 7. (Optional) If the price is not filled in, type the dollar amount in the **Price** field. If the bibliographic record contains a price, it is filled in automatically.
- 8. If you are not using templates, or the templates are missing information that you want in the item records, fill in the fields above the distribution grid.
 - Select the circulation status in the **Circ status** box.
 - Select the renewal limit in the **Renewal Limit** box.
 - To display the item records in the PAC, check the **Display in PAC** box.
 - If the item should not circulate, select **Non-circulating**.

- To allow the items to be loaned outside of your library system, select **Loanable outside system**.
- To allow holds to be placed on this item, select Holdable.
- 9. If you did not use templates, enter the item distribution information in the grid under **Distribution** as follows:
 - Type the number of copies for the branch and location in the Items box.
 - Type the number of items in the **Items** box, select the **Branch**, **Collection, Shelf location, Material Type**, **Loan Period**, **Fine Code**, **Statistical Code**, and **Owner**.
- 10. Click to add the next blank row.
- 11. To enter barcodes for the item records, do one of the following steps:
 - Move the cursor into the **Item Barcode(s)** field, and scan the item barcodes. The **Barcode total** displays the number of barcodes, and the **Item total** displays the total number of items that will be created.

Note: You can create items without barcodes.

- Select Use system assigned barcodes.
- 12. Click **OK** to create the new item records.
- 13. If you selected **Use system assigned barcodes**, enter the following information on the Item barcode range dialog box:
 - a. Select the type of barcode in the **Type of barcode** box.
 - b. Type the beginning barcode number in the **Start of range** box.
 - c. Type the ending barcode number in the **End of range** box.
 - d. Use the up or down arrows to specify the next barcode number to be assigned after the starting number in the **Next to be assigned** box.
 - e. Click OK.

The new item records are listed in the Bulk Created Item Records dialog box.

14. To print labels for the item records, select the item records in the dialog box, rightclick, and select **Print, Labels**.

The Label Manager appears. For information about Label Manager, see <u>Printing</u> <u>Cataloging Labels</u>.

15. To open an item record in the list, double-click the item or right-click and select **Open** from the context menu.

Tip:

You can right-click an item in the list, add it to a record set, place a hold, or link to other records from the context menu.

The item record opens in the Item Record workform.

Tip:

To edit several item records, press **CTRL+S** to save the current record and **CTRL+E** to move to the next record in the list without closing the Item Record workform.

- 16. Edit the item record, if necessary, and save it.
- 17. Select **View > Next Record** from the Item Record workform to open the next record in the Item Record workform.

Related Information

If the system detects an invalid item barcode, a message appears. You can continue saving the item record if you have the system-level Cataloging permission **Override invalid item barcode message: Allow**.

Create a Single New Item Record Manually

To create a new item record manually:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select **File > New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click the New button.

The New Item record dialog box appears.

- 3. Select one of the following options:
 - Clear Work Form Create a new item record without any information filled in.
 - **Copy Existing Work Form** Create a new item record with the same information as the item record you have open.
 - Use Existing Template Create a new item record with information from a template. When you select Use Existing Template, select the template from the list.

The new Item Record workform, Cataloging view appears.

4. Enter information for the item record by following the steps in <u>Enter basic inform-ation for an item record</u>.

Enter Basic Information for an Item Record

The basic or header information on the Item Record workform remains the same on every view of the Item Record workform. The header information includes title information from the bibliographic record and identification information for the item.

To enter the item record's bibliographic and identifying information:

Tip:

You may not need to enter information in these fields if you created the item record by copying or using a template, but you can change the copied information.

- 1. Create a new item record by following the steps in <u>Create a single new item record</u> manually.
- 2. Scan the barcode or enter the item's barcode in the **Barcode** box.
- 3. Select the **Display in PAC** check box to display the item in the public catalog, or clear the **Display in PAC** check box to display the item for staff only.
- 4. If you do not want the item to circulate, select the **Non-circulating** box.
- 5. Click **Find** to search for and select the bibliographic record to which you want to link this item record.

The **Title** and **Author** boxes are filled in.

6. (Optional) Type the price for the item in the **Price** box if it is not filled in automatically from the link to the bibliographic record.

Note:

The price is pulled from the bibliographic record to an item record if the staff member's Cataloging profile **Bring price from bib to item record when link is made** is set to **Yes**. The Item Price Hierarchy database table in Polaris Administration specifies which bibliographic tags are checked for the price and in what order. For more information, see the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Modify the Item Create Price Hierarchy table.

7. Enter the item's location and identifying information as follows:

Note:

The owning branch controls permissions based on ownership of the

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

record. The assigned branch governs the circulation policies applied to transactions involving this item and its display in the PAC.

- 8. Select the item's owner in the **Owner** box.
- 9. Select the item's assigned branch in the **Assigned** box.
- 10. Select the collection to which the item will be assigned in the **Collection** box.
- 11. Select the location for the item in the **Shelf location** box.
- 12. To indicate a temporary location, type the location in the **Temporary location** box.
- 13. Select the circulation status for the item in the **Circ status** box.
- 14. Enter the item's circulation information. See Enter circulation information for an item record.

Enter Circulation Information for an Item Record

To enter the item record's circulation parameters, call number, and hold request information for an item record:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select View > Cataloging or click I

The Cataloging view of the Item Record workform appears.

- 3. Enter the circulation parameters for the item as follows:
 - Select the item material type in the Material type box.
 - Assign a loan period for the item in the Loan period code box.
 - Assign a fine code for the item in the **Fine code** box.
 - Specify the number of times this item may be renewed in the **Renewal limit** box.
 - Assign a statistical code for the item in the **Stat code** box.

Note:

The **Scheme** box displays the default shelving scheme for your organization. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Specify the default shelving scheme for item/holdings records.

- 4. If the call number is not filled in, enter the information in the following fields:
 - Prefix
 - Class

- Cutter
- Suffix

Note:

The call number fields are automatically copied from the linked bibliographic record if the staff member's Cataloging profile **Bring call number fields from bib to item records when link is made** is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration. The Call Number Hierarchy database table defines which bibliographic tags are checked for the call number information and the order in which they are checked. The Call Number Hierarchy table may also define the subfields for the volume and copy numbers. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Modify the Item Create Call Number Hierarchy table. If the item record was created using a template, and the template has call number fields that are not in the bibliographic record, the template values are used.

5. Type the volume and copy numbers in the **Vol** and **Copy** boxes.

Important:

If you enter a volume number, be sure to format it according to your library's standard. A consistent format ensures that volume numbers are sorted correctly in the Find Tool. In addition, if your library allows first available copy holds for parts of multipart titles, the items attached to the multipart title must have consistently-formatted volume numbers. This is because first available copy hold requests for multipart titles depend on a character-for-character match on the volume number.

Internal spaces and all punctuation affect a match:

Vol 1 and Vol1 do not match. Vol.1 and Vol1 do not match.

Case does not matter: Vol.1 and vol.1 match.

Beginning and trailing spaces are ignored: [space] v.1 and [no space] v.1 match v.1 [space] and v.1 [no space] match

To enable first available copy hold requests for multipart titles, go to

Polaris Administration, Parameters, Requests, Holds Options. For more information, see the *Patron Services Administration Guide*, Set Holds options: Enabling, Item Status Restrictions, First Available Copy.

- 6. Specify how the item is to be held by selecting or clearing the check boxes under **Request**:
 - Loanable outside system If checked, the item can be loaned outside your library system. If unchecked, the item cannot be loaned outside your library system.

Note:

Selecting the **Loanable outside system** checkbox contributes the item record to INN-Reach, but does not impact standard ILL.

- **Do not mail to patron** If checked, the item cannot be mailed to a patron using **Borrow By Mail** circulation. See *Patron Services Guide*, Borrow By Mail Circulation.
- Holdable If checked, hold requests can be placed on the item. If unchecked, no hold requests can be placed on the item. To indicate limits on the holds, use the check boxes under Limit to:
 - Pickup at Limits the item to filling hold requests only at a selected branch, not just the item's assigned branch. From this list, only one branch can be selected. When you select this option, you can also select Patrons from this library and branches or Patrons from this branch only.
 - Patrons from this library and branches Limits the item to filling hold requests from patrons registered at the item's assigned branch and other branches associated with the same parent library. When you select this option, you can also select number of days past first available.
 - Number of days past first available Sets the number of days a new item is available only to the assigned library's patrons. During the specified number of days, patrons from all other libraries can still find the new item and place a hold. After the specified number of days, holds on the new item placed by patrons from other libraries can be filled.

- Patrons from this branch only Limits the item to filling hold requests only from patrons registered at the item's assigned branch. When you select this option, you can also select Pickup at this branch.
- Preferred borrowers Limits the item to filling hold requests only where the patron's pick-up library is on the Preferred borrowers list in the Holds options dialog box in Polaris Administration. When you select this option, you cannot select any other Limit to options.
- 7. Select one of the following save options for this item:
 - If the item record is complete and the item is ready for circulation, select File
 Save, and respond per library policy to any detected duplicate messages.
 - If more work is needed to prepare the record or item for circulation, select
 File > Save Provisionally. Item records that are saved provisionally are not checked for duplicates, nor do they display in the public catalog.

Note:

The option to save an item provisionally is disabled if the item has a duplicate barcode, and the **Item records: Records with duplicate barcodes can be saved provisionally** profile is set to **No**. See *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Specify if items with duplicate barcodes can be saved provisionally.

Related Information

When you save an item record, the following types of messages may appear:

- Warning messages These depend on the profiles that are set in Polaris Administration. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Displaying Warning Messages for Bibs and Items.
- Invalid barcode message If the system detects an invalid item barcode, a message appears. You can continue saving the item record if you have the systemlevel Cataloging permission **Override invalid item barcode message: Allow**.

Enter Notes and Blocks for an Item Record

To enter notes according to your library's policy; notes are optional:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select View > Notes and Notices or click **1**.

The Notes and Notices view of the Item Record workform is displayed.

3. Type notes in the following fields, if applicable:

Tip:

If you add notes to the item record, the icon changes to yellow. If you add blocks, the Notes view icon turns red.

- Public note box The notes will be displayed in the PAC for this item.
- Non-public note box The notes are intended for library staff only.
- **Physical condition** box The notes describe the physical condition of the item.
- 4. To place a block on the item record, specify the type of block as follows:
 - To place a library-defined circulation block on the item, select the block in the **Library-assigned** box. Library-assigned blocks are set in Polaris Administration. See the *Patron Services Administration Guide*, Defining Item Blocks.
 - To place a block on the item for any reason not covered by a libraryassigned block, type up to 255 characters as the explanation for a block in the Free text box.
- 5. Select File > Save, press CTRL+S, or click the Save button to save the item record.

Enter Acquisitions Information for an Item Record

Note:

The fund, order date, price, and purchase order number are automatically filled in on the Source and Acquisition view of the Item Record workform if on-order item records were created when the purchase order was released. If the item was purchased with a donor fund, the donor information also appears. You can track the items that were paid for with donor funds in Acquisitions using the Items Ordered by Donor Fund report. Search Polaris help for "Acquisitions Reports." The invoice number appears on this view when the invoice is paid.

To enter source and acquisition information for an item record if the information was not copied from the purchase order and fund records in Acquisitions:

Note:

This view also displays circulation statistics for the item.

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select View > Source and Acquisition or click
- 3. If the information is not carried over from a purchase order that uses a donation fund, specify the acquisitions information for the item as follows:
- Type the name for the fund used to purchase the item in the **Funding** box.
- If the item was purchased using donated funds, type the donor's name in the **Donor first name**, **Middle**, and **Last name** boxes. Or, if it was an organization that donated the funds, type the name in the **Donor organization** box.

Note:

If the item was created automatically from the embedded holdings information in an imported bibliographic record, the **Import date**, **Bib record**, and **Source** boxes are filled in.

Select File > Save, press CTRL+S, or click

Edit Item Information for Course Reserves

To edit information for items that are reserved for academic courses:

Note:

Course reserve functions are available by specific contract.

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select **View** > **Reserves** or click **I**.

The Reserves view appears.

Note:

The course reserves information appears only if you have course reserve functionality and the item is on reserve.

3. To change the reserve circulation information, select from the options in the following fields:

Note:

These settings can be different from the normal settings in the Circulation view of the item record.

- Assigned
- Collection
- Shelf location
- Loan period
- Fine code
- Renewal limit
- 4. Select **Holdable** to allow holds on the item while it is reserved.
- 5. Select **Purchase** if the library needs to purchase additional copies of this title.
- 6. Select **Library use only** if the item should not leave the library.
- 7. Select **Requires full cataloging** if the item and bibliographic record have not been fully cataloged.
- 8. For photocopies, indicate the copyright information as follows:
 - Select **Fee required** if there is a fee associated with the item.
 - Select Fee paid and type the amount in the Fee box if the fee was paid.
 - Select **None** if the reserve item is not a photocopy.
 - Select CCL if the photocopies comply with copyright law.
 - Select **CCG** if the photocopies comply with copyright guidelines.
- 9. Indicate what to do with the item when the reserve is over:
 - Select **Discard** to discard the item after the item is taken off reserve.
 - Select Return to collection to return the item to its normal collection.
 - Select **Return to owner** if the item is owned by an instructor, and you want it returned to the instructor.
 - Select **Auto-delete** to delete the item record and associated bibliographic record when the item is taken off reserve. This option is often used for temporary items such as photocopies and items that belong to instructors.
- 10. Indicate the copy owner as follows:
 - Select **Instructor** if the instructor owns the copy.
 - Select Library if the library owns the copy.
- 11. To enter information regarding this item's course reserve, type the note in the **Note** box.

Note:

At the bottom of the Reserves view, you can see information on the

courses to which the item is linked, including the course, the reserve status, the dates of the reserve, and the count of circulations (check-outs and renewals) of the item while on reserve for that course. You can double-click the course to open the Course Reserve workform.

12. Select **File** > **Save** press **CTRL+S**, or click the Save button to save the changes to the course reserve information.

Related Information

• See the Patron Services Administration Guide, Setting Up Course Reserves

View item's circulation history and edit float setting

The Circulation view of the Item Record workform displays the status changes for an item record. In addition, you can change the item's home branch, and allow or prevent floating to another library's collection.

Note:

For more information about floating collections, see the *Patron Services Administration Guide*, Setting Up Floating Collections.

To view an item's circulation history and change the home branch and floating option:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select View > History, or click 🔳.

The Circulation History view appears.

- 3. To change the item's home branch, select another branch in the **Home branch** box. The home branch determines the branches to which the item can float (if the **Do not float** box is unchecked).
- 4. If you have the permission **Item records: Modify History view**, change the **Do not float** option by selecting the check box to prevent the item from floating to another branch, or uncheck the box to enable the item to float.

Item Circulation History

The following transactions, with their associated transaction date, are displayed in the Item Record's Circulation History:

- Created via Acquisitions PO Line Item processing
- Created via Acquisitions Invoice processing
- Modified via PO Line Item Receive processing
- Modified via PO Line Item Segment Undo Receipt processing
- Created via ILL processing
- Created via Cataloging
- Created via NCIP create processing
- Modified via Item Bulk Change
- Modified via Cataloging
- Modified via NCIP accept item processing
- Checked in
- Checked in (item was lost)
- Checked out
- Declared lost
- Claim was deleted
- Claim was made (returned or never had)
- Circulation status modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Shelf location modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Returned via ILL processing
- Sent in transit via Removing from Course Reserve
- Modified via PO Line Item Segment Receive processing
- Automatic status change from Check In
- Modified by automatic billed to lost processing
- Circulation status modified because item was held and request pickup branch
 was modified
- Circulation status modified to Routed by creation of linked route list piece
- Circulation status modified by modification of linked route list piece
- Modified via Floating Collections processing
- Renewal
- Transferred due to hold request
- Transferred due to ILL request
- Created via Acquisitions

- Created via Circulation
- Created via Serials
- Marked for deletion
- Undeleted
- Checked in via In House
- Inventory date was updated
- Barcode replaced via Check In
- Non public note modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Free text block modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Library assigned block modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Assigned collection modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Material type modified via Manage Item dialog from Check In
- Bulk checked out via Outreach Services
- Bulk checked out via Borrow by Mail
- Modified via Receive Shipment
- Linked to new bib
- Linked to new bib via Serials
- First overdue notice: Mail
- First overdue notice: Email
- First overdue notice: Phone
- First overdue notice: Text Message
- Second overdue notice: Mail
- Second overdue notice: Email
- Second overdue notice: Phone
- Second overdue notice: Text Message
- Third overdue notice: Mail
- Third overdue notice: Email
- Third overdue notice: Phone
- Third overdue notice: Text Message
- Bill notice: Mail
- Bill notice: Email
- Bill notice: Phone

- Bill notice: Text Message
- Due date reset
- Held for hold request
- Held for ILL request
- Inventory date was updated Offline
- Renewal PAC
- Renewal Phone
- Checked out Self Check
- Renewal Self Check
- Checked out Offline
- Checked out PAC
- Checked out Mobile PAC
- Renewal Mobile PAC
- Checked out Third party software
- Renewal Third party software
- Added copy created by API consumer service.
- Item was unlinked from a bibliographic resource entity.
- Item was transferred to a different bibliographic resource entity.
- Modified by API consumer service

Create a Subordinate (child) Item record

Use this procedure for creating subordinate items in a multiple-part holding. This procedure links all item records in the multiple-part holding to the same bibliographic record. To link the items to different bibliographic records, see <u>Link subordinate items to</u> <u>different records</u>.

Example:

A library has a Learn Russian In Seven Days language kit containing an audio recording, a textbook, and an English-Russian dictionary. The kit container is assigned an item record and a barcode. If the library chooses to also create and assign individual item records and barcodes to the recording, textbook, and dictionary, the three item records can be linked as children to the kit container's parent-item record.

Tip:

Select **Create** > **Child Item Record** on the context menu for the primary item record, and go to step 3 of this procedure.

To create a subordinate (child) item record automatically linked to a primary (parent) item record:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform for the primary item of the multiple-part holding.
- 2. Select **Tools > Create > Child Item Records** on the Item Record workform.

The New Item Record Options dialog box appears.

- 3. Enter information for the subordinate item (see <u>Create multiple item records for a</u> <u>single title</u>).
- 4. Click **OK**.

Note:

When your circulation staff is checking out a multi-part holding, such as a kit, checking out the primary item does not automatically check out the subordinate items. All items in the kit must be checked out.

Link Subordinate Items to Different Records

This procedure can also be used to create an item record where you manually link the new item to a bibliographic record. You may need to link items to different bibliographic records when the items are in a different medium. To do this, you need to know the item control number of the primary item record.

Note:

See <u>Create a subordinate (child) item record</u> to link the primary and subordinate item records to the same bibliographic record.

To link a primary (parent) item and related subordinate (child) item records to different bibliographic records:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform for the item to which you want to link the subordinate item.
- 2. Note the item control number of the primary item record.
- 3. Select **File** > **New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click the New button from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The New dialog box appears.

4. Select **Item Record** in the Objects list.

The New Item Record Options dialog box appears.

5. Enter the information for the subordinate item in the New Item Record Options dialog box, and click **OK**. See <u>Create multiple item records for a single title</u>.

The Item Record workform appears.

- 6. In the **Parent item** box, enter the item control number of the primary item record to which you are linking the subordinate item record.
- 7. Select **File** > **Save**, press **CTRL+S**, or click **I** to save the record.

View Other Item Records Linked to the Same Bib

To see a list of all the other item records linked to the same bibliographic record:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select Links > All Item Records or click .

The Linked Item Records dialog box appears.

3. Double-click any item in the list to open the item record.

View the Linked Bib from an Item Record

To see the linked bibliographic record from an item record:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select Links > Bibliographic Record, press CTRL+G, or click

The Bibliographic Record workform appears.

Related Information

You can also view the linked bibliographic record from an item record displayed in the Find Tool results list or in a linked list box. Right-click the item record in the list, and select **Links > Bibliographic Record**.

Changing Item Records

You can change an existing item record by opening it in the Item Record workform. To make the same change in multiple item records, you can use the Bulk Change process; see <u>Changing Multiple Item Records</u>.

When you change an item record and save it, a warning message may appear, depending on the information you changed and the following profiles in Polaris Administration:

- Item records: Warning if changing assigned or home branch If this profile is set to Yes for your organization, and you change the assigned or home branch, a warning message appears.
- Item records: Warning for items saved with modified barcode If this profile is set to Yes for your organization, and you change the item's existing barcode, a warning message appears.
- Item records: Warning for items saved with Display in PAC unchecked If this profile is set to Yes for your organization, and you save the item record with the Display in PAC check box unchecked, a warning message appears.
- Item records: Warning for items saved without barcodes If this profile is set to Yes for your organization, and you save the item record without a barcode, a warning message appears.

Note:

For information on setting these Cataloging profiles, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Displaying Warning Messages for Bibs and Items.

See also:

- Change an existing item record from the workform
- Change an existing item record's linked bib

Change an Existing Item Record from the Workform

To change an existing item record:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Edit the fields in the Item Record workform.
- 3. Select File > Save, press Ctrl+S or click .

If no message box appears, **The record was saved successfully** appears in the status bar of the Item Record workform.

Change an existing item record's linked bib

To link an existing item record to a different bibliographic record:

Tip:

If you need to change the linked bibliographic record for multiple items, put the item records in a record set and change the control number using bulk change. See <u>Changing Multiple Item Records</u>.

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Open the bibliographic record you want to link to the item record.
- 3. Select the control number on the Bibliographic Record workform, right-click, and select **Copy** from the context menu.
- 4. Paste the new control number in the **Bib control** box on the Item Record workform.
- 5. Save the item record.

The item record will be linked to the bibliographic record you selected.

Related Information

- If you change the bibliographic record linked to a serial holdings record, and there are item records linked to retained serial issues for that serial holdings record, the item records are linked to the new bibliographic record.
- Any holds that were placed on item records linked to the old bibliographic record are updated with the new bibliographic information.

Printing Cataloging Labels

The default cataloging label type and the settings for printing labels are defined at the system, library, and branch levels using the following Staff Client profiles in Polaris Administration:

Note: See Setting Label Profiles.

- Labels: Automatically generate labels for each item record created If this profile is set to **Yes**, labels are generated automatically whenever a new item record is created.
- Labels: Cataloging label type Specifies the default label type for cataloging (item) labels.
- Labels: Cataloging print method Select On Demand, Batch, or Quick Print as the default printing method for cataloging labels. If On Demand is selected, the Label Manager appears when the user requests a label. If Quick Print is selected, the label is printed without opening Label Manager. If Batch is selected, the label is generated when the user requests a label, but it is not printed until the user opens Label Manager and selects Print. The Batch option works well for creating sheets of labels for multiple items.

To change the default label type and print method without using Polaris Administration profiles, select **Cataloging > Options** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, and make the changes on the Cataloging Options dialog box. See <u>Change label options from</u> Cataloging.

Other settings, such as the font, dimensions, and content of the labels, are defined in the Label Configuration dialog box that you can access from the Label Manager. See <u>Configuring Existing Label Types</u>. If your library system or consortium processes materials centrally, all libraries and branches should agree on the same label stock, content, and configuration.

To use the label file again, you can save the labels in a .dat file format with a name and location you specify. When you want to access this label file, you can locate it and open it in Label Manager.

Some label stock contains sets of labels intended for a single item. For example, a label set may contain a spine label and two pocket labels. All three labels are attached to a single item, and they can be printed together.

To print labels you must set up your printing preferences on the computer where you are doing the cataloging or serials processing. The label printer must be set up in Microsoft Windows, and it must be connected to the workstation or the same local area network as the workstation.

See also:

- <u>Change label options from Cataloging</u>
- Print spine and pocket labels from an item record

- Print labels from Find Tool, record sets, or list boxes
- Edit labels
- Insert diacritics or special characters into a label
- Create multiple copies of a label
- Save a Label File

Change Label Options from Cataloging

You can change the print method and the default label type at the staff level without setting profiles in Polaris Administration. However, once you change the settings, your staff member login no longer inherits the settings made at the system, library, or branch level in Polaris Administration.

To change label options from Cataloging:

1. Select **Cataloging > Options** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Cataloging Options dialog box appears.

2. Select the label type from the Label Type box.

To always use this label type, select **Open Label Manager using this default**.

- 3. Select the printing method for Cataloging labels in the **Print Method** box.
 - On Demand Users must request a label for each item.
 - Quick Print Labels are printed without opening Label Manager.
 - **Batch** Multiple labels are generated when the user requests them, but they are not printed until the user opens Label Manager and prints them.
- 4. Click OK.

The Cataloging labels settings are changed for your staff member login. When you log in to Polaris, labels will be generated and printed according to the settings you made.

Print Spine and Pocket Labels from an Item Record

To print a spine or pocket label:

Tip:

If you are printing labels for multiple items using label sheets, set the

profile **Labels: Cataloging print method** to **Batch**. See <u>Change label</u> options from Cataloging.

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Complete the item record information required for your labels.
- 3. Select File, Label Request, and select one of the following options:
 - Single Label or click 🗾 Print a single label (typical).
 - **Multi-Label** or click Print multiple labels (this option is used when cataloging item sets such as encyclopedias). See <u>Create multiple copies of a</u> label.

If the printing method for cataloging labels is set to **On Demand**, the Label Manager appears with the labels you requested.

If the printing method is set to **Batch**, the Label Manager does not automatically appear. Continue cataloging items, and select **Utilities** > **Label Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar when you want to print all the labels.

Note:

You cannot generate more than 500 labels at a time in Label Manager.

- 4. To make changes to the label, see Edit labels.
- 5. If Label Manager is open, select File > Exit to close it.

Related Information

- Editing labels See Edit labels.
- Setting Polaris Administration profiles for labels Search the Polaris help for "Set label profiles in Polaris Administration."
- Configuring labels See Set up existing label types.
- Specifying content for labels See <u>Define the label content</u>.

Print Labels from Find Tool, Record Sets, or List Boxes

To print labels from the Find Tool, an item record set, or an item record list box:

- 1. Select the item or items in the Find Tool results list, an item record list box, or an item record set.
- 2. Right-click, and select **Print > Labels**.

Tip:

You can select **Quick Print** as the print method in the Cataloging Options dialog box to print all the labels without opening the Label Manager. See Change label options from Cataloging.

The Label Manager appears.

3. Select **File > Print** from the Polaris Label Manager menu.

Edit Labels

To edit an existing label:

Note:

If the profile **Labels: Cataloging Print Method** is set to **Quick Print**, the label is printed without opening Label Manager.

Tip:

To modify a label type so that it has the same characteristics each time you use it, select **Tools > Label Settings and Content** and change the label configuration. See <u>Configuring Existing Label Types</u>.

- 1. Access the Label Manager:
 - From the Polaris Shortcut Bar, select **Utilities** > **Label Manager**.
 - In Cataloging, from the Item Record workform, select File > Label Request >

Single, or click **B**. The Label Manager appears if you have the profile **Labels: Cataloging Print Method** set to **On Demand** in Polaris Administration.

• In Serials, from the Issue, Part, or Check In workform, select File > Label

Request > **Single**, or click **I**. The Label Manager appears if you have the profile **Labels: Serials Print Method** set to **On Demand**.

Note:

If you are requesting labels from a serial or item record, and the print method is set to **Batch**, go to **Utilities** > **Label Manager** to see the labels you created.

The Label Manager opens with the most recently generated label request displayed.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Tip: You can also type text directly into the label.

2. Select the label you want to modify and right-click.

The context menu appears.

Fict, Ste c.63			
Steinback, John, 1902-1968.	Copy Paste		
	Delete Insert Before Insert After		
	Font Character Map		

- 3. Select from the following options on the context menu:
 - **Copy** Select the text that you want to copy. The selected text is copied to the clipboard, and you can paste it into another label.
 - **Paste** If you have copied text to the clipboard, you can paste it into the label.
 - Delete Select the text and select Delete.
 - Insert Before To insert labels before the label you selected, type the number of labels in the Insert Blank Label box.
 - Insert After To insert labels after the label you selected, type the number of labels in the Insert Blank Label box.
 - Font The Font dialog box appears. You can change the font size, font family, and font characteristics. This changes the font for the label where the cursor is located.

Tip:

To change the font for all the labels, go to the **Tools** > **Label Settings and Content** to open the Label Configuration dialog box. Then locate the type of label, change the font for the type of label you are using and save. Then click refresh the labels. Different fonts can be used on individual labels within a label set.

- **Character Map** The Character Map dialog box appears. Use the Character Map dialog box to insert special characters into the label. See <u>Insert diacritics or special characters into a label</u>.
- 4. Select **File > Save**, press **CTRL+S**, or click the Save button to save your changes.

Insert Diacritics or Special Characters into a Label

If diacritics or special characters are included in the MARC record in fields that are printed on the label, for example in the **Title** or **Author** fields, they appear in the label. It is not necessary to add the characters in the label unless they are not part of the MARC record.

Tip:

For information on using an international keyboard to enter diacritics or special characters, see Enter diacritics/characters using an IME keyboard.

To insert diacritics or special characters into a label in the Label Manager:

1. Right-click in a label in the Label Manager, and select **Character Map** from the context menu.

The Character Picker dialog box appears.

2. Follow the steps in Choose characters/diacritics from a chart.

Create Multiple Copies of a Label

You can create multiple labels from a single basic label when you have several volumes in a set (such as an encyclopedia) that have the same call number.

To create multiple copies of a label:

- 1. Open the Item Record workform.
- 2. Select File > Label Request > Multi-Label or click .

The Insert Multiple Labels dialog box appears.

3. Type a number in the Number of labels to insert box and click OK.

The Label Manager appears.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

- 4. To preview the layout of the labels, select **File > Print Preview**.
- 5. To edit the labels, see Edit labels.
- 6. Select **File > Print** or click the Print button to print the labels.

Save a Label File

You can save a label file in a .dat file format, and reopen the file at another time. To save a label file:

- 1. Select **Utilities > Label Manager** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, and set up labels.
- 2. Select **File > Save As**.

The Save As dialog box appears.

3. Specify the location for the label file, and type the label file name in the **File name** box.

The label file is saved, and you can open it to use it again.

Note:

To open the saved label file, open Label Manager, select **File > Open** from the Label Manager menu, locate the label file with the .dat extension, and double-click it. The labels appear in Label Manager.

Working with Multiple Cataloging Records

Record sets group related cataloging records together for a particular purpose, but they do not actually contain the records. Since a record set merely points to the records within it, removing a record from a record set does not delete the record itself.

You can create record sets for bibliographic, authority, or item records, but you cannot mix record types in the same record set. Grouping cataloging records in record sets makes it easier to retrieve records, apply changes to multiple records (bulk change), or add multiple titles to a purchase order.

Record sets can also help you maintain your catalog. For example, you can gather all unlinked bibliographic or authority records into a record set, and then delete them or do other processing.

In addition, you can create record sets to group titles together and make them readily accessible in the PAC. One method is to publish the URL to the record set on the Polaris PowerPAC portal page, a page dashboard, or a Web site page. Another method is to use record sets to create visual representations of titles in a "content carousel" that displays on the PowerPAC portal page or a Community Profile page (if your library has Polaris Community Profiles). See <u>Create a URL link to a record set in the PAC</u>.

If you want to make changes to multiple bibliographic or item records at once, you can gather the records into a record set and then change them using the Bulk Change dialog box. You can also make bulk changes to multiple item records by selecting the item records in lists, such as Find Tool results or linked list boxes and selecting the **Ad hoc Bulk Change** option from the right-click menu.

See also:

- Using Cataloging Record Sets
- Bulk-Changing Bibliographic Records
- Bulk-Changing Item Records

Using Cataloging Record Sets

You can create item, bibliographic or authority record sets using various methods, such as: adding cataloging records from Find Tool results; creating record sets of linked records from another cataloging record set; sending imported records directly to a record set; and creating record sets of unlinked records. For more information, search Polaris help for "Creating and Using Record Sets."

Note:

If you are using Polaris Inventory Manager (PIM), you can automatically create record sets of items for weeding or other processing. If you are using SimplyReports, you can automatically create record sets of bibliographic, item, or authority records.

Tip:

The icon $\boxed{\checkmark}$ next to an authority record listed in a record set indicates that the authority record is not linked to any other record.

After cataloging record sets are created, you can use them to maintain and update cataloging records by bulk changing item or bibliographic records; deleting unlinked records; processing imported records; and grouping records for retrieval and review.

Cataloging record sets can also be used to make certain titles readily accessible in Polaris PowerPAC by publishing a URL link to the record set that patrons click to see the titles, or displaying a "content carousel" of titles. See <u>Create a URL link to a record set in the PAC</u>.

See also:

- Open an existing cataloging record set
- <u>Create an item record set from bib record set</u>
- <u>Create a bib record set from an item record set</u>
- <u>Create a bib record set from an authority record set</u>
- <u>Create an authority record set from a bib record set</u>
- <u>Retrieve records using a record set</u>
- Print a list of cataloging records from a record set
- Display record set titles in PAC content carousels
- Display record set titles in Community content carousels
- Bulk-Changing Bibliographic Records
- Bulk-Changing Item Records

Open an existing cataloging record set

Do one of the following actions to open an existing cataloging record set:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

- Select Cataloging > Record Sets from the Polaris Shortcut Bar, and use the Polaris Find Tool to search for and open an existing record set. You can limit the search by Name, Owner, or Type.
- Right-click a cataloging record in the Find Tool's results list, and select Links > **Record sets** from the context menu (the record must be in a record set).
- Select Links > Existing > Record Sets from a cataloging record workform. If the record belongs to a record set, the record set opens. If the record belongs to more than one record set, a list of the record sets appears. Select a record set in the list.

The record set workform appears for the record set you selected.

Create an Item Record Set from Bib Record Set

To create a record set of the linked item records from a bibliographic record set:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.
- 2. Select **Tools** > **Create Item Record Set**, click , or press **Ctrl+T**.

The Item Record Set Setup dialog box appears.

3. Type a name for the item record set in the **Name** box, select a different record set owner in the **Owner** box to change it, and click **OK**.

The Item Record Set workform appears with the name and creation date/time in the **Name** box, and the name of the bibliographic record set from which it was created in the **Note** box.

Create a bib record set from an item record set

To create a record set of the linked bibs from an item record set:

- 1. Open the Item Record Set workform.
- 2. Select Tools > Create Bibliographic Record Set, click , or press Ctrl+T.

The Bibliographic Record Set Setup dialog box appears.

3. Type a name for the bibliographic record set in the **Name** box, select a different record set owner in the **Owner** box to change it, and click **OK**.

The Bibliographic Record Set workform appears with the name and creation date/time in the **Name** box, and the name of the item record set from which it was created in the **Note** box.

Create a Bib Record Set from an Authority Record Set

To create a record set of the linked bibliographic records from an authority record set:

- 1. Open the Authority Record Set workform.
- 2. Select Tools > Create Bibliographic Record Set.

The Bibliographic Record Set Setup dialog box appears.

3. Type a name for the bibliographic record set in the **Name** box, select a different record set owner in the **Owner** box if you want to change the owner, and click **OK**.

The Bibliographic Record Set workform appears with the name and creation date/time in the **Name** box, and the name of the authority record set from which it was created in the **Note** box.

Create an Authority Record Set from a Bib Record Set

To create a record set of the linked authority records from a bibliographic record set:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.
- 2. Select **Tools > Create Authority Record Set**.

The Authority Record Set Setup dialog box appears.

3. Type a name for the authority record set in the **Name** box, select a different record set owner in the **Owner** box if you want to change the owner, and click **OK**.

The Authority Record Set workform appears with the name and creation date/time in the **Name** box, and the name of the bibliographic record set from which it was created in the **Note** box.

Add Records to a Record Set

You can add bibliographic records, item records, or patron records to a record set by searching for the records or by scanning item or patron barcodes. For patron record sets only, you can select an Excel file to populate the record set. No data is imported from the Excel file; if the patron ID in the file matches an existing patron record in the Polaris database, the record is added to the record set.

To add records to a new or existing record set:

Note:

You can use the Find Tool to search for an existing record set by the record set name, owner, or creation date. See <u>Doing a Basic Search</u>.

- 1. Open the Record Set workform for a new or existing record set.
- 2. Use one of the following methods to add the records:
- Search for the records to add Select Tools > Add, press CTRL+E, or click The Polaris Find Tool appears. Search for the record, and select it from the results list.

Note:

Scanning a patron's barcode on the Patron Record Set workform adds the patron record to the record set, and scanning an item's barcode on the Item Record Set workform adds the item record to the record set. However, scanning an item record on the Bibliographic Record Set adds that item's linked bibliographic record to the record set.

• Use a file to add patron records. Select Tools > Add > Add from file, or click 🖃.

The Add from file dialog box opens.

- Select **Browse** to locate the Excel file containing the patron IDs for the patron records to add.
- In the **Worksheet/Column containing Polaris PatronID** drop-down list box, select the location of the PatronID in the Excel file.
- Click **Add** to add the records to the record set. For information on using this method to manage patron records that will be sent to a second collection agency, see the *Patron Services Guide*, Second Level Collection Agency Management..
- 3. Select **File** > **Save** to save the record set. After the record set is saved, the **Number of records** box displays the current number of records in the record set.

Retrieve Records Using a Record Set

When you group records in a record set, you can easily retrieve the records for further review. You might want to create a record set of provisional records when importing and

then make the necessary changes to each record. For more information on creating records sets while importing, see <u>Set import options for record sets</u>.

To retrieve records from a record set:

1. Select **Cataloging** > **Record Sets** from the Polaris Shortcut bar.

The Polaris Find Tool appears with **Record Sets** selected in the **Objects** box.

Tip:

You can also search for a record set by owner.

- 2. Select an option in the **Search by** box.
- 3. To sort the results, select a **Sort by** option.
- 4. To limit the results, select a **Limit by** option and enter a value.
- 5. Type the search term in the **For** box.
- 6. Click Search.

The record sets that meet your search criteria appear in the results list.

7. Double-click the record set you want to open.

The record set appears in the Record Set workform.

8. Double-click any record listed in the Record Set workform.

The record appears in the appropriate workform.

Print a List of Cataloging Records from a Record Set

Tips:

You can also select a single record, right-click and print it. If you select an item record that has child records, or is a child record linked to a parent record, you can print its associated records. You can also print item labels from an item record set. If the item is linked to a serial issue on a route list, you can print the routing slip from the record set.

To print a list of records from a record set:

1. Open the item, bibliographic, or authority record set.

Note:

You can sort the records by clicking on the record set column headings. The record set will be printed in the order in which it was sorted.
- 2. To print a list of all the records in the record set, do one of the following steps:
 - Select File > Print > Record Set from the record set workform menu.
 - Select File > Print > List view from the record set workform menu.
 - Right-click in the list of records, and select **Print > List view**.

Note:

If you select **Record Set**, the record set appears in a Adobe pdf preview window, and you select **File** > **Print** to print the pdf. You can select specific pages to print. If you select **List view**, the Print dialog box appears without the preview window.

- 3. To print from a bibliographic record set, do the following:
 - a. Select **Edit** > **Select All** or press **Ctrl+A** to select all the records in the list, or select specific records. The records you selected are highlighted.
 - b. Right-click in the list of highlighted records, and select one of the following options:
 - Bibliographic Full
 - Bibliographic Brief
 - Chicago Manual of Style
 - American Psychological Assoc.

Important:

When you format the list in a bibliographic style, check the formatting requirements of the school, college or journal for which you are creating the bibliography.

An Adobe pdf viewer window appears with the records in the format you selected.

4. Select **File > Print** from the Adobe pdf viewer to print the record list.

Create a URL Link to a Record Set in the PAC

You can create record sets and then make the titles readily accessible in Polaris PowerPAC using several methods. One method is to create a URL link to the record set and publish it as a Web part in Polaris PowerPAC.

Tip:

To find a record set that appears in Polaris PowerPAC, select it to display the URL in the top of the PAC browser window. Then select and copy the bibliographic record set ID that appears after the equal (=) sign. For example, select **13221** in this URL: http://qa-orion/view.aspx?brs=13221. Then, search for the record set in the staff client Find Tool: select **Record set ID** in the **Search by** box, and paste the record set ID in the **For** box.

To create a URL link to a record set in the PAC:

- 1. Create the record set containing the titles you want to make available in Polaris PowerPAC.
- 2. Define a URL link to the record set that references the record set(s) by control number or by name.

Examples:

(single record set by number) http://{PowerPACURL}/view.aspx?brs=1234 (multiple record sets by number) http:// {PowerPACURL}/view.aspx?brs=1234,12345,123456 (single record set by name) http:// {PowerPACURL}/view.aspx?brsn='bibrecordsetname' (multiple record sets by name) http:// {PowerPACURL}/view.aspx?brs='TotSummer','TeenSummer','AdultSumm er'

- 3. Create a custom web part for the record set URL.
- 4. Assign the custom web part to a specific page. See the *Public Access Administration Guide*, Defining Web Parts for Dashboards Overview.

Display Record Set Titles in PAC Content Carousels

You can publish content in Polaris PowerPAC using visual representations of titles or "content carousels" on the portal page. And, if your library has Polaris Community Profiles, you can display content carousels in community records in Polaris PowerPAC.

To display record set titles in PAC content carousels:

1. Create the record set containing the titles you want to include in the content carousel.

Note:

For content carousels to include cover images, enriched data options for cover images must be set in Polaris Administration. See the *Public Access Administration Guide*, Enabling Enriched Data.

2. Search for and select the record set in the **Portal page content carousels** Power-PAC profile in Polaris Administration. See the *Public Access Administration Guide*, Content Carousels on the PowerPAC Portal Page.

Display Record Set Titles in Community Content Carousels

To display record set titles in Community profile content carousels:

1. Create the record set containing the titles you want to include in the community record's content carousel.

Note:

For content carousels to include cover images, enriched data options for cover images must be set in Polaris Administration. See the *Public Access Administration Guide*, Enabling Enriched Data.

- 2. Create or open a community record in the Polaris staff client. Search the Polaris help for "Community Records in the Staff Client.".
- 3. Search for and select the record set on the Social tab of the Community Record workform.

Bulk-Changing Bibliographic Records

You can gather multiple bibliographic records in a record set and simultaneously change specific data in all the bibliographic records in the record set using the Bulk Change process. The changes to the records are made via a Bulk Change job, and you can check the status of the job in the Bulk Change Job Queue. When the job is completed, you can run a report that displays the start and end time of the bulk change job, the number of records that were changed, and any exceptions where records could not be changed.

Use the bulk change process to change the following information in multiple bibliographic records at once:

Tip:

You must have the permission **Access bibliographic bulk change: Allow** to do any bulk changes of bibliographic records. To bulk change values in the LDR, 006, 007, 008 (control fields), you must have the additional permission **Access bibliographic fixed fields bulk change: Allow**.

- Non-MARC data Change the indicator in the bibliographic records so that all the records display (or do not display) in the PAC. You can also change the owner of the records from one owner to another or change provisional records to final. The option to create resource entities is used only for linking ebook bibs to vendor accounts.
- Data Fields Insert or delete tags, subfields, and indicators. You can change, insert or delete specific values in tags, subfields, and indicators. You can also check and correct non-filing indicator values.
- Leader Change values in the Leader for all the records in the record set. If the Leader/06 is changed, a message warns the user to make appropriate changes to the 008 tag.
- 006 Tag Change the 006 tag (material characteristics). The code in the 006/00 (form of material) determines the data elements you can define for subsequent character positions. In addition, the codes in field 006/00 correspond to those in Leader 06 (type of record). You can change, insert, and delete values in the 006 tag.
- 007 Tag (1) and 007 Tag (2) Change the 007 tag (the physical description). The codes in the 007 tag are defined by position, and the number of character positions depends on the code contained in 007/00. You can insert, delete, and create tags and change the category of material. You can also change a value to another value.
- 008 Tag Change the 008 tag that provides coded information about the record as a whole as well as special bibliographic aspects of the item, such as the target audience.

Records are skipped when they do not contain the criteria specified for the bulk change. Records that contain the criteria specified for the bulk change, but cannot be changed for other reasons, are added to a cleanup record set. To bulk change the selected bibliographic records, you must have access and modify permissions for each of the bibliographic records in addition to the permission to perform the bulk change process.

You cannot use bulk change to modify values in the following fields:

- Polaris record status
- Bibliographic control number (001)
- Standard numbers used in deduplication routines (010\$a, 020\$a, 022\$a, 024\$a, 028\$a, 035\$a, 037\$a).

- LDR values in positions other than 05, 06, 07, 08, 09, 17, 18, 19 (the values in these positions can be changed). You cannot change the Leader/05 to a value of "d".
- 008, positions 008/7-10 (beginning date of publication) because it is used in deduplication routines.

When you change a field that is under authority control and the change invalidates the existing link, the link to that authority record is broken, and a background process attempts to re-link and re-index the record. If the change is made to a field subject to authority control, but the change does not invalidate the link, the link is not broken. The most efficient way to make changes for subfields in fields under authority control is to change the authority record. Then the changes filter down to the linked bibliographic records. See Edit authority records and update linked records.

See also:

- Bulk change non-MARC data in bibliographic records
- Bulk change data fields in bibliographic records
- Bulk change the Leader in bibliographic records
- Bulk change the 006 tag in bibliographic records
- Bulk change the 007 tag in bibliographic records
- Bulk change the 008 tag in bibliographic records
- Check the bulk change queue and run the report

Bulk Change Non-MARC Data in Bibliographic Records

Tip:

The records you want to bulk change must be in a record set.

To change non-MARC data in multiple bibliographic records:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.

Tip: U Click to open the Bulk Change dialog box, or press **CTRL+B**.

2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.

The Bibliographic Bulk Change dialog box appears with the non-MARC tabbed page displayed.

3. Choose from the following options:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Tip:

If the Cataloging parameter **Bibliographic record Do not overlay feature enabled** parameter is set to **No**, the **Do not overlay** check box does not appear on the Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box. See the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Enable the Do not overlay feature.

- To display (or not display) the records in the PAC, select **Display in PAC**, and select **On** or **Off**.
- To change the setting that specifies whether the bibliographic records can be overlaid, select **Do not overlay**, and select **On** or **Off**.
- To change the owner of the records, select **Record owner**, select the current owner in the **From** box, and select the new owner in the **To** box.
- To change provisional bibliographic records to final records, select **Save provisional records as final**.
- To create resource entities to manage electronic resources, select **Create resource entities**, and select the vendor account.
- 4. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

5. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. See Check the bulk change queue and run the report.

Bulk Change Data Fields in Bibliographic Records

You can make the following types of bulk changes to data fields in bibliographic records:

Note:

The following tags/subfields cannot be modified or deleted because they are used in duplicate detection: 10\$a, 20\$a, 22\$a, 24\$a, 28\$a, 35\$a, and 37\$a.

- Insert a new tag
- Insert a subfield in a tag in any location within that tag, or insert a subfield before or after a specific subfield
- Delete the first instance of a tag, the last instance of a tag, or all instances of a tag

- Delete a subfield with any data, with specific data, or delete the last instance of the subfield
- Change a specific tag's subfield code without changing the data in the subfield
- Replace a tag's subfield data with specific data
- Change a tag's indicator only
- Correct non-filing indicators

To bulk change data fields in multiple bibliographic records:

Note:

To bulk change bibliographic records, they must be in a record set, and you must have the necessary permissions to modify each bibliographic record in the record set.

1. Open the record set that contains the bibliographic records you want to change.



- 2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.
- 3. Select the Data Fields tab.

The Data Fields tabbed page appears.

4. In the **Operation** box, select the operation you want the bulk change to perform on the data fields you specify.

Note:

The options available depend on the operation you selected. If you selected **Correct non-filing indicator values (initial articles 'a', 'an', or 'the')**, skip to step 10.

- 5. In the **Tag number** box, select the number of the tag to insert, delete, replace, or identify.
- 6. Select the first and/or second indicators in the **Indicator fields**, **One** and **Two** boxes.
- 7. Type a subfield code in the **Subfield \$** box, and type a value for the subfield in the larger box to the right of the code.

Note: You must specify at least one subfield when you are inserting a tag.

8. Enter or select other criteria depending on the option you chose. For example, if you selected **Replace a tag's subfield (with specific data)**, enter the data you want to change to in the **Change to** box.

Tip:

You can use diacritics in subfields. For example, the author's name includes diacritics, but some of your bibliographic records do not have the correct name. You can select **Replace a tag's subfield** (with specific data), type the existing author's name in the **Subfield** box and insert diacritics in the author's name in the **Change to** box by clicking on the **Diacritics** button. Select the character in the Character Picker box.

9. When you are finished specifying the changes, click **Add Change to Queue**.

The changes appear under **Bulk change queue for data fields**. You can move the changes up or down in the queue by selecting the change, and clicking the **Up** or **Down** buttons. To remove a change, select it, and click **Remove**.

10. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

11. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. See <u>Check the bulk change queue and run the report</u>.

Bulk Change the Leader in Bibliographic Records

To bulk change the Leader in multiple bibliographic records:

Note:

The records you want to bulk change must be in a record set.

1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.

Tip: United Strain Stra

- 2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.
- 3. Select the Leader tab.

The Leader tabbed page appears.

4. Select the position you want to change.

Note:

When you select the LDR/06, a message reminds you to make the appropriate changes to the 008.

The **From** and **To** boxes become active when you select the position.

5. In the **From** box, select the value to change.

Tip:

If you are correcting invalid values, you can type an invalid value for the position in the **From** box, or you can select **All invalid values** from the list. The bulk change process will replace the invalid values with the selection in the **To** box.

- 6. In the **To** box, select the value to put in the selected position.
- 7. Select any other positions you want to change in the 008 tag, and specify the **From** and **To** values.
- 8. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

9. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. See <u>Check the bulk change queue and run the report</u>.

Bulk Change the 006 Tag in Bibliographic Records

To bulk change the 006 tag in multiple bibliographic records:

Note:

You can insert or delete 006 tags, but you cannot replace an existing 006 tag. The code you specify in the Form of material position (006/00) determines the data elements you can define for subsequent character positions.

1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.



2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.

The Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box appears.

3. Select the **006 Tag** tab.

The 006 Tag tabbed page appears.

- 4. To insert or replace an entire 006 tag, select **Insert** or **Replace**, and do the following steps:
 - a. Select the form of material code in the (00) box.
 - b. Click **Define**. The appropriate dialog box appears, depending on the form of material.
 - c. Define the subsequent positions in the 006 tag by selecting the appropriate codes from the lists in the dialog box.
 - d. Click **OK** when you have finished defining the character positions. The results of your selections appear to the right of the **Define** button.
 - e. If you are inserting a new 006 tag, select **As first** if you want the tag to be the first 006 tag, or select **As last** if you want the tag to be the last 006 tag. If you are replacing a specific 006 tag, select **First** or **Last**.
- 5. To delete a specific 006 tag, select **Delete** and do the following steps:
 - a. In the (00) box, select the value that matches the 006 tag you want to delete.
 - b. Select First instance to delete only the first 006 tag that contains that value, Last instance to delete the last occurrence of the tag, or All instances to delete all 006 tags with this value.
- 6. To change a specific value in the Form of material **(00)** code in the 006 tag, do the following steps:
 - a. Select the check box that corresponds to the form of material you want to change, for example **Books**.
 - b. In the **From** box, select the value to change.
 - c. In the **To** box, select the value to put in this position
- 7. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

8. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. See <u>Check the bulk change queue and run the report</u>.

Bulk Change the 007 Tag in Bibliographic Records

To bulk change the 007 tag in multiple bibliographic records:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.

Tip: !

Click to open the Bulk Change dialog box, or press CTRL+B.

- 2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.
- 3. Select the 007 (1) or 007 (2) tab.

The 007 Tag (1) or 007 Tag (2) tabbed page appears.

- 4. To insert or replace an entire 007 tag, select **Insert** or **Replace**, and do the following steps:
 - a. Select the category of material code in the (00) box.
 - b. Click **Define**. The appropriate dialog box appears, depending on the category of material.
 - c. Define the subsequent positions in the 007 tag by selecting the appropriate codes from the lists in the dialog box.
 - d. Click **OK** when you are finished defining the character positions. The Insert/Replace dialog box closes, and the results of your selections appear to the right of the **Define** button on the Bulk Change dialog box.
 - e. If you are inserting a new 007 tag, select **As first** if you want the tag to be the first 007 tag, or select **As last** if you want the tag to be the last 007 tag. If you are replacing a specific 007 tag, select **First** or **Last**.
- 5. To delete a specific 007 tag, select **Delete** on the Bibliographic Bulk Change dialog box, and do the following steps:
 - a. In the (00) box, select the value that matches the 007 tag you want to delete.
 - b. Select First instance to delete only the first 007 tag that contains that value, Last instance to delete the last occurrence of the tag, or All instances to delete all 007 tags with this value.
- 6. To change a specific value in the Category of material **(00)** code in the 007 tag, select the **007 Tag 1** or **007 Tag 2** tab on the Bibliographic Bulk Change dialog

box, and do the following steps:

- a. Select the check box that corresponds to the category of material you want to change, for example **Video recording** (007 Tag 2 tab).
- b. Click the **From** button. A dialog box appears with the values for that category of material.
- c. Select the value you want to change, and click **Ok**. The Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box displays the value you selected in the **From** box.
- d. Click the **To** button. A dialog box appears.
- e. Select the value to put in this position, and click **OK**.

The Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box displays the from and to selections.

7. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

8. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. See Check the bulk change queue and run the report.

Bulk Change the 008 Tag in Bibliographic Records

To bulk change the 008 tag in multiple bibliographic records:

1. Open the Bibliographic Record Set workform.

Tip: 📒

Click to open the Bulk Change dialog box, or press CTRL+B.

- 2. Select Tools > Bulk Change.
- 3. Select the **008 Tag** tab.

The 008 Tag tabbed page appears.

- 4. Select the check box that corresponds to the 008 tag you want to change.
- 5. Click **From**.

The Bulk Change 008 - (From) box appears based on the check box you selected.

6. Select the positions you want to change in the 008 tag of all records in the record set.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

- 7. Click **OK** to return to the Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box.
- 8. Click **To**.

The Bulk Change 008 -- To dialog box appears based on selections you made in the Bulk Change 008 -- From dialog box. For example, if you specified a change to the Language (35-37), you can select only the Language in the Bulk Change 008 -- From dialog box. If there were multiple selections in the **From** box, you can select multiple values for the **To** box.

- 9. Click **OK** to return to the Bibliographic Record Bulk Change dialog box.
- 10. Click **OK** to initiate the bulk change process, or click another tab to make other changes to the records.

If you click **OK**, the Summary of Changes dialog box appears.

11. Click **Continue** on the Summary of Changes dialog box to continue with the bulk change. A message tells you the change was added to the bulk change queue. See <u>Check the bulk change queue and run the report</u>.

Check the Bulk Change Queue and Run the Report

After you submit the bulk change, you can confirm that it was processed, and you can run a report. To open the bibliographic bulk change queue and run the report:

1. Select Utilities > Cataloging Processing > Bibliographic Bulk Change Queue.

The Bibliographic Bulk Change Job Queue dialog box appears.

Tip:

To delete a pending or completed bulk change job, select it and click **Delete**. When a job is running, you cannot cancel or delete it. If you delete a pending job, the bulk changes are not processed. After a job is deleted, you cannot run reports on that bulk change job.

2. Select **File > View**, or click **Report** to run the report.

The Bibliographic Bulk Change Report appears in the preview window.

Bulk-Changing Item Records

To make bulk changes to multiple item records at once, you can either gather the records in a record set and select **Tools** > **Bulk Change**, or you can select multiple items from anywhere in Polaris where items are displayed in a list, right-click and select the **Ad**

hoc Bulk Change option. For example, you can select multiple items in the Find Tool results list, right-click and select **Ad hoc Bulk Change** to open the Item Record Bulk Change box.

You can also save and reuse item record bulk change settings as Item Record Bulk Change Templates. This option requires the appropriate permissions. See <u>Item Record</u> <u>Bulk Change Templates</u>.

Note:

For more information on using cataloging record sets, see <u>Using</u> <u>Cataloging Record Sets</u>.

With these methods, you can change the location, circulation information, bibliographic information, notes, and other information for multiple item records using the check boxes and free-text fields in the Bulk Change Item Record dialog box. When you are changing notes or other free-text fields, you can replace the text, add to the end of the text, or add to the beginning of the text.

Certain circulation statuses cannot be modified using bulk change because of the effects these changes might have in other records and processes. For example, you cannot use bulk change to change the circulation status of **Out** to **In** because some of the items might fill a hold request or be overdue. If an item with holds changed from **Out** to **In**, the patron record and the hold request record would need to be updated and notification sent. Any fines would need to be resolved and the item might need to go intransit. In addition, in-transit slips, hold slips and fine receipts might need to be generated. The following table lists the circulation statuses that can be changed using bulk change.

From Circulation Status	To Circulation Status
	In
	In Repair
Bindery	Missing
	Unavailable
	Withdrawn

From Circulation Status	To Circulation Status
	Bindery
	In Repair
In	Missing
	Unavailable
	Withdrawn
	Bindery
	In
In Drossoo	In Repair
III-PIOCess	Missing
	Unavailable
	Withdrawn
	Bindery
	In
In Repair	Missing
	Unavailable
	Withdrawn
	Bindery
Missing	In
IVIISSIIIY	Unavailable
	Withdrawn

From Circulation Status	To Circulation Status
	Bindery
	In
Unavailable	In Repair
	Missing
	Withdrawn

To bulk change item records:

Note:

To bulk change item records, you need the **Access item record bulk change: Allow** permission set at the System level, and the **Item record: Bulk change** permission for each item's owning branch.

- 1. Select the item records to change, and open the Bulk Change dialog box using one of the following methods:
 - If the items are in a list, such as the Find Tool results list, a linked list box, or the Bibliographic Record Preview window, select the records, right-click and select **Ad hoc bulk change**.
 - If the items are in a record set, open the record set, and select **Tools, Bulk**

Change, press **CTRL+B**, or click to select all the item records in the record set, or select multiple records, right-click and select **Ad hoc bulk change** from the right-click menu.

The Item Record Bulk Change dialog box appears.

- 2. Select one of the following tabs to change fields for all the item records in the record set or for all the items selected in the linked list box:
 - Location Use this tab to change the item records' location information.
 - To change the items' location information, select the Owner, Assigned branch, Assigned collection, Shelf location, or Home branch box, and select a corresponding value from the list.

- To enter a temporary location for the items, select Temporary location, and type the location. If you leave the text field blank, the Temporary location will be blank in all the item records in the record set.
- Circulation Use this tab to change the item records' circulation information.
 - To change basic circulation information, select the Circulation status, Material type, Loan period code, Fine code, Statistical code, or Renewal limit box and select a corresponding value from the list.
 - To allow or disallow holds on the items, select the Holdable box. Then, select the check box to allow holds on the items, or leave the check box blank to prevent holds on the items.
 - To change hold limits, select the Holdable box and select the check box to allow holds. Then, select one of the hold limit settings, and select the check box to the right of the setting to limit the holds, or leave the right check box empty to deselect the limit.

Example:

To allow all items in the record set to be held and then picked up at any library, select the **Holdable** check box, select **Pickup at this branch**, but leave the check box to the right empty. This will clear the **Pickup at this branch** setting for all items in the record set that have this limit setting selected.

- To change the Non circulating setting for all item records, select the Non circulating box, and either select the check box to the right or leave it blank. If you select the check box, all the items in the record set will not circulate. If you leave the check box blank, all the items will have the Non circulating check box unchecked, allowing them to circulate.
- To change the **Do not float** setting for all item records, select the **Do not float** box, and either select the check box to the right or leave it blank. If you select the check box, all the items in the record set will not float to other branches' collections. If you leave the check box blank, the items are eligible to float to other branches' collections.
- To change the **Do not mail to patrons** setting for all item records, select the **Do not mail to patrons** box, and either

select the check box to the right or leave it blank. If you select the check box, all items in the record set will not be mailed to patrons. If you leave the check box blank, the items can be mailed to patrons.

- To change the Loanable outside the system setting for all items in the record set, select the Loanable outside the system box, and either select the check box to the right, or leave it blank. If you select the check box, the items can be loaned outside the system. If you leave the check box blank, the items cannot be loaned outside the system.
- **Call Number** Use this tab to change the item records' call number information, or to assign call numbers to the item records.

Tip:

If you select **Use call number fields from bib record** and also enter a new bib control number on the Misc tab, the call number is taken from the new bibliographic record.

- To assign or change call numbers by taking the call number from each item's linked bibliographic record, select Use call number fields from bib record. To use this option, the Polaris Administration profile Bring call number fields from bib to item record when link is made must be set to Yes. If it is set to No, the check box is disabled.
 - If the Use call number fields from bib record box is selected, the call number fields are copied subfield-by-subfield. If the bib-liographic record has the subfield, it is copied to the item record. If the bibliographic record does not have the call number subfield, the field does not change in the linked item record.
 - If the shelving scheme is left blank in the dialog box, the shelving scheme from the item record is used to determine the tags and subfields to copy from the bibliographic record. This allows the bulk change process to copy the call number information from linked bibliographic records even when the items have different shelving schemes.
- To change the shelving scheme for all the items in the record set, select **Shelving scheme**, and select a value from the list.

Note:

If you enter a shelving scheme and the **Use call number fields** from bib record box is also selected, the shelving scheme is copied to the item records unless there are no tags in the item's linked bibliographic record that are consistent with the shelving scheme in the dialog box. In this case, neither the call number nor the shelving scheme are changed, and the following error message appears on the report: **No call number for the selected shelving scheme was found in bib record.**

 To change the call number information for all the items in the record set (without copying from the linked bibliographic record), select Call number prefix, Classification number, Cutter number, or Call number suffix, and type a value in the corresponding box.

Tip:

If the **Use call number fields from bibliographic record** box is selected, you cannot select the check boxes for any of the six call number fields (prefix, class, cutter, suffix, volume, copy).

- To change the volume or copy number for all the items in the record set, select Volume number or Copy number, and type a value in the corresponding box.
- Notes/Blocks Use this tab to change the item records' notes and blocks.
 - To change the notes information for all item records in the record set, select **Public note**, **Non-public note**, or **Physical condition**, and type the text in the box to the right of the note you selected. Then, select **Replace** to replace any existing notes with the note you typed, **Prepend** to add the notes to the beginning of any existing notes, or **Append** to add the notes to the end of any existing notes.
 - To change a library-assigned block, select the **Library assigned** check box, and select a value from the list box to the right.
 - To change a free-text block, select the Free text block check box, and type the text for the free-text block you want to add. Then, select Replace to replace the text for any free-text blocks, Prepend to add the text to the begin-

ning of any existing free-text blocks, or **Append** to add the text to the end of any existing free-text blocks.

- **Misc** Use this tab to change miscellaneous information on the item records, or to assign barcodes to items that do not have a barcode.
 - To change the bibliographic control number for all item records, select **Bib** control no. Then, if you know the bibliographic control number, enter it in the box and press **Tab**, or click **Find**, and search for the bibliographic record. All item records in the record set will be linked to this bibliographic record.
 - To change the Display in PAC setting for all item records in the record set, select the Display in PAC box, and select the check box to the right, or leave it blank. If you select the check box, all the item records will have the Display in PAC setting checked, which means they will all display in the PAC. If you leave the check box blank, all the item records will have the Display in PAC setting unchecked, which means none of the items will display in the PAC.
 - To change the parent item for all the records in the record set, select Parent item, and type a value in the box to the right. If you leave the text field blank, the Parent item field will be blank in all the item records in the record set.
 - To change the funding source for all the item records in the record set, select Funding source, and type a value. If you leave the text field blank, the Funding source field will be blank in all items in the record set.
 - To change the price of all the items, select **Price** and type the price. If you leave the text field blank, the **Price** field will be blank in all the items in the record set.
 - To assign barcodes to all the items that do not have barcodes, enter the barcode range by selecting the Use system assigned barcodes box, or by scanning (or typing) the barcodes into the Item barcode(s) box. The number of barcodes is displayed in the Barcode total box.

Tip:

If an item already has a barcode, it is not changed.

Note:

If you selected **Use system assigned barcodes**, enter the following information on the Item barcode range dialog box: select the barcode type, type the beginning and ending barcodes, and specify the next barcode to be assigned.

- Barcodes are automatically assigned to the item records in the order in which they are sorted in the linked item list box, or in the order in which they appear in the record set. If all the records have not been loaded into the record set at the time the bulk change is launched, the items are processed in item record control number order.
- If a duplicate barcode is encountered, the process skips that barcode and goes to the next one. If there are not enough barcodes, a message appears on the error report: No barcode was assigned because not enough barcodes were specified in the range.

Note:

You can skip the next step if you do not want to create a record set of the items that did not get changed or rename the report. If you do not enter a report name, a default report name is used: ItemBulkChange__ with a 16-character representation of the current date/time.

- 3. Click **Report/Record Set** tab to specify the bulk change report and error record set as follows:
 - If you want to change the default report name, type the location and file name, or click **Browse** to locate the file. The report also shows errors for items that could not be bulk changed either due to their status or lack of permissions. See <u>Bulk Change Report Details</u>.
 - To create a record set of the items for which the changes could not be made, select the box under Error Record Set, type a name for the record set in the Name box and select an owner in the Owner box.

Note:

An error record set is not required. However, specifying an error record set makes it easier to locate the item records that have errors. If no errors are found, no error record set is created.

4. Click **OK** or press **Enter** to start the bulk change process.

The Summary of Changes message box displays the following details:

- The number of item records to be changed
- The name and owner of the record set that contains the item records being changed
- The error record set name and owner, if the error record set is requested
- The path and file name specified for the bulk change report
- A summary of all the fields to be changed and their new values

Tip:

To return to the Item Record Bulk Change dialog box to change any of your settings, click **Cancel**.

5. Click **Continue**.

The bulk change process applies the changes to the item records.

A message informs you when the bulk change process is finished and indicates if there were errors.

6. Click **OK** to close the message box.

After the bulk change process, the list display is updated as follows, depending on whether changed the items from a record set or from a list:

- Record set The record set workform is refreshed and sorted by the default sort order. You can re-sort the list in barcode order.
- Item list using Ad hoc Bulk Change The list view is refreshed immediately after the Ad hoc Bulk Change and any changes to fields that display in the list view are you can see the results of the bulk change to fields that display in the list view. If the bib control number was changed, the new title displays in the list view.

Bulk Change Report Details

The default name of the bulk change report is **ItemBulkChange** with a 16-character representation of the current date and time. It shows the total number of records in the record set, the number of records that were changed, and the number of records that were not changed. Below the statistics are details about the records that could not be changed and the reason they were not changed. It also shows warning messages for item records when the assigned and home branches are different, and item records that will not display in the PAC.

If you have attempted to assign barcodes in the Item Bulk Change dialog, and barcodes could not be assigned for any or all of the items, the summary information displays the number of items for which barcodes could not be created and the reason:

Example: (Barcodes not assigned

Number of barcodes not assigned because of detected duplicates: Number of barcodes not assigned because of incorrect format: Number of items not assigned a barcode because not enough barcodes specified:

Number of items not assigned a barcode because item already had a barcode:

The detailed section lists each item for which barcodes could not be assigned and the reason.

The following are examples of errors where items could not be changed because the circulation status prevented the change, or the user lacked permissions:

Example: (Lack of permissions)

BULK CHANGE REPORT 5/9/2011 1:56:17 PM Filename: C:\Documents and Settings\User 1\Desktop\BulkChangePer.txt **GENERAL INFORMATION** User name: User 1 Processed record set name: bulk change permission testing Processed record set owner: User 1 Error record set name: BulkChangePermissionTestOne Error record set owner: User 1 SUMMARY OF CHANGES: **Display in PAC: No** STATISTICS: Processing time: 00 hours 00 minutes 02 seconds Number of items in record set: 40 Number of items changed: 38 Number of errors: 2 Number of items unchanged due to 'lack of permission' error: 2

ERROR DETAILS:

Item Record: 1895964 Barcode number: 0003500045236 Title: A new guide to better fishing: over 200 fishing techniques that will help you catch more fish, more often Reason(s) for error: User does not have permission to bulk change item records owned by 'Cambridge Public Library'

Item Record: 1982897 Barcode number: 0004100044306 Title: Magic and the night river Reason(s) for error: User does not have permission to bulk change item records owned by 'Green Library'

Example: (Item's status prevents the change)

BULK CHANGE REPORT 5/10/2011 11:29:33 AM Filename: C:\Users\Peer\Desktop\POLARIS 4.x PROJECT LIST\ItemBulkChangeReport_20090710112504.txt **GENERAL INFORMATION:** User name: peer Processed record set name: Bulk change Processed record set owner: peer Error record set name: Error record set owner: SUMMARY OF CHANGES: Circulation status: In STATISTICS: Processing time: 00 hours 00 minutes 01 seconds Number of items in record set: 27 Number of items changed: 24 Number of errors: 3 ERROR DETAILS:

Item Record: 1641186

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Barcode number: 0001900246677 Title: 1 2 3 Reason(s) for error: Circulation status change violation: Status was 'Lost'

Item Record: 1622822 Barcode number: 0001900024157 Title: 10 lb. penalty Reason(s) for error: Circulation status change violation: Status was 'Out'

Item Record: 1621873 Barcode number: 0001900011196 Title: 1 Ragged Ridge Road Reason(s) for error: Circulation status change violation: Status was 'Withdrawn'

Item Record Bulk Change Templates

You can save and reuse item record bulk change settings as Item Record Bulk Change Templates. This option requires the appropriate permissions.

Create an Item Record Bulk Change Template

You can use an entire record set or a selection of items to create a template.

- 1. Open an existing record set or create a new one.
- 2. Use the entire record set or select items from it.

		_			R	ecord S	et 86475	- Po	laris			-	. 🗖	x
File E	dit View	Tools He	lp											
	<mark>ے ر</mark>	Add				÷	F 🕢							
	📂 🖥	Remo	ve			Ctrl+R	FR							
		Bulk C	Change			Ctrl+B	1							
eť	Name:	Create	Bibliogra	nhic Record	Set	Ctrl+T	cheryl	.stewart			✓ Record ty	pe: 🛛	Item	
Š	Note:	Delete	Selected I	Pasarda	- Sec	Curr I	_		Num	ber of records: 21	Record st	atus:	Final	
q		Delete	selected	Records										
2										Q	🤍 🗕 💕	5	- 🖻 🖳	k -
U C	Title		Antina	Callan	Mahari	chalf	Call N	w-1	Chabus	Bassada		P	Canta	
l &	Arabel an	d Mortimer	Assign	Collec	Materi	Shelt	i Fict	V0I	Status Wit	0000403253420	2/26/1007	R	202318	Ĥ
- L	Arabel's r	aven	Sarato	Childr	Book		1 Fict Aik		In	0000703233720	4/4/2006	=	52044	
2	Black heat	rte in Batte	Sarato	Childr	Book		1 Fict Aik		In	0000200110074	10/14/2007	F	52040	
	Bridle the	wind	Sarato	Childr	Book		1 Fict Aik		In	0000200110023	11/13/2005	=	68301	
5	Dide and I	Willu Do	Detter	Childr	Book		i Eict		In	0000200031701	10/20/2002		264906	
H	The far fo	vecto i tal	Kollio's	Children	Book	Child	Fict		In-T	000010001221	4/20/2015		20-030	
	The five r		Mont Dl		Book	criid	Fict Aik		10-1	0000100001221	4/25/2013	-	20 26 26 12	≡
RE	Co coddlo	the con	Johnst	Childr	Book		i Eigt Aik		In In	0000402298251	4/20/2000		1460020	
	The last d	lice of rain	Cliffor	Childe	Book		1 Eigt Aik		In	0001200077303	0/0/2007		1140512	
	Midnichti		Carton	Childe	Book		1 Eigt Aik		In	0000001191414	9/7/2007	-	E2046	
	Mortimor's	s a place.	Daguet	Childr	Book		1 Figt Aik		Tra	0000200110050	1/10/2009		1700205	
	Night fall	5 0 055	Hudson	Young	Book	Pape	VADR		Ind	0002800149940	1/10/2008		1037072	
	Nightbirde	on Nontu	Mohaw	Childe	Book	rape	i Eict Aik		111	0003700220300		-	1937072	
	The ekin e	off Indition	Fourthe	Childe	Book	0	3 1 9 2	-	WIL	0000300233002	2/19/2010		230374	
	The skin s	pinners : p	Amotor	Childe	Book	over	106 5	e	10	0004200405272	5/10/2010	c	2012231	
	Supercet	ral storios	Amster	Childr	Book		i Fict		In	0004000405372	5/12/2004	E	2033013	
	Supernau	and stories	cia	V	DOOK		VALUET		111 Miles	0000-02247290	2/22/2005		1005710	\sim
Bulk Cha	nge										21 of 21 reco	rd(c)	retrieved	
Durk Cha	inge										210121160	nu(s)	enieveu	

3. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.

 The Item Record Bulk Change dialog opens. Change the relevant criteria > Save As.

Item Record	d Bulk Change - Number of records: 21	x
Template: (None)	Save Save As Delete]
Location Circulation Call 1	Number Notes/Blocks Misc Report/Record Set	
☑ Owner:	Test Branch 19 (Library 6) (br) V	
Assigned branch:		
Assigned collection:	Children's Adventure (JADV) V	
Shelf location:		
Home branch:	×	
Temporary location:		
L		
L	OK Cancel Help	

5. Enter a name for the template > **OK**.

_		Item Bulk Change Template Setup	x
	Name:	Joan Aiden template	٦
	Owner:	cheryl.stewart v	
	[OK Cancel Help]

You will see one of the following messages:

- The template was created successfully.
- The template could not be created because a duplicate name was used.
- The template was created but with errors and an option to access an error report.

Use a Template to Make Item Record Bulk Changes

You can use a template to make bulk changes to an entire record set or a selection of items from it.

- 1. Open an existing record set or create a new one.
- 2. Use the entire record set or select items from it.
- 3. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.
- Select a template from the drop down list of templates that you have access to > OK.



5. Review the **Summary of Changes > Continue**.

Su	mmary of Changes
This bulk char	nge process will attempt to change 2 item record(s).
Record set name:	Strange Tales
Record set owner:	cheryl.stewart
Bulk change report:	C:\ProgramData\Polaris\6.3\ItemBulkChangeRep
Error record set name:	
Error record set owner:	
Shelf location: Children's	s Desk
Once made, these of	changes cannot be automatically undone.

You will see one of the following messages:

- The changes were made successfully.
- Changes were made but with errors and an option to access an error report.

Modify a Template

- 1. Open a record set.
- 2. Select Tools > Bulk Change.

3. Select a template.

Item Record Bulk Change - Number of records: 21	X
Template: (None) V Save Save As Delete	
Location Bulk Change Template 1717120 (QA-YODA 6.3) Children's Desk (cheryl.stewart) Harry Potter (cheryl.stewart)	
Joan Aiden template (cheryl.stewart) Own Joan Aiken test template (Community Library) Strange Tales (cheryl.stewart)	
Strange Tales bulk change (Community Library) AssigStrange Tales Bulk Changes (Community Library) Changes Tales Guldard Bischer (Changes Community Library)	
Assic Strange Tales test 2 (cheryl.stewart) template xxx yyy zzz (QA-YODA 6.3)	
Shelf location:	
Home branch:	
Temporary location:	
OK Cancel Help	

4. Change the relevant template criteria > **Save**.

Item Record Bulk Change - Number of records: 21
Template: Strange Tales Bulk Changes (Com ∨ Save Save As Delete
Location Circulation Call Number Notes/Blocks Misc Report/Record Set
✓ Owner: Community Library (br) ✓
Assigned branch:
Assigned collection:
✓ Shelf location: Children's Desk
Home branch:
Temporary location:
OK Cancel Help

5. Select OK.

	Item Bulk Change Template Setup	x	
Name:	ទុំtrange Tales Bulk Changes		
Owner:	Community Library (br)		
[OK Cancel Help		

You will see one of the following messages:

- The changes were made successfully.
- Changes were made but with errors and an option to download an error report.

Delete a Template

- 1. Open a record set.
- 2. Select **Tools > Bulk Change**.

3. Select a template > **Delete**.

	Item Record	Bulk Change - Number of records: 21
Template:	Strange Tales bul	k change (Comr 🗸 Save Save As Delete
Location	Circulation Call N	umber Notes/Blocks Misc Report/Record Set
√ Ow	ner:	Community Library (br)
Ass	signed branch:	Community Library (COB)
Ass	signed collection:	~ ·
🖌 She	elf location:	Children's Display V
- Hor	me branch:	
🗌 Ter	mporary location:	
		OK Cancel Help

4. Select Yes.



You will see one of the following messages:

- The template was successfully deleted.
- An error message that template was not deleted with an option to download an error report.

Maintaining Your Catalog

Various features in Polaris help you maintain your catalog and ensure that the records in your database are accurate and current. An export utility lets you export records to report your library's holdings to OCLC or to a consortium. You can easily identify records without links by automatically creating a record set. Records that are no longer used can be deleted immediately, or marked for deletion and removed from the database in batch at a later date. To maintain your authority records, you can subscribe to a weekly update service that checks your existing authority records, matches them to updated records from the Library of Congress, and provides the records to be imported. For more information, see <u>Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records</u>.

See also:

- Exporting Cataloging Records
- <u>Cleaning Up the Catalog</u>

Exporting Cataloging Records

You can export records to report your library's holdings to a union database (such as OCLC) or to a consortium. You configure the export once when you export records for the first time.

See also:

- <u>Configure the export process</u>
- Export cataloging records

Configure the Export Process

Note:

If you have Polaris SimplyReports and Export Express, you can set up specific export jobs and export records in several output formats. See SimplyReports Help for information.

To configure the export:

1. Select **Utilities** > **Exporting** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Export Configuration dialog box appears.

	Configuration
Polaris Application Server	Veify Connection
Default Directory/FileName For Export ChUsers/Peer/Documents	Browse Create subdirectory for each branch when branch specified.
C:Users/Peer/Documents	Browse Create subdirectory for each branch when branch specified.
0	Cancel

- 2. Type the name of the server in the Polaris Application Server box.
- 3. Click **Verify Connection** to check the connection to the Polaris Application server.
- 4. Click **Browse**, and select the destination for the exported data.
- 5. To create a subdirectory for the exported data file for branches, select the **Create subdirectory for each branch when branch specified** box.
- 6. Click **Browse**, and select the location for the export report.

When you select the location for the export report, it appears in the **Default Directory/Filename for Reports** box.

- 7. To create a subdirectory for the branch reports, select the **Create subdirectory for** each branch when branch specified box.
- 8. Click **OK**. The Polaris Database Export Utility workform appears. See <u>Export cata</u>loging records.

Export Cataloging Records

Note:

If you are exporting records for the first time, you first need to configure the export. See <u>Configure the export process</u>.

To export cataloging records:

Tip:

You can export records only in MARC format using this utility. If you have Polaris SimplyReports and Export Express, you can export records in Dublin Core or LibraryThing formats as well as create custom profiles for exporting MARC records.

1. Select **Utilities > Exporting** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Polaris Database Export Utility dialog box appears.

Export Criteria		
Library to Retrieve Data For:	Cobleskill	-
Branch To Retrieve Data For:	Community Library	2
Character Encoding. MARC	8 Include Carl	eted Records Records
C Extract Only MARC 21 Record	Is From Bibliographic Record ID:	
C Extract Only MARC 21 Record	To Is Added / Changed From Date:	November 12, 2013
C Extract Only Provisional Baco	rds	November 12, 2013
C Extract Only Deleted Records		
🗌 Include Only Re	cords Delated From Date: No	vember 12, 2013 💌
	To: INC.	unmher 12 2012

- 2. Select the library with the data to be exported in the **Library to Retrieve Data For** box.
- 3. Select the branch with the data to be exported in the **Branch to Retrieve Data For** box.
- 4. Select the type of records to include in the export in the **Select Record Type** box and select from the following options:
- To include holdings information in the export, select Include current item holdings information. For more information on embedded holdings data, see <u>Item Records</u> <u>Created from Embedded Holdings Tags</u>.
- To include records with a deleted status, select Include Deleted Records
- To include interlibrary loan records, select Include ILL Records.
- 5. Select the one of the following character encoding options in the **Character Encoding** box.
- MARC-8 When MARC-8 is selected, the LDR/09 is set to blank in the exported record, and the LDR/09 in the database record remains as it is.
- **UTF-8** When **UTF-8** is selected, the LDR/09 in the exported record is set to a, and the LDR/09 in the database record remains as it is.
- LDR/09 for each record When LDR/09 for each record is selected, the records are exported depending on the value in the LDR/09 in each record: if the value is

blank, the record is exported in MARC-8 format; if the value is **a**, the record is exported in UTF-8 format.

- 6. Select the export options:
- To include all final MARC 21 records, select Extract All Final MARC 21 Records.

Tip:

Exporting all your final MARC 21 records may take a long time. Specifying other criteria, such as a date range or a bibliographic ID number range, reduces the amount of time for the export.

- To export MARC 21 records within a range of bibliographic record identification numbers, type the beginning number in the Extract Only MARC 21 Records From Bibliographic Record ID box, and type the ending number in the To box.
- To extract MARC 21 records that were added or changed within a certain date range, enter the beginning date in the **Extract Only MARC 21 Records** Added/Changed From Date box, and enter the end date in the To box.
- To extract only provisional records, select Extract Only Provisional Records.
- To extract only deleted records, select Extract Only Deleted Records.
- To extract only records deleted within a specific time period, select the **Include Only Records Deleted From Date** box, and enter the from and to dates.
- 7. Select **Tools** > **Export** to export the records.

Cleaning Up the Catalog

Various automated processes identify records that are no longer linked to other records, delete records, retain records after deleting them, and purge deleted records from the database. To identify records that may need to be deleted, you can search for records that meet certain criteria and gather them in a record set automatically. For example, you could search for item records for materials that have not circulated in several years, gather them in a record set, and delete them after removing the materials from the shelves.

If you are looking for records that are not linked to any other records, you can create record sets of unlinked bibliographic or authority records automatically. See <u>Create a</u> record set of unlinked records. Then, you can delete the records right from the record
set if they are no longer needed. You can also use cataloging and circulation reports to identify records that may need to be deleted.

The Polaris Administration Cataloging profiles **Retain deleted bibliographic records**, **Retain item records**, and **Retain authority records** control whether records are immediately removed from the database or marked with a status of deleted and retained until they are permanently removed from the database using a batch purge. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide, Retain deleted records. . To permanently delete the retained records, you must set up purge criteria in a Purge record. See <u>Purge</u> <u>cataloging records</u>.

Note:

If the item record is linked to a serial issue record, and the Polaris Serials/Acquisitions parameter **Delete linked issue/part when serial item is deleted** is set to **Yes**, the issue or part is deleted when you delete the item.

In addition to cleaning up unused records, you can remove tags from bibliographic records after they are marked as processed. These processing tags include 970 tags for building purchase orders, and 852, 949 or other tags used in building item records from embedded holdings tags. See the Cataloging Administration Guide, Setting Utility to Delete Bib Tags Marked with Subfield 9.

See also:

- Create a record set of unlinked records
- Delete bibliographic or item records
- Delete authority records
- <u>Restore (undelete) a deleted cataloging record</u>
- Purge cataloging records

Create a Record Set of Unlinked Records

To create a record set of unlinked bibliographic or authority records:

1. Select Utilities > Cataloging Processing > Create Unlinked Bibliographic Record Set, or Create Unlinked Authority Record Set.

Tip:

Authority records are considered unlinked when there are no bibliographic or see also links; they could have see also from links.

The Record Set Setup dialog box appears.

Record Set	Setup 💼
Name: Owner:	[]
1	OK Cancel Help

2. Type a name for the record set, and click **OK**.

The new record set appears.

Note:

Unlinked authority records appear with an unlinked icon $\overline{\mathbb{S}}$.

1 🖬	¥∎asi× ₩,₩ a t	Ŷ								
Э	Mame: Unlinked Bibliographic Records_20	eords_20100501 Owner: www. Record type: Biblio						Bblograph	lographic	
2	Note: Bibliographic records with no linked items			hunder a					frecorde: 9313	
202						Q =	<i>i</i> - 🍋	de Pj	k	
ĕ	Title	Autor	Form	Line.	Pub	Call Number	Control	Status	ł	
x	2:10 to Yuma [videorecording]		Blu		2008	791.43/72	770855	Prod	ſ,	
U I	21 [videorecording]		She	1	2005	791.43/72	778706	Final		
2	300 [videovecording]		5lu	1	2007	791.43/72	778550	Final		
2	1990s	Duden, Jane.	Rook	8	1991	909-93/9	748955	Final.		
2	2001 [videsrecording] a space odyssey		Blum	1	2007		776515	Final		
2	2001 [videsrecording] a space odyssey		Blum	1	2007	791.43/72	778642	Final		
5	30,000 B.C. [videorecording]		Skrim	8	2008	751,43/72	776667	Pinal		
0	AC/DC [electronic resource] : the samage t.	MdNichol, Tom.	Nan		2005	621.339/1	778537	Final		
3	Accounting today.		Serial		1987	332	778594	Final		
2	Across the universe [videorecording]		Diu	1	2008	791.43/72	778559	Final		
n	The act of the mind.	Pearce, Ray Ha	Book	1	1965	811.09 P	130881	Final		
	Advanced imaging [electronic resource].		Elec	1	1995	770	778584	Final		
2	Afghanistan. The culture	Banting, Erinn.	Book.	1	2003	3 998.1 Ban	603667	Final		
-	Afghanisten. The land	Senting, Srimn.	Book.	1	2003	J 955.1 Ser	603565	Final		
	Africa [videonecording] : the Serengeti		5lu	1	2007	591.565	778595	Final		

Related Information

- Delete bibliographic or item records
- Purge cataloging records

Delete Bibliographic or Item Records

To delete bibliographic or item records:

1. Use one of the following methods to delete cataloging records:

• To delete a record displayed in a workform, select File, Delete on the workform, or

click 🗙.

• To delete a record directly from the Find Tool results list, right-click the record, and select **Delete** from the context menu.

Tip:

After you have deleted all the records within the record set, you can delete the record set.

• To delete cataloging records in a record set, open the record set, choose Edit,

Select All, and click X to delete all the records. Or, select specific records, rightclick, and select **Delete** from the context menu.

Tip:

If the record already has a Deleted status, and you delete it again, it will be removed from the database, even if the **Retain deleted records** profile is set to **Yes**.

If you are deleting multiple bibliographic or item records, the Multiple Deletion dialog box appears.

2. If you want to delete the records without stopping for warning messages, you can suppress these messages by clearing one or both of the following boxes:

Note:

You must have the required permissions to prevent the warning messages from appearing. See <u>Related Information</u>.

- **breakable links** The records with breakable links will be deleted without any warning messages.
- **unbreakable links and other stopping conditions** The records with unbreakable links are skipped over and not deleted, but no warning messages appear.
- 3. Click **Yes** to delete the selected records.
- 4. If the Last Copy Options dialog box appears, select one of the following options:
 - Click **Delete** to delete the record if it does not have unbreakable links or other conditions that prevent deletion.

- Click Suppress From PAC to retain the record but prevent it from appearing in the PAC
- Click Retain to retain the record without changes.

Related Information

Permissions for suppressing warning messages:

- Suppress warnings for breakable links when deleting multiple bibliographic records: Allow
- Suppress warnings for unbreakable links and other stopping conditions, when deleting multiple bibliographic records: Allow
- Suppress warnings for breakable links when deleting multiple item records: Allow
- Suppress warnings for unbreakable links and other stopping conditions, when deleting multiple item records: Allow

Tip:

The default setting for both parameters is No (prevent deletion of bibs or items that have linked hold requests).

System-level Cataloging parameters that allow or prevent deletion if the records have linked hold requests:

- Bibliographic record delete: Allow if there are holds
- Item record delete: Allow if there are holds

Unbreakable links or conditions that prevent item deletion:

- Item is a parent item with child records linked to it
- Item is checked out
- Item has been shipped to fill a hold request
- Item is linked to a routed serial issue

Unbreakable links or conditions that prevent bib deletion:

- The bib is final and it is linked to final/provisional items
- The bib is deleted and the linked items are deleted
- Linked to serial holdings records

- Linked to purchase order lines with a status of Pending
- Linked to invoice lines with a status of Open
- Linked to issue records
- Linked to subscription records
- Linked to resource records (digital media)

Deletion of ILL requests - When III requests are deleted, the bibliographic and item records are deleted unless both the Cataloging profiles **Retain deleted bibliographic records** and **Retain deleted item records** are set to **Yes**.

Delete Authority Records

To delete authority records.

- 1. Use one of the following methods to delete authority records:
- To delete a single authority record displayed in a workform, select File > Delete on

the Authority Record workform, or click

• To delete a single authority record directly from the Find Tool results list, select the record, right-click, and select **Delete** from the context menu.

Tip:

After you have deleted all the records within the record set, you can delete the record set.

• To delete authority records displayed in a record set, open the record set, choose

Edit, Select All, and click is to delete all the records. Or, select specific authority records, right-click, and select **Delete** from the context menu. You can automatically gather unlinked authority or bibliographic records in a record set.

• To delete authority records from a linked list box, select the record or records, right-click and select **Delete**.

Note:

If the record already has a Deleted status, and you delete it again, it will be removed from the database, even if the **Retain deleted records** profile is set to **Yes**. If the authority record is linked to other bibliographic or authority records, the Authority Record Heading Deletion Options dialog box appears. The options for handling linked authority records are active only when other authority records are linked to the one you are deleting.



2. If the Authority Record Heading Deletion Options dialog box appears, select from the following options:

For linked bibliographic records -

- To delete the heading and tag in the linked bibliographic records -Select **Delete linked headings** (bibliographic)
- To break links to any bibliographic headings linked to the authority record Select **Unlink headings** (bibliographic). The heading remains in the bibliographic record as an unauthorized heading.

For linked authority records -

- To delete the linked authority headings Select **Delete linked headings** (authority).
- To break links to any authority records linked to this authority record Select Unlink headings (authority).
- To convert the 5XX tag in linked authority records to a 4XX tag Select
 Flip the linked authority headings. This converts the 5XX tag (See Also From reference) in the linked records to a 4XX (See reference).

Restore (undelete) a Deleted Cataloging Record

If you have the Polaris Administration profile **Retain deleted record type records** for the type of record you want to restore set to **Yes**, you can restore or undelete records with a deleted status.

1. To undelete a cataloging record with a status of deleted.

Tip: S Click to undelete the record.

2. Open the deleted item record, bibliographic record, or authority record.

Tip:

You can search for item records by a record status of **Deleted**. Then, multi-select the records in the Find Tool results list, and select **Undelete**.

3. Select File, Undelete from the menu.

A message tells you the record's status will be changed to Final, and if there were links to other records, they need to be reestablished.

4. Click **OK** to close the message box.

The record's status changes to **Final**.

Purge cataloging records

If your library retains deleted cataloging records, you must set up a Purge record that specifies the criteria by which these retained records are automatically removed from the database. To create a Purge record:

Tip:

For information on the Polaris Administration profiles for retaining deleted records, see the *Cataloging Administration Guide*, Retain deleted records.

1. Select **Utilities > Cataloging Processing > Purge Cataloging Records** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Purge Criteria List appears if there are purge records already set up.

lene	Owner	Creater Scheduled	Lest Part	Digeniariion
Scan ap	Sent	Zako	4/05/20013 #252 AM	QA-Orice-All Cluster Test System
Vinitianeer Daily D.,	Sarm	Zaha	1/8/0018 51043 JAN	QD-Orice 4.8 Cluzter Text System
elete cleanup	Servit-	Zaka	12/1/2009 340:12 PM	QA-Orice 4.8 Cluster Test System
Natipunge cancelle	Senta	Zakato	13/39/2009 2 43:58 PM	QA-Orion 4.8 Cluster Text System
whenly purge	Sent	Zuka	4/28/2989 2:05/44 PM	QA-Grice 4.8 Cluster Text System
MinRanner purg.	Serie	Ziatra	2/6/0009 51005 35/	Swatage Spring: Public Likniy.
cst.mee.9L	58Hr.,	Alden	7/7/2008 11/28/38 AM	Stillweiter Pablic Ubrary

Tip:

You can also right-click an existing purge record in the list, and select New from the context menu.

2. Select **File** > **New**, press **CTRL+N**, or click the New button to create a new purge record.

The Purge Record workform appears.

3 📽 🛙	8 · × 17		
pic	Name.		<u></u>
SC .	Owner: Canmunity Ubrary (Cableski)	007	*
α į	uest runs	Scheckled:	-
o ni de	tera Record Types		
o o	teria Record Types Authority Organization:	Community Library (Coblesiol) (br)	•
a Purge	tela Record Types Authonity Organization: Bibliographic Diten	Community Library (Cobleated) (br) (Siblequaptic & Then records)	-
Purge	teria teconi Tupes Authonity Organization: Bibliographic Iten Recard Set Name:	Community Library (Cobleakil) (cr) (Fibliographic & Twin records)	• Find
E Purge	tela tecno hypes Aufrenty Organization: Biographic Den Record Set Name: Deteld Statu Dote Range	Community Library (Cobhedell) (br) Sibliographic & Denr Incorrid)	• Fnd

- 3. Type a name to identify the purge record in the **Name** box.
- 4. Select the purge record's owner in the **Owner** box.
- 5. Enter a date to purge the records in the **Scheduled** box.
- 6. Select the cataloging record types (Authority, Bibliographic, Item, Record Set) that you want to purge in the Record types boxes.
- 7. If you selected **Record Sets**, click **Find** to search for and select the record set you want to purge.

The record set's name appears in the Name box.

- 8. Select the organization for which you want to purge the records in the **Organization** box.
- 9. Select a date in the **Begin** and **End** boxes to purge records that were deleted within this date range.
- 10. Select **File** > **Save**, press **CTRL+S**, or click the Save button to save the purge record.

The records will be purged from the Polaris database on the date you specified.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

11. To print a log of the purge processing job after it is completed, select a job in the Purge Criteria list, and click **Report**.

Tip:

A log is available until the Purge Record is deleted.

The preview window displays the Purge Processing Log. The log shows details about the titles that were deleted, the date and time the purge job was run, the number of titles purged, and other information.

12. Click **Print** to print the log.

Note:

You can also generate standard cataloging reports that identify records with problems, list records that do not display in the PAC, and gather other information.

Integration with Polaris and eContent Vendors

Libraries can implement integration between Polaris and the following eContent vendor applications:

- cloudLibrary from Bibliotheca
- Axis 360 from Baker & Taylor
- OverDrive from Rakuten OverDrive
- RBdigital from Recorded Books.

After a library subscribes to one of these eContent applications and configures Polaris to enable the integration, patrons can search for, place holds on, and check out a vendor's eContent directly from the PAC.

For eContent integration where item records are created as part of the import process, the associated circulation processing and tracking for integrated eContent occurs in Polaris. For RBdigital integration where no item records are created in Polaris, checkouts from the PAC are logged, but not checkouts from the RBdigital application. Although Polaris logs statistics, the eContent vendor is the source of the most accurate and timely circulation data.

The eContent products cloudLibrary and Axis 360 use Polaris API (PAPI) authentication, defined in Patron initiated circulation rules. For these vendors, Polaris requires an SSL certificate for PAPI server security. OverDrive and RBdigital use SIP authentication, defined in Polaris SIP authentication rules. Since authentication takes place via SIP and not PAPI, SSL is not required.

Note: Your library can choose to configure Axis 360 to use SIP authentication instead of PAPI.

When an integrated eContent vendor's bibliographic records are imported in Polaris, a resource entity is automatically created for each 856 tag. A resource entity is a group of fields that collectively identifies the eContent vendor, the library's account with the vendor, and the specific electronic resource in the vendor's repository.

The following components are required for implementing eContent integration with Polaris:

• Subscription to the eContent service - The library contracts with the eContent vendor for a subscription to the eContent service.

- Polaris Integrated eContent license The library obtains a single integrated eContent license that covers Polaris PowerPAC, Polaris Mobile PAC, and Polaris Power-PAC Children's Edition.
- Polaris API (PAPI) license (Only required for cloudLibrary) Only one Polaris API license is required for each Polaris installation, regardless of the number of vendor contracts. If the library already has a license for the Polaris API, no additional API fee is required.
- Automatic import item template The library sets up the item template that is used to create item records if the vendor integration creates item records. The template is selected in the Vendor Account record if the import process creates item records. The name must begin with **Ebook automatic import** (case does not matter, and **e-book** is also accepted). This template is used for any eContent items, including audio ebooks.

Tip:

The integrated vendor record is visible in Polaris Administration only if the library has a license for that vendor.

- Vendor Account The library staff, with the assistance of their Polaris site manager, sets up the integrated vendor account record under the vendor record in Polaris Administration. The vendor account is used to create resource entities for the eContent bibliographic records and eContent item records in Polaris (if item records are created). If the library is using resource groups, the vendor account is also linked to the resource group.
- Integrated EContent Import Profiles Polaris provides a read-only Integrated ebook Bibs import profile that can be renamed and modified. For RBdigital, the import profile is named Integrated eContent bibs (without items). Your library may want to set up multiple import profiles for different tasks. Your Polaris Site Manager can assist you with creating import profiles.

Important:

For OverDrive and cloudLibrary, newly-purchased eContent records are imported automatically using the import profile selected in the Vendor Account workform. Newly-purchased RBdigital titles are automatically imported as part of the overnight sync processes. Your library can copy and rename the **Integrated ebook Bibs** profile, but the renamed profile must be selected in the Vendor Account workform.

Your library may also implement the following optional Polaris records and settings:

- Polaris Digital Branch If multiple libraries in your system use the same vendor account (contract), Polaris recommends that you set up a digital branch to represent the account. You can set up multiple digital branches, one per multi-library vendor contract, if necessary. Or, you can set up a single digital branch and associate multiple eContent vendors' materials with this branch. During import processing, the item records are created with the digital branch as the assigned branch. In the PAC, materials associated with the digital branch are available according to the branch's resource group membership. If only one library is involved in the contract, a digital branch is not needed. All the eContent item records are assigned to that library.
- Resource Groups The library can set up resource groups for library organizations that allow their patrons to access the eContent.
- Patron Services Administration The library can set Patron Services parameters and profiles to manage patron initiated circulation of eContent from the PAC (PowerPAC and Mobile PAC):
 - Patron initiated circulation: Transaction branch profile You can change the transaction branch setting from Patron's branch (the default) to Item's branch in the Patron Services profile to track eContent circulation transactions from the PAC separately from check outs and holds for physical items.
 - Check-out: Require format selection when checking out integrated eContent parameter - When this parameter is set to Yes for the library organization the patron is connected to in the PAC, the patron must select the format when checking out eContent titles.
- PAC Administration The library can set the **Item availability: Suppress for integrated econtent titles** PAC profile to suppress detailed item availability information for integrated eContent. See the Public Access Administration PDF.
- OverDrive Advantage Vendor Information If your library has OverDrive Advantage, you can control access to the Advantage eContent using a setting in the vendor record. See <u>Create an OverDrive integrated vendor account</u>.
- Preferred Vendor Accounts Policy Table This policy table is used for libraries using the cloudLibrary eContent service that also use Bibliotheca's cloudLink groups to share resources.

Note:

By default, integrated eContent titles are not included in patron notices.

Polaris administrators can change this setting on the Reminder tab of the Notification options dialog box. See the Patron Services Administration PDF Guide .

See also:

- Setting Up a Digital Branch for Integrated EContent
- <u>Resource Entities</u>
- Axis 360 EContent Integration
- OverDrive EContent Integration
- cloudLibrary eContent Integration
- <u>RBdigital EContent Integration</u>
- EContent in the Polaris Staff Client
- Polaris API Consumer Services
- Suspending and Reactivating an Integrated Vendor Account
- <u>Non-Integrated EContent in Polaris</u>

Managing Patron Access to eContent Using Resource Groups

Your library can set up resource groups to manage patron access to eContent in the PAC and then select the resource group in the vendor account. Then you can use the PAC profile **Resource Groups: Search results settings** to control when the title is displayed in PAC search results. The profile is available at the system, library, and branch levels. The system uses the settings for the current PAC connection branch.

For information about additional options for displaying and circulating eContent, see: Managing Integrated EContent in the PAC.

To set restrictions on the display of integrated eContent titles based on resource groups:

- Select File | New | Resource Group, and select the organizations that will belong to this resource group. Save the resource group. For more details, see <u>Setting Up</u> <u>Organization Resource Groups</u>.
- 2. Select the resource group in the eContent vendor account. For information on setting up vendor accounts, see one of the following topics:

- <u>Creating an Axis 360 Integrated Vendor Account</u>
- <u>Creating an OverDrive Integrated Vendor Account</u>
- Creating a cloudLibrary Integrated Vendor Account
- Creating an RBdigital Integrated Vendor Account
- 3. Select **Administration** | **Explorer**, select the organization, select **Profiles**, and click the **PAC** tab in the details view.
- 4. Double-click Resource Groups: Search results settings.

The Resource Groups: Search results settings dialog box opens.

Resource Groups: Search results settings	\times
Honor Resource Groups in PAC search results lists	
Before login show eContent available to connection branch	
After login, show eContent for:	
Connection branch	
Registration branch	
OK Cancel Help	

5. To display search results according to the resource groups when displaying search results, select (check) **Honor Resource Groups in PAC search results lists**.

When you check **Honor Resource Groups**, the remaining options become available for selection. Select at least one option to specify the eContent that is available to patrons based on the branch's membership in the resource group

Note:

If you do not select Honor Resource Groups in PAC search results lists, eContent titles are displayed in the PAC regardless of the connection branch or whether the patron is logged in or not. As a result, patrons may see titles for eContent that they cannot access. 6. If you want to display eContent titles that are available to the branch when a patron is connected to that branch in the PAC, but not logged in, select (check) **Before login show eContent available to connection branch**.

When this option is checked, patrons may see titles in search results that are not available to check out once they are logged in.

When this option is unchecked, and the patron is not logged in, the eContent titles that are not available to the patron do not display.

- 7. Select one of the following options under After login, show eContent for:
 - **Connection branch** If this option is checked, logged in patrons searching the PAC at a connection branch that is not their registered branch will see eContent titles that are not available to check out.
 - **Registration branch** If this option is checked, logged in patrons searching the PAC at a connection branch that is their registered branch will see the eContent titles that are available to them.

Note:

Although the Before login option is independent of the After login options, if you check Before login but do not select either After login option, you receive the following warning message, because in this case no eContent will be displayed after the patron logs in: Once a patron logs in, eContent will no longer appear in the PAC display. Please correct this problem by checking the connection branch check box and/or the registration branch check box.

Setting Up a Digital Branch for Integrated EContent

If multiple libraries in your system use the same Vendor Account (contract) for eContent, Polaris recommends that you set up a digital branch to represent the account. Using a digital branch will make it less likely that extensive bulk changes will be necessary after the eContent items are created. Multiple digital branches, one per multilibrary vendor contract, can be created if necessary. In PAC, the materials associated with the digital branch are available according to the branch's resource group membership.

Important:

If you plan to use a digital branch, the branch must be set up in Polaris

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

before you activate the vendor account and start the API Consumer Service.

Note that if only one library is involved in the contract, a digital branch is not necessary; all the eContent item records are assigned to that library.

Resource Entities

A resource entity on a bibliographic record is a group of fields that collectively identifies the eContent vendor, the library's account with the vendor, and the specific electronic resource in the vendor's repository. For eContent provided by an integrated vendor, resource entities are used to integrate eContent with Polaris circulation. They can also be used to restrict access to eContent for either integrated or non-integrated vendors. See <u>Non-Integrated EContent in Polaris</u>.

When an integrated eContent vendor's bibliographic records are imported in Polaris, a resource entity is automatically created for each 856 tag containing data that identifies the vendor account and links to the electronic resource in the vendor's repository. The 856 tag for the integrated eContent vendor must have a first indicator (access method) of 4 (HTTP) and a second indicator of 0 (resource) in order to create the resource entity. Other 856 tags with a second indicator of 2 (related resource) may be present, but are not required to create the resource entity.

If a bibliographic record has a resource entity associated with it, the Resources view of the Bibliographic workform displays the resource entity information.



The Resource Entity view of the Bibliographic Records workform displays the following information:

- The vendor's name
- Vendor Account Name Identifies the account associated with the vendor.
- Active (Yes/No) Vendor account's status
- **Resource Group** (optional) This is the name of the Resource Group, which is derived from the Vendor Account. The Resource Group cannot be modified from this view; you must change it in the Vendor Account.
- **Imported MARC data** The 856 tag for the electronic resource, which includes the object identifier and the vendor's contract ID (if available).
- **Object Identifier** The eContent vendor's unique ID that identifies the electronic resource in the vendor's repository.
- URL The URL to the eContent in the vendor's repository.

Tip:

Currently, the link text and public note do not display in Mobile PAC for an integrated eContent vendor.

- Link Text You can change the link text. The link text and public note appear in the PAC in the tooltip associated with the vendor logo. If the link text is not defined for the resource entity, a default text string identifies the eContent vendor.
- Cover Image URL The link to the cover image.
- **Public Note** You can enter a public note that appears in the tooltip next to the vendor logo. The public note displays on a separate line in the tooltip, prefixed with the label **Note:**.
- Non-Public Note You can enter a non-public note for staff members.
- Creator PolarisExec indicates the resource entity was created automatically.
- Creation Date The date and time when the resource entity was created automatically.

A submenu in the right portion of the Resources view includes the following options:

- Linked Item Record Links to electronic (eContent) items associated with this resource entity. The eContent check box is checked on the Item Record workform.
- **Open Vendor Account** Links to the Vendor Account workform for the resource entity (option available only if user has **Vendor Account: Access** permission)
- **Revert to MARC tag** Changes the resource entity to an 856 tag. See Convert a resource entity to an 856 tag
- **Delete Resource Entity** Deletes the resource entity from the bibliographic record.

Note:

A single bibliographic record cannot contain resource entities for both integrated and non-integrated eContent.

Deleting a Resource Entity

To delete a resource entity from the Resource view of the Bibliographic Record workform:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record workform for the integrated eContent.
- 2. Go to the Resources view.
- 3. Select **Delete**.

The following message appears: This action completely removes the resource entity and the 856 tag from the record, and it removes any linked eContent item records. It cannot be restored.

4. Select **OK** to remove the resource entity.

Any eContent items linked to the resource entity are also deleted except if the item circulation status is other than **In** or the **Retain deleted item records profile** is set to **Yes.** If any linked eContent item records have a circulation status other than **In**, the following message appears: **You cannot delete this resource entity because copies of the book are currently checked out**. If the **Retain deleted item records** profile is set to **Yes**, the item is marked for deletion and later purged following the same purge process as other types of item records.

Deleting a Bibliographic Record with a Resource Entity

Before a bibliographic record that has a resource entity can be deleted, all eContent item records must be deleted.

To delete a bibliographic record with a resource entity:

1. Search for the bibliographic record for the eContent title.

You can limit by **Vendor Account** in the Find Tool.

🔊 Bibliographic Records - Title Find Tool			_	
File Edit Tools Options Help				
General Settings Scoping Branches Collections	Databa	ses		
Object: Bibliographic Records \lor	Limit by:	(None) ~	Search Mode	Search
Search by: Title ~	Value:	(None) All keyword fields Author	OPower	Stop
Type: Keyword search \sim		Bound-with host/constituent Creator	⊖ sql	New Search
Sort by: (None) ~		Display in PAC Do not overlay	Count Only	Clear
For:		General notes Genre		Help
For Help, press E1		Language Publication date		llser de
		Publisher Publisher's number Record owner Record status Resource group Series Subject Target audience		
	-	Title Type of material Vendor account		

 Right-click the eContent title listed in the Find Tool results list, and select Links > Item Records.

If more than one item record is linked to the eContent bib, a list box appears. If a single item record is linked to the eContent bib, the Item Record workform opens.

- 3. Delete the linked item record.
- 4. Right-click the bibliographic record, and select **Delete** from the menu.

When the bibliographic record is deleted, the resource entities remain in the bibliographic record. This allows the resource entity to be restored automatically if the bibliographic record is ever undeleted.

Copying a Bibliographic Record with a Resource Entity

When you select **File** > **New** > **Copy** from the Bibliographic Record workform, the resource entity is not copied to the new record. Instead, the tags are converted to traditional MARC tags in the new record. The resource entity can be created for the new record in another step.

Converting a Resource Entity to an 856 Tag

To convert a resource entity to a traditional 856 tag.

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record workform for the integrated eContent.
- 2. Go to the Resources view.
- 3. Select Revert to MARC tag.

The integrated eContent tag is changed to an 856 tag in the bibliographic record, and item records linked to the reverted resource entity are unlinked and deleted. If the eContent item is not currently checked in, the following message appears: **You cannot convert this resource entity because copies of the book are currently checked out.**

Exporting Bibliographic Records with Resource Entities

When you export bibliographic records for integrated eContent from the staff-client or by using SimplyReports and Export Express, the resource entities revert to regular MARC tags in the bibliographic records. Resource entities are also converted to regular 856 MARC tags if another library copies an integrated eContent bibliographic record from your library's catalog using a Z39.50 search.

Resource Entities Transactions

Transactions are recorded when resource entities are created, modified, reverted, or deleted. The resource entity creator/date, and the resource entity modifier/date are displayed in the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform.

Axis 360 EContent Integration

Libraries using the Polaris ILS can catalog, display in PAC, manage access, and circulate eContent from Baker & Taylor's Axis 360. Innovative Interfaces requires a license for each integrated eContent vendor and for the Polaris API (PAPI). Axis 360 uses Polaris API (PAPI) authentication, and Polaris requires an SSL certificate for PAPI server security.

Once the library has a subscription with Baker & Taylor's Axis 360 and the Polaris licenses, the library creates an item template, an integrated vendor account, and an import profile in Polaris. The vendor account is in Polaris Administration, not in Acquisitions, and it is used during importing to create resource entities in the eContent

bibliographic records. After the setup is complete, the library imports the eContent MARC data using special features that are required to support the integration.

As a result of this integration, patrons can search for, place holds on, and check out Axis 360 eContent directly from the PAC. All associated circulation processing and tracking for these integrated eContent occurs in Polaris.

Axis 360 and Polaris Synchronization

Availability and hold counts (total number of copies, number of available copies, and number of holds) for Axis 360 eContent titles appear in the PAC based on the status of the items in the Axis 360 repository, not on the status of the items in the Polaris database. Patrons can see the availability information whether they are logged into their library account or not.

When a library purchases a new title, Axis 360 sends a push notification that the title is available, the import process automatically imports the new titles, and the title appears in the PAC within minutes. The availability counts for existing cloudLibrary titles are automatically updated when the library purchases additional copies or when copies expire because of publisher limits.

When a patron checks out or places a hold on an Axis 360 title in Polaris, the data is immediately updated in the Polaris database and in the vendor's repository. However, when a patron uses the Axis 360 app to initiate circulation, the synchronization process takes longer because the app uses the Polaris API to push the data to Polaris, and then the API consumer service completes the process. The API consumer service also performs a periodic "pull" query of the Axis 360 database and then synchonizes the data if any circulation activity was detected.

The Polaris database and Axis 360 are synchonized according to circulation activity as follows:

- Holds Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from the PAC Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from Axis 360- Every 5-15 minutes
- Added copy for an existing title Once daily (overnight)
- Expired copy for an existing title Once daily (overnight)
- Added title new MARC record N/A

To ensure that the API consumer service synchronizes transactions correctly when a server is rebooted, the API consumer service attempts to connect every 35 seconds for 20 minutes. If it fails to connect, the service stops.

See <u>Implementing EContent Integration - Overview</u> for a checklist of the components necessary for Polaris integration with eContent vendors.

See also:

- Setting Up Polaris for Axis 360 Integration
- Integrating Existing Axis 360 EContent
- Integrating New Axis 360 Bibs (Pre-Order)
- Overlaying Axis 360 EContent Bibs
- Axis 360 Import Jobs
- Patron Access to Axis 360 EContent

Setting Up Polaris for Axis 360 Integration

Bibliographic records for Axis 360 titles are imported into Polaris using the import utility in the Polaris staff client. The import processing that integrates Axis 360 eContent with Polaris depends on specific settings in the item template, vendor account, and import profile. Your Polaris Site Manager can assist you with this setup.

See also:

- Setting up the Baker & Taylor TS3 MARC Profile List
- <u>Setting Up the eContent Item Templates for Axis 360</u>
- <u>Creating an Axis 360 Integrated Vendor Account</u>
- Creating the Axis 360 eContent Import Profile(s)

Set up the Baker & Taylor TS3 MARC Profile List

The Polaris import processing and resource entity creation relies on the presence of the Baker & Taylor "BT key" in the 037\$a of the imported record. To allow pre-publication titles to be integrated in the PAC, so patrons can place holds, Polaris relies on the presence of an 037\$n tag containing the string **TSeContent**. If you use TS3 carts/downloads to order Axis 360 titles, you will need to set up your TS3 MARC Profile List to supply these two fields to the 037 tag in the bibliographic records that you download from TS3. Polaris also strongly recommends that you remove several other tags from the records before downloading from TS3.

Settings for the TS3 MARC Profile List:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

1. Copy the 947\$c to the 037\$a.

Opelete	947	c	O User Defined		
OMOVE	037	8	O Database Element	Cart Name	

2. Add the **TSeContent** string to the 037\$.

Add					
ODelete	037	n	() User Defined	TSecontent	
OMme			O Database Element	Cart Name	~

3. Remove the 024\$a and the 028\$a

O Add Delete Move Copy	024	a	O User Defined O Database Element	Cart Neme	~
C Add C Delete Move Copy	028	a	O User Defined O Database Element	Cart Neme	~

4. Remove all 856 tags

If you do not use TS3 to order Axis 360 titles, the Axis 360 bibliographic records that you import into Polaris still must have the Baker & Taylor "BT key" in the 037\$a.

Setting Up the eContent Item Templates for Axis 360

To enable the synch process to automatically create added copies for Axis 360 eContent titles, you must create an item template named **Ebook automatic import** or **E-book automatic import** (additional text can be appended to this name, but it must begin with this string), and select this template in the Axis 360 Vendor Account workform. For more information, see Axis 360 Added/Expired Copies .

You can also create multiple other item templates, named however your library wishes, to create item records when re-importing existing Axis 360 records to enable integration with Polaris Circulation.

To set up the item templates for Axis 360:

- 1. Select **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.
- 2. Select Item Template and click OK.

The Item Template workform opens.

- 3. Type a name for the Axis 360 eContent item record.
 - If you are creating the item template that will be selected in the Vendor Account workform, it must be named Ebook automatic import or E-book automatic import. Case does not matter, and other words can follow this string, but the name must begin with Ebook automatic import. For Axis 360, this template is used only for added copies.
 - If you are creating an item template to be selected in an Axis 360 import profile, type any name in the **Name** box. You can create as many of these templates as are appropriate for your library. For example, your library may already have non-integrated Axis 360 records of various types (ebook, audio ebook, etc.) in its database. When you re-import the records to enable their integration, you can select the appropriate template for the eContent.
- 4. In the **Assigned** box, select the branch for the eContent items that will be created using this template. If a resource group is selected in the Vendor Account, the **Assigned** branch selected in the item template must belong to the resource group.
- 5. In the Circulation status box, select In.
- 6. Select the **Fine code** and **Renewal limit**. These fields are required to save the item template, but they are ignored in eContent items circulation processing.
- 7. Select File > Save, click the save button, or press Ctrl+S.

The template is saved.

Creating an Axis 360 Integrated Vendor Account

Vendor records and vendor accounts are accessed through the Polaris Administration Explorer; they cannot be accessed from the Find Tool. Polaris Administration ownership and inheritance do not apply to vendor records or vendor accounts.

To create an Axis 360 vendor account:

Note:

Vendor account permissions are not organization-specific, and users in the Admin group are granted these permissions: **Vendor Account: Access, Create, Modify, Delete**.

Tip:

You cannot create a new Vendor Account by selecting **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

1. Select Administration > Explorer > System > Vendor.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

File Acquisitions Serials Cataloging Patron Services Circulation	Administration Utilities Win	dow Help	
🗋 🔵 🚝 🛃 🕮 🚆 🎆 📰 🜆 🕼	Explorer >	System) 😰
	System Server	Library Branch	•
	Library Branch	Staff Member Workstation	
	Staff Member	Collection	
	Workstation Collection	Server Database Table	
	Patron	Vendor	
	Permission Group		
	Resource Group		r

- 2. Expand the **Vendors** node in the left pane to display the eContent vendors.
- 3. Select the Axis 360 (integrated) vendor, right-click, and select New.

	Administration Explorer – Vendor	_ 🗖 🗙
File Help	Vendor Vendor Vendor Information	
Generic Vendor (non New	Axis 360 (integrated)	

The Vendor Account workform opens with Axis 360 (integrated) in the **Vendor name** box.

ndor
ndor
ndor
×
nection
×
n

- 4. View the system-supplied fields and enter information in the editable fields:
 - Vendor name System-supplied; read-only
 - Integrated circulation vendor This check box is automatically checked if the vendor's eContent is integrated with Polaris.
 - Active This check box is initially unchecked when you are creating a vendor account for an integrated eContent vendor. Leave the check box unchecked, and enter the account information. Innovative Interfaces activates the vendor account.
 - Vendor account name (required) The library supplies a unique name to identify the account.
 - AccountID The account ID is supplied by Polaris when the account is saved, and it appears in the title bar of the Vendor Account workform.

- Vendor account description (optional) The library can add a description for the vendor account.
- **Resource group** (optional) The library can select a resource group to limit access to the eContent by branch. For more information on resource groups, see Polaris staff client online Help.
- **Icon URL** (optional) The library can specify a URL location for the icon that represents the eContent vendor.
- Vendor contract ID The vendor's contract ID is required for integrated eContent vendors. The contract ID must be unique, and it can contain up to 255 characters.
- Vendor account access ID The library's access ID for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account access key The library's access key for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account base path The URL path to the library's resources at eContent vendor.
- Vendor account server name The vendor account server name.
- Vendor account use SSL The library selects Yes or No to indicate whether Secure Socket Layer is used.
- Vendor account item template ID The library creates the item template used during the API-driven processes. For Axis 360, this template is used for added copies only. The item template name must begin with Ebook automatic import or E-book automatic import.
- Content cafe cover image user name
- Content cafe cover image password

Tips:

The library's server should be set within 5 minutes of the correct time because Baker & Taylor has a 5-minute time-difference threshold on their servers. In addition, SSL must be configured correctly.

- Library OAuth Used to grant the Polaris ILS an access token, which is used to access the Axis 360 API.
- **Default URL link text** Identifies the URL link text and is also used as hover text for the vendor icon.

- 5. Save the Vendor Account workform.
- 6. Click the **Test Connection** button to test the API settings in the vendor account and ensure that a connection is made to the vendor's service (Baker & Taylor Axis 360 API).

If the test is successful, a message confirms that the connection was made. If a connection problem is encountered, one of the following messages may appear: Library account does not exist; Incorrect URL; There was a problem communicating with the Baker & Taylor Axis 360 API service; or other error messages as they become implemented by the Baker & Taylor API service.

7. Ask your Polaris representative to activate the vendor account.

This starts the API consumer service. To check the status of the service, see Polaris API Consumer Services.

Important:

After activating a vendor account, or reactivating a suspended vendor account, an IIS reset is required so that the PAC shows the correct information for the vendor's resources. For example, the IIS reset enables the Check Out or Place Hold button to be displayed instead of the **Temporarily Unavailable** button. Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

Creating the Axis 360 eContent Import Profile(s)

Note:

These are suggestions for setting up the import profiles for Axis 360 eContent processing; your Polaris site manager can assist you in setting up the import profiles to support your library's specific needs.

Depending on your library's purchasing and processing workflow for Axis 360 eContent, you may need to create multiple import profiles to support the following parts of the process:

- Enable integration for existing Axis 360 non-integrated eContent bibs Export and then re-import the non-integrated Axis 360 eContent titles.See Integrating Existing Axis 360 EContent.
- Enable integration for eContent titles downloaded from TS3 Import bibliographic records and enable integration for titles that have not yet been

ordered. Then, bulk add the bibs to create the purchase order. See<u>Integrating New</u> Axis 360 Bibs (Pre-Order).

• Overlay Axis 360 integrated eContent bibs and retain resource entities - Fully cataloged eContent bibs can be imported to overlay existing integrated eContent bibs while retaining the resource entities that enable the integration. See<u>Overlaying Axis 360 EContent Bibs</u>.

Integrating Existing Axis 360 EContent

If your library already has Axis 360 eContent records in its catalog, resource entities must be created for these records to enable integration with Polaris Circulation. This process involves locating all the Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records, putting the records in a record set, exporting the records to a file, optionally deleting the bibliographic records from the Polaris database, and then re-importing them using the import profile set up for integrating Axis 360 eContent records.

See also:

- Putting Existing Non-Integrated Axis 360 eContent Records in a Record Set
- Exporting the Record Set of Non-Integrated Axis 360 eContent Records
- (Optional) Deleting the Existing Non-Integrated Axis 360 Records
- Importing Existing Axis 360 Records to Enable the Integration

Putting Existing Non-Integrated Axis 360 eContent Records in a Record Set

To locate the existing Axis 360 eContent records and put them in a record set:

Note:

Work with your Polaris Site Manager to determine the best way to find these records. You may need to set up an SQL search in the Find Tool.

- 1. Set up the search criteria in the Find Tool to find the existing non-integrated Axis 360 records.
- 2. Select the records in the results list, right-click, and select Add to record set.

Exporting the Record Set of Non-Integrated Axis 360 eContent Records

Note:

If your library has SimplyReports and Export Express, you can select the record set to export. If your library does not have Export Express, your

Polaris Site Manager can assist you with exporting the record set from the staff client.

To export the Axis 360 eContent records using Export Express:

- 1. Log in to SimplyReports.
- 2. Select the **Bib list reports** tab.
- 3. Select Export Express > MARC file > No holdings.

Expand the Bibliographic record general filters, select Bib record set, and select the record set.

POLARIS
Patrons Patron Account Holds Items Bibs Authorities Serials Funds Invoices Orders My Reports Admin Help
Naximum rows to return 999999
Report output columns Columns selected for output Columns selected for sort
Bib creation date Bib creation date Bib creation date Bib finate date Bib finatime circ count Bib filetime in house use count Bib filetime in house use count Bib modification date
Include header rows
□ Text file Delimiter type Comma & Quotes ¥
Expert Express: WARC file Heldings type No holdings Character encoding MARC-8
Other formats Format Dublin core (OML) Submit Help
(- Bibliographic record general filters
ST Bib record set Asis360 Titles V

(Optional) Deleting the Existing Non-Integrated Axis 360 Records

Note:

Work with your Polaris site manager to determine if this task is right for your library. If you choose not to delete the bibliographic records, you must delete any item records that are linked to the bibliographic records. (New eContent item records will be created automatically during integration process.)

After exporting the records to a file on the desktop or another location, delete the records from the database.

To delete the non-integrated records from the Polaris database:

- 1. Open the record set of the non-integrated records.
- 2. Delete the non-integrated Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records and their linked items from the Polaris database.

Importing Existing Axis 360 Records to Enable the Integration

To set up the import profile, and then import the file of exported non-integrated Axis 360 records to enable their integration with Polaris Circulation:

- 1. Create an import profile specifically for importing existing non-integrated Axis 360 eContent as follows:
 - a. Select the **Integrated ebook Bibs** PolarisExec import profile in the Profile Manager, right-click, and select **Copy**.
 - b. On the Profile Setup tab, type a new name for the import profile, and select the Axis 360 vendor account.

ofile Setup	ibliographic Records Item Records Authority Records Record Sets	
Name:	Integrating existing Axis 360 eContent	Creator: peer
Description:		

- c. Select the Bibliographic Records tab and set the duplicate detection options that are appropriate for your library. Work with your Polaris site manager to determine which settings to modify.
- d. Select the Item Records tab and select the item template created for Axis 360 eContent

Note:

You can select any item template, but if your library uses resource groups, ensure that the item template's assigned branch is in the resource group with access to the Axis 360 vendor account.

- e. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- f. (Optional) Select the Record Set tab, and modify the settings.
- g. Save the import profile.
- 2. Select Utilities > Importing > Express Import or Full Import.
- 3. Select the import profile created for integrating existing non-integrated Axis 360 eContent.

Import profile: Integrating existing Axis 360 eCor	tent		
Profile Name	Description	Creator	8
Acquisitions Bibs 2	For Bib records from vendor selection tools (read only)	peer	
Axis 360 Integrated Ebook Imports	Use this import profile when importing Axis 360 ebooks.	peer	
Bib Import for Acquisitions		peer	
Integrating existing Axis 360 eContent		peer	see en la
Item record creation		peer	
LLP		peer	
More Integrated EBook Bibs This is the default profile for imported bib records for ebooks that w		peer	
New import		peer	1
New Profile for Community		peer	
New profile with source file name		peer	
OverDrive Integrated EContent		peer	
Reject all incoming records and save 970 tags.	For Bib records from vendor selection tools (read only)	peer	
Reject incoming duplicate records	This profile checks duplicates and rejects all incoming duplicate rec	peer	
Shap-raam	Encythed EDI (Consta (Dead and)	Dater	
mport files: 0 files selected			
			Add
			Remove
Andor account: Axis 360	~		

- 4. Click **Add** and select the file to import.
- 5. Click Import.

The Axis 360 titles are imported and integrated with Polaris circulation. After the import is complete, an overnight process synchronizes items out and hold requests in existing patron accounts.

Note:

If you want to add call numbers from the 099 tag to the newly-created

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

eContent item records, you can select the **Use call number fields from bib record** setting on the Item Bulk Change dialog box.

Integrating New Axis 360 Bibs (Pre-Order)

If your library creates Polaris purchase orders for Axis 360 eContent titles by downloading bibs from Baker & Taylor's Title Source 3 (TS3), importing the downloaded bibs, and then bulk-adding them to the purchase order, you can continue to use this workflow for integrated Axis 360 eContent records. At this point in the process, the records downloaded from TS3 are "placeholder" bib records for pre-publication titles or for published titles that have not been ordered yet. These records are not fully cataloged and lack the 856 tags that link to the eContent and enable the integration with Polaris.

Therefore, if your library uses TS3 for selecting and downloading Axis 360 records, your TS3 MARC Profile List must be set up first to supply the following sub-fields in the 037 tags of the downloaded Axis 360 records:

Note: See Set up the Baker & Taylor TS3 MARC Profile List.

- 037\$a BT key string The import process that creates resource entities for these placeholder records depends on the presence of the Baker & Taylor "BT key" in the 037\$a of the imported record. This also provides a unique identifier for deduplication when the full MARC record is imported at a later date.
- **037\$nTSeContent** To allow pre-publication titles to be integrated in the PAC, so that patrons can place holds on them, Polaris relies on the presence of an 037\$n tag containing the string: **TSeContent** (case does not matter).

When the files containing these 037 tags are imported using an import profile with Axis 360 selected in the **Vendor Account** field, 856 tags are constructed during import initialization using the data in these 037 tags and data from the selected Axis 360 vendor account. The constructed 856 tags follow this pattern:

856 40 ‡u{contractID}.baker-taylor.com/Title?itemID={string from 037 a subfield}‡3 {Default URL link text string from vendor account}‡x{contractID}

During the import process, these constructed 856 tags are used to create the resource entities in the bibliographic records. See <u>Resource Entities</u>. No item records are created because the titles have not yet been ordered.

When releasing the purchase order, the user must *not* create on-order items because the eContent item records are created by the overnight sync process after the titles have been purchased.

See also:

Import Axis 360 eContent Bibs Downloaded from TS3

Import Axis 360 eContent Bibs Downloaded from TS3

To set up the import profile for importing the Axis 360 eContent bibs downloaded from TS3 and enable integration with Polaris:

Note:

Once you have set up the import profile and saved it (step 1), any staff member with the appropriate Polaris permissions can select it for subsequent imports of Axis 360 records downloaded from TS3.

1. Create an import profile specifically for importing Axis 360 bibs downloaded from TS3:

Note:

For general information about creating, copying, and modifying import profiles, see <u>Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records</u>.

- a. Create a new, blank import profile or start with a PolarisExec import profile and copy it.
- b. On the Profile Setup tab, type a name for the import profile, select the Axis 360 vendor account in the **Vendor account** drop-down list box, and click **Save** to save the import profile.

and proof [BILIO	praphic Recends Dem Records Astherity Records Recend Sets		
Name:	is 360 recents downloaded from TS3 - Fra-Order import	Creator: Poer	
Description	e this profile for importing records downloaded from TS3.		
Source file name			Browner.
Vendor account:	Auts 360 v		

- c. Select the Bibliographic Records tab and select or modify the options. Work with your Polaris site manager to determine the settings appropriate for your library. See <u>Examples of Settings for TS3 Imports</u>
- d. Select the Item Records tab and clear the **Build item records** check box.

(EContent item records will be built by the overnight sync process once the titles have been ordered.)
hen Seving Bibliographic Records as Final	- Embedded holdings field/M/	ARC subfield	mapping	
Build terr records	Holdings tag	number:	852	
© Using complete/system default values only	Assigned Branch:	a	Loanable Outside System:	7
🛞 Using all evalable isoldings/item fields	Assigned Collection:	b	Meterial Type:	w
If a duplicate terri record (barcete) is found	Bartode:	Р	Name Of Piece:	
Save duplicate item record as provisional	Call Number Prefic	k	Non-Grouteting:	
O to not save duplicate item record	Call Number Suffic	m	Non Public Note:	н
Fino term record (barcode) is found	Circulation Status:		Owning Branch:	a
Save item record as final	Classification Rember:		Phasical Condition:	
Save item record as provisional	Classification intersper.		English Conditions	
③ Do not save item record	Capy Number:	e .	POLI-Segment ID:	
	Catter Number:	1	Price:	0
Display in PAC (When hot explicitly found)	Display In PAC	4	Public Note:	z
Here template (for fields that are missing):	Rise Code:	r	Renewal Limit:	Y
	Free Text Block:		Shelf Location:	¢
indate items / excited EDT)	Funding Source:	1	Shelving Scheme (1
20 obtaine sector Cestorene entral	Heldable:	5	Statistical Cade:	d
Pur-update error is encountered:	Library Assianed Black:		Temperary Shelf Location:	1
(ii) ≤ sve Hern recard as provisional	Long David Code:		Linkana, Kombary	
To not save nem record	Loan Penad Cabel	u	vourne humbers	×

- e. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- f. (Optional) Select the Record Set tab, and modify the settings.
- g. Save the import profile.

The import profile is ready for any staff member with the appropriate permissions to select when importing pre-order Axis 360 eContent records from TS3.

- 2. Select Utilities > Importing > Express Import or Full Import.
- 3. Select the import profile created for importing Axis 360 records from TS3.
- 4. Click **Add** and select the file of Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records downloaded from TS3.
- 5. Click Import.

The import job is added to the import queue. See <u>Axis 360 Import Jobs</u>. Once the import processing is complete, the Axis 360 eContent records are integrated with Polaris.

If your library follows this workflow, the imported records can be bulk-added to create the purchase order and the order can be sent to Baker & Taylor via EDI. See the *Acquisitions Guide*, Create a purchase order by bulk adding titles.

When releasing the purchase order, the **Display in PAC** option can be selected so that patrons can place holds on these on-order titles.

However, on-order items must *not* be created when the purchase order is released because the eContent item records are created by the overnight sync process when the titles have been purchased. When releasing an order for Axis 360, select **No** when the dialog box asks if you want to create on-order items.



Later, the library can import the full MARC records to overlay these "placeholder" bibs, while retaining the resource entities that enable the integration with Polaris. See <u>Overlaying Axis 360 EContent Bibs</u>.

Examples of Settings for TS3 Imports

The following are examples of settings on the import profile's Bibliographic Record tab to support a specific workflow. Your library may choose other options for importing TS3 pre-order bibs.

Display in PAC box is unchecked because the library opts to display these records only after the purchase order is released.

Perform MARC Validation and **Perform Authority Control** boxes are unchecked because the records are not yet fully cataloged.

Perform Duplicate Detection and **Use profile defined duplicate detection rules** are selected. The profile-defined rule is **incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a.** If the incoming records include added copies, they are detected based on this rule.

Reject incoming record; add MARC retention tags to database record is selected for processing suspected duplicate bibs. **Keep MARC tags** is selected automatically.

Profile defined overlay retention tags is selected, and the 970 tag and indicators are the

tags to retain. This allows the ordering data for added copies to be retained in the database record.

Biographic Save Options Save of records as final Save all records as provisional	Display in PAC	Delete MARC Tags on incoming record	n ≡ x
Do not save any records Record owner: QA*fiato 4.1 K2 (aps)]Do set overlay		
then Saving Bibliographic Records as Final			
Perform MARC 21. Validation Final stands: Sinva record as provisional Sinva record as provisional Sinva record as provisional Perform Duplicate Detection Use system defined duplicate detection rules Final suspected duplicate is found: Sinve incerning record as provisional	Perform Auth Tr⊂ Institut Autom Autom	Inty Control In Feeding is found: totally create new authority record; saws table create authority record; saws table create authority record; saws table provide the same same same same same provide table table provide table provide table table provide table	ographic record as final cord as final cord as provisional (25 unitipe proups) 4e = existing 037 4e
Save incoming record as final; da not replace Save incoming record as final; replace datas: Save incoming record as final; replace Save incoming record as final; replace Replat incoming record as final; replace Save incoming record as provisional (ig Reject incoming record; add MARC retertion	a database record ase record reading levels match: detabase record more 'Reep MARC Tags') tags to database record	Keep NAUL Tops System defined overlay retention tags Profile dafised overlay rotontion tags Tag Indicator 1 Indicator 2 MARC Boo 0,1,2,3,4 0,3,2,3,4 Polarec Def	s Kription fried Rule Add Enhanced Data

Overlaying Axis 360 EContent Bibs

When your library receives fully-cataloged Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records from Baker & Taylor or another vendor, a staff member imports these records using an import profile set up to: detect duplicates based on the 037 tag; overlay these duplicate with the full incoming records; and retain tags that create resource entities. See Import fully-cataloged bibs to overlay Axis 360 bibs.

Important:

Inform the bibliographic record vendor that the fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records provided to overlay integrated eContent bibs must have the following requirements:

• The records must be MARC or MARCXML bibliographic records.

• The 037 tags must be retained because that tag contains the eContent item identifier and serves as a match point to detect duplicates during importing.

Importing Fully-Cataloged Bibs to Overlay Axis 360 Bibs

To set up an import profile designed for importing fully-cataloged Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records, and then import the records using the profile.

Note:

Once you have set up the import profile and saved it (step 1), any staff member with the appropriate Polaris permissions can select it for subsequent imports of full Axis 360 bib records.

 Create an import profile specifically for importing fully-cataloged Axis 360 from Baker & Taylor or another vendor by copying the PolarisExec Integrated ebook Bibs import profile, or create a new import profile.

Note:

For general information about creating, copying, and modifying import profiles, see <u>Setting Up Import Profiles</u>.

2. On the Profile Setup tab, type a name for the import profile, select the Axis 360 vendor account in the **Vendor account** drop-down list box, and click **Save** to save the profile.

d'de tetap (BC)	Modify Import Profile - Axis 360 Fully-Cataloged Bibs to O agriptic Records [Bein Records Authority Records [Record Sets]	verlay Pre-order Bibs
Rame:	nn in olani (zen m gosten in on oran in krasten in esten in bos) Die Eus profile vitee emportung die fally-cataleged Auss bet records.	Ondar: 2007
boarce file nan	H6	Blowla -
Vendar account	т мая 200 м	

3. Select the Bibliographic Records tab and verify that the following options are set:

Important:

The Bibliographic Records tab must be set up to:

- perform duplicate detection using profile-defined rules;
- these rules must include incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a;
- the incoming records must be retained as final;
- 856 tags must be retained from overlaid bibs.

Other settings may be defined according to your library's workflow. Work with your Polaris site manager to set up this import profile specifically for overlaying Axis 360 pre-order bibs.

- Perform duplicate detection The check box must be selected.
- Use profile defined duplicate detection rules The check box must be selected.Rules to apply (as unique groups) The profile-defined rules must include incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a
- Save incoming record as final; replace database record This option must be selected under If a duplicate is found.
- Keep MARC tags The check box must be selected.
- Profile defined overlay retention tags This option must be selected, and the following tags must be listed as profile-defined overlay retention tags:
 - **856** any indicator 1 or 2 value.



- 4. Click **Save** to save the settings for the Bibliographic Records tab.
- 5. Select the Item Records tab and verify that the options for building item records are set correctly.

Note:

Item records are created by the overnight synch process after the Axis 360 titles are ordered. If you select the option to build item records when importing full Axis 360 bibs, item records are created only under certain circumstances. Work with your Polaris site manager to determine which item record options to select.

- 6. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- 7. (Optional) Select the Record Set tab, and name the record sets to identify the type of records being imported.
- 8. Save the import profile.

The import profile is ready for any staff member with the appropriate permissions to select when importing fully-cataloged Axis 360 eContent records.

- 9. Select Utilities > Importing > Express Import or Full Import.
- 10. Select the import profile created for importing fully-cataloged Axis 360 records.
- 11. Click **Add** and select the file of Axis 360 eContent bibliographic records downloaded from TS3.
- 12. Click **Import**.

The import job is added to the import queue. See <u>View the jobs or print reports for</u> <u>Axis 360 imports</u>. Once the import processing is complete, the pre-order Axis 360 eContent records are overlaid with the fully-cataloged records, and the Axis 360 titles retain the resource entities that enable the integration.

Axis 360 Added/Expired Copies

The API consumer service queries Axis 360 on a daily basis and synchs the number of eContent item records for each resource entity, either adding or removing eContent item records as necessary. For details on the synch process, see <u>Integration with Polaris and eContent Vendors</u>.

The item records are populated from the fields in the item template selected in the Axis 360 Vendor Account record. Only one **Ebook automatic import** item template can be selected in the vendor account, but the incoming added copies could be for either ebooks or downloadable audio ebooks. Since the library may need to modify fields, such as the item material type, collection etc., the added copy item records are automatically placed in a record set to make them easier to find and modify. Each vendor account can have only one record set for added copies, named following this pattern:

E-added copies_VendorAccountName_ID=nnn

If necessary, the vendor account name is truncated to fit the 50-character record set name limit, and the vendor account ID follows the name.

Example: E-added copies_Axis 360_ID=14

The record set owner is the same as the **Ebook automatic import** item template owner. If the owner is changed, a new system-generated record set with the correct owner is automatically created the next time the added copy process runs. If the record set is deleted or renamed, a new one is created automatically.

A staff member with the appropriate permissions can bulk change the item records in the record set. After making the changes, the records should be removed from the record set.

			Re	ecord S	et 4400	86 - Pr	olaris			-		×
St View	Tools Help											
2 🗖	- X II	1 all of	a 19									
				1100	21/3	in the			000000000	222	<u> 2020</u>	Č.
44.00	فالمتعاقفين	Sec. 1	lacia (es		2010							1.57
Ranet	E-added copes_Accs 3	160_ID=14		Owne	NT Dig?	tel Arench	(br)		Record t	ipie :	Zam (
Sec. 1										14	1000	
- THOMAS -										of the c	Sector Sector	
1.1.1.1									1 TO 18 - 16	2.2	- 101	ñ
C. Sec.									Sector Sector		1111	1
Title	Assigns	Callect.	Materia	Shelf	Call N.	Vol.	Statute	imrede	Last Activity D	Ř.,	Central	F
The Stor	stortup (el., Digital	Digital	+Devk				Out	aback2083486	2/24/2014	PL	9965406	Ċ,
3 506, 5	e besigners bigital	. paj 451	COUR.				89	cbaok9983444		Phys.	9900-944	7
5Q64 [al-	actronic real. Digital	Digital	-eleck				in 👘	eback9065413	2/27/2864	R.,	9965413	
3 Kingdo	na : Anas's Digital	Digital	-cook				0ut	4baok9983243	2/37/2004	Pi	9965243	
The 2-00	er det on the longitur -	Dig 450	COUR.				3 4	000049993330		Pl	7765316	
3 Questi	inc.: 6 Pevil. Digital .	Digital	-eleck				lin -	4back9965353		A	9965253	
30 Minute	ex (electron Deglati .	Digital	-eteok				in .	4beck9985250		n	9965250	
788 20+	ker Phanes. Digital a	. pajasi	OBMAK .				39 C	000003583185	2/27/2914	PL	9965185	
The 33 p	sorst Metak Orgital	. Degitel	-elip ok				in	+back9965360		A	9905268	
The 300	Simple Sec. Digital .	Digital	-elizek				in .	-sbeck9985189		R	9965166	
784 301	mest wheel, longitar a	. pajas	otext				84	000009983348		Ph	P965348	
365 man	ners lods etc Organi	. Degitel	-sipak				in	4back9965355		A	9965255	
1,090 de	Hen by 180 Digital	. Digital	-eliesk				in .	ebeok9965252		R	P968353	
THE ABC	reurgers [e togtal	Deg Bal	opeak				Out.	000049983285	2/28/2914	Pl	8965268	
The show	uttan (alam. , Orgital .	. bythi	-educate				in	eback/eesize		A.,	89653 til.	
The above	arbon Celert . Dontal	Digital	olipok				ln -	eback9965229		R	8965318	
The abo	in the second seco											

Axis 360 Import Jobs

The Import Jobs Queue lists import jobs by the date and time posted, whether the import jobs are for eContent bibs or other types of records. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

You can view or print a report for completed import jobs from the Import Jobs Queue window. The import report provides details regarding the import profile that was used, the settings in the import profile, the records created, errors (if any), and other details.

See: View the Jobs or Print Reports for Axis 360 Imports

View the Jobs or Print Reports for Axis 360 Imports

To view import jobs in the Import Jobs Queue:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue** to open the Import Jobs Queue window.

By default, the jobs are sorted by the date and time posted. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

Tip:

If you do not need to view the report before printing it, you can select the import job in list, and click the Report button, or right-click and select Print Report.

2. Double-click the import job you want to view or print.

The Import Report pdf appears in the preview window.

3. Select **File > Print** to print the report displayed in the preview window.

Axis 360 MARC Tags - Reference

When a user selects an Axis 360 vendor account in the import profile, the following MARC tags are used in the import process to create resource entities and enable integration between Axis 360 records and Polaris:

Note:

For more information, see <u>Resource Entities</u>.

• 037 - The 037 (source of acquisition) tag is required for creating the resource entity. Baker & Taylor provides the 037.

Example:

037 ‡adk42g9‡bBaker & Taylor Axis 360‡nhttp://eContent.Baker & Taylor.com

- 852 During import initialization, if the incoming Axis 360 records have 852 tags, they are removed from the records. New 852 tags are added for the correct number of copies.
- 856 40 During import initialization, the 856 tags with a first indicator (access method) of 4 (HTTP) and a second indicator of 2 (related resource) are updated

with a second indicator of 0 (resource). The tag is then converted to a resource entity and moved to the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform. It does not display in the MARC view.

Example:

856 40 ‡uhttp://poldev1.axis360qa.bakertaylor.com/Title?itemid=0012371026‡3Axis 360 eContent‡xPolDev3

• 856 42 - An 856 tag for the Axis 360 cover image is inserted into the record. The tag is copied to the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform and then changed to a 956 tag, which is retained in the MARC view.

Example:

856 42 ‡uhttp://images.btol.com/ContentCafe/Jacket.aspx?UserID=po laris-test&Password=polaristest&Return=1&Value=9781458123299&Type=S

- 856 42 \$3 During initializing, subfield 3 is populated by the **Default URL link text** field in the Axis 360 Vendor Account record.
- 008 and 007 The values required to create eContent Type of Material (TOM) codes may not be present in the Axis 360 records. You can use Bibliographic Bulk Change process to change or insert the appropriate tags and/or values.

Patron Access to Axis 360 EContent

For patrons who have logged into their PAC library accounts, the eContent available for checkout or hold requests depends on the Axis 360 vendor account and whether the patron's registered branch has access to the eContent provided by that account. For more information about options for displaying, managing, and circulating eContent, see the Patron Services Administration PDF Guide, Managing EContent in the PAC.

When the Axis 360 eContent is accessible to the logged-in patron, a **Check Out** button is displayed in the PAC search results if the title is available. If the patron has access, but the title is not available because it is checked out, a **Place Hold** button is displayed. If the patron does not have access to the eContent title, a **Restricted** button is displayed with the hover text **Sorry this title is currently not available at your registered branch**. You can modify this text string in WebAdmin using the mnemonic: **PACML_EBRESTRICTED_TIP**.

The library can change the **Check Out** and **Place Hold** button text by modifying the following strings in WebAdmin:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

• PACML_AXISCHECKOUT

• PACML_AXISPLACEHOLD

Before checking out the Axis 360 eContent in Polaris, the patron must first go to the library's Axis 360 Magic Wall web page and create an account using their library barcode, password, and the email address in their Polaris library account.

See also:

- <u>Check Out and Download Axis360 eContent from PowerPAC</u>
- <u>Check Out and Download Axis360 eContent from Mobile PAC</u>

Check Out and Download Axis360 eContent from PowerPAC

Before checking out the Axis 360 eContent in Polaris, the patron must first go to the library's Axis 360 Magic Wall web page and create an account using their library barcode, password, and the email address in their Polaris library account.

To check out the eContent in the PAC, the patron logs in to their account, and clicks or taps the **Check Out** button, which opens a light box.

The Ares	 Fifteen Poems [electronic resource] by Cohen, Leonard. Published: 2007. 	AVAILABILITY FULL DISPLAY
axis 360 2012	<i>Fifteen Poems</i> [<i>electronic resource</i>] Publisher, Date: Everymans Library, 2007. otten test entity Axis360 Description: 40 p.	Add to My List
Coogle Preview	Format (Primary): Electronic Resources Available: 1 (of 1) Current Holds: 0	

The patron clicks or taps **Check Out Now**.

	2012	Description: 40 p.		Add to List
T	Xex		Ô	
1-		Check out this Axis 360 ebook?		< < 1 > >
		Check out period: 2 Day(s)		
		Check Out Now		
h	-		Y	

A confirmation message box informs the user that the eContent title is checked out and ready to download.

	360 = 2012	Description: 40 p.	•	
1-	Africa Gener	Fifteen Poems [electronic resource] by Cohen, Leonard.	axis 360	
		Your ebook has been successfully checked out.		
		You may download it now using your Axis 360 app.		

The patron goes to the Axis 360 app on their device, logs into their Axis 360 account, selects **My lists**, **Items on Loan**, and downloads the eContent.

Check Out and Download Axis360 eContent from Mobile PAC

Before checking out the Axis 360 eContent in Polaris, the patron must first go to the library's Axis 360 Magic Wall web page and create an account using their library barcode, password, and the email address in their Polaris library account.

When checking out Axis 30 integrated eContent from Mobile PAC, the user selects the title in the Mobile PAC search results and selects **Check Out** on the Title page to go to the Check Out page.

Home > Se	arch > List > Title	Home > Search > List > Title							
JULIAN BARNES The Sense of an Ending	The sense of an ending [electronic resource] by Barnes, Julian. Publication Year: 2012 Available: 1 (of 1) Current Holds: 0 Add to my list	axis 360							
Find It		>							
Details		>							
Check Ou	ıt	>							
Purchase		>							
Link to No	oveList	>							
Author No	otes	> ~							

On the Check Out page, the user selects the **Check Out** button.

Home > Search > List > Title > Check Out						
JULIAN BARNES of an Ending of an Ending The sense of an ending [electronic resource] by Barnes, Julian. Check out period: 2 Dav(s)						
Check out period. 2 Day(s)						
Check Out						
∠ Back to Title						
Log Out						
Home Full Site About	~					

A confirmation message informs the user that the eContent has been checked out and is ready to download.

OverDrive EContent Integration

Libraries using the Polaris ILS can catalog, display in PAC, manage access, and circulate eContent from OverDrive. Innovative Interfaces requires a license for each integrated eContent vendor. Once the library has a subscription with OverDrive and the required Polaris license, the library creates an item template, an integrated vendor account, and an import profile in Polaris. The Vendor Account is in Polaris Administration, not in Acquisitions, and it is used during automatic importing to create resource entities for the bibliographic records.

As a result of this integration, patrons can search for, place holds on, and check out OverDrive eContent directly from the PAC. All associated circulation processing and tracking for these integrated eContent occurs in Polaris. Holds placed in the PAC for OverDrive eContent are recorded, but since holds activity is managed exclusively in the vendor's database, it is not reflected in the Polaris staff client.

OverDrive eContent may be in one of the following formats:

Note:

This list is subject to change as OverDrive develops its offerings.

- EPUB ebook
- PDF ebook
- WMA Audiobook
- MP3 Audiobook
- Magazine

OverDrive Advantage Accounts

Libraries participating in OverDrive Advantage accounts share eContent collections under a state, county, or consortium contract. The group of libraries sharing the collection may include libraries running an ILS other than Polaris. Patrons from these non-Polaris libraries can still check out shared titles from the OverDrive application. However, unlike the synchronization process that runs every 5-15 minutes when patrons from a Polaris library check out eContent from the OverDrive application, the process to synchronize remote patron checkouts from the app runs every 24 hours–updating the Polaris item status to **unavailable** (rather than checked out) and then to **in** when they are available. If your library uses OverDrive Advantage, you can set up the OverDrive Vendor Account so that PAC users who are connected at the system level and not logged in do not see the Advantage titles. See: <u>Create an OverDrive integrated vendor account</u>.

OverDrive and Polaris Synchronization

Availability and hold counts (total number of copies, number of available copies, and number of holds) for OverDrive eContent titles appear in the PAC based on the status of the items in the OverDrive repository, not on the status of the items in the Polaris database. Patrons can see the availability information whether they are logged into their library account or not.

The Polaris API consumer service queries the OverDrive database daily to find and fetch the metadata for titles identified as those the library has purchased. After fetching the OverDrive metadata, the API consumer service identifies duplicates by matching on the object identifier or title ID. If the title is new to the catalog, the OverDrive XML metadata is converted to MARC XML, and the file is automatically added to the Polaris import queue to be imported. OverDrive imports are done once daily, around midnight.

When a patron checks out or places a hold on a OverDrive title in Polaris, the data is immediately updated in the Polaris database and in the vendor's repository. However, when a patron uses the OverDrive app to initiate circulation, the synchronization process takes longer because the app uses the Polaris API to push the data to Polaris, and then the API consumer service completes the process. The API consumer service also performs a periodic "pull" query of the OverDrive database and then synchonizes the data if any circulation activity was detected.

The Polaris database and OverDrive are synchonized as follows:

- Holds Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from the PAC Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from the OverDrive or Libby app Every 5-15 minutes
- Added copy for an existing title Once daily (overnight)
- Expired copy for an existing title Once daily (overnight)
- Added title new MARC record Once daily (overnight)
- Added title prepublication Once daily (overnight)

To ensure that the API consumer service synchronizes transactions correctly when a server is rebooted, the API consumer service attempts to connect every 35 seconds for 20 minutes. If it fails to connect, the service stops.

See also:

- Setting Up Polaris for OverDrive Integration
- Integrating New OverDrive EContent
- OverDrive Added/Expired Copies
- Overlaying OverDrive EContent Bibs
- OverDrive Import Jobs
- Patron Access to OverDrive EContent

Setting Up Polaris for OverDrive Integration

To enable the import processing that integrates OverDrive eContent with Polaris, the item templates, vendor account, and import profiles must be set up correctly in Polaris. Your Polaris Site Manager can assist your library with this setup.

See also:

- Set up the eContent item templates for OverDrive
- Create an OverDrive integrated vendor account
- Create OverDrive eContent import profile(s)

Setting Up the eContent Item Templates for OverDrive

To enable the automatic creation of OverDrive eContent item records, you must create an item template named **Ebook automatic import** or **E-book automatic import** (additional text can be appended to this name, but it must begin with this string). This template supplies the default data used to create eContent item records during the automatic import process. After you set up the **Ebook automatic import** item template, you select it in the Vendor Account workform. See <u>Create an OverDrive integrated</u> <u>vendor account</u>.

Note:

The **Ebook automatic import** item template is used for all types of integrated eContent, including audio ebooks. After the automatic import, you can edit the OverDrive item records using the Item Bulk Change process.

You can also create multiple other item templates, named however your library wishes, to use when re-importing existing non-integrated OverDrive records. For example, if your library has existing non-integrated OverDrive ebooks and audio ebooks, you can set up one item template for ebooks and one item template for audio ebooks. Then, you can select the appropriate item template in the import profile when you are re-importing these existing records.

To set up the item templates for OverDrive:

- 1. Select **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.
- 2. Select Item Template and click OK.

The Item Template workform opens.

I		New Item	Template 1	- Cataloging - Polar	is – 🗆 🗙
File Ed	lit View Lin	ks Tools Help			
B	≱ 日	a 🗙 🖉 😭			
ite	Template Name:			Template owner:	Community Library (br) V
plđ	Title: Author:				Find Bib control number: Non-circulating Parent item:
Ter	Call number:			✓	Display in PAC Price:
μ	Owner:	Community Library (br)		✓ Shelf location	(None) V
e/	Assigned:	Community Library (COB)		✓ Temporary	location:
И	Collection:	(None)		✓ Circulation s	status: In-Process V
7	Circulation pa	rameters	Call number		Request
2	Material type:	(None) V	Scheme:	(None)	Loanable outside system
	Loan period:	(None) V	Prefix:		✓ Holdable
	Fine code:	(None) V	Class:		Limit to:
	Renewal limit:		Cutter:		Pickup at
	Stat code:	(None) V	Volume:		×
	Name of piece	e:	Copy:		Patrons from this library and branches
					Patrons from this branch only
	Home branch:	Community Library (COB) V	Do not f	float	Preferred borrowers
For Help,	press F1				NUM

- 3. Type a name for the OverDrive eContent item template.
- If you are creating the item template that will be selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account workform, it must be named **Ebook automatic import** or **E-book automatic import**. Case does not matter, and other words can follow this string, but the name must begin with **Ebook automatic import**. For information about the items created from the automatic import item template, see

- If you are creating an item template to create eContent item records during a nonautomatic import, you can type any name in the Name box. You can create as many of these templates as are appropriate for your library. For example, your library may already have non-integrated OverDrive records in various electronic formats (ebook, audio ebook, etc.) in its database. When importing these records to enable their integration with Polaris Circulation, the user can select one of these eContent templates.
- 4. Select the branch that owns the template in the **Template owner** box.
- 5. In the **Assigned** box, select the branch for the eContent items that will be created using this template.

Note:

If a resource group is selected in the Vendor Account, the **Assigned** branch selected in the item template must belong to the resource group.

- 6. In the Circulation status box, select In.
- 7. Select the **Fine code** and **Renewal limit**. These fields are required to save the item template, but they are ignored in eContent items circulation processing.
- 8. Select **File > Save**, select the save button, or press **Ctrl+S** to save the template.

See also: EContent Item Records.

Creating an OverDrive Integrated Vendor Account

Vendor and Vendor account records are accessed through the Polaris Administration Explorer; they cannot be accessed from the Find Tool. Polaris Administration ownership and inheritance do not apply to vendor records or vendor accounts.

To create an integrated vendor account for OverDrive.

Note:

Vendor account permissions are not organization-specific, and users in the Admin group are granted these permissions: **Vendor Account: Access, Create, Modify, Delete**.

Tip:

You cannot create a new Vendor Account by selecting **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

File Acquisitions Serials Cataloging Patron Services Circulation	Administration Utilities Wi	ndow Help	
🗋 🔵 🖾 🚰 🕮 🞇 📰 🎘 🔚 🗃 🕯	Explorer >	System Library	0 🔵 😭
	Server	Branch	
	Library Branch	Staff Member	
	Staff Member	Collection	
	Workstation	Server	
	Patron	Vendor	
	Permission Group		
	Resource Group		

1. Select Administration > Explorer > System > Vendor.

2. Expand the Vendors list, and select the integrated OverDrive vendor.

The Vendor information appears in the right tab.

Administration Explorer – Vendor			_		Х
File Help					
Vendors Vendors Could/brary (integrated) Axis 360 (integrated) CoverDrive, Inc. (non-integrated) RBdigital (integrated) RBdigital (integrated)	Vendor Vendor Information Integrated circulation ve Name: OverDrin Availability and holds courin O Show availability and Show availability and OverDrive Advantage	ndor re, Inc. (integrated) nts when connected at system holds counts for shared copie holds counts for a specific Adh a account ID = 125 (OverDrive	level and patron s only vantage account LEAD)	not logge ~ Save	d
For Help, press F1	1				:

The Integrated circulation vendor read-only box is checked.

The Vendor Information tab provides two options for displaying eContent availability and holds counts to PAC users who are searching the PAC at the system level and are not logged in:

 Show availability and hold counts for shared copies only - When this option is selected (the default), users who are connected to the PAC at the system level, and have not logged into their patron accounts, will see availability and holds counts only for OverDrive eContent copies shared throughout the OverDrive group. Advantage titles display only after the patron has logged in to an organization that participates in the Advantage account.

- Show availability and holds counts for a specific Advantage account When you select this option and select the specific Advantage account from the drop-down list, both the shared eContent titles and the titles from the selected Advantage account display when users are connected at the system level and not logged in.
- 3. Right-click the **Overdrive**, **Inc.** (integrated) Vendor node, and select **New**.

Vendors	Vendor
🕀 🔡 Vendors	Vendor Information
3M Cloud Library (integrated) Axis 360 (integrated)	Integrated circulation vendor
Generic Vendor (non-integrate	Nama: OverDrive, Inc. (integrated)
OverDrive QA1	Cancel , availability and holds counts for shared copies only Show availability and holds counts for a specific Advantage account
	OverDrive Advantage account ID = 125 (OverDrive LEAD)

The Vendor Account workform opens with **OverDrive Inc. (integrated)** in the **Vendor name** box.

				Martin State Star
Edit	Help			
Í				
Ve	ndor name:	OverDrive, Inc. (integrated)	✓ Integrated ci	rculation vendor
Ve	indor account name:		Active	
	ades amount description.			
	noor account description.			
Re	source group:	(None)		
leo	on URL:			
0	verOrive library ID			
		Second and the second se		
Ven	dor account settings:			Test Connec
	Attribute		Value	
	Vendor account acce	es ID	Value	
	Vendor account acce	ss kev		
	Vendor account base	path		
	Vendor account serv	er name		
	Vendor account use	SSL	No	0.0000000000000000000000000000000000000
	Vendor account impo	rt profile ID	Integrated ebook Bibs	
	Vendor account item	template ID	(None)	
	Library OAuth URL			
	Patron OAuth URL			
	Patron API URL			
	Library web-site ID			
	Default URL link text			
	ILS name			
	0.01.44	- 10		

4. View the system-supplied fields and enter information in the editable fields:

Note:

Required fields have bold labels.

- Vendor name OverDrive Inc. (integrated) System-supplied; read-only
- Integrated circulation vendor This check box is automatically checked.
- Vendor account name (required) The library supplies a unique name to identify the account.
- Active This check box is initially unchecked when you are creating a vendor account for an integrated eContent vendor. Leave the check box unchecked, and enter the account information. Innovative Interfaces activates the vendor account.
- Vendor account description (optional) The library can add a description for the vendor account.
- Resource group (optional) The library can select a resource group to limit access to the eContent by branch. Search the Polaris help for "Manage patron access to eContent using resource groups."

- **Icon URL** (optional) The library can specify a URL location for the icon that represents the eContent vendor.
- **OverDrive library ID** The ID identifying the library's account with OverDrive.
- Vendor account access ID The library's access ID for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account access key The library's access key for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account base path The URL path to the library's resources at eContent vendor.
- Vendor account server name The vendor account server name.
- Vendor account use SSL The library selects Yes or No to indicate whether Secure Socket Layer is used.
- Vendor account import profile ID Identifies the import profile set up to enable the automatic import and integration. The PolarisExec Integrated ebook Bibs import profile is selected by default.
- Vendor account item template ID The library creates the item template used during the API-driven processes. The item template name must begin with Ebook automatic import or E-book automatic import.

Tips

The library's server should be set within 5 minutes of the correct time because OverDrive has a 5-minute time difference threshold on their servers.

- Library OAuth URL The URL is used to grant the Polaris ILS an access token to access the OverDrive API.
- **Patron OAuth URL** The URL is used to grant the Polaris ILS an access token for patron circulations.
- Patron API URL The URL used to perform circulation functions.
- Library web-site ID The web site ID used by OverDrive to identify the library's collection for circulation purposes.
- **Default URL link text** Identifies the URL link text and is also used as hover text for the vendor icon.
- ILS name Identifies the ILS.
- OverDrive Advantage Account ID This field is required only for OverDrive Advantage accounts.

- 5. Save the Vendor Account workform.
- 6. Click the **Test Connection** button to test the API settings in the vendor account and ensure that a connection is made to the vendor's service (OverDrive API).

If the test is successful, a message confirms that the connection was made. If a connection problem is encountered, a message appears.

7. Ask your Polaris representative to activate the vendor account.

This starts the API consumer service. To check the status of the service, see Check the status of the Polaris API consumer service.

Important:

After activating a vendor account, or reactivating a suspended vendor account, an IIS reset is required so that the PAC shows the correct information for the vendor's resources. For example, the IIS reset enables the Check Out or Place Hold button to be displayed instead of the **Temporarily Unavailable** button. Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

Create OverDrive eContent import profile(s)

Note:

These are suggestions for setting up the import profiles for OverDrive eContent processing; your Polaris site manager can assist you in setting up the import profiles to support your library's specific needs.

Your library can copy and rename the PolarisExec read-only **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile, and then select the renamed import profile in the Vendor Account workform. Before selecting an import profile other than the **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile in the OverDrive Vendor Account workform, consult with your Polaris site manager. See <u>Automatic Import Profile Selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account</u>.

Depending on your library's processing workflow for OverDrive eContent, you may need to create other import profiles used to support the following non-automatic import processes:

 Enable integration for existing OverDrive non-integrated eContent bibs - Export and then re-import the non-integrated OverDrive eContent titles. See <u>Integrating</u> <u>Existing OverDrive EContent</u>. Overlay OverDrive integrated eContent bibs with fully-cataloged bibs while retaining the resource entities - Fully cataloged eContent bibs can be imported to overlay existing integrated eContent bibs, while retaining the resource entities that enable the integration with Polaris circulation. See <u>Overlaying OverDrive EContent</u> <u>Bibs</u>.

Integrating Existing OverDrive EContent

If your library already has OverDrive eContent records in its catalog, these existing nonintegrated bibs must be processed to create the resource entities that enable integration with Polaris Circulation. This process involves: locating all the OverDrive eContent bibliographic records; putting the records in a record set; exporting the records to a file; deleting the non-integrated bibliographic records from the Polaris database; and then re-importing the exported bibs using an import profile set up for this purpose.

See also:

- Putting Existing Non-Integrated OverDrive Bibs in Record Sets
- Exporting OverDrive Non-Integrated eContent Bibs
- Deleting the Exported OverDrive Non-Integrated Bibs
- Re-Importing Existing Non-Integrated OverDrive Records

Putting Existing Non-Integrated OverDrive Bibs in Record Sets

To locate the existing OverDrive eContent records and put them in record sets

Note:

You can put all the existing OverDrive eContent bib records in a single record set. However, separating your ebooks from audio-ebooks, and then re-importing the bibs in separate processes allows you to create item records from specific templates.

1. Set up the search criteria in the Find Tool to find the existing non-integrated Over-Drive records.

Note:

Work with your Polaris site manager to determine the best way to find these records. You may need to set up an SQL search in the Find Tool.

- 2. Select the records in the results list, right-click, and select Add to record set.
- 3. Save the record set with a name that identifies the records.

Exporting OverDrive Non-Integrated eContent Bibs

Export the records to a file on the computer's desktop or some other easily-accessible location. It is not necessary to include embedded holdings in the export.

Note:

If your library has SimplyReports and Export Express, you can select the record set to export. If your library does not have Export Express, your Polaris Site Manager can assist you with exporting the record set from the staff client.

To export the OverDrive eContent records using Export Express:

- 1. Log in to SimplyReports.
- 2. Select the **Bib list reports** tab.
- 3. Select Export Express > MARC file > No holdings.

Expand the Bibliographic record general filters, select **Bib record set**, and select the record set.

POLARIS	oorts	Log out
Patrons Patron Accou	at Holds Items Bibs Authorities Serials Funds	Invoices Orders My Reports Admin Help
	Bib list reports Bib count reports Bib statistical report	rts Export profiles
		Maximum rows to return 999999
Report output columns	Columns selected for output Columns selected	ected for sort
Bib creation date Bib creation name Bib first available date Bib lifedime circ count Bib lifetime in house use count Bib lifetime in house use count		*
Include header rows		
Text file Delimiter	Comma & Quotes V	
Expert Express:		
HARC file Holdings type	No holdings	
HARCEL Custom	COLLECTIONHO - DO NOT EDIT	
Cithar formata	Dublis core (XML)	
	Contraction from the second	Submit Help
- Bibliographic record general filte	5	
Bib record set Axis360 T	les 🗸	

Deleting the Exported OverDrive Non-Integrated Bibs

After exporting the OverDrive non-integrated bib records to files on the desktop or another location, delete the bibs and items from the database.

To delete the non-integrated records from the Polaris database.

- 1. Open the record set of the non-integrated records.
- 2. Delete the OverDrive non-integrated eContent bibliographic records and their linked items from the Polaris database.

Re-Importing Existing Non-Integrated OverDrive Records

The import profile must have specific settings that enable the integration with Polaris circulation. Other settings depend on your library's decisions.

You can create multiple import profiles, each with a specific item template selected, so that the eContent item records are created for specific collections. Then, if your exported non-integrated ebooks and audio-ebooks are in different files, you can import them in separate processes.

Note:

Newly-purchased OverDrive eContent records will be imported automatically using the default **Integrated ebook bibs** import profile (or a renamed copy of this profile) selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account workform. See <u>Automatic Import Profile Selected in the OverDrive Vendor</u> <u>Account</u>.

To set up the import profile and then import the existing non-integrated OverDrive bibs.

Note:

If this profile is already set up, skip step 1.

1. Create an import profile specifically for importing existing non-integrated Over-Drive eContent.

You can start with a new import profile, or select an existing profile, rename it, and modify the settings. For general information about copying and renaming import profiles, see Copy a Polaris read-only import profile.

a. On the Profile Setup tab, type a new name for the import profile, and select the OverDrive account in the **Vendor account** box.

Name:	rive - Integrating existing reco		Creator	r peer
Description:				

b. Select the Bibliographic Records tab. If you have deleted all your Over-Drive records, you can turn off duplicate detection.

Work with your Polaris site manager to determine which duplicate-detection settings are appropriate for your library.

- c. Select the Item Records tab, and ensure that the following options are set:
 - Build item records check box is checked
 - Using all available holdings/item fields is selected.
 - Item template (for fields that are missing): The correct eContent item template is selected.

Note:

You can select any item template when you import existing non-integrated OverDrive eContent. However, if your library uses resource groups, ensure that the item template's assigned branch is in the resource group that shares the OverDrive vendor account. When *new* OverDrive eContent is purchased by the library, the automatic process uses the specific Ebook automatic import item template selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account.

	CONTRACTOR OF A DESCRIPTION	ALC PROVER	1 mapping	
uid item recurds Using embedded holdings fields only	Holdings tag	number:	852	
Using template/system default values only	Assigned Branch:	ð	Loanable Ostaide System:	7
E Using all available holdings/item fields	Assigned Collection:	b	Material Type:	w
a duplicate item record (barcode) is found:	Lercode:	p	Name Of Piece:	
Save daplicate item record as provisional	Coll Number Prefix:	k	Non Circulating:	
O bo not save duplicate item record	Call Number Suffix	m	Non Public Neta:	8
no item record (barcode) is found:	Circulation Status:		Owning Branch:	8
save tem record as final	Classification Number:	h	Physical Candition:	4
Sove tem record as previsional	Copy Number:	t	POLI-Segment ID:	
0	Cutter Number:	0	Price:	1
Display in PAC (when not explicitly found)	Display In PAC:	4	Public Nate:	z
em tamplata (for fields that are missing):	Fine Coder	r	Renewal Linit:	Y
bosk (Cammunity Library) 🛛 🗸 🗸	Free Text Block:		Shelf Location:	E
adda Barra (aminhad 1995)	Funding Source:	1	Shelving Scheme:	1
pade erra (errane cos)	Holdable:	5	Statistical Code:	d
an update error to encountered	Ubrery Assigned Block:		Temporary Shelf Location:	T
- Save item record as provisional	Loan Derind Code:		Volume Barebar	

- d. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- e. Select the Record Set tab, and ensure that the record sets are named appropriately to identify the types of records in them.
- f. Save the import profile.

The import profile is available to select when re-importing existing OverDrive eContent bibs to enable the integration with Polaris circulation.

- After the import profile is set up, to re-import the OverDrive bibs, select Utilities > Importing > Full Import.
- 3. Select the import profile created in step 1.
- 4. On the Profile Setup tab, click **Add** and select the file of exported non-integrated OverDrive bibs to import.
- 5. Click the **Import** button.

The OverDrive titles are imported and integrated with Polaris circulation, and item records are created. After the import is complete, an overnight process synchronizes items out and hold requests in existing patron accounts.

Note:

If you want to add call numbers from the 099 tag to the newly-created eContent item records, you can select the **Use call number fields from bib record** setting on the Item Bulk Change dialog box.

Integrating New OverDrive EContent

When the library purchases a new OverDrive title, bibliographic metadata about that title is automatically received by the Polaris API consumer service, formed into a MARC record, added to an import file, and positioned for import in the import jobs queue. Then, the bibliographic records are imported by the automatic import process, which uses settings in the OverDrive Vendor Account to create a resource entity for each record. The resource entity identifies the Polaris Vendor Account and provides the link to the electronic resource in the OverDrive repository. Beginning with the first record in the file, each bib is checked for a match between the URL syntax in the 856 tag and the information in the Polaris Vendor Account. If a match is found, a resource entity is created in the bibliographic record. See <u>Resource Entities</u>

The automatic import process also creates eContent item records. During the import initialization, OverDrive is queried to find the number of copies. Based on the results of this query, 852 tags are created in the eContent bibliographic records. When the bibliographic records are imported, item records are created from the 852 tags and the fields in the template selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account. For more information, see <u>EContent Item Records</u>.

Once an 852 tag has been used to create an item record, a \$9 subfield is added to the 852 tag so that it is not used again to create an eContent item record. When the Subfield 9 cleanup utility runs, the subfield \$9 is removed.

Automatic Import Profile Selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account

The **Integrated ebook Bibs** PolarisExec import profile is set up to enable eContent integration for automatic imports. If you copy and rename this import profile, the renamed import profile must be selected in the Vendor Account workform.

Work with your Polaris site manager to create the import profile to select in the OverDrive Vendor Account. These are some guidelines when copying the **Integrated ebook Bibs** to create a new import profile for OverDrive automatic imports:

- Profile Setup tab You can type a different name and description, but do not select a source file or a vendor account.
- Bibliographic Records tab Work with your site manager to determine the duplicate detection options to set.
- Item Records tab The Build item records, Using all available holdings/item fields must be selected, and the Embedded holdings field/MARC subfield mapping options should not be changed. Do not select a template because the item

template used in automatic import processing is selected in the Vendor Account workform, not in the import profile.

- Authority Records tab Leave the **Do not save any records** option selected.
- Record Sets tab You can rename the record sets without affecting the automatic import.

OverDrive Added/Expired Copies

The API consumer service queries OverDrive on a daily basis and synchronizes the number of eContent item records for each resource entity, either adding or removing eContent item records as necessary. For details on the synch process, see EContent Vendor and Polaris Synchronization.

The item records are populated from the fields in the **Ebook automatic import** item template selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account record. Only one Ebook automatic import item template can be selected in the vendor account, but the incoming added copies could be for either ebooks or audio ebooks. Since the library may need to modify fields, such as the item material type, collection etc., the added copy item records are placed in a record set to make them easier to find and modify.

EContent item records created during added copy processing are automatically added to record sets. Each vendor account has only one system-supplied record set for added copies, named following this pattern:

E-added copies_VendorAccountName_ID=nnn

If necessary, the vendor account name is truncated to fit the 50-character record set name limit, and the vendor account ID follows the name.

Example: E-added copies_OverDrive_ID=10

The record set owner is the same as the **Ebook automatic import** item template owner. If the owner is changed, a new system-generated record set with the correct owner is automatically created the next time the added copy process runs. If the record set is deleted or renamed, a new one is created automatically.

A staff member with the appropriate permissions can bulk change the item records in the record set. After making the changes, the records should be removed from the record set.

) 🖻	🕹 🖥 🖶 🗧	(🖳 🖁	16	17								
i i	Name: E-added cop	ies_OverDriv	e QA1_ID=	19	Owner	: Digital B	ranch (I	x)		 Record type 	; De	m
ñ	Note:									Number of r	ecords	51 15
5										🔍 💵 🗕 🛛 😂	8.	- 🗗 🛛
С П	Title	Assigne	Collect	Materi_	Shelf	Call Nu	Vol	Status	Barcode	Last Activity D	R	Control
2	The Adventure of the	Digital B	. Digital	eBook				Out	econtent9949578	3/14/2014	, Bui	996957
	The Jiad [electronic	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Jn	econtent9969490	3/26/2014	Ð	996949
-	The Iliad [electronic	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Out	econtent9971509	3/19/2014	· Fl	997150
3	Lad: A Dog [electroni	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Jn 👘	econtent9969534	3/11/2014	· Fl	996953
5	The Old Curiosity Sh	Digital B	Digital	eBook				Out	econtent9969491	3/11/2014	Fl	996949
-	The Old Curiosity Sh	Digital B	Digital	eBook				ln	econtent9969535	3/17/2014	fi	996953
1	Riders of the Silence	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Out	econtent9971543	3/20/2014	Fi	997154
	A Room with a View	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				h	econtent9969372	3/21/2014	fi	996937
144	A Room with a View	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				ln .	econtent9969373	3/7/2014	fi	996937
80	Some Christmas Stor	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				In	econtent9969533	3/10/2014	· Fl	996953
1975	Thought-Culture [ele	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Out	econtent9972627	3/25/2014	R	997262
	Twelfth Night [electr	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				ln -	econtent9909374	3/3/2014	R	996937
	The Wave [electronic	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Jn .	econtent9969375	3/3/2014	Ð	996937
	The White Ladies of	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				Jn .	econtent9969492	3/17/2014	Ð	996949
	The Yosemite Felectr	Digital 8	Digital	eBook				ln	econtent9969376	3/18/2014	Fi	996937

Overlaying OverDrive EContent Bibs

When your library receives fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records to overlay existing OverDrive records, a staff member imports these records using an import profile set up to: detect duplicates based on the 037 tag; overlay these duplicate with the full incoming records; and retain tags that create resource entities.

Important:

Inform the bibliographic record vendor that the fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records provided to overlay integrated eContent bibs must have the following requirements:

The records must be MARC or MARCXML bibliographic records.

The 037 tags must be retained because that tag contains the eContent item identifier and serves as a match point to detect duplicates during importing.

See also: Importing Fully-Cataloged Bibs to Overlay Axis 360 Bibs

Import fully-Cataloged Bibs to Overlay OverDrive Bibs

To set up an import profile designed for importing fully-cataloged OverDrive eContent bibliographic records, and then import the records using the profile.

Note:

Once you have set up the import profile and saved it (step 1), any staff member with the appropriate Polaris permissions can select it for subsequent imports of full bib records to overlay the OverDrive bibs.

- 1. Create an import profile specifically for importing fully-cataloged bibs to overlay OverDrive records.
 - a. Copy the PolarisExec Integrated ebook Bibs import profile, or create a new import profile.

Note:

For general information about creating, copying, and modifying import profiles, see <u>Setting Up Import Profiles</u>.

- b. On the Profile Setup tab, type a name for the import profile, select the OverDrive vendor account in the **Vendor account** drop-down list box, and click **Save** to save the profile.
- c. Select the Bibliographic Records tab and verify that the following options are set:
 - Perform duplicate detection The check box must be selected.
 - Use profile defined duplicate detection rules The check box must be selected.
 - Rules to apply (as unique groups) The profile-defined rules must include incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a
 - Save incoming record as final; replace database record This option must be selected under If a duplicate is found.
 - Keep MARC tags The check box must be selected.
 - **Profile defined overlay retention tags** This option must be selected, and the following tags must be listed as profile-defined overlay retention tags: **856** any indicator 1 or 2 value.

Tag: 🔤		Sect	nanic	Loca	500 1	and A	topes	8			
Indicator 1: 🔎	1	2	3	+	5		7	8	9	Serk	
Indicator 2:	1	2	3	4	3		7	в	9	Siark	

- d. Click **Save** to save the settings for the Bibliographic Records tab.
- e. Select the Item Records tab and verify that the **Build item records** check box is not checked.

Note:

OverDrive item records are created automatically via the automatic import process.

- f. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- g. (Optional) Select the Record Set tab, and name the record sets to identify the type of records being imported.
- h. Save the import profile.

The import profile is ready for any staff member with the appropriate permissions to select when importing fully-cataloged OverDrive eContent records.

- 2. Select Utilities > Importing > Express Import or Full Import.
- 3. Select the import profile created for importing fully-cataloged OverDrive records.
- 4. Click **Add** and select the file of fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records to replace the existing OverDrive records, while retaining the tags required for integration with Polaris Circulation.
- 5. Click **Import**.

The import job is added to the import queue. Once the import processing is complete, the OverDrive bibs are overlaid with the fully-cataloged records, and they retain the resource entities that enable the integration.

OverDrive Import Jobs

The Import Jobs Queue lists import jobs by the date and time posted, whether the import jobs are for eContent bibs or other types of records. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

You can view or print a report for completed import jobs from the Import Jobs Queue window. The import report provides details regarding the import profile that was used, the settings in the import profile, the records created, errors (if any), and other details.

Viewing the Jobs or Print Reports for OverDrive Imports

To view import jobs in the Import Jobs Queue:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue** to open the Import Jobs Queue window.

By default, the jobs are sorted by the date and time posted. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

Tip:

If you do not need to view the report before printing it, you can select the import job in list, and click the **Report** button, or right-click and select **Print Report**.

2. Double-click the import job you want to view or print.

The Import Report pdf appears in the preview window.

3. Select **File > Print** to print the report displayed in the preview window.

Patron Access to OverDrive EContent

For patrons who have logged into their library accounts, the eContent available for checkout or hold requests depends on the OverDrive account with the patron's registered branch or with the resource group to which the registered branch is a member. If the Polaris Vendor Account has been set up for an OverDrive Advantage account, users who are not logged in and are connected to the PAC at the system level will see availability and hold counts depending which OverDrive Advantage option is selected in the OverDrive Vendor Account: Show availability and hold counts for shared copies only or Show availability and hold counts for a specific Advantage account. See Create an OverDrive integrated vendor account.

For more information about options for displaying, managing, and circulating eContent, search Polaris help for "Managing EContent in the PAC."

When the OverDrive eContent is accessible to the logged in patron, a **Check Out** button is displayed in the PAC search results if the title is available. If the patron has access,

but the title is not available, a **Place Hold** button is displayed. If the patron does not have access to the eContent title, a **Restricted** button is displayed with the hover text **Sorry this title is currently not available at your registered branch**. You can modify this text string in WebAdmin using the mnemonic: **PACML_EBRESTRICTED_TIP**.

You can prevent or allow downloads of OverDrive integrated eContent on library computers designated as in-house workstations. See the Public Access Administration Guide, Prevent or allow downloads of OverDrive eContent on in-house workstations.

The library can change the **Check Out** and **Place Hold** button text for OverDrive eContent by modifying the following strings in WebAdmin:

• PACML_OVERDRIVECHECKOUT

• PACML_OVERDRIVEPLACEHOLD

Patrons who are logged into their accounts in PowerPAC or Mobile PAC can check out OverDrive integrated eContent titles and access the file from the final checkout acknowledgment or from their patron accounts. If the title is available in a single format, the PAC user selects the single format shown. If the title is available in multiple formats, the user selects the **Get It** button, and a drop-down menu displays the available formats.

The patron experience may vary according to the device used to access the eContent; the operating system and the apps installed; and the browser settings. To access the eContent, the patron may need to allow one-time pop-ups or turn off the pop-up blocker on some devices, such as on the iPad.

The following variables are outside of the control of the Polaris software:

- DRM-protected Adobe PDF and EPUB files (.acsm files) may open in the OverDrive reading application, Adobe Digital Editions, or another reading application.
- OverDrive Read, OverDrive Listen, MediaDo, and streaming video titles open and play in a new browser tab or a new browser window.
- Kindle titles open in a new browser tab or window with an Amazon login page. The title is sent to the user's Kindle account; the Kindle app does not open automatically.
- Nook titles are sent to the user's Nook account; the Nook app does not open automatically. Depending on the user's device and the Barnes & Noble account, a new browser tab or window may open with a Barnes & Noble login page.

See also:

- <u>Checking Out and Downloading OverDrive eContent from PowerPAC</u>
- Check out and download OverDrive eContent from Mobile PAC

Checking Out and Downloading OverDrive eContent from PowerPAC

A patron who is logged into PowerPAC can check out and immediately download or access OverDrive integrated eContent without going to the OverDrive app.

The patron selects the **Check Out** button for the title.

	1. <i>Lulu Anew</i> [electronic resource] by Davodeau, Étienne Published: 2015.	AVAILABILITY FULL DISPLAY
LUIU	<i>Lulu Anew</i> [electronic resource] / Étienne Davodeau Publisher, Date: [S.I.] : NBM Publishing, 2015.	
2015 Sample	Format (Primary): Ebook Available: 5 (of 5) Current Holds: 0	Add to My List

The patron selects the format for the eContent check out and clicks or taps **Check Out Now**.

	Anow		8	
1.			·	
		Check out this OverDrive ebook?		AVAILABILITY
		Format: Please select		FULL DISPLAY
				+ CHECK OUT
		Check Out Now	v	Add to List
	2015	Available: 5 (of 5)		
	CverDrive Sample	Current Holds: 0		

Another light box confirms that the eContent was checked out.



The patron can download or access the title immediately by selecting an option in the **Get It** drop-down list box. See Patron Access to OverDrive EContent .

Note:

Safari browsers - If Safari is set to block pop-ups, nothing happens when the patron selects **Get It**. The patron should change the browser setting to allow pop-ups. Selecting **Get It** then displays the correct prompt to allow the pop-up and the patron can proceed.

Or the patron can close the light box and download or access the eContent from the Items Out page in the PowerPAC patron account or from the app.

Check out and download OverDrive eContent from Mobile PAC

A patron who is logged into Mobile PAC can check out and immediately download or access OverDrive integrated eContent without going to the OverDrive app.

The patron selects **Check Out** from the title display in Mobile PAC.
🔓 Stillw	ater	
Home > Se	arch > Title	
Lulu	Lulu Anew [electronic resource] by Davodeau, Étienne Publication Year: 2015 Available: 4 (of 5) Current Holds: 0 Add to my list	
Details		>
Check Ou	ıt	>
Purchase		>
Author No	otes	>
Large Co	ver Image	>
Reviews		>
Summary		>
Librarian's	s View	>
	Log Out	
	Home Full Site About Donations	
English 臣	국어 Русский قارسى Việt Ngữ 'Olelo Hawai'i 中文 Français العربية Kreyòl Ayisyen	Español

The Check Out view opens.

🦆 Stillwater	
Home > Search	> Title > Check Out
Lulu	Lulu Anew [electronic resource] by Davodeau, Étienne
Format: OverDrive Read	▼
Check Out	
< Back to Tit	le
	Log Out
	Home Full Site About Donations
English 한국아	Русский فارسی Việt Ngữ 'Olelo Hawai'i 中文 Español Français العربية Kreyòl Ayisyen

The patron selects the format in the **Format** drop-down list box and selects the **Check Out** button.

A message confirms that the check-out occurred, and the **Get Title** drop-down list contains the download formats for the eContent.

👍 Stillwater
Home > Search > Title > Check Out
Your ebook has been successfully checked out!
Get Title 🗸 Go
Lulu Anew [electronic resource] by Davodeau, Étienne
A Back to Title
Log Out

The patron selects the format for download in the **Get Title** drop-down list box. The OverDrive eContent is downloaded in the format the patron selected without the patron having to go to the OverDrive app.



Or, the patron can navigate away from the page without getting the title, and then download or access the eContent later from the Items Out list or from the OverDrive app.

stillwater	
Home > My Account - English custom System > Items Out (5 Items)	\sim
Refresh eContent	-
Animal Farm [electronic resource] 0 renewals left	
Due: 9/30/2015 Get Title ↓ Go	
The King's Taster [electronic resource] 0 renewals left	
Due: 9/30/2015 C Get Title V Go	
Gone Girl [electronic resource] 0 renewals left	
Due: 9/30/2015 Go	
World War Z [electronic resource] 0 renewals left	
Due: 9/30/2015 Go	
Lulu Anew [electronic resource] Check In	
Due: 10/16/2015 C Get Tite Read (in your browser) Download (Kindle Book) NG Download (Kindle Book) Nel	
Page 1 of 1	~

The patron selects an option in the **Get title** list, and the eContent is downloaded to the patron's phone or device.

OverDrive and Changed Patron Barcodes

In Polaris 5.1 and later, a patron whose barcode has been replaced (for example, due to a lost library card) can now access integrated and non-integrated OverDrive content associated with the previous barcode. To support this feature, a **PC** field containing the PatronID is included in the 24 Patron Status and 64 Patron Information response messages consumed by OverDrive.

To implement this feature, follow these steps:

- 1. Upgrade to Polaris 5.1 or later, if necessary.
- 2. Submit a support request to Innovative Interfaces via OverDrive Marketplace.

OverDrive receives the request and asks for a list of current IDs/barcodes and corresponding Patron IDs, so they can be linked together. This will ensure that all users can continue to access their existing checkouts and holds.

3. Generate the list and send it to OverDrive.

Upon receiving the list, OverDrive will link each user's barcode or ID to their new Patron ID. OverDrive updates the authentication configuration to capture the Patron ID from the SIP response as the user's identification.

cloudLibrary eContent Integration

When the library purchases eContent from Bibliotheca, the following automatic processes enable the integration with Bibliotheca's cloudLibrary eContent and Polaris:

- Bibliotheca's API makes a call to the Polaris API (PAPI).
- The Polaris API consumer service is notified. This service allows the Polaris ILS to consume data from third-party APIs.
- The Polaris API consumer service calls Bibliotheca's API and gets the MARCXML records and a count of the number copies for each eContent title the library purchased.
- The Polaris API consumer service parses the MARCXML records and creates the appropriate number of holdings tags based on the holdings count.
- The Polaris API consumer service then submits an automatic import job for processing.
- The bibliographic records are imported automatically using the import profile selected in the Vendor Account workform. The **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile is selected by default, but your library can select another import profile, provided it has the settings required for the integration.
- Automatic import jobs appear in the Import Jobs Queue. The automatic import jobs are listed in the Import Jobs Queue in the same way as staff-initiated import jobs, and the import provides details regarding the automatic import.
- New bibliographic records for the integrated cloudLibrary eContent are saved in the Polaris database.
- A Resource Entity is created for each 856 tag that contains cloudLibrary vendor account data and links to the eContent in the cloudLibrary repository. The vendor contract ID is in subfield x of the 856 tag. The Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform displays the Resource Entity. See <u>Resource Entities</u>.

- Integrated eContent item records are created when the eContent bibs are automatically imported. During import initialization, the API determines how many item records need to be built, and 852 tags are inserted into the bibliographic records. When the bibliographic records are automatically imported, the appropriate number of item records are created using information in these tags as well as information in the Ebook automatic import item template selected in the 3M Vendor Account workform.
- Auto-suggest and facets are updated the following day PAC auto-suggest and search results facets for these newly imported eContent records are updated after the overnight jobs for these processes are run.

Then, when a patron checks out an eContent item in the Polaris PAC, the transaction is integrated between cloudLibrary and Polaris:

- The PAC notifies Bibliotheca's API that an eContent checkout took place, in real time.
- The item is checked out in the vendor's service (cloudLibrary).
- The item is checked out in Polaris.

Note:

Integrated eContent checkins through the PAC are handled the same way.

If the patron checks out the eContent directly from cloudLibrary, the following events occur:

- Bibliotheca's API contacts PAPI to inform it that the checkout took place. These checkout calls to PAPI take place in a batch, which is sent to PAPI every 10-20 minutes.
- The Polaris API consumer service monitors the PAPI checkout queue and processes any pending checkout transactions.
- The item is checked out in Polaris.

Note:

Integrated eContent checkins through the vendor's service (cloudLibrary) are handled the same way.

• If your library also uses Bibliotheca's cloudLink feature to share digital collections among libraries in a cloudLink group, "external" patrons from other non-Polaris libraries in the cloudLink group can check out cloudLink titles held by Polaris libraries. For these checkouts from external patrons, Polaris assigns an item status of Econtent External Loan to the checked out item because the transaction cannot be associated with the patron. Polaris also returns those item records to In status when the external patron checks in the title in the cloudLibrary app, or when the loan period expires. See also: <u>Implementing the cloudLink Feature</u>.

cloudLibrary and Polaris Synchronization

Availability and hold counts (total number of copies, number of available copies, and number of holds) for cloudLibrary eContent titles appear in the PAC based on the status of the items in the cloudLibrary repository, not on the status of the items in the Polaris database. Patrons can see the availability information whether they are logged into their library account or not.

When a library purchases a new title, cloudLibrary sends a push notification that the title is available, the import process automatically imports the new titles, and the title appears in the PAC within minutes. The availability counts for existing cloudLibrary titles are automatically updated when the library purchases additional copies or when copies expire because of publisher limits.

When a patron checks out or places a hold on a cloudLibrary title in Polaris, the data is immediately updated in the Polaris database and in the vendor's repository. However, when a patron uses the cloudLibrary app to initiate circulation, the synchronization process takes longer because the app uses the Polaris API to push the data to Polaris, and then the API consumer service completes the process. The API consumer service also performs a periodic "pull" query of the cloudLibrary database and then synchonizes the data if any circulation activity was detected.

The Polaris database and cloudLibrary are synchonized according to circulation activity as follows:

- Holds Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from the PAC Real time
- Check-out or Check-in from the cloudLibrary app Every 5-15 minutes
- Added copy for an existing title Every 5-15 minutes
- Expired copy for an existing title Every 5-15 minutes
- Added title new MARC record Every 5-15 minutes

To ensure that the API consumer service synchronizes transactions correctly when a server is rebooted, the API consumer service attempts to connect every 35 seconds for 20 minutes. If it fails to connect, the service stops.

See also:

- Setting Up Polaris for cloudLibrary Integration
- Integrating Existing cloudLibrary EContent
- Integrating New cloudLibrary EContent
- cloudLibrary Added/Expired Copies
- Overlaying cloudLibrary eContent Bibs
- cloudLibrary Import Jobs
- MARC Tags in cloudLibrary Bibs Reference
- Patron Access to cloudLibrary EContent
- Implementing the cloudLink Feature

Setting Up Polaris for cloudLibrary Integration

To enable the import processing that integrates cloudLibrary eContent with Polaris, the item templates, vendor account, and import profiles must be set up correctly in Polaris. In addition, if your library uses the cloudLink feature whereby libraries in a cloudLink group can share digital collections across multiple cloudLibrary accounts, you can implement the Preferred Vendor Account policy table to prevent cloudLink titles from appearing under multiple branches. See Implementing the cloudLink Feature.Your Polaris site manager can assist your library with this setup.

See also:

- <u>Setting Up the eContent Item Templates for cloudLibrary</u>
- Creating a cloudLibrary Integrated Vendor Account
- Creating CloudLibrary eContent Import Profile(s)

Setting Up the eContent Item Templates for cloudLibrary

The **Ebook automatic import** item template is selected in the Vendor Account, and it supplies the default data used to create eContent item records during the API import process. This template can also be used for imports from the staff client import utility.

To set up the item template to associate with the vendor account:

- 1. Select **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.
- 2. Select Item Template and click OK.

The Item Template workform opens.

- 3. Type **Ebook automatic import** or **E-book automatic import** in the **Name** box. Case does not matter, and other words can follow this string, but the name must begin with **Ebook automatic import**.
- 4. Select the branch that owns the template in the **Template owner** box.
- 5. In the **Assigned** box, select the branch for the eContent items that will be created using this template. If a resource group is selected in the Vendor Account, the **Assigned** branch selected in the item template must belong to the resource group.
- 6. In the Circulation status box, select In.

Note:

The Fine code and Renewal limit fields are required to save the item template, but they are ignored in eContent item circulation processing.

- 7. Select the Fine code and Renewal limit.
- 8. Select **File** > **Save** to save the template.

Creating a cloudLibrary Integrated Vendor Account

To create a vendor account for a cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) integrated eContent vendor:

Tip:

You cannot create a new Vendor Account by selecting **File > New** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

1. Select the Administration > Explorer > Vendor.



The Administration Explorer - Vendor window appears.

- Administration Explorer Vendor \times File Help 🗋 🗙 🖆 😰 P Vendors Vendor P Vendors Vendor Information 🗄 🕗 cloudLibrary (integrat New ated circulation vendor Axis 360 (integrated) Cancel 🗄 🕗 Generic Vendor (non-in cloudLibrary (integrated) Name: 🗄 🕗 OverDrive, Inc. (non-integrated 🗄 🔄 OverDrive, Inc. (integrated)
- 2. Select the cloudLibrary vendor, right-click, and select New.

The Vendor Account workform opens.

	- 0		dor account - Polaris	New vend
			dit Help	File Ec
			a 🗙 🖆 😭	
vendor	Integrated circulation vendo	cloudLibrary (integrated)	Vendor name:	nt
	Active		Vendor account name:	5
			Vendor account description:	8
\sim		(None)	Resource group:	Ŭ
			Icon URL:	
			Vendor contract ID:	5
				ğ
Connection	Test Connec		Vendor account settings:	er.
	Value		Attribute	2
		s ID	Vendor account acces	
		s key	Vendor account acces	
		path	Vendor account base	
		rname	Vendor account serve	
~	Yes	SL	Vendor account use S	
~	Integrated ebook Bibs	t profile ID	Vendor account impor	
~	(None)	emplate ID	Vendor account item t	

3. Modify the editable fields and test the vendor connection as follows:

Note:

Required fields are labeled in bold.

- Vendor name cloudLibrary (Integrated). System-supplied; read-only
- Integrated circulation vendor This check box is automatically checked if the vendor's eContent are integrated with Polaris.
- Active This check box is initially unchecked when you are creating a vendor account for an integrated eContent vendor. Leave the check box unchecked, and enter the account information. Innovative Interfaces activates the vendor account.
- Vendor account name (required) The library supplies a unique name to identify the account.
- AccountID The account ID is supplied by Polaris when the account is saved, and it appears in the title bar of the Vendor Account workform.
- Vendor account description (optional) The library can add a description for the vendor account.
- **Resource group** (optional) The library can select a resource group to limit access to the eContent by branch. For more information on resource groups, see Polaris staff client online Help.
- Icon URL (optional) The library can specify a URL location for the icon that represents the eContent vendor. The icon is always sized at 16x16 pixels so it is aligned correctly in the PAC. For an integrated eContent vendor, the icon appears next to the TOM icon in PAC displays. If a bibliographic record has multiple resource entities for different integrated vendor accounts, and more than one resource entity is eligible for display in PAC based on resource group filtering, the default icon for the PAC theme is used.
- Vendor contract ID The vendor's contract ID is required for integrated eContent vendors. The contract ID must be unique, and it can contain up to 255 characters.
- Vendor account access ID The library's access ID for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account access key The library's access key for the eContent vendor account.
- Vendor account base path The URL path to the library's resources at eContent vendor.
- Vendor account server name The vendor account server name.
- Vendor account use SSL The library selects Yes or No to indicate whether Secure Socket Layer is used.
- Vendor account import profile ID The import profile for automatic API-driven imports for the integrated eContent vendor. The PolarisExec Integrated eContent

Bibs profile, or a renamed copy of this profile. See <u>Create cloudLibrary eContent</u> import profile(s).

Vendor account item template ID - The library creates the item template used during the automatic API-driven import process. The item template name must begin with eContent automatic import or eContent automatic import. See <u>Set up the</u> eContent item templates for cloudLibrary.

Tips:

The library's server should be set within 5 minutes of the correct time because 3M has a 5-minute time difference threshold on their servers. In addition, the SSL must be configured correctly.

Test connection - Save the Vendor Account workform, and click the Test Connection button to test the API settings in the vendor account and ensure that a connection is made to the vendor's service (cloudLibraryAPI). If the test is successful, a message confirms that the connection was made. If a connection problem is encountered, one of the following messages may appear: Library account does not exist; Incorrect URL; There was a problem communicating with the cloudLibraryAPI service; or other error messages as they become implemented by the 3M API service.

The test details display the test start and end date/time, the test duration in milliseconds, and the API method used in the test, for example, **Get Item circulation**.

- 4. Save the Vendor Account workform.
- 5. Ask your Polaris representative to activate the vendor account, which starts the API consumer service.

Important:

After activating a vendor account, or reactivating a suspended vendor account, an IIS reset is required so that the PAC shows the correct information for the vendor's resources. For example, the IIS reset enables the Check Out or Place Hold button to be displayed instead of the **Temporarily Unavailable** button. Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

Creating CloudLibrary eContent Import Profile(s)

Note:

These are suggestions for setting up the import profiles for cloudLibrary eContent processing; your Polaris site manager can assist you with setting up the import profiles to support your library's specific needs.

The **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile is a PolarisExec read-only import profile that enables eContent integration. It is selected by default in the cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) Vendor Account workform to enable automatic imports. Your library may copy and rename this import profile, and then select the renamed import profile in the Vendor Account workform, but the settings that create the resource entities must be retained. Before selecting an import profile other than the default **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform, consult with your Polaris site manager. See <u>Automatic Import Profile Selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor</u> <u>Account</u>.

Depending on your library's processing workflow for cloudLibrary eContent, you may need to create an import profile to overlay cloudLibrary integrated eContent bibs with fully-cataloged bibs while retaining resource entities. See <u>Overlaying cloudLibrary</u> <u>eContent Bibs</u>.

If your library has existing non-integrated cloudLibrary eContent bibliographic records, delete them from the database, and delete any linked items. However, if you want to preserve cataloging work that was done for these non-integrated titles, you can export the bibs to a file, and then re-import them after the synch process has created the integrated eContent bibs.

Integrating Existing cloudLibrary EContent

If your library already has cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) eContent records in its catalog, you can locate them and delete the bibs and items. Then, the overnight synch process brings the titles into the database as integrated eContent.

To preserve cataloging work that was done for these non-integrated eContent bibs, you can export the records and then re-import them after the synch process has run. See <u>Overlaying cloudLibrary eContent Bibs</u>.

Putting Existing Non-Integrated cloudLibrary Bibs in a Record Set

To locate the existing cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) eContent records and put them in a record set:

1. Set up the search criteria in the Find Tool to find the existing non-integrated cloudLibrary records.

Note:

Work with your Polaris site manager to determine the best way to find these records. You may need to set up an SQL search in the Find Tool.

- 2. Select the records in the results list, right-click, and select Add to record set.
- 3. Save the record set with a name that identifies the records as cloudLibrary nonintegrated eContent records.

(Optional) Exporting cloudLibrary Non-Integrated eContent Bibs

This process is necessary only if you want to preserve cataloging work. If you opt to export the cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) bibs, you will need to wait until after the synch process has created the integrated bibs for these titles and then re-import them. See <u>Overlaying cloudLibrary eContent Bibs</u>.

Note:

If your library has SimplyReports and Export Express, you can select the record set to export. If your library does not have Export Express, your Polaris site manager can assist you with exporting the record set from the staff client. It is not necessary to include embedded holdings in the export

To export the cloudLibrary eContent records using Export Express:

- 1. Log into SimplyReports.
- 2. Select the Bib list reports tab.
- 3. Select Export Express, MARC file, no holdings.
- 4. Expand the Bibliographic record general filters, select Bib record set and select the record set.

Deleting the cloudLibrary Non-Integrated Bibs

To delete the non-integrated bibs:

- 1. Open the record set of non-integrated cloudLibrary eContent bibliographic records.
- 2. Delete the non-integrated eContent bibliographic records and their linked items from the Polaris database.

Integrating New cloudLibrary EContent

The API-driven import process automatically imports the records when eContent titles are purchased from Bibliotheca's cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library). Staff members do not launch the import by selecting an import profile; the automatic import process uses the settings in the import profile selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform.

Once the library implements the components necessary to enable the integration, and the API-driven import process is up and running, the library purchases the cloudLibrary eContent, and the bibliographic records are imported automatically.

Automatic Import Profile Selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account

The **Integrated ebook Bibs** PolarisExec import profile, which is selected by default in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform, is set up to enable eContent integration for automatic imports. Since this is a PolarisExec read-only import profile, you cannot modify the settings, but you can copy and rename the profile. After saving the import profile with a different name, you can change the settings. If you rename the profile to use for automatic importing, the renamed import profile must be selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform.

Important:

Since the automatic import relies on specific settings, consult with your Polaris site manager before selecting an import profile other than the **Integrated ebook Bibs** profile, which is selected by default in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform.

If you rename and modify the **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile, the following settings must be retained:

• On the Profile Setup tab, you can type a different name and description, but do not select a source file or a vendor account.

llane:	Integrated elocal Filo	Creator: Pear
Description:	This is the default profile for imported bib records for ebooks th records for 3M ebooks. (read only)	at will receive 'integrated' circulation processing in Polaris, for example, bib

• On the **Bibliographic Records** tab, do not change the settings.

Save all records as final	Clisplay in PAC	Delete MARC Teg	p on incomi	ng record I bags			
 Save all records as provisional Do not save any records 	Do est overlay	Profile dafined dektion tags					
Record owner: Q4-Plato 4.1 R2 (sys)	v						
hen Saving Ribliographic Records as Rinal							
Perform NARC 21 Veldation	Perform Aut	ionity Control					
If validation errors are found:	3'ro natr	ing heading is found:					
Save record as provisional	Autor	latically create new auth	arity record,) sove bibliographic	record as final		
Ignare errors; save record as final	De no	t create authority record t create authority record	; seve biblio) seve biblio	igraphic record as h graphic record as p	rovisienal		
Perform Duplicate Detection	Rules to select	*	RJ	es to apply (as uniq	ie groups)		
Use system defined duplicate detection rule	S incoming 861/003 = exist incoming 861/003 = exist	ing 025 ‡a	inco	orning 037 7a = exts	ting 007 7a		
Use profile defined duplicate detection rules	incerning 661 - existing 6	135 18	K				
If a suspected duplicate is found:	incoming 1xx Re = existin	g lxx ² 8					
Save incoming record as provisional	incerning \$30 +8 = exists	(1)) ‡a					
O Save incoming record as final; do not repla	ce database record	Witness March Tass					
Save incoming record as final; replace data	base record	System defree	d overlay ref	tention teas			
Save record with highest encoding level. If	encoding levels match:	Profile defined	overlay rete	ention tags	₹ ¥		
Save incoming record as fital; replac	e database record	Tag Endicator 1 D	edicator 2	MARC Description	2		
Chegest norming recard		956 0,1,2,3,4 0	0,1,2,3,4	Electronic Location	and Access		
Severing record as provisional	rightere Telep MARC Telep")	BS2 0,1,2,3,4 0 955 4 2	.1,2,3,4	Location Interacted Elseak Pr	oduct Information		
Reject incoming record: add MARC retention	on tags to database record	956 4 2		Sofreented Fheek P	oduct Information		

• On the **Item Records** tab, do not change the settings. Do not select a template because the item template used in automatic import processing is selected in the Vendor Account workform.

	Embedded holdings field/NV	RC subfield	mapping	
Build item records Using embedded holdings fields only	Heldings tag	numbers	852	
Using template/system default values only	Assigned Branch:	a	Loonable Outside System:	7
(€) Using ell overlable holdings/item fields	Assigned Collection:	b	Matarial Type:	w
If a duplicate item record (harcode) is found:	Bartoide:	P	Name Of Piece:	
Seve duplicate item recard as provisional	Call Number Prefec	k	Non Circulating:	
De nat save duplicate item recard	cal trender suffic	m	non Public Note:	x
If no item record (bercode) is found:	Circulation Status		Owning Branch:	0
Save item record as final Save item record as provisional	Classification Number:	h	Physical Condition:	q
O e nat save item recard	Copy Number:	t	POLI: Segment ID:	
Display in FAC (when not explicitly found)	Cutter Number:	1	Price:	0
Barn bernplate (for fields that are mission's	Bite Code:	• •	Public Note:	V
(Nese)	Pres Text Block:		Shelf Location:	•
Updata itams (envicteed EDI)	Funding Source:	1	Shelving Scheme:	J
If an update error is encountered:	Hokiable:	3	Statistical Code:	đ
Save item record as provisional	Library Assigned Block:		Temperary Shelf Location:	1
O Do net mays item record	Loan Period Cade:	U	Volume Number:	v

- The Authority Records tab is set to **Do not save any records**. Leave this setting.
- On the Record Sets tab, you can rename the record sets without affecting the automatic import.

blographi	c Recard Set		Authority Record Set	
Final			Final	
Save 1	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record se
Name:	Ebook Import, final	Find	Name:	Find Replace
Owner:	QA-Plato 4,1 R2 (5ys)	Y	Owner:	Y
Pravisional			Provisional	
Save 1	to new racord set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record se
Neme:	Eboak Impart, provisional	Find Replace	Name:	Find Rapiboa
Owner:	QA-Mato 4.1 RZ (sys)	~	Owner:	v
Inteleted			Deleted	
Save Save	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record se
Name:	Eboak Impart, deleted	Pind O'Append	Name:	Find Replace
owner:	QA-Plato 4.1 RZ (sys)	¥	Owner:	~
en Record	l Set			
Final			Provisional	
Save 1	to new racord set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record set
name:	Ebook Import, finel	Find Replace	Name: Ebook Import, provisional	Find Replace
Owner:	QA-Plato 4.1 R2 (sys)	Ŷ	Owner: QA-Plato 4.1 R2 (eye)	¥

Creating CloudLibrary eContent Import Profile(s)

Note:

These are suggestions for setting up the import profiles for cloudLibrary eContent processing; your Polaris site manager can assist you with setting up the import profiles to support your library's specific needs.

The **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile is a PolarisExec read-only import profile that enables eContent integration. It is selected by default in the cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) Vendor Account workform to enable automatic imports. Your library may copy and rename this import profile, and then select the renamed import profile in the Vendor Account workform, but the settings that create the resource entities must be retained. Before selecting an import profile other than the default **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform, consult with your Polaris site manager. See <u>Automatic Import Profile Selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor</u> <u>Account</u>.

Depending on your library's processing workflow for cloudLibrary eContent, you may need to create an import profile to overlay cloudLibrary integrated eContent bibs with fully-cataloged bibs while retaining resource entities. See <u>Overlaying cloudLibrary</u> <u>eContent Bibs</u>.

If your library has existing non-integrated cloudLibrary eContent bibliographic records, delete them from the database, and delete any linked items. However, if you want to preserve cataloging work that was done for these non-integrated titles, you can export the bibs to a file, and then re-import them after the synch process has created the integrated eContent bibs.

cloudLibrary[™] Added/Expired Copies

The API consumer service queries cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) daily and synchronizes the number of eContent item records for each resource entity, either adding or removing eContent item records as necessary. For details on the synch process, see EContent Vendor and Polaris Synchronization.

The item records are populated from the fields in the **Ebook automatic import** item template selected in the cloudLibrary Vendor Account workform. Only one Ebook automatic import item template can be selected in the vendor account, but the incoming added copies could be for either ebooks or audio ebooks. Since the library may need to modify fields, such as the item material type, collection etc., the added copy item records are placed in a record set to make them easier to find and modify.

EContent item records created during added-copy processing are automatically added to record sets. Each vendor account has only one system-supplied record set for added copies, named following this pattern:

E-added copies_VendorAccountName_ID=nnn

If necessary, the vendor account name is truncated to fit the 50-character record set name limit, and the vendor account ID follows the name.

Example: E-added copies_3M_ID=10

The record set owner is the same as the **Ebook automatic import** item template owner. If the owner is changed, a new system-generated record set with the correct owner is automatically created the next time the added copy process runs. If the record set is deleted or renamed, a new one is created automatically. A staff member with the appropriate permissions can bulk change the item records in the record set. After making the changes, the records should be removed from the record set.

					Rec	ord Set	44184	- Pola	aris				_ (×
File Ed	it View	Tools Help	3											
	28	8 · X	. 💵 .		1									
1	and all share													
e	Name:	E-added cop	ies_3M QA 0	igital Group	1_1D=2	Owner:	Digital E	Branch (b	0		~	Record type:	Re	1 222220
I S	Note:											Number of r	cords	•
ora											٩ı	V 🗕 📽	۵.	• 🖻 🖳
ğ	Title		Assigne	Collect	Motori	shelf	Call Nu	Volue	Status	Barcode	Let	t Activity D	Rea	Control
Ř	After the	Affair [elect	Digital B	Digital	eBook				in	econtent9973184	4/1	7/2014	Fl	9973184
	Almost U	ke Being in 🗤	Digital B	Digital	eBook				In	econtent9973212	4/2	23/2014	FL.	9973212
E	Hotwire [electronic r	Digital B	Digital	eBook				In	econtent9969468	3/3	3/2014	FLor	9909468
Ite Ite	The Wran	nen of Othe	oigitai b	bigital	ebook.				In	econtents/sb9461			FL_	9969461

Overlaying cloudLibrary eContent Bibs

When your library receives fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records to overlay existing cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) records, a staff member imports these records using an import profile set up to: detect duplicates based on the 037 tag; overlay these duplicate with the full incoming records; and retain tags that create resource entities. See Import fully-cataloged bibs to overlay cloudLibrary bibs.

Important:

Inform the bibliographic record vendor that the fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records provided to overlay integrated eContent bibs must have the following requirements:

- The records must be MARC or MARCXML bibliographic records.
- The 037 tags must be retained because that tag contains the eContent item identifier and serves as a match point to detect duplicates during importing.

Importing Fully-Cataloged Bibs to Overlay cloudLibrary Bibs

To set up an import profile designed for importing fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records to overlay existing cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) records, and then import the records using the profile:

Note:

Once you have set up the import profile and saved it (step 1), any staff member with the appropriate Polaris permissions can select it for subsequent imports of full bib records to overlay the cloudLibrary bibs.

1. Create an import profile specifically for importing fully-cataloged bibs to overlay cloudLibrary records. You can copy the PolarisExec **Integrated ebook Bibs** import profile, or create a new import profile.

Note:

For general information about creating, copying, and modifying import profiles, see: Setting Up Import Profiles and Importing Records.

2. On the Profile Setup tab, type a name for the import profile, select the cloudLibrary vendor account in the **Vendor account** drop-down list box, and click **Save** to save the profile.

file Setup Bibli	ographic Records Item Records Authority Records Record Sets	
Name:	3M - Fully-Cataloged Site to Overlay 3M	Creator: Peer
Description:	Use this profile when importing fully-cataloged bibs to overlay 3M bibs,	
Source file nam	ie:	Browse
Vendor account	: 3M QA Digital Group 1	

3. Select the Bibliographic Records tab and verify that the following options are set:

Important:

The Bibliographic Records tab must be set up to:

- perform duplicate detection using profile-defined rules;
- these rules must include incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a;
- the incoming records must be retained as final;
- 856 tags must be retained from overlaid bibs.

Other settings may be defined according to your library's workflow. Work with your Polaris site manager to set up this import profile specifically for overlaying 3M bibs.

- Perform duplicate detection The check box must be selected.
- Use profile defined duplicate detection rules The check box must be selected.

- Rules to apply (as unique groups) The profile-defined rules must include incoming 037\$a = existing 037\$a
- Save incoming record as final; replace database record This option must be selected under If a duplicate is found.
- Keep MARC tags The check box must be selected.
- **Profile defined overlay retention tags** This option must be selected, and the following tags must be listed as profile-defined overlay retention tags: **856** - any indicator 1 or 2 value.

	Retain MARC Tags Dialog	¢
Tag: 🗾	Betronic Location and Access	
Indicator 1: 🧵	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 Siere	
Indicator 2:	1 2 3 4 3 6 7 8 9 blank	
	OK Czecał	

- 4. Click **Save** to save the settings for the Bibliographic Records tab.
- 5. Select the Item Records tab and verify that the **Build item records** check box is not checked.

Note:

cloudLibrary item records are created automatically via the automatic import process.

- 6. (Optional) Select the Authority Records tab, and modify the settings.
- 7. (Optional) Select the Record Set tab, and name the record sets to identify the type of records being imported.
- 8. Save the import profile.

The import profile is ready for any staff member with the appropriate permissions to select when importing fully-cataloged eContent records to overlay cloudLibrary bibs.

- 9. Select Utilities, Importing, Express Import or Full Import.
- 10. Select the import profile created for importing fully-cataloged records to overlay cloudLibrary bibs.
- 11. Click **Add** and select the file of fully-cataloged eContent bibliographic records to replace the existing cloudLibrary records, while retaining the tags required for

integration with Polaris Circulation.

12. Click Import.

The import job is added to the import queue. Once the import processing is complete, the cloudLibrary bibs are overlaid with the fully-cataloged records, and they retain the resource entities that enable the integration. See <u>cloudLibrary</u> <u>Import Jobs</u>.

cloudLibrary Import Jobs

The Import Jobs Queue lists import jobs by the date and time posted, whether the import jobs are for eContent bibs or other types of records. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

You can view or print a report for completed import jobs from the Import Jobs Queue window. The import report provides details regarding the import profile that was used, the settings in the import profile, the records created, errors (if any), and other details. See the Cataloging Administration PDF Guide.

Viewing the Jobs or Printing Reports for cloudLibrary Imports

To view import jobs in the Import Jobs Queue:

1. Select **Utilities > Importing > Import Jobs Queue** to open the Import Jobs Queue window.

By default, the jobs are sorted by the date and time posted. If multiple files were selected for import, each file appears on a separate line. Completed jobs remain in the queue until an authorized user manually deletes them.

Tip:

If you do not need to view the report before printing it, you can select the import job in list, and click the **Report** button, or right-click and select **Print Report**.

2. Double-click the import job you want to view or print.

The Import Report pdf appears in the preview window.

3. Select **File > Print** to print the report displayed in the preview window.

MARC Tags in cloudLibrary Bibs - Reference

cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) supplies the following tags that are used for integrated eContent processing in Polaris:

Tip:

The following fields are required for cloudLibrary integrated eContent records: 037\$a and 856 40. If a cloudLibrary record is missing either of these fields, a resource entity is not created.

 037 tag containing cloudLibrary's item ID - The 037, source of acquisition, tag is required for creating the resource entity.

Example:

037 ‡adk42g9‡b3M Cloud Library‡nhttp://eContent.3m.com

856 tag for the electronic resource itself - The 2nd indicator = 0 (resource). This
tag is required for creating the resource entity. During importing, the contract ID in
subfield x matches the resource with the vendor account, and the object ID
identifies the eContent in the vendor's repository. The tag is converted to a
resource entity and moved to the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record
workform.

Example:

856 40 ‡33M Cloud Library‡uhttp://eContent.3m.com/library/polarisdemo-document_iddk42g9\$xbu8mf

 856 tag for the cover image - The 2nd indicator = 2 (related resource). This tag is not required. If present, this tag is copied to the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform, then changed to a 956 and retained in the MARC view.

Example:

856 42 ‡3Cover Image‡uhttp://eContent.3m.com/delivery/img?type=DOCUMENTIMAGE &documentID=dk42g9&token=nobody 856 tag for the cloudLibrary cloud icon - The 2nd indicator = 2 (related resource). This tag is not required. If present, this tag contains a link to the cloudLibrary icon. This tag remains in the MARC view of the Bibliographic Record workform and is not copied to the Resources view.

Example:

856 42 ‡33M Cloud Icon‡uhttp://eContentdownload.3m.com/sites/prototypes/web/media/t hemes/mmm_patron/img/landing_page/step1.png

 956 tag for the whole product - This tag is not required for the creation of the resource entity and is not copied to the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform; it remains in the MARC 21 view. It also displays the vendor's contract ID and object identifier.

Example:

956 42 ‡3Whole product‡uhttp://cloudlibraryapi.3m.com/Library/bu8mf/Item/dk42g9

Patron Access to cloudLibrary EContent

For patrons who have logged into their library accounts, the eContent available for checkout or hold requests depends on the cloudLibrary vendor account and whether the patron's registered branch has access to the eContent provided by that account. For more information about options for displaying, managing, and circulating eContent, see the Public Access Administration PDF Guide, Managing EContent in the PAC.

When the cloudLibrary eContent is accessible to the logged-in patron, a **Check Out** button is displayed in the PAC search results if the title is available. If the patron has access, but the title is not available because it is checked out, a **Place Hold** button is displayed. If the hold request is satisfied by the patron's library, the patron can check out held titles from the PAC patron account once they become available for checkout. If the patron does not have access to the eContent title, a **Restricted** button is displayed with the hover text **Sorry this title is currently not available at your registered branch**. You can modify this text string in WebAdmin using the mnemonic: **PACML_EBRESTRICTED_ TIP**. You can use resource groups to prevent titles from displaying at all if they are restricted, instead of displaying with a **Restricted** button.

Note:

Patrons can search for cloudLibrary titles, add them to lists, and view

check-outs or requests under **My Account** in Mobile PAC, but they cannot perform any circulation actions for cloudLibrary titles using Mobile PAC.

The library can change the **Check Out** and **Place Hold** button text for cloudLibrary eContent by modifying the following strings in WebAdmin:

- PACML_MMMCHECKOUT
- PACML_MMMPLACEHOLD



To check out the eContent in the PAC, the patron clicks the **Check Out** button, which opens a light box.

The patron selects the format for the download (if it is available in more than one format), and clicks the **Check Out Now** button. A message confirms the check out if it is successful.

Important:

Patrons can also create accounts in the cloudLibrary application by choosing their library and entering the patron barcode. The patron must sign up with the library account barcode, not the library account user name; otherwise, the patron's transactions in the cloudLibrary application and in the PAC patron account will not be synchronized.

Tip:

Charges for check-out do not apply to eContent.

The patron goes to the cloudLibrary app on their device, and downloads the eContent. First-time users must go to the cloudLibrary web page and download the cloudLibrary

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

app on their device. For information on downloading the cloudLibraryapps, and the devices and formats that cloudLibrary supports, go to:

http://www.yourcloudlibrary.com/index.php/en-us/

Libraries using the cloudLibrary eContent service can implement Bibliotheca's cloudLink feature to share digital collections across cloudLibrary accounts. See <u>Implementing the cloudLink Feature</u>.

Implementing the cloudLink Feature

Libraries using the cloudLibrary eContent service can implement Bibliotheca's cloudLink feature whereby libraries in a cloudLink group can share digital collections across multiple cloudLibrary accounts. Bibliotheca's cloudLink groups are ILS-independent and can be used to connect existing cloudLibrary customers on different systems, usually based on geographic location. The Polaris integration can also support a "self-contained" cloud, where all libraries in the cloudLink group are on the same Polaris server.

To ensure that patron check-outs and requests appear under a single library when resources are being shared via cloudLink, use the Preferred Vendor Accounts policy table.

Note:

Existing cloudLibrary customers who are not using the cloudLink feature do not need to use the Preferred Vendor Accounts policy table. However, all cloudLink customers should use the policy table to provide the best patron experience.

Circulation Transactions for cloudLink Titles

When cloudLibrary titles are checked out through the PAC, Polaris uses the Item Library ID returned in the cloudLibrary API to associate the correct item record with the patron. For cloudLink libraries, one of two transaction types can be logged:

- If the item belongs to a library that exists in the Polaris database, a normal checkout transaction is logged.
- If the item does not belong to a library within the Polaris database, a new eContent check-out (6103) transaction is logged. This is different from a normal check-out transaction because there is no item record associated with the transaction. In addition, the following message appears: **Your ebook has been successfully**

checked out. To provide faster access, this ebook was borrowed from a partner library. Please use your cloudLibrary reader to download or view this title.

See also:

- Setting Up the Preferred Vendor Accounts Policy Table
- Shared cloudLink Titles Display in the PAC

Setting Up the Preferred Vendor Accounts Policy Table

If your library uses the cloudLink feature for sharing cloudLibrary titles among multiple libraries, use the Preferred Vendor Accounts policy table to ensure that patron checkouts and requests appear under a single library for resources that are being shared via cloudLink. Polaris libraries that use cloudLibrary without implementing the cloudLink feature do not need to use this table.

Note:

To add or delete entries in the table, you must have the new permission **Modify preferred vendor accounts table**: **Allow**. This permission is added by default to the Administrator permission group.

To add a Preferred Vendor Account to the table:

- 1. Expand the System, Library, or Branch-level node in the Polaris Administration Explorer.
- 2. Select Policy Tables > Preferred Vendor Accounts.

The Preferred Vendor Accounts policy table appears. The table contains an organization name, vendor description, and vendor account name. Only one preferred vendor account can be set for each branch. If a duplicate is found, the following message appears: **An organization can only have one preferred vendor account per vendor**.

3. Click 🛅 to open the Insert: Vendor Accounts dialog box.

Insert : Preferred Vendor	Accounts	
Organization:	🚆 QA-POLARIS	v
Vendor:	cloudLibrary (integrated)	~
Vendor Account		~
		OK Cancel Help

4. Select the cloudLink account from the **Vendor Account** drop-down list, and click **OK**.

The Preferred Vendor Account is set for the organization.

Note: If you delete a cloudLibrary vendor account, the corresponding entry in the Preferred Vendor Accounts policy table is automatically deleted.

Shared cloudLink Titles Display in the PAC

The cloudLibrary integration creates bibliographic records for titles owned by libraries within the Polaris database. These titles will display in the PAC and use the cloudLibrary API to display availability and holds. For cloudLink libraries, the availability and hold information is based on the entire cloudLink group. If the title within the cloudLink group is not owned by a library in the Polaris database, it will only be available to patrons from the cloudLibrary app.

Resource groups can be used with cloudLibrary integration to suppress eContent titles for different vendor accounts. However, cloudLink customers may want to disable the **Honor Resource Groups in PAC search results** setting because the real-time availability of items in a shared collection may change.

	5. Summer Hours at the Robbers Library [electronic resource] : A Novel	FULL DISPLAY
SUMMER HOURS	by Halpern, Sue. +	CHECK OUT
ROBBERS LIBRARY SHE HALPERS	Full Title Summer Hours at the Robbers Library [electronic resource] : A Novel/ Halpern, Sue. Author: Halpern. Sue.	Add to List
	Requires: <i>cloudLibrary</i> (file size: 2.7 MB)	
2018	Notes: Electronic book. — Electronic reproduction. [S.I.] HarperCollins 2018 Available via World Wide Web. — Format: Adobe EPUB — Requires: cloudLibrary (file size: 2.7	
★★★★ ★ (494) User rating	MB) Publisher, Date: [S.I.] : HarperCollins, 2018. Description: 1 online resource	
Rate or review	G - cloudLibrary Icon	
✓ Add to Shelf	Format (Primary): Ebook	
see reviews/add a review ;16 reviews (★★★★	Format (All): Ebook, Electronic Resources, Book Available: 2 (of 2) Current Holds: 0	
Coogle Preview		

Hold Requests for cloudLibrary Titles Displayed in the PAC

The real-time holds count displayed for cloudLibrary titles has been updated to consider cloudLink libraries. The previous holds count displayed the total of all requests in the

holds queue. With a cloudLink system, this can give patrons an incorrect impression regarding the wait time for a title.

If the vendor account ID (connection branch or patron's branch) being used to view the holds count owns a copy of the title, the count will display only the holds for that library because that is the real wait time for that branch/patron.

If the vendor account ID (connection branch or patron's branch) being used to view the holds count does not own a copy of the title, the count will display the total holds for the cloudLink group.

For all cloudLibrary customers, the holds queue position will no longer display for cloudLibrary titles in PowerPAC or Mobile PAC.

RBdigital EContent Integration

You can integrate eContent from the Recorded Books service, RBdigital, into Polaris so that patrons can search for, check out, and download these titles from the PAC.

Note:

The RBdigital integration does not create item records within Polaris because the RBdigital API provides availability as either True or False instead of providing copy counts.

The following are required for RBdigital eContent integration:

- RBdigital license key System-only license key with the number of seats corresponding to the number of vendor accounts Innovative needs to create.
- Access to the RBdigital API The library's firewall must allow access to api.rbdigital.com over port 443.

If your library is interested in implementing integrated eContent with Recorded Books, contact your library's Innovative Interfaces Site Manager.

The Recorded Books API provides nightly deltas of newly added or recently expired titles. The Polaris API Consumer Service uses these deltas to import new titles or identify expired titles during the overnight process. Library staff can periodically check for Recorded Books titles removed from the library's collection. The expired bibliographic records are gathered in a record set entitled **RBExpiredTitles_[Date/time]**. Your library can purge or retain the records.

See also:

- <u>Creating an RBdigital Integrated Vendor Account</u>
- Importing RBdigital Bibliographic Records
- Integrating Existing RBdigital EContent
- Integrating New RBdigital eContent
- Patron Access to RBdigital EContent
- Manually Import the RBdigital Collection

Creating an RBdigital Integrated Vendor Account

The **RBdigital (integrated)** Vendor node appears in the Polaris Administration Explorer only when your library has a license for RBdigital. RBdigital supports multiple accounts, such as a parent (shared) account and individual child accounts with titles and copies exclusively for patrons registered at specific branches.

Ad	ninistration Explorer – Vendor			_	×
Fil	e Help] 🗙 🖆 😭				
	Vendors Vendors Vendors CoudLibrary (integrated) CoudLibrary (integrated) Courbrive, lnc. (non-integrated) CoverDrive, lnc. (integrated) CoverDrive, lnc. (integrated) CoverDrive, lnc. (integrated)	Image: Second state Vendor Vendor Information Image: Second state Image: Second state Name: Second state	n ulation vendor RBdigital (integrated)		

Note:

Your Site Manager will assist you in creating a RBdigital vendor account.

To create an RBdigital vendor account:

1. Select Administration | Explorer | Vendor.

File Acquisitions Serials Cataloging Patron Services Circulation	Administration Utilities Wind	low Help	
🗅 🥚 🚝 📮 🕮 🖳 🎬 🚟 🚟 📠 🕼	Explorer >	System 🥢) 🦲 😰
	System Server	Library Branch	
	Library	Staff Member	
	Branch	Workstation	
	Staff Member	Collection	
	Workstation	Server	
	Collection	Database Table	
	Patron	Vendor	
	Permission Group		
	Resource Group		1

2. Expand the **Vendors** node to display all the eContent vendors.

Administration Explorer – Vendor	_		\times	
File Help				
Vendors Vendors CoudLibrary (integrated) Axis 360 (integrated) CoverDrive, Inc. (non-integrated) RBdigital (integrated) RBdigital (integrated)				
r Help, press F1				

3. Right-click **RBdigital (integrated)**, and select **New**.

Adn	ninistration Explorer – Vendor			_	\times
File	e Help				
\Box) 🗙 🖆 😰				
P	Vendors	Vendor			
	P Vendors	Vendor Information	1		
	⊡ cloudLibrary (integrated) ⊡	Integrated circu	ulation vendor		
	Generic Vendor (non-integrate	Name:	RBdigital (integrated)		
	OverDrive, Inc. (integrated)				
	QA Polaris Test P New				
	QA Polaris Test C Cance	el			
<	>				
For I	Help, press F1	- -			 .::

The Vendor Account workform appears.

New ver	ndor a	ccount - Polaris		_		×	
File	Edit	Tools Help					
dor Account	Ven Ven Res Icon	dor name: Idor account name: Idor account description: Iource group: In URL: Idor contract ID:	RBdigital (integrated) Integrated Image: Constraint of the second seco	ed circulat	ion vendo	r ~	
Ven	Vend	lor account settings:		Te	st Conne	stion	
		Attribute	Value				
	▶	Vendor account serve	r name				
	<u> </u>	Vendor account use S	t profile ID	Yes			
		Library RBdigital URL		Integrated econtent bibs (without items)			

- 4. Type the name for the RBdigital account in the **Vendor account name** box.
- 5. Type the description for the account in the **Vendor account description** box.
- 6. If your library is using a resource group for this vendor account, select it in the **Resource group** box.
- 7. Type the URL for the RBdigital icon in the **Icon URL** box.
- 8. Type the contract ID in the **Vendor contract ID** box.
- 9. Type api.rbdigital.com in the Vendor account server name box.

Note:

The firewall must allow access to api.rbdigital.com over port 443.

- 10. Select Yes in the Vendor account use SSL box.
- 11. Select **Integrated eContent bibs (without items)** in the Vendor account import profile ID box.
- 12. Type the library-specific URL in the Library RBdigital URL box.

Vendor	accou	nt 46 - Polaris		_		×
File	Edit	Tools Help				
	-	» 🗙 🖻 😭				
dor Account	Ven Ven Res Icor	dor name: Idor account name: Idor account description: Isource group: In URL: Idor contract ID:	RBdigital (integrated) Integrated QA Polaris Test Parent Act QA Polaris Test Parent account RBDigital Parent Image: State	ed circulati	on vendo	·
Ven	Vend	lor account settings:	Value	Tes	t Connec	tion
	•	Vendor account serve	r name api.rbdigital.com			_
		Vendor account use S	SL Yes	Yes		
	L	Vendor account impor	t profile ID RBdigital test	RBdigital test		
		Library RBdigital URL	http://qapolaristestp.rbdigital.com	http://qapolaristestp.rbdigital.com		

13. Save the Vendor Account workform.

Importing RBdigital Bibliographic Records

To enable the import processing that integrates RBdigital eContent with Polaris, the vendor account, and import profile(s) must be set up correctly in Polaris. Your Polaris Site Manager can assist your library with this setup.

Note:

The RBdigital integration does not create item records within Polaris; therefore no item template is necessary.

RBdigital Import Profile

The **Integrated eContent bibs (without items)** import profile is used to import RBdigital titles. It is listed when you filter the import profiles by **Creator | PolarisExec**.



All options set on the Bibliographic Records and Authority Records tabs are the same as those set in the Integrated ebook Bibs import profile, except the Item Records tab, which has no item-creation options selected because no item records will be built. In addition, the record set names defined on the Record Sets tab of the Integrated eContent bibs (without items) import profile begin with eContent instead of EBook.
	bibliographic records interrect	adrus / radioney records		
Bibliograph	ic Record Set		Authority Record Set	
Final			Final	
Save Namo:	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record s
nume.	counterre amporty man	Replace	Nume.	Replace
Owner:	QA-POLARIS 6.1 (sys)	~	Owner:	
Provisiona	ıl		Provisional	
Save Save	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record s
Name:	eContent Import, provisional	Find Replace	Name:	Find Replace
Owner:	QA-POLARIS 6.1 (sys)	~	Owner:	~
Deleted			Deleted	
✓ Save	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record s
Name:	eContent Import, deleted	Find O Append	Name:	Find Append Replace
Owner:	QA-POLARIS 6.1 (sys)	~	Owner:	~
Item Recor	d Set			
Final			Provisional	
Save	to new record set	Save to existing record set	Save to new record set	Save to existing record set
Name:		Find Replace	Name:	Find Replace
Owner:		~	Owner:	~

RBdigital Import Process

When your library has implemented integrated eContent with RBdigital, the following processes occur:

- The Polaris API consumer service overnight process runs and retrieves the data from RBdigital since it last ran.
- The Polaris API consumer service then submits an automatic import job for processing.
- The bibliographic records are imported automatically using the import profile selected in the Vendor Account workform. The Integrated eContent bibs (without items) import profile is selected by default.
- The automatic import job appears in the Import Jobs Queue, and the import report provides details regarding the automatic import.
- New bibliographic records are saved in the Polaris database.
- A Resource Entity is created for each 856 tag that contains RBdigital vendor account data. The vendor contract ID is in subfield x of the 856 tag. The Resource Entity appears on the Resources view of the Bibliographic Record workform.
- The import synchronization occurs once daily during an overnight process.

 Auto-suggest and facets are updated the following day - PAC auto-suggest and search results facets for these newly imported eContent records are updated after the overnight jobs.

Integrating Existing RBdigital EContent

When the RBdigital vendor account is activated for the first time, a call goes out to the RBdigital API, which returns all the titles the library currently owns. If the library has multiple vendor accounts, data is returned for each vendor account.

The returned data from RBdigital is transformed into a format that can be consumed by the import process. Then, the bibliographic data is imported into Polaris using the predefined import profile, **Integrated eContent bibs (without items)**, which is specified in the Vendor Account workform.

Integrating New RBdigital eContent

When your library purchases new eContent from Recorded Books, the bibliographic records are imported automatically using the import profile selected in the Vendor Account workform. See Importing RBdigital Bibliographic Records.

Patron Access to RBdigital EContent

Your patrons can log into the Polaris PowerPAC to search for and access RBdigital eContent titles. Recorded Books requires that all borrowers of its eContent be registered with RBdigital. The Polaris PowerPAC provides a link to the RBdigital registration form.

See also:

- **RBdigital Registration**
- <u>RBdigital Titles Displayed in the Polaris PowerPAC</u>
- Checking Out RBdigital Titles
- Requesting RBdigital Titles
- Checking in RBdigital Titles Before They Expire

RBdigital Registration

To comply with the RBdigital requirement that all borrowers of its eContent be registered, a message in Polaris PowerPAC notifies patrons who have not yet registered that they need to register. When a patron clicks a button to check out or place a request for an RBdigital title, a message appears if the patron is not yet registered with RBdigital.

Note:

To determine whether the patron is registered, the RBdigital API checks the barcode entered when the patron logged into PowerPAC. The registration message appears only when a patron has not registered with RBdigital.

r	×
	We're sorry, but your account does not appear to be registered with RBdigital. Please register to borrow RBdigital titles.
	Register Now
	Close

The patron clicks **Register Now** to go to the library's RBdigital site to access the registration form.

LOGIN INFORMATION	YOUR INFORM	ATION
USERNAME*	FIRST NAME*	
PASSWORD*	LAST NAME*	
CONFIRM PASSWORD*	EMAIL*	
LIBRARY INFORMATION	CONFIRM EMAIL*	
LIBRARY CARD*	POSTAL CODE*	
PIN*		
I accept the Terms of Service and Privacy Policy.*		
Required neros	CANCEL	REGISTER

The patron fills out the form and clicks **REGISTER** to register with RBdigital. The patron is then able to check out or request RBdigital from the Polaris PAC.

You can change the text for the Recorded Book messages displayed in the PAC.

RBdigital Titles Displayed in the Polaris PowerPAC

Note:

RBdigital titles display in the patron's account in the Polaris Mobile PAC,

but the patron cannot take any action on Recorded Books titles from Mobile PAC.

RBdigital titles appear in Polaris PowerPAC with the following buttons and banners next to the title:

• CHECK OUT button - This button appears if the title is owned by the library and is available. When a patron clicks this button, the check out process begins if the patron is registered with RBdigital and has not reached the checkout limit defined by RBdigital for the type of eContent. When a checkout is successful, a new transaction 6103 is logged, indicating the eContent was checked out without an associated item record. In the patron's account, details regarding the checked out eContent for Recorded Books do not include item record fields, and Online appears as the Assigned Branch. See Checking Out RBdigital Titles

THE	2. The Tyranny of Metrics [electronic resource]	~	AVAILABILITY
SE PIPIPI	by Muller, Jerry Z.		FULL DISPLAY
METRICS JERRY 2. MULLER	Published: 2018	+	CHECK OUT
	Recorded Books		
rb 💷	Publisher, Date: [S.I.] Tantor Media, Inc 2018		Add to List
2018	Format (Primary): Eaudiobook		

• **PLACE HOLD** button - This button appears if the title is owned by the library, but it is not available. When the patron clicks this button, the request process begins if the patron is registered with RB digital and has not reached the hold request limit defined in RBdigital for the type of eContent. See <u>Requesting RBdigital Titles</u>

C.J.	1. The Disappeared [electronic resource]	AVAILABILITY
DISAPPEARED	by Box, C.J.	FULL DISPLAY
	Published: 2018	PLACE HOLD
A second and a second at the second	[S.I.] Recorded Books , Inc. 2018	
rb 💷	Publisher, Date: [S.I.] <i>Recorded Books</i> , Inc. 2018	Add to My List
2018	Format (Primary): Eaudiobook	

• **RESTRICTED** - If a resource group has been used to restrict access to the title, but does not have **Honor resource groups** enabled in Polaris Administration, patrons will see **RESTRICTED** for titles they do not have access to.

ARAH J. MAASS	7. A Court of Frost and Starlight [electronic resource]	✓	AVAILABILITY
FROST	by Maas, Sarah J.		FULL DISPLAY
STARLIGHT	Published: 2018		RESTRICTED
c Dull	[S.I.] Recorded Books , Inc. 2018		HEOTHIOTED
rb 💷	Publisher, Date: [S.I.] <i>Recorded Books</i> , Inc. 2018		Add to List
2018	Format (Primary): Eaudiobook		

• ALL COPIES EXPIRED - This appears when all copies owned by the library have expired, but the title has not yet been removed from the catalog. If the library orders new copies, the button is updated once those copies become available.



Checking Out RBdigital Titles

If the RBdigital title is available to the patron who is logged into the Polaris PowerPAC, the **CHECK OUT** button appears. When the patron clicks the **CHECK OUT** button, a confirmation message box appears.

C.J. Disaffe and	The Disappeared [electronic resource] by Box, C.J.	rb
	Check out this RBdigital Eaudiobook?	
		Close

The patron clicks the **Check Out Now** button.

A message appears indicating the check-out was successful.

C. J. BOX DISATTARED	The Disappeared [electronic resource] by Box, C.J.	dı
	Your Eaudiobook has been successfully checked out.	
		Close

The RBdigital title appears in the patron's Items Out list.

Library Info 👻	Search +	My Ac	count +	Help	. •			
My Account Banach, Jane A		Banach, Items	Jane A Out				🕄 - more	information
My Record		-	Format	Due Date	Title	Renewals Left	Call Number	Assigned Branch
Requests (3)		0	٢b	9/13/2018	The Disappeared	Check In		Online
Fines & Fees		θ	rb	8/24/2018	Winter Storms	Check In		Online
Claimed and Lost		0	٢b	8/24/2018	Secret Montana	Check In		Online
Reading History (228)		0	rb	8/24/2018	101 Dressage Exercises for Horse & Rider	Check In		Online
Saved Searches (10)								
My shopping cart		Refres	n eConten	t				

Requesting RBdigital Titles

If the RBdigital title is not available for check-out but the logged-in patron can place a hold request on the title, the **PLACE HOLD** button appears. The patron clicks the **PLACE HOLD** button, and a confirmation message box appears.

TED RISING	Red Rising [electronic resource] by Brown, Pierce	dı
	Place a hold on this RBdigital Eaudiobook?	
	Place Hold Now	
		Close

The patron clicks the **Place Hold Now** button, and a message indicates the hold request was placed.

ALE RISING	Red Rising [electronic resource] by Brown, Pierce	ф
	Your request has been placed	
		Close

The hold request appears in the patron's Requests list.

Library Info 👻	Search 🔹	M	Accou	nt • Help •			
My Account Banach, Jane A		Banach Requ	, Jane A Jests			 G - more infe I[™] - additional 	ormation al note
My Record		•	Format	Title	Status	Pickup Library	Hold Position
Items Out (3) Requests (3)		• 6		101 questions your cat would ask : what's bothering your cat and how to solve its problems by Head, Honor.	Shipped (574 days ago)	Saratoga Springs Public Library	
Fines & Fees		• •		Voices of the Middle Ages, [sound recording] music from a Gothic cathedral.	Shipped (507 days ago)	Saratoga Springs Public Library	
Claimed and Lost Reading History (228)		• 6	ſЪ	Red Rising by Brown, Pierce	Active (since 8/17/2018)	Online	
Saved Searches (10) My shopping cart		Chan	ge Pickup	Location Cancel Selected Suspend/Reactivate S	Selected Ref	resh eContent	

Checking in RBdigital Titles Before They Expire

From the Patron account | Items out list, the patron clicks **Check In** to check in a Recorded Books title before it expires.

Library Info - Search -	My Accour	nt • Help				
My Account + Banach, Jane A	Banach, Jane Items Ou	A It			🕄 - more	information
My Record	= Eorr	nat Due Date	Title	Renewals Left	Call Number	Assigned Branch
Items Out (4)	1 0	9/13/2018	The Disappeared	Check In		Online
Fines & Fees	0	8/24/2018	Winter Storms	Check In		Online
Claimed and Lost	0	8/24/2018	Secret Montana	Check In		Online
Reading History (228)	0	8/24/2018	101 Dressage Exercises for Horse & Rider	Check In		Online
Saved Searches (10)						
My shopping cart	Refresh eCo	ontent				

A confirmation message box appears, and the patron clicks **Check in Now**.

r		×
Roman a more	101 Dressage Exercises for Horse & Rider by Ballou, Jec Aristotle	^ <mark>(</mark>)
	Check in this RBdigital Ebook?	
	Check In Now	•
		Close

A success message appears.



Manually Import the RBdigital Collection

You can manually set the import to run during the next overnight process and import any missing records. This process does not affect expired titles.

To manually import your RBdigital collection:

- 1. Open the Vendor Account workform for Recorded Books.
- 2. Select **Tools > Import Titles** or press **CTRL+ALT+T**.

Note:

The **Tools** option appears only for RBdigital vendor accounts.

Vendor a	iccou	nt 47 - Polaris				_		×		
File E	idit	Tools Help Import Titles Ctrl+A	Alt+T							
ηt	Ven	dor name:	RBdigital (integrated)] 🗹 Integrated ci	rculatio	on vendor			
5	Ver	ndor account name:	Active							
8	Vendor account description: QA Polaris Test Child Account									
Ŭ V	Res				\sim					
1	Icor	n URL:								
9	Ver	ndor contract ID:	4040							
/enc	Vend	lor account settings:				Tes	t Connect	ion		
		Attribute		Value				^		
	•	Vendor account server	r name	api.rbdigital.com						
		Vendor account use S	SL	No				~		
		Vendor account import	t profile ID	RBdigital test				~		
		Library RBdigital URL		https://qapolaristestc.rbdigital.co	om			\sim		

The following message appears: Warning: This process will review your entire RBdigital collection during overnight processing and import any missing records. Do you want to continue? Ok / Cancel.

3. Click Ok.

When you manually request an import, the system calls out to RBdigital for the most recent snapshot of the library's titles. The system identifies the records that are in the snapshot but not in the Polaris database, and it creates an import job for those missing records.

Then, the job is added to the import jobs queue. When the import runs, the records are imported according to the settings in the new import profile. The vendor account linked to the resource entity must match the vendor account importing titles to be considered a match. Duplicate detection is performed by matching the ISBN in the RB digital record to the ISBN in the Resource Entity in Polaris, and only those records not currently in the Polaris database are imported.

A RBdigital Import Requested transaction is logged. This includes a 300 transaction subtype for the vendor account ID.

EContent in the Polaris Staff Client

EContent can be circulated from the PAC only and not the Polaris staff client. If a staff member attempts to check out or renew an eContent title from the staff client, an error message displays. Staff members can search for and access eContent bibliographic and item records in the staff client. They can be placed in record sets and bulk changed.

To find eContent records for integrated eContent vendors, select the vendor in the Find Tool.

General S	etings Scoping Branches Collection	ons Databas	ses							
Objects	Diklisomakis Daovede	init he	Mandor	Secout		0.00		Search Mode	Search	
Object:	Bibliographic Records	Office of	Vehuor	vendor account				Normal	Sinn	55
Search by:	Tide	Yalues:	(AII)	Natal Cr				OPower		-
Туре:	Keyword search	~	3M QA	Digital Gro	up 2			OSQL	New Searc	
Sort by:	(None)	~	Hoopla Overdrit	ve - maryl	land			Count Only	Clear	100
For:	•	~	OverDri	WE QA1					Help	
Title		Author		Format	Lin	Ho	Publ.	- Call Number	Contr	
Fire : From	"a Journal of Love" the Unexpur	Nin, Anais.		Electr	1		1995	19991992	984343	
Flying ultra	alights [electronic resource] : acti	Mattern, Jo	ann	Electr	1	*	2009	629.133/343	984675	
Rodeo rop	ers (electronic resource)	Stone, Lynn	n M.	Electr	1	*	2009	791.8/40973	984604	
Five Jaguar	r [electronic resource]	Rogers, Rid	har	Electr	1	*	2011		984272	
Sport bike	racing [electronic resource]	Spalding, L	.ee	Electr	1	*	2009	796.7/5	984627	
	I of Ginger [electronic resource]	Simonds, N	lina.	Electr	1	*	2011		984295	
A Spoonfu				Electe	1	*	2011	202/.3	984721	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps	e not [electronic resource] : a hist	Greer, John	Mic	ciecu					984389	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to	e not [electronic resource] : a hist Survive [electronic resource]	Greer, John Kennedy, Jo	Mic osep	Electr	1	*	2011		204202	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to Bluefish (el	e not [electronic resource] : a hist o Survive [electronic resource] lectronic resource]	Greer, John Kennedy, Ja Schmatz, Pa	osep at.	Electr Electr	1 1	* *	2011 2011		984366	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to Bluefish (el 1,000 ideas	e not [electronic resource] : a hist Survive [electronic resource] lectronic resource] s by 100 manga artists [electroni	Greer, John Kennedy, Jk Schmatz, Pk Campos, Cr	osep at. risti	Electr Electr Electr	1 1 1	* * *	2011 2011 2011	741.5/952	984366 984698	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to Bluefish (el 1,000 ideas Manhunt (e	e not [electronic resource] : a hist Survive [electronic resource] lectronic resource] s by 100 manga artists [electroni electronic resource] : the ten-year	Greer, John Kennedy, J Schmatz, P Campos, Cr Bergen, Pet	Mic osep at. risti ter L.,	Electr Electr Electr Electr	1 1 1	* * *	2011 2011 2011 2012	741.5/952 363.325/160	984366 984698 984773	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to Bluefish (el 1,000 ideas Manhunt (el Wheels (el	e not [electronic resource] : a hist Survive [electronic resource] lectronic resource] s by 100 manga artists [electroni electronic resource] : the ten-year ectronic resource]	Greer, John Kennedy, & Schmatz, Pi Campos, Cr Bergen, Pet Armentrout	n Mic osep at. risti ter L t, D	Electr Electr Electr Electr Electr Electr	1 1 1 1	* * *	2011 2011 2011 2012 2010	741.5/952 363.325/160 621.8/11	984366 984698 984773 984512	
A Spoonfu Apocalyps In Order to Bluefish (el 1,000 idea: Manhunt (el Wheels (el Shear Terro	e not [electronic resource] : a hist) Survive [electronic resource] lectronic resource] s by 100 manga artists [electroni electronic resource] : the ten-year ectronic resource] or [electronic resource]	Greer, John Kennedy, Jk Schmatz, P. Campos, Cr Bergen, Pet Armentrout Boudreau, C	n Mic osep at. risti ter L t, D Cha	Electr Electr Electr Electr Electr Electr Electr	1 1 1 1 1	* * * *	2011 2011 2011 2012 2010 2010	741.5/952 363.325/160 621.8/11	984366 984698 984773 984512 984435	

For more information on eContent bibliographic records and their resource entities, which enable the integration between Polaris and the vendor, see <u>Resource Entities</u>.

For more information on integrated eContent item records, see EContent Item Records.

EContent Item Records

You can search for integrated eContent item records in the Polaris Find Tool by selecting Limit By > EContent (Integrated) and then selecting Yes, No or All.

General Se	atings Sc	oping B	ranches (Collectors	Databa	ses					
Objects	Rom Rom	rde			Come has	Econtor	ot (Totoorat		Search Mode		Search
object.	Mentineco	100			1 Cum by	Lounder	e fruide of	eu) •	Normal		Clea
Search by:	Author			~	Values:	(All)			Power		siop
Туре:	Exact mat	ch (implici	tly truncate	ed) ~		No			OSQL		New Search
Sort by:	(None)			Ŷ					Count Only		Clear
For:	munro			Ý]						Help
Title		Assig	Colle	Mate	Shelf	Call	Status	Barcode	Last Activi	R.	Con
Lives of Gir	is and	Digita	Digit	eBook			In	econtent9905.	1/19/2014	Fi.,	990
Dance of th	he Hap	Digita	Digit	eBook			In	econtent9907		Fi	990
Dear Life [e	electron	Digita	Adult.,	eBook			In	econtent9910		Fi.,	991
Dear Life Id	electron	Digita	Digit	eBook			In	econtent9955		Fi	995

The **EContent** check box is checked automatically in the Item Record workform, which identifies the item record as an integrated eContent item record. Integrated eContent item records are assigned item barcodes with an eContent prefix.

No special permissions are necessary for working with eContent item records; the existing **Item records: Create, Modify, Delete** permissions also apply to eContent items.

	i vien ciin	× 🛛 🗗 🖏 🛽) 🛄 🗛 🖪 🚮 👗	6 17				
	Barcode:	econtent9956037	Record status: Final	IL Ecor	ntent	Non-circi	ilating	Display in FA
2	Title:	Drown [electronic resource]			Find	Bib control	number:	976238
ž	Author:	Diaz, Junot.		Parent item:		Item control	number:	9956037
Y C	Call number:			Price:		Issue contro	l no.:	
E	Owner:	QA-Plato 4.1 R2 (sys)	v	Shelf location:	(None)			,
e l'	Assigned:	Digital Branch Two (TB12L7)	~	Temporary location:				
	Collection:	Adult Nonfiction (ANF)	~	Circulation status:	In	~	12/19/201	13 1:25:19 PM
5	Dura datas		1		In-transi	t/Transferred		
	oue date.		Longing branch:		From:			
	Check-out date	6			r			
	Renewals take	n: 0 Umit: 0]		3ers:			
5			Hald for patron:		To:			
3	Last renew dat)e:	Held at:					
	Original due da	ate:]		Receiv	ved:		
	Last location		Last use					
	Check-in at:		Last borrower:					
			Loaning branch:					
	Date:							
	Wks/User:		Last circulated:					

The Item Record workform is generally the same for eContent item records as for other types of item records, with the following additional features and exceptions:

- Links You can link to the vendor account and resource group. Select Links > Vendor Account or Resource Group from the Item Record workform or from the right-click menu for an item record listed in the Find Tool or another list.
- Econtent check box The **Econtent** check box is always checked for integrated eContent vendor item records; it is supplied automatically and cannot be changed.
- File | New You cannot create a new eContent item record from the Item Record workform if the item is from an integrated eContent vendor.
- Assigned branch If your library uses Resource Groups to limit access to eContent by branch, the assigned branch in the eContent item records should be in the resource group or digital branch selected in the integrated eContent vendor account. If the assigned branch is not in the resource group, the availability information in the PAC is negatively affected.
- Additional read-only fields These cannot be changed in the Item Record workform or via Item Bulk Change. See Read-Only Fields in Integrated EContent Items.

- Vendor account and resource group The vendor account and resource group are displayed on the Item Record workform's Source and Acquisition view and the property page.
- Added copy note The History view displays the following note for added copies of an existing eContent title that is under the same vendor contract: Added copy created by API consumer service.

Read-Only Fields in Integrated EContent Items

Certain fields in item records, such as the check out date, cannot be changed in item records regardless of the type of material. The following additional fields are read-only for integrated vendor eContent item records:

- EContent Item Record workform header
- Barcode
- EContent (check box always checked)
- ILL item (check box always unchecked)
- Non-circulating item (check box always unchecked)
- **Display in PAC** (check box always checked unless the copy has expired due to publisher restrictions)
- Title (the Find button is disabled in the Item Record workform)
- Bib control no.
- EContent Item Record workform Cataloging view
- Loan period
- Fine code
- Renewal limit
- Loanable outside system (check box always checked)
- **Do not mail to patron** (check box always unchecked)
- Holdable (check box always unchecked)
- Pickup at this branch (check box always unchecked)
- Patrons from this library and branches (check box always unchecked)
- Patrons from this branch (check box always unchecked)
- Preferred borrowers (check box always unchecked)
- EContent Item Record workform Circulation view
- Renewals/limits

- EContent Item Record workform History view
- **Do not float** (check box always unchecked)
- EContent Item Record workform Reserves view The fields are always blank on the Reserves view.

EContent Item Records and Item Bulk Change

If you select an option in the Item Bulk Change dialog box, and the change cannot be made for some of the selected items because they are eContent, the changes are made in item records where the changes are possible, but not in the eContent items. The bulk change report lists the eContent item records that were not changed.

EContent Circ/Holds Transactions

Circulation and hold request transactions for eContent are logged in the staff client. This includes circulation transactions initiated from the vendor's application. Some circulation actions, such as resetting due dates, do not apply to eContent.

The following Polaris circulation activities apply to eContent:

Note:

The default loaning branch for circulation transactions is the patron's registered branch, but your library can set the loaning branch as the item's assigned branch for eContent circulations. This allows patron-initiated circulations, where the patron checks out or places holds on eContent from the PAC, to be tracked separately from circulations for physical items. Search the Polaris help for "Patron-Initiated EContent Circulation from PAC."

- · Check-out and check-in transactions -
 - Two subtype codes identify eContent: one for an electronic item; one for the vendor account. EContent circulation transactions are included in existing standard Polaris reports, and can be identified in Polaris SimplyReports.
 - Check-outs and check-ins done from the eContent vendor's application are logged in Polaris after synchronization. The check-out subtype is 44 (Third party Checkout). The check-in subtype is 47 (Third party Checkin).
 - Checked out eContent titles are displayed in the Patron Status workform -Items Out view, and in the patron's reading history. They can be removed

from the reading history.

 The due date is set at the point that the checkout occurs in Polaris, according to the rules established by the library's account with the vendor. The due date includes the time due.

Note:

Due dates (automatic expiration dates) for eContent are calculated from the check-out transaction date and time, not the download date and time.

- When an eContent item is checked in from PAC, the action is recorded in the Polaris item record. The due date, check-out date, original due date, current borrower and loaning branch fields are cleared, and the **Last Borrower** fields are populated. The check-in transaction is recorded in the item record history.
- Hold request transactions -
 - Econtent hold request created (6100)
 - Econtent hold requests satisfied (6101)
 - Econtent hold request canceled (6102)
- These transactions include the following details:
 - Date/time
 - $\circ \ \ \text{Vendor ID}$
 - Title
 - Bib ID
 - Patron ID and patron branch, if available
- Transaction subtypes identify the eContent type: eContent, Audio eContent, or Digital video recording.
- EContent hold transaction types are not included in existing standard Polaris reports, but are available for reporting in Polaris SimplyReports, Patron History reports.
- EContent requests placed from the PAC are not displayed in the Patron Status, Holds view or in other areas where holds display for physical items.
- Item-level requests are not allowed, and eContent item records are automatically set to non-holdable.

The following circulation actions do not apply to eContent items:

- Fines
- Renewal
- Reset due date
- Claim
- Declare lost
- Manual changes to the circulation status
- Route lists
- Course reserves
- Shelving status

Expired EContent

EContent publishers may restrict eContent circulations using one of the following methods:

- Number of copies
- Expiration date
- Hybrid (expiration date or number of copies, whichever comes first)

Polaris processes expired titles differently depending on the eContent vendor.

cloudLibrary Expired EContent

cloudLibrary (formerly 3M Cloud Library) sends a "remove" event when a library's access to an eContent title ends because a checked out copy has reached the maximum circulation limit, or a copy with any circ status expires because it has reached the time limit specified by the publisher.

The Polaris API consumer services detects the remove event, and Polaris reduces the number of available copies by one - either by suppressing the record from display in PAC or by changing its status to Withdrawn. If cloudLibrary sends a single remove event for a title with multiple copies, Polaris removes the oldest item with the earliest creation date. If two items have the same creation date, the item with the lower item record ID is selected.

If the expired item's status is Checked Out, the **Display in PAC** setting is changed so that the item does not display. When it is checked back in, its **Display in PAC** setting is turned back on, and its circ status changes to Withdrawn. If the expired item's status is

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

In, no changes are made to the Display in PAC setting, and the status is set to Withdrawn.

When an eContent item has expired, the item record stays in the database and remains linked to the bibliographic record and the resource entity. The History view of the Item Record workform includes information about the **Modified by API consumer service** status changes from **In** to **Withdrawn** and **Withdrawn** to **In**, and the **Modified by API consumer service** changes to the **Display in PAC** setting. **Important:**

If your library does not prevent withdrawn items from displaying in PAC, these expired items will still display in PAC availability information.

If the library orders another copy of the cloudLibrary title to replace the expired copy, the eContent item with a *Withdrawn* status is set to a status of Checked In, and it is set to display in PAC.

You can use the standard Cataloging Bibliographic report, Integrated eContent With All Copies Expired, to see the eContent bibliographic records where all the linked item records have a status of *Withdrawn*. In the Report Wizard window, select the vendor account from a drop-down list of all integrated eContent vendors. The report columns display the bib ID, title, author, the number of resource entities, and the vendor account with all copies expired.

Report Wizard - Integrated eContent With All Copies Expired	×
Parameters	
Vendor account	
Als 3M QA Digtal Group 1 3M QA Digtal Group 2 Asis 300 OverDrive LEAD OverDrive DA1	
Submit Cancel	

OverDrive and Axis 360 Expired EContent

An overnight synchronization process identifies discrepancies between the number of eContent item records in Polaris, for a given title, and the number of copies at the

eContent vendor. For a given title, if the provider reports fewer copies for the library than there are eContent item records in Polaris, then item records are deleted from Polaris. The following rules determine which item records are deleted from Polaris:

- The eContent item record with the lowest item record control number that has a circulation status of "in" is deleted. The system administration setting "Retain deleted item records" is followed.
- If no eContent item records have a circulation status of "in," then the record with the lowest control number with a circulation status of "unavailable" is deleted. (EContent item records have a circulation status of "unavailable" when they are checked out via the vendor's app to a consortium patron who is not in the local Polaris database.)
- If no eContent item records have a circulation status of either "in" or "unavailable," then no item record is deleted. When one of the copies is subsequently checked in, then the next night's synchronization process deletes the extra item record. In the interim period between the check in and the sync process, a "place hold" button appears in the PAC, unless there are no copies reported by the eContent vendor, in which case the button says "all copies expired."

All Integrated EContent Vendors

If all eContent item records for an eContent title have been deleted, or have a status of *Withdrawn*, the resource entity still remains on the bibliographic record, and after the patron logs in, the PAC **Check Out/Place Request** button is changed to **All Copies Expired** and disabled so it cannot be clicked. The button's hover text is: **Your library's license for this title has expired. Please contact a librarian for more information**. This text can be changed in WebAdmin.

To prevent the eContent title from displaying in the PAC if all copies are withdrawn, the library can set the title to not display in PAC. Other options are to revert or delete the resource entity, or delete the bibliographic record. If you delete the resource entity from the bibliographic record and the library purchases more copies, the API consumer service will create a new resource entity and the associated eContent item records.

Note:

When the library replaces the expired copies, the API consumer service does not check or reset the **Display in PAC** setting on the bibliographic record. If the library sets the record to not display in PAC and then purchases added copies, a staff member must manually check the **Display in PAC** box on the Bibliographic Record workform.

Polaris API Consumer Services

An overnight process, PolAPIConsumerServiceOvernightProc.exe, checks for new titles (OverDrive only) and changes in item availability, such as added copies (OverDrive and Axis 360). It runs in addition to the PolAPIConsumerService.exe, which synchronizes patron circulation activity.

For OverDrive, the PolAPIConsumerServiceOvernightProc.exe runs in either full synch or delta modes, based on an appSettings.key named LastProcessTime. The first time the process runs after the service has been started, the LastProcess time is set to nothing by default, and a full synch occurs. New titles are brought in and availability is sychronized for all OverDrive eContent titles owned by the library.

After the initial run, the LastProcessTime is determined by the previous successful run, and a delta synch occurs. During a delta synch, only titles that are new or have availability changes since the LastProcessTime are synchronized.

The service should be stopped, restarted, and run in full synch mode when:

- A vendor account is enabled
- It is necessary to bring in the full set of OverDrive titles again (occasionally necessary because of changes to import settings and related processing).

If it is necessary to stop and restart the service, but a full synch is not desirable for some reason, you can force a delta synch by entering a valid datetime string into the LastProcessTime appSettings.key.

See Checking the Status of the Polaris API Consumer Service.

Checking the Status of the Polaris API Consumer Service

To check the status of the Polaris API consumer service for an integrated eContent vendor:

- 1. Go to the server where the service is running.
- 2. Select Start > Administrative Tools > Services.

The Services window opens.

3. Select **Polaris API Consumer Service** and scroll right to see the status of the service. The service status should be restarted.

Suspending and Reactivating an Integrated Vendor Account

In the event of a system disruption, you can temporarily suspend an integrated eContent vendor account. Suspending an account applies only to integrated eContent vendor accounts because it allows the library to temporarily suspend API calls. When a vendor account is suspended, most API processes stop, which temporarily disallows eContent check outs and hold requests, and stops the automatic creation of eContent item records from these API calls. Synchronization of circulation transactions continues to take place for records currently checked out; for example, automatic check in occurs when an item is due. After resolving the system problem, you can reactivate the suspended vendor account. All API calls resume.

Important:

After activating a vendor account, or reactivating a suspended vendor account, an IIS reset is required so that the PAC shows the correct information for the vendor's resources. For example, the IIS reset enables the Check Out or Place Hold button to be displayed instead of the **Temporarily Unavailable** button. Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

Suspending an Integrated eContent Vendor Account

To suspend an integrated eContent vendor account:

- 1. Open the integrated eContent vendor account in the Vendor Account workform.
- 2. Clear the **Active** check box.
- 3. Save the workform.
- 4. Do an IIS reset.

Note:

Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

Results of Suspending a Vendor Account

Changes will take effect after the IIS reset. When an integrated eContent vendor account is suspended, the following changes occur in the PAC and the Polaris staff client:

• PAC - The **Check out** or **Place request** button changes to **Temporarily Unavailable** (the button text can be changed in WebAdmin).

Polaris Staff Client

- Bibliographic Record The Resource view of the Bibliographic Record workform indicates that the vendor account is suspended.
- Import Profile In the import profile associated with the vendor account, the vendor account's name is listed with **suspended** after it. If you select a suspended vendor account and import records using the Polaris Import Setup window, resource entities are built during the import, but the entities are not accessible for circulation functions. In addition, in the absence of the API call, the import cannot determine how many items to build, so no item records are built. When the vendor account is reactivated and the synchronization process restarts, any necessary item records are generated.
- Import Report The import report indicates the vendor account was suspended at the time of import, so only one item record was built for each imported bibliographic record.

Reactivating a Suspended Integrated eContent Vendor Account

Important:

After activating a vendor account, or reactivating a suspended vendor account, an IIS reset is required so that the PAC shows the correct information for the vendor's resources. For example, the IIS reset enables the Check Out or Place Hold button to be displayed instead of the **Temporarily Unavailable** button. Polaris Hosted customers should contact Polaris Customer Support to perform an IIS reset.

To reactive a suspended integrated eContent vendor account:

- 1. Open the integrated eContent vendor account in the Vendor Account workform.
- 2. Check the **Active** check box.
- 3. Save the workform.
- 4. Perform an IIS reset.

Results of Reactivating an Integrated eContent Vendor Account

When an integrated eContent vendor account is reactivated, the **Active** box is checked in the Vendor Account workform, all API processes resume, and the following changes occur in the PAC and Polaris staff client:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

- PAC The **Temporarily Unavailable** changes back to the **Check out** or **Place request** button (whichever is appropriate).
- Polaris Staff Client The message Vendor Account Suspended no longer appears on the Resource view of the Bibliographic Record workform; automatic imports resume using the import profile specified in the vendor account; resource entities are built and used in circulation functions; and the item records are created during the import.

Non-Integrated EContent in Polaris

When the library offers eContent from non-integrated vendors, the records are displayed in PAC search results, but patrons must click a link to check them out on the vendor's site. These circulation transactions are not recorded in Polaris.

You can create vendor accounts for non-integrated eContent vendors if you want to limit patron access to the eContent based on the contract the library has with the vendor. If you do not want to limit access, you do not need a vendor account in Polaris. No license is required for setting up non-integrated vendor accounts.

A non-integrated vendor account associates a specific eContent vendor account with a resource group in order to limit patron access to eContent according to the branch or branches that use the account. You can also create a non-integrated vendor account without a resource group if you want a vendor-specific icon to appear with the 856 tags in the PAC.

The fields in the Vendor Account workform contain the following information for a nonintegrated vendor:

- The vendor account ID, and the MARC tag/subfield where the account ID is found.
- The MARC tag/subfield where the object identifier is found, and where the object identifier starts and ends. This is where Polaris looks for the data that identifies the eContent or electronic resource in the vendor's repository.
- The tag where the URL and link text are found, and the subfields for the URL and the text.
- The subfields where the vendor's public note and non-public note are found.

To implement eContent processing for a non-integrated eContent vendor, the library and Innovative Interfaces do the following:

• Polaris provides the non-integrated eContent vendor records. The Vendor option is available under **Administration** > **Explorer** > **Vendor**.

Palants ILS 41.698 - peer [Cobleskill] File Acquisitions Serials Cataloging Patron Services Circulation []	Administration Utilities Window	Help		hanengi		-
	Bajlorer > System Sanar Lithery Branch Staff Mereker Wiedotation Collection Patton Patton Patton Patton Pattonsco Group	System Library Branch Suff Member Workstation Collection Server Database Table Vendor			۲	2

The available Vendor records are displayed under the expanded **Vendors** node.

	Administration Explorer – Vendor	_ 🗆 🗖 📈
File Help		
P Vendors	Vendors	
Vendors		
Axis 360 (integrated)		
Generic Vendor (non-integrated)		
DverDrive, Inc. (integrated)		
< >		
For Help, press F1		

- The library sets up resource groups in Polaris Administration for the library organizations that allow their patrons to access the eContent from the non-integrated vendor. To set up a resource group, select File > New > Resource Group from the Polaris Shortcut Bar. Select the branches that belong to this resource group. For more information, search the Polaris help for "Manage patron access to eContent using resource groups."
- The library sets up a non-integrated vendor account under the **OverDrive (non-integrated)** or **Generic (non-integrated)** vendor record. Non-integrated vendor accounts are used to limit access to eContent for a vendor that does not integrate with Polaris Circulation. See <u>Create a non-integrated eContent vendor account</u>.
- The library imports the eContent from the non-integrated eContent vendor using an import profile with the non-integrated vendor's account selected.
- For existing eContent titles for a non-integrated vendor, the library gathers the bibliographic records in a record set and uses the Bib Bulk Change process to create resource entities that are used to limit access in the PAC. See <u>Bulk-Creating</u>

<u>Resource Entities</u>. Resource entities can also be created for single records from the Bibliographic Record workform. See <u>Creating a Resource Entity from the Bibliographic Record Workform</u>.

Creating a Non-Integrated eContent Vendor Account

To create a non-integrated eContent vendor account:

- 1. Select the **Vendor** node in the Administration Explorer.
- 2. Select the **Overdrive (non-integrated)** or **Generic (non-integrated)** vendor, rightclick, and select **New**.

The Vendor Account workform for the non-integrated eContent vendor opens.

New ve	endo	or ac	count - Polaris					-	_		×
File	Edi	it I	Help								
		4) 🗙 🖻 😰								
unt	v	/end Venc	lor name: dor account name:	Generic Vendor	(non-integrated)		lr	ntegrated cir	culatio	on vendor	
l õ		Vend	for account description:								
0	F	Reso	ource group:	(None)							\sim
4	1	lcon	URL:								
jo D		Vend	lor contract ID:								
Ven	Ve	endo	or account settings: Attribute			Value					^
		,	Vendor account identi	ifier value							
			Vendor account identi	ifier tag number							_
			Vendor account identi	ifier subfield			 				- 1
			Vendor object identifie	er tag number er subfield							-
			Vendor object identifier s	tart value							
			Vendor object identifier e	nd value							
			Vendor account URL	and link text tag	number						
			Vendor account URL	and link text ind	icator two						
			Vendor account URL	subfield							
			Vendor account link te	ext subfield							
			Vendor account public no	ote subfield							_
	L		Vendor account nonpubli	c note subfield							\checkmark
											:

Note:

The Vendor name field is filled in automatically with OverDrive, Inc. if you

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

are creating a vendor account for OverDrive, or Generic Vendor if you are creating an account for another vendor.

3. Type a name for the vendor account in the **Vendor account name** box and an optional description in the **Vendor account description** box.

Note:

The following fields are required for non-integrated eContent vendor accounts: Vendor account name, Vendor account identifier value, Vendor account identifier tag number, Vendor account identifier subfield, Vendor account URL and link text tag number, Vendor account URL and link text indicator two, Vendor account URL subfield, and Vendor account link text subfield.

4. To limit patron access, select the resource group from the **Resource group** dropdown list box.

Note:

The resource group must be set up in Polaris Administration before it appears in the list. For information on setting up resource groups in Polaris, see Polaris staff client online Help.

- 5. To display the vendor's icon next to the URL link in the PAC, enter the URL for the vendor's icon in the **Icon URL** box.
- 6. Type the contract ID in the **Vendor contract ID** box. The contract ID is optional for non-integrated vendors.
- 7. In the Vendor account settings, enter the following information:

Note:

If you are creating a vendor account for OverDrive, some recommended account settings are pre-filled.

- Vendor account identifier value (required) Identifies the vendor's account.
- Vendor account identifier tag number (required) Identifies the bib tag where the vendor account ID is located.
- Vendor account identifier subfield (required) Identifies the bib tag subfield where the vendor account identifier is found.

- Vendor object identifier tag number (required) Identifies the tag where the eContent object identifier is found.
- Vendor object identifier subfield (required) Identifies the tag subfield where the eContent object identifier is found.
- Vendor object identifier start value Specifies where the string that identifies the eContent object starts.
- Vendor object identifier end value Specifies where the string that identifies the eContent object ends. If the object identifier appears at the end of the subfield, this field can be left blank.

Note:

If both the object identifier start and end values are left blank, the entire subfield is included.

- Vendor account URL and link text tag number (required) Identifies the tag where the URL for the eContent and link text are found. These need to be in the same tag. This is the tag that becomes the resource entity for the non-integrated eContent bibliographic record.
- Vendor account URL and link text indicator two (required) Identifies the MARC second indicator value for the tag containing the URL and link text.
- Vendor account URL subfield (required) Identifies the subfield where the URL is located.
- Vendor account link text subfield (required) Identifies the subfield where the link text is located.
- Vendor account public note subfield Identifies the subfield for the public note.
- Vendor account nonpublic note subfield Identifies the non-public note subfield.
- 8. Save the Vendor Account workform for the non-integrated vendor account.

Resources Entities for Non-Integrated EContent Vendors

Resource entities are used for non-integrated eContent vendors when the library wants to restrict access to eContent by the branch or branches that have a certain contract with the non-integrated eContent vendor. They must be unique for the vendor account ID/URL within one bibliographic record.

Creating a Resource Entity from the Bibliographic Record Workform

To create a resource entity from the Bibliographic Record workform:

- 1. Search for and select a bibliographic record for the eContent.
- 2. Select **Tools** > **Create Resource Entities** from the Bibliographic Record workform menu.

The Create Resource Entity dialog box appears.

3. Select the vendor account in the drop-down list box, and click **OK** to close the dialog box.

Bibli	ographic	Record	1495553 - MARC21 - Polaris —	×
File Ed	it View	Links 1	Tools Help	
	₽ 📙	-	🗙 🛞 🗼 🖻 🖻 🖱 🛲 📴 🚾 名 🧊 🚹 🗠 🖆 😭	
ord	Control nu Title:	umber:	1495553 Owner: QA-POLARIS Items: 1 Record status: Final One Hundred Years of Solitude [electronic resource] Display in PAC ILL	
вc			Do not overlay Host	
C R	Tag	Ind	Data	^
ηic	001		nam 22 5a 4500 1495553	
ld	003		PolarisTest	
a	005		20180801143818 Create Resource Entity	
g	006		m od	
lio	007		cr unullilli	
q	008		180707s2016	
Bi	020		‡а978137092382: ОК Cancel Неlp	
1.77	037		‡a79875F1D-E201	
1	040		‡cPolaris Lib Sys	
20	100	1	FaBooks, Dally	
	245	10	+aOne Hundred Years of Solitude+n[electronic resource] /+CDally Books	

4. Save the bibliographic record to create the resource entity.

Bulk-Creating Resource Entities

If a vendor account is set up in Polaris, and you have the **Access bibliographic bulk change permission**, you can bulk-create resource entities for bibliographic records that contain data matching to the vendor account. For example, you could bulk-create resource entities for a non-integrated eContent vendor to restrict access by resource group. You cannot bulk-change existing resource entities.

To use the Bibliographic Bulk Change dialog box to bulk-create resource entities from existing 856 (or other) tags:

1. Open the bibliographic record set containing the records for which you want to create resource entities.



Click to open the Bulk Change dialog box, or press CTRL+B.

2. Select Tools, Bulk Change.

The Bibliographic Bulk Change dialog box appears with the non-MARC tabbed page displayed.

3. Select the **Create resource entities** check box, and select the vendor account in the **Vendor account** box.

Bibliograph	ic Record B	ulk Char	nge				×
Non-MARC	Data Fields	Leader	006 Tag	007 Tag (1)	007 Tag (2)	008 Tag	
)isplay In PAC			Do not overla	у		
	On	Off		On	Off		
	ecord owner						
	From:						~
	To:						
	10.						~
Sa	ave provisiona	al records	s as final				
۲cr	reate resource	e entities					
	/endor accou	nt:					\sim
				ОК	Cance	el 📃	Help

4. Click **OK**.

A resource entity is created for each bibliographic record that contains data required to create the resource entity. First, the system checks for data matching the vendor account. If the data in the bibliographic record matches the vendor account data, the system then checks for the data required to create the resource entity.

Bibliographic Bulk Change Report

The report displays the number of resource entities that were created. If a resource entity could not be created, an error message displays the reason the resource entity could not be created:

- No resource entities were created. The data in the record does not match the vendor account you selected. This message appears if the bibliographic record does not have data that matches to the vendor account.
- No resource entities were created. Required data is missing from the record. This message appears if the bibliographic record contains data matching to the vendor account, but not the data required to create the resource entity.

Managing Promotions

With Feature It, a separately-licensed product, the library can display featured resources in a dashboard on the PowerPAC search results screen when specific search queries are entered. These featured resources may be library materials, web sites, or community organizations/events. Your library must also have a license for Community Profiles to feature community organizations or events. Promotion records are linked to the featured community or bibliographic record.

To feature these resources in the PAC, you create Promotion records in the Polaris staff client that specify the resources to feature and the conditions under which the resources will display. If your library has Community Profiles and a Campaigns license, promotion records can be generated automatically for community organizations and events.

Polaris Administration settings determine the location and display of these featured resources in PowerPAC. See the Public Access Administration PDF Guide, Managing Feature It Promotions .

Note: Feature It is not available in Polaris Mobile PAC or Polaris PowerPAC Children's Edition.

See also:

Creating and Editing Promotion Records

Creating and Editing Promotion Records

Promotion records in Polaris Cataloging are used to feature bibliographic materials, web sites, or community resources and events (if your library has a license for Community Profiles in addition to Feature It). Multiple resources can be featured in the same promotion record, but they must be of the same type. For example, if the promotion record features a title in your library's catalog, you can add other bibliographic records to feature, but not URLs or community organizations/events. The following Cataloging permissions, set at the system, library or branch level, control who can work with these records: **Promotion records: Access, Create, Modify**, and **Delete**. The following example shows community resources returned with a bibliographic keyword search.



To feature multiple resources of different types, you can create several promotion records linked to different types of resources, then enter the same set of search terms that will trigger the featured resources. For example, you could feature bibliographic records and a community organization/event by creating two promotion records, each with the same search triggers.

See also:

- Find an existing promotion record
- Create a new promotion record from the Shortcut Bar
- Enter or edit general promotion information
- Enter the resource(s) to feature
- Enter search terms to trigger the featured resources
- Enter demographic targeting for promotions

Find an Existing Promotion Record

To search for an existing promotion record:

1. Select Cataloging, Promotions from the Polaris Shortcut Bar.

The Find Tool opens with **Promotions** selected in the **Object** box.

- 2. Select the search criteria, and enter the search term in the For box.
- 3. Click the **Search** button.

The promotion records meeting your search criteria appear in the list.

The **Linkage Type** column displays the type of featured resource.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

Name Act projects	fer sound children	Heat	dine	for young children.	Lin	kage Type	Control Num
For	artprojects						Help
Type: Sort by:	Keyword aearch (None)	•			1	Count Only	Clear
Search by:	All Keyword Indexed Pields		Value:			Power	New Cased
Object:	Promotions	•	Umit by: (Olone)		 Search Mode Normal 	Search	

Double-click the promotion record, or select the record, right-click and select **Open**.
 The selected record opens in the Promotion workform.

Create a New Promotion Record from the Shortcut Bar

To create a new promotion record from the Polaris Shortcut Bar:

Tip:

Press **CTRL+N** to display the New dialog box. Type the first letter of the record type to go to all records that begin with that letter. For example, type **p** to go to **Promotion.**To limit the record types in the **Objects** list, select Cataloging in the **View** box.

1. Select **File > New** from the Shortcut Bar.

The New dialog box appears.

2. Select **Promotion** in the **Objects** list.

bjects			
Views	Cataloging Objects		OK
Bibliographic Template Community Record			Cancel
Course Course Item Ra	Reserve Template ecord	-	Help

3. Click OK.

The Promotion workform opens.

4. Enter information in the workform. See also:

- Enter or edit general promotion information
- Enter the resource(s) to feature
- Enter search terms to trigger the featured resources
- Enter demographic targeting for promotions
- 5. Select File > Save to save the record.

A message in the status bar indicates the record was saved.

Create a New Record from the Promotion Workform

To create a new promotion record from the Promotion workform:

- 1. Use the Polaris Find Tool to locate and display an existing promotion record.
- 2. Select **File > New**, or press **CTRL+N** from the workform menu bar.

The New Promotion dialog box appears.

- 3. Select one of the following options:
 - Clear Work Form The data is cleared from the workform, and a new, blank workform appears.
 - **Copy Existing Work Form** The original workform closes, and a copy of the workform appears.
- 4. Click OK.

The new record appears in the Promotion workform.

- 5. Enter or modify the information in the Promotion workform.
 - Enter or edit general promotion information
 - Enter the resource(s) to feature
 - Enter search terms to trigger the featured resources
 - Enter demographic targeting for promotions
- 6. Select **File > Save** or press **CTRL+S** to save the record.

A message in the status bar indicates the record was saved.

Enter or Edit General Promotion Information

To add general promotion information

1. Open the Promotion workform, and go to the General view.



- 2. Enter the promotion record's name (required).
- 3. Select the promotion record's owner (required).
- 4. Select the promotion's activation date and expiration date (required).

Note:

When the expiration date passes in the promotion record, the promotion record remains in the database, but it is deactivated and the featured resources do not display in PowerPAC. If you want the featured resources to display in PowerPAC for an indefinite amount of time, you can set the expiration date many years into the future.

5. Type the promotion record's headline, midline, and footline. The headline is required; the midline and footline are not required. The maximum length for each is 255 characters.

The headline, midline, and footline text describe the featured resource in PowerPAC. For example:



6. Select File > Save.

Enter the Resource(s) to Feature

To feature bibliographic records, community organizations and/or events, or URLs:

Note:

The same promotion record can contain multiple bibliographic, community, or web resources to feature, but it cannot contain resources of different types. For example, you cannot add both community and bibliographic records to the same promotion workform. Promotion records are linked to the bibliographic or community records they feature.

- 1. Open the Promotions workform, and select the Featured Resources view.
- 2. To feature bibliographic or community records, do the following steps:
 - a. Select Feature these local object(s) and select Bibliographic or Community in the Objects box.
 - b. Click the **Add** button, and search for the bibliographic or community resource in the Find Tool. The option to select other databases is disabled on the Remote databases tab of the Find Tool.
 - c. Select the bibliographic or community record to add. You can add more than one community or bibliographic record, but not a mixture of record types.
 - d. To feature a web site or a library resource (bibliographic record or record set) via a URL, select **Open this page**, and type the URL in the box.
- 3. Select File > Save.

Enter Search Terms to Trigger the Featured Resources

The featured resources appear only if the keywords contained in the PAC user's search term match those defined as a positive trigger for the featured resource. You can also specify words or phrases as negative triggers that will prevent the display of the featured resource. For more information, see <u>Promotion Triggers and PAC Searches</u>.

To enter promotion triggers:

1. Open the Promotions workform, and go to the Triggers view.

Tips:

Wild card characters, such as an asterisk, are not supported for triggers.

The trigger words should not match words already in the record being

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.
featured so that the same record does not appear in search results and as a featured resource.

It may be useful to think of a Boolean OR between triggers, a Boolean AND for multiple words within a single unquoted trigger, and a Boolean AND with a proximity value of '1' (ordered) for multiple words within a quoted trigger.

- 2. In the **Freetext** column, type the text that triggers the display of the featured resource as follows:
 - Enter a single keyword per line. The PAC user must enter any or all of the keywords for the resource to be featured.
 - Enter a phrase on a line. The PAC user must enter the entire phrase for the resource to be featured. If the phrase has double quotes around it, the PAC user must enter the entire phrase in the same order without any other words. If the phrase is not in quotes, the PAC user must enter all the words, but they can be in any order.
- 3. In the **Type** column, select the box to open the list of search types.

If your library has a license for Community Profiles, the following types appear in the list:

- Author or Organization
- General Notes
- Genre
- Publisher
- Series
- Subject or Services
- Title or Event Name

If your library does not have a license for Community Profiles, the following types appear in the list:

- Author
- General Notes
- Genre
- Publisher

- Series
- Subject
- Title
- 4. Select the type(s) of searches to which the search terms apply.
- 5. If the search terms entered should prevent the resource from being featured, select the **Negative** box.

Note:

The promotion record must have at least one positive trigger in order for a negative trigger to operate. For more information, see <u>Promotion Triggers</u> and <u>PAC Searches</u>.

- 6. Type in the next available line to enter more search terms.
- 7. To move a trigger up or down in the list, select it and click the up or down arrow.

Note:

The order of the triggers on the workform does not affect processing or relevancy ranking.

8. To normalize (remove un-indexable characters) from a search term, select it and

click Men search terms are normalized, you can see the actual keywords.

9. Select File > Save.

Promotion Triggers and PAC Searches

How Polaris matches promotion triggers to PAC searches:

- When a PAC user enters a search query, all search terms are extracted and normalized. Keyword, phrase and exact match search queries are all treated the same way.
- An ordered keyword list is created that contains up to 16 normalized keywords.
- If the ordered keyword list matches one or more positive promotion triggers (and zero negative triggers), the search query matches the promotion.

Positive and Negative Triggers

When looking for matching promotions, Polaris first looks for a matching trigger (keyword, quoted phrase, unquoted phrase) and then considers whether the trigger is positive or negative. At least one positive trigger must be entered for a negative trigger to operate.

If a trigger type is checked and the library patron searches by that access point or by the "any field" access point (KW) for either bibliographic or community records, then Polaris attempts to find matching promotions.

Example:

Promotion has 6 positive triggers and 1 negative trigger. The triggers are: Quilting - (all) - positive Knitting - (all) - positive Crochet - (all) - positive Sewing - Title/Event Name - negative Crocheting - (all) - positive Quilters - (all) - positive Needlework - (all) - positive

The PAC user does a keyword Subject search for Knitting Sewing. The promotion should be returned because of the positive filter Knitting (all). Sewing is a negative filter but just for Title/Event Name and since the search was a subject search, Sewing was not a matching trigger.

If a trigger is restricted to a subset of trigger types, then it applies when the access point is KW (regardless of whether the trigger is positive or negative). In other words, if SEWING is a negative trigger restricted to the Title/Event Name, then it applies when the access point is TI or KW.

Normalizing Triggers

When you click the Normalize icon un-indexable characters are removed from the display of the trigger so the user can see how the string will be indexed in the database.

Example:

"***race*** [Car] Driver" would normalize to "race car driver".

"**\$%#" would normalize to "". In this case the trigger would be ignored and/or removed automatically.

The normalization rules used here are the same as those used for keyword normalization in bibliographic records.

These are some of the characters that are retained:

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

- Double quotes
- Diacritics and most Unicode characters
- Apostrophes
- Hyphens

These are some of the characters that are removed and replaced with a space:

- Asterisk
- Dollar sign
- Percent sign
- Pound sign
- Opening and closing square brackets

Additional indexing rules may apply to some forms of punctuation:

Example:

The normalized form of *dog's bone* retains the apostrophe, but the user can search on either *dog's bone* or *dogs bone* and get a match.

For words that contain characters that are stripped out by the normalization rules, enter two triggers: one with the original spelling, and one with the equivalent characters:

Example:

For the search term *Kei\$ha*, enter two triggers: *keisha* and *kei\$ha*. This way, a match will occur when the user searches for either version of the name.

Enter Demographic Targeting for Promotions

To enter languages or branches to target for promotions:

- 1. Open the Promotion workform, and go to the Demographic Targeting view.
- 2. Select one or both of the following options to display the lists.
 - Target only these languages
 - Target only these branches
- 3. Select the check boxes next to the language(s) or branch(es) you want to target.

Note:

The list of languages contains only those languages for which the library has a license from Polaris.

- If a languages or languages are selected, the featured resources appear only when the PAC user has switched the PowerPAC interface to a targeted language (from the **Languages** tab at the top of the PowerPAC window).
- If a branch or branches are selected, the featured resources appear only when the PAC user is connected to one of the targeted branches in PowerPAC.
- 4. Select File > Save.

Cataloging Bound-With Materials

When cataloging pamphlets or other materials that have individual titles and individual bibliographic records, but are bound together in physical volumes, libraries can group bibliographic records together by creating special linking entry fields. Although these linking entry fields are not stored in MARC tags in the host and constituent bibliographic records, they are used to link the records, they are searchable and browsable, and they are exported as 773/774 tags.

The bound-with feature is designed and optimized for research materials where:

- the holding library owns a single copy of each title in the bound-with volume;
- each title in the bound-with volume has a separate bibliographic record;
- and the bound-with volume is unique within the collection and can be represented by one and only one item record.

Bound-with groups are not intended to be used for non-unique materials that are circulated together but are likely to require multiple item records (for example, circulating multiple ebook tablets, each with multiple non-unique titles loaded onto them) or for materials that are circulated together but do not have separate bibliographic records for each of the parts (for example, kits or book club sets).

The bound-with group functionality is available to all Polaris customers and does not require a Polaris license.

In Polaris, a "bound with" group is not a separate object like a record set; rather, it represents a conceptual relationship among groups of bibliographic records that are defined by their role in the group. In a bound-with group, a single bibliographic record acts as the "host" record representing the title of the bound volume, and one or more bibliographic records act as "constituent" records representing the titles bound together in the volume. A single bar-coded item record represents the physical bound volume; the constituent records do not have linked item records.

Users create bound-with groups with existing final bibliographic records, and the linking between these existing records establishes the role each linked record plays in the bound-with group: host or constituent. When the user starts with a bibliographic record and creates a constituent link, the starting record becomes the single host in the bound-with group.

Conversely, when the user starts with a bibliographic record and creates a host link, the starting record becomes one of the constituent records in the bound-with group.

Establishing the links also inserts the appropriate linking entries into the bibliographic records.

Any 773/774 or 787 tags already in the existing bibs are not used to establish the new linking entry fields.

See also

- Host Bibliographic Records
- Constituent Bibliographic Records
- Preventing Multiple Host Item Records
- Displaying Constituent Call Numbers
- Modifying, Deleting, Importing, and Exporting Bound-With Bibs
- Indexing for Bound-With Groups
- Bibliographic Records With No Linked Items Report
- <u>Multiple Copies of the Same Constituent Title</u>
- Bibs That Cannot Be Members of a Bound-With Group
- Bound-With Workflow
- Create a Bound-With Group

Host Bibliographic Records

Each bound-with group has a single host bibliographic record with the following characteristics:

- A MARC record for the overall title representing the bound volume. If a bibliographic record already exists for the bound volume, the user identifies it as the host record. If the bound volume does not have an existing bibliographic record, one must be created. Alternatively, the record for one of the constituent titles can be used; however, this record may be too specific for use as a host record.
- A host bibliographic record cannot be a constituent record of another host.
- After the bound-with group is created, the **Host record** check box is checked in the Bibliographic Record workform. This is a read-only field.
- In the PAC displays, the host title appears as a link in the display of the constituent records.

- The host bibliographic record is linked to a single item record that represents the physical bound volume and is displayed in the Item Record workform with a barcode and call number.
- The circulation status of the host carries down to the constituent units.
- The **Bound With** view of the Bibliographic Record workform displays the links to the constituent records.

Host Bibliographic Record's Bound-With View

To go to the Bound-with Group view of the Bibliographic Record workform, select View >

Bound-with or select . The host bibliographic record displays links to the constituent records. The constituent links are displayed in the order in which the constituent links were added.

If you add constituent records from a record set, they are added in bibliographic record control number order. If you select the bibliographic records from a list, such as the Find Tool results, they are added in the order in which they appear in the list. You can select a sorting option in the Find Tool, or click on a column header to sort the list.

For each constituent link listed in the Bound-With view, the following fields are displayed:

- **Author** The PrimaryDisplayAuthor with all tags and subfields that were selected for inclusion
- **Title** The PrimaryDisplayTitle with all tags and subfields that were selected for inclusion
- **Published** The publication date from the 008/07-10 positions



Constituent Bibliographic Records

The constituent bibliographic records in a bound-with group have the following characteristics:

- A MARC record for the individual title representing the constituent part.
- No item record is linked to the individual title; the host item record is used. Constituent bibliographic records cannot be linked to final item records. However, constituent call numbers that appear in MARC tags can be searched and displayed in the PAC.

- A constituent bibliographic record cannot be a constituent of more than one host.
- After the bound-with group is created, the **Constituent record** check box is checked in the Bibliographic Record workform. This is a read-only field.
- In the PAC displays, the constituent title appears as a link in the display of the host record.
- The circulation status of the host carries down to the constituent units.
- The **Bound-With Group** view of the Bibliographic Record workform displays the link to the host record.

Constituent Bibliographic Record's Bound-With View

A single host link is generated from the following fields in the linked host record:

- **Author** The PrimaryDisplayAuthor with all tags and subfields that were selected for inclusion.
- **Title** The PrimaryDisplayTitle with all tags and subfields that were selected for inclusion.
- **Published** The publication date from the 008/07-10 positions.

Users can browse and search the host and constituent links according to the library's indexing rules for the 773/774 tags.



Finding Bound-With Bibliographic Records in the Staff Client

Use the Limit by **Bound-with host/constituent** option in the Polaris Find Tool to find bibliographic records that are part of a bound-with group. When the **Bound-with host/constituent** option is selected, you can select **All** to find all bibliographic records that are part of a bound-with group; **Host** to find bibliographic records that act as the host record in a bound-with group; or **Constituent** to find bibliographic records that act as a constituent records in a bound-with group.

From the right-click menu, select **Links > Host record** or **Links > Constituent records** to see the host record or the constituent records.

Preventing Multiple Host Item Records

A host bibliographic record may have no more than one linked final item record, which contains the call number for the physical volume. For host bibliographic records, the following functions prevent multiple items from being created:

- The New Item Record Options dialog box does not allow a quantity greater than 1. If the user enters a quantity greater than 1, the following message appears: Host records can have no more than 1 linked item record with a record status of Final.
- The import process does not replace an existing host bibliographic record with an incoming record if the resulting record would have more than one item attached.
- The bibliographic control number field on an existing final item record cannot be changed to that of a host bib if that host already has a linked item.
- The Item Bulk Change process does not change the bib control number to that of a host bib if that host already has a linked item. If the host bib has no items attached to it, the first item in the bulk change list is changed, but the remainder of the items are not changed.

Displaying Constituent Call Numbers

Since constituent records represent titles that cannot be circulated outside of the volume in which they are bound, they cannot be linked to final item records. However, if call numbers for the constituent items already appear in MARC tags in the constituent bibliographic records, your library can work with your Polaris Site Manager to enable constituent call numbers to be displayed in PAC search results and availability displays. The Polaris Site Manager enters the tag and subfields containing the constituent call numbers and into two tables that are not visible in the Polaris staff client.

One table, BibIndexParams, associates the constituent call number tag with a new bib index key. Another table, BrowseSubfields, specifies the subfields to use in building the constituent call number display. If multiple tags have been designated to carry the constituent call numbers, the BibIndexParams table specifies the order of precedence in which the tags will be checked for the call number.

Note:

To avoid re-indexing, your library and site manager should work together to set up entries in these tables before you create any bound-with groups.

Modifying, Deleting, Importing, and Exporting Bound-With Bibs

Note:

Transactions are recorded when host and constituent records are created and deleted.

- Modifying a constituent record If you change a constituent record while the host record is open, the changes are not displayed on the host record's bibliographic record workform until the host record is closed and reopened.
- Changing the order of constituent links To change the order of constituent links displayed on the host record, you must delete the links and add them again in the order you want them to appear.
- Copying a host or constituent record If you copy a bibliographic record that is part of a bound-with group, none of the bound-with links are copied.
- Changing the author, title, and publication date fields Any changes to the linking entry bibliographic data in a host or constituent record are reflected in the records within the bound-with group. For example, a change to the 245\$a in a host record automatically updates the host entries for all constituent records.
- Replacing a bibliographic record During online save and importing, any host or constituent links on the replaced record are copied to the replacing record. However, certain restrictions may prevent bibliographic records from replacing existing host or constituent bibliographic records. (For example, a record with linked items cannot replace a constituent record, because constituent records cannot have items attached.) When restrictions are encountered, the replacement does not occur. Instead, a message appears, or in the case of an import, the incoming record is saved provisionally and a message appears in the import report.
- Deleting bound-with links When you delete a host link from a constituent bibliographic record, the link to the host record is deleted from the constituent record, and the reciprocal constituent link is deleted from the host record. If the constituent record from which you deleted the host link is the last constituent link on the host record, the Host check box is unchecked on the host bibliographic record.
- Deleting a bibliographic record from a bound-with group When a bibliographic record is deleted, and it belongs to a bound-with group, the following occurs:
 - If the deleted bibliographic record is a host record, the bound-with group no longer exists; constituent links on the host record are removed and host links are removed from constituent records.

- If the deleted bibliographic record is a constituent record, it is removed from the bound-with group; the host link is removed from the deleted record, and the constituent link is removed from the host bibliographic record.
- Exporting records in a bound-with group Bibliographic records that are part of a bound-with group are exported as follows:
 - The host and constituent links are converted to traditional MARC 773/774 tags (first indicator = 0, second indicator=blank).
 - All subfields specified in the library's PrimaryDisplayAuthor and PrimaryDisplayTitle tables are included.
 - Author subfields are concatenated into a single \$a subfield with the internal punctuation retained.
 - Title subfields are concatenated into a single \$t subfield with the internal punctuation retained. The non-filing indicators (if any) in the title tag of the reciprocal record are honored; the appropriate number of characters are stripped from the \$t subfield in the exported tag.
 - The publication information from the 260 or 264 tag is in subfield \$d in the exported tag.
 - The system control number of the related record is carried in the \$w of the exported tag, preceded by the MARC code (the system-level cataloging profile Control number identifier string (003), enclosed in parentheses), for the agency to which the control number applies. If there is no value entered in the cataloging profile, the organization abbreviation for organizationID=1 is used. (The MARC code is not included in records exported via the API.)
 - In Export Express, if you are exporting host records and select the option to include embedded holdings tags (e.g. 852), embedded holdings tags are built from the host item records, according to the usual profile settings in Export Express. For constituent records, the call number is taken from the designated constituent call number tag and all other holdings fields are taken from the host record. If the constituent bibliographic record does not contain a constituent call number tag, the call number fields are taken from the host record.
 - In the Polaris Database Export Utility (Utilities, Exporting), if you are exporting host records and check Include current item holdings information, the embedded holdings tags are built from the host item records, according to the usual export utility settings. For constituent records, the call number is

taken from the designated constituent call number tag and all other holdings fields are taken from the host item record.

- When records are exported via the Polaris API (PAPI) or a Z39.50 remote search, the holding information is included for both host and constituent records.
- Changing the item record's call number If you change the call number for the host item record, the following message appears: Attention: This item record is linked to a host bibliographic record. You may also need to change the call numbers (if any) on linked constituent bib records. The message also appears on the Bulk Change report if you change the call number for a host item during bib bulk change.

If you attempt to create an item record from a constituent bibliographic record, or change an existing item record's bibliographic control number to that of a constituent bib, a message informs you that constituent bibliographic records cannot have final item records linked to them.

 Saving item templates with a bound-with record's control number - If you attempt to save an item template with a bibliographic record control number for a record that is a either a host or constituent record in a bound-with group, the template will not be saved, and the following message appears: Bibliographic record <control number> is in a bound-with group; it cannot be added to an item template. If the item template already exists with a bibliographic control number, and you subsequently designate the bib as a member of a bound-with group, the bib ID is removed from the item template, and a warning message informs you of the bib ID removal.

Indexing for Bound-With Groups

Linking entries are indexed according to the rules for 773/774 tags. If the library chooses not to index traditional 773/774 MARC tags, the bound-with host and constituent links are not indexed. If the linking entries are indexed, the link to the reciprocal record is followed and the primary author/title tags in the reciprocal record are indexed, following the indexing rules for these tags.

Bibliographic Records With No Linked Items Report

The Bibliographic Records With No Linked Items report indicates if the bibliographic record has no linked items because it is a constituent of a bound-with group. If a title listed on the Bibliographic Records With No Linked Items report is a constituent record, the following note appears next to the Bibliographic Record ID: **This record is a constituent in a Bound-With Group.**

Multiple Copies of the Same Constituent Title

If the library has multiple copies of a title with some copies bound in volumes with other titles and others bound separately, Innovative Interfaces recommends that the library create separate bibliographic records for each instance.

Bibs That Cannot Be Members of a Bound-With Group

The following types of bibliographic records cannot be part of a bound-with group:

- Provisional
- Deleted
- Linked to an Acquisitions record (selection list, purchase order, or invoice line item)
- Linked to a Serials record (serial holdings record, subscription record, or standing order part)
- Interlibrary Loan (ILL) bib
- Contains Resource Entities for an integrated ebook vendor

Bound-With Workflow

Follow this general workflow to implement bound-with cataloging in Polaris:

See also: Create a bound-with group.

• Identify the bibliographic records for the bound-with volume. Bibliographic records cannot be host or constituent records if they are provisional, deleted, an ILL bib,

are linked to a Polaris Acquisitions or Serials, or contain resource entities for an integrated ebook vendor.

- Identify the bibliographic record that will serve as the host record.
 - If a bibliographic record already represents the physical volume, that record should be the host record.
 - If no bibliographic record represents the physical volume, create the bibliographic record for the volume.
 - If a bibliographic record already represents a title within the physical volume, such as the first title in the bound volume, you can designate this record as the host record. However, since this title is within the bound volume, it may be too specific for a host record.
- Add a single item record to the record that will be the host record. If a single item record is already linked to the bibliographic record, no action is necessary. If multiple item records are linked, all but one must be deleted because a host record can only have one linked item record representing the physical bound volume.
- Identify the bibliographic records that will become the constituent records, and (optionally) place them in a record set.
 - Delete any linked items from bibliographic records that will become the constituent records because constituent bibliographic records cannot have item records linked to them. However, if call numbers for the constituent items already appear in MARC tags in the constituent bibliographic records, your Polaris Site Manager can enable the display of these call numbers in availability displays and call number browsing.
- Open the bibliographic record identified as the host record, select **Tools, Create Constituent Links** and select the constituent records.

Create a Bound-With Group

To create a bound-with group:

- 1. Open the Bibliographic Record workform for a bibliographic record that will be identified as the host or constituent record.
- 2. Select **Tools** and select one of the following options:
 - If the open record represents the bound volume, select **Create constituent link**.

• If the open record represents a constituent title in the bound volume, select **Create host link**.

The Find Tool opens with Bibliographic Records selected in the **Object** box. If you are creating constituent links, you can also select Record sets in the **Object** box.

3. Search for and select the bibliographic record that will be the host or constituent record.

Note:

If you selected **Create constituent link**, you can select multiple bibliographic records or a record set. If you select a record set, constituent links are created for all the records in the record set. If you selected **Create host link**, you can select only a single bibliographic record.

Note:

A bound-with group can have a maximum of 100 constituent records. If you select more constituent records than can be added to the group, a message informs you that the limit will be exceeded.

If you select a record that cannot be linked, a message informs you why it cannot be part of the bound-with group.

Example:

Bibliographic record <control number> cannot be selected as a constituent record because it has an <item record/acquisitions record> linked to it.

When the linking is successful, the following occurs:

- A confirmation message displays: Links created. Click the Bound-with view of the bibliographic record to see the linking entries.
- If you selected **Create constituent link** in the open bibliographic record, the open record is designated as the host of the bound-with group, the linked record is designated as a constituent of the bound-with group, and the appropriate linking entries are inserted into the host bibliographic record.
- If you selected **Create host link** in the open bibliographic record, the open bibliographic record is designated as a constituent record of the bound-with group, the linked record is designated as the host of the bound-with group, and the appropriate linking entries are inserted into the host bibliographic record.

You can go to the linked records by selecting Links > Host record or Constituent records on the Bibliographic Record workform.

Type of Material Codes (TOMs)

When you import, copy, or manually create new bibliographic records, Polaris checks the LDR/06, LDR/07, the 006 tag, the 007 tag, and other combinations of codes to determine the record's primary Type of Material code or TOM. This generates the material type icon in Polaris PowerPAC and enables searching for bibliographic records using the TOM in the staff client, Leap, PowerPAC, and Mobile PAC.

Tip:

From the Bibliographic Record workform, select **View > PAC** or click **2** to see the icon that displays in the PAC.

If a single bibliographic record contains values indicating more than one material type, only one TOM icon is displayed in Polaris PowerPAC. For example, a single record could contain codes indicating it is both a video recording and a DVD. The primary type of material code (and icon) for that record would be DVD. However, the record could be retrieved in the staff client and Polaris PowerPAC by searching for either of its TOM codes. See Multiple TOMs - Order of Precedence.

Note:

If the bibliographic record's primary TOM is **elr** (electronic resource), and it has at least one 856 tag, and there are no item records linked to it, hold requests cannot be placed for that title in the PAC. You can opt to suppress request and availability options for all records with a specific primary TOM, or only those with specific primary TOMs that have at least one 856 in the bib record. By default, Electronic resources (**elr**) and Digital collection (**dmc**) are selected for suppressing

request and availability options. The option **Records with an 856** is selected by default except **dmc**, where **All records** is selected. You can run the Bibliographic Records With No Format report to identify any bibliographic records in your catalog that do not have a TOM code assigned.

TOMs and MARC Coding

Note:

The (Polaris) note under the format indicates it is a Polaris TOM. Between

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Abstract (Polaris)		abs	а	AND i			AND /21=d AND /24=a AND /25=a
Archival/Mixe d Materials		mix	р		/00=p		
			e OR f				AND /25=e
Atlas - 3 ways to determine (Polaris)		atl			in the same 006 tag: /00=e OR f		

the columns, **Or** is implied, except in the case where **AND** appears. For example, a music CD can be coded with **j** in LDR/06 OR **j** in 006/00.

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
					/08=e		
						in the same 007 tag: /00=a AND /01=d	
Audio Book (Polaris)		abk	i			AND /00=s	
Audio Book on Cassette (Polaris)		abt	i			in the same 007 tag: AND /00=s AND /01=s	

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Audio Book on CD (Polaris)		abc	i			in the same 007 tag: AND /00=s AND /01=d AND /03=f	
Blu-ray Disc (Polaris)	Blu	brd	g			AND /00=v AND /01=d AND /04= s AND /05=a AND /06=i AND /07=z	AND /33=v

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Blu-ray+DVD (Polaris)		bdv	g			Two 007s needed. One 007 for Blu- ray: AND /00=v AND /01=d AND /04=s One for DVD: AND /00=v AND	AND /33=v

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
						/01=d AND /04=v	
Book		bks	a OR t	AND NOT b OR s OR i	/00= a OR t	/00=t	
Book+Cassett e (Polaris)		bcs	i OR a		AND /00=a	AND /00=s AND /01=s AND /13=e	
Book+CD (Polaris) 2 ways to determine		bcd	i OR j		AND /00=a	AND in the same 007 tag: /00=s AND /01=d	

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
						AND /03=f	
			а		AND /00=i OR j	AND in the same 007 tag: /00=s AND /01=d AND /03=f	
Book+DVD 2 ways to determine		bkv	а		AND /00=g	in the same 007 tag: AND /00=v AND /01=d AND /04 = v	
			g		AND /00=a	in the same 007	

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
						tag: AND /00=v AND /01=d AND /04 =v	
			a, c, d, p OR t		/00=a, c, d, p OR t		AND /23=f
Braille - 3 ways to determine		brl		b OR s	/00=s		AND /23=f
			e, f, g, k, OR r		/00=e, f, g, k, OR r		AND /29=f
Cartographic Material	N 🏀	cmt	e OR f		/00=e OR f		

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Digital Collection (Polaris)		dmc	m	AND c			
DVD (Polaris)		dvd	g			AND in the same 007 tag: /00=v AND /01=d AND /04=v	AND /33=v
EAudioBook (Polaris)		aeb	i		AND /00=m /09=h	AND Two 007s needed 1st 007: /00=s AND /12=e	AND /23=s Or o

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
						AND /13=d 2nd 007: /00=c AND /01=r AND /05=a	
Ebooks		ebk	а		/00=m	/00=c AND /01=r	AND /23= o
Electronic Resources	provide the second	elr	m		/00=m	/00=c	
Emagazine	Ann e	emg		S			AND /21=p AND

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
							/23=o
Globe		glb				/00=d	
Kit		kit	0		/00=o	/00=o	
		lpt	a, c, d, p, OR t		/00=a, c, d, p, OR t		AND /23=d
Large Print - 3 ways to determine		lpt	e, f, g, k OR r		/00=e, f, g, k OR r		AND /29=d
		lpt		b OR s	/00=s		AND /23=d
Manuscript Cartographic Material		mcm	f		/00=f		

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Мар	24 + 	map				/00=a	
Manuscript Material		mss	d, f, OR t		/00=d, f, OR t		
Manuscript Music		mmu	d		/00=d		

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Microform - 4 ways to determine		mic	a, c, d, p OR t	b OR s	/00=s /00=a, c, d, p OR t	/00=h	AND /23=a, b, or c AND /23=a, b, OR c
			e, f, g, k OR r		/00=e, f, g, k OR r		AND /29=a, b, OR c
Motion Pic- ture		mot				/00=m	
Music CD (Polaris)		mcd	j		OR /00=j	AND in the same 007 tag: /00=s AND /01=	

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
						d AND /03=f	
Musical Sound Record- ing		msr	j		/00=j		
Nonmusical Sound Record- ing		nsr	i		/00=i		
Newspaper	5	new	а	b OR s	and /00=s		AND /21=n
Periodical		per	a	b OR s	and /00=s		AND /21=p
Printed or Manuscript Music	1	mus	c OR d		/00=c OR d	/00=q	
Printed Music	Music CD	pmu	С		/00=c		

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
	(Polaris)						
Printed Cartographic Material		pcm	е		/00=e		
Projected Medium		pgr	g		/00=g	/00=g	
Sound Recording		rec	i OR j		/00=i OR j	/00=s	
Serial	Line (ser		b OR s	/00=s		
Streaming Music	1	stm	j				/23=o OR /23=s

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Streaming Video	CONTRACT OF CONTRACT.	stv	g				/29=o OR /29=s
Two Dimensional Non-projected Graphic	İ	ngr	k		/00=k	/00=k	
Three Dimensional Object (Artifact)		art	r		/00=r		
			m				AND/26=g
Video Game - Two ways to determine		vgm		in the same 006 tag: /00=m AND /09=g			

Type of Material TOM	Icon Displaye d in PAC / PAC Preview and Leap Note: In the Leap UI, TOM icons appear in gray.	TOM Code	LDR/06	LDR/07	006	007	008
Videor- ecording		vid				/00=v	
Videotape (Polaris)	a new period	vcr				/00=v AND /01=c OR f	
Vinyl (Polaris)		vyl	i OR j			AND in the same 007 tag: /00=s AND /01=d AND /03= a, b, c, d, OR e	
Visual Material		vis	g, k OR r		/00=g, k OR r	/00=f OR g, OR k, OR m	
Multiple TOMs - Order of Precedence

For records with more than one TOM, the following order of precedence determines which TOM and icon are displayed. To see which icon will appear in Polaris PowerPAC, select **View** > **PAC** from the Bibliographic Record workform.

Order of Precedence	Format/Type of Material	Code
1	Blu-Ray+DVD	bdv
2	Blu-ray Disc	brd
3	Eaudiobook	aeb
4	Book+CD	bcd
5	Book+Cassette	bcs
6	Abstract	abs
7	Digital Collection	dmc
8	Video Game	vgm
9	Book+DVD	bkv
10	DVD	dvd
11	Videotape	vcr
12	Streaming Video	stv
13	Videorecording	vid
14	Motion Picture	mot
15	Projected Medium	pgr
16	Two Dimensional Nonprojected Graphic	ngr
17	Three Dimen- sional Object (Artifact)	art

Order of Precedence	Format/Type of Material	Code
18	Visual Materials	vis
19	Music CD	mcd
20	Streaming Music	stm
21	Audio Book on CD	abc
22	Vinyl	vyl
23	Audio Book on Cassette	abt
24	Audio Books	abk
25	Musical Sound Recording	msr
26	Nonmusical Sound Recording	nsr
27	Sound Recording	rec
28	Printed Music	pmu
29	Manuscript Music	mmu
30	Atlas	atl
31	Printed or Manuscript Music	mus
32	Мар	map
33	Globe	glb
34	Printed Car- tographic Mater- ial	pcm

Order of Precedence	Format/Type of Material	Code
35	Manuscript Car- tographic Mater- ial	mcm
36	Cartographic Material	cmt
37	Emagazine	emg
38	Ebook	ebk
39	Kit	kit
40	Archival/Mixed Materials	mix
41	Newspaper	new
42	Periodical	per
43	Serial	ser
44	Electronic Resources	elr
45	Large Print	lpt
46	Braille	brl
47	Manuscript Material	mss
48	Microform	mic
49	Book	bks

Setting Up Labels

You set label profiles for Cataloging and Serials labels on the Staff Client tab in Polaris Administration, and you configure, customize, and edit labels using the Label Manager. The Label Manager is available from the Polaris Shortcut Bar under **Utilities** and from Polaris Administration.

Note:

The permissions Label Manager Configuration: Create, Modify, and Delete apply to label type and label content. For example, if you have the Create permission, you can create both label types and label content.

Recommendations for Label Types and Content

The available label types are associated with the branch where you are logged on. Make sure the content types and label types are available at the workstation from which you are printing the labels. If your library system does centralized processing, set the label types and content at the system level, and make sure all your branches are using the same label types and content. If your branch does its own processing, make sure the content type and the label type you need are both available at the workstation from which you print the labels.

When you set up custom labels, use the default label types for guidelines on the label and page sizes. Although you can change the page and label size to any value greater than 0, deviating too far from the standard sizes may produce labels with incomplete text. Use **Print Preview** to check your custom labels.

See also:

- <u>Setting Label Profiles</u>
- Configuring Existing Label Types
- Creating Custom Labels
- Setting the Default Label Printers

Set Label Profiles

Polaris Administration profiles on the Staff Client tab control various default settings for labels, such as whether labels are printed automatically when item records are created. Use the **Labels: Options** profile to configure existing label types and specify the label content.

To set profiles for spine, pocket, and serial labels:

- 1. In the Administration Explorer tree view, expand the organization's folder.
- 2. Select **Profiles** and select the **Staff Client** tab.
- 3. Double-click **Label Manager open using** and select **Cataloging Options** or **Serial Options** to specify which type of label appears when you open Label Manager from the **Utilities** menu on the Polaris Shortcut Bar.
 - If you select **Cataloging Options**, the cataloging label displays according to the setting in the **Labels: Cataloging label type** profile.
 - If you select **Serial Options**, the serial label is displayed according to the setting in the **Labels: Serial label type** profile.
- Double-click Labels: Automatically generate labels for each item record created. Select Yes to generate labels automatically when items are created, or No if you do not want labels to be generated automatically.
- 2. Double-click Labels: Automatically generate labels for each SO and SUBS checkin. Select Yes to set labels to be generated automatically when issues or parts are checked in, or No if you do not want labels to be generated automatically.
- 3. Double-click **Labels: Cataloging label type**, and select the default label type to be generated when cataloging items.

Note:

The label types must be enabled for them to appear in this list. See <u>Set up</u> existing label types.

- 4. Double-click Labels: Cataloging print method, and select On Demand > Batch, or Quick Print as the default printing method for cataloging labels.
 - If **On Demand** is selected, the Label Manager appears when the user requests a label and the user can view the label before printing it.

• If **Batch** is selected, the label is generated when the user requests a label, but it is not printed until the user opens Label Manager and selects **Print**. The Batch option works well for creating sheets of labels for multiple items.

Note:

Batch printing is limited to 500 labels at a time.

• If **Quick Print** is selected, the label is printed at the designated printer without opening the Label Manager.

Tip:

You can also select **Utilities** from the Polaris Shortcut Bar and select **Label Manager** > **Tools** > **Label Settings and Content** to open the Label Configuration dialog box.

5. Double-click **Setup** in the **Labels: Options** profile to modify existing labels, specify the label content, and create custom labels. The Label Configuration dialog box appears. See <u>Set up existing label types</u>.

Note:

This profile is available at the workstation level, but only the Settings tab appears. Both the Settings and Content tabs are available at the system, library, and branch levels.

- 6. Double-click **Labels: Serial label type**, and select the default label type for serials issues.
- 7. Double-click Labels: Serial print method, and select On Demand > Batch, or Quick Print to specify how you want serial labels to print.
 - If **On Demand** is selected, the Label Manager appears when the user requests a label and the user can view the label before printing it.
 - If **Batch** is selected, the label is generated when the user requests a label, but it is not printed until the user opens Label Manager and selects **Print**. The Batch option works well for creating sheets of labels for multiple issues or parts.

Note:

Batch printing is limited to 500 labels at a time.

- If **Quick Print** is selected, the label is printed at the designated printer without opening the Label Manager.
- 8. To specify a carriage return in the classification number, do the following:

For Dewey shelving scheme -

 To force a new line after a decimal in the classification number on spine labels, double-click Spine Labels (Dewey): Carriage return after decimal, and select Yes.

Tip:

The prime marks must be inserted with the contents in the **Class** box on the Item Record workform.

- To specify a character that forces a new line in the classification number, double-click **Spine Labels (Dewey): Prime mark to generate carriage return**, and select one of the following options from the list:
 - Select **None** to ignore any prime marks.
 - Select **Forward Slash** / to start a new line wherever this prime mark is placed in the classification number.
 - Select **Apostrophe** ' to start a new line wherever this prime mark is placed in the classification number.

For Library of Congress or other non-Dewey shelving scheme-

• To force a new line after a space in the classification number, set the **Spine Labels (non-Dewey): Carriage return after space** profile to **Yes**.

Configuring Existing Label Types

Use the Label Manager to configure existing label types for spine, pocket, and serial labels, and to specify the content that you want to appear on them. You can also set up your own custom labels in Label Manager. See <u>Creating Custom Labels</u>. After labels are set up and enabled in the Label Manager, they are available to be printed from the following areas in Polaris:

- Item Record
- New Item Record Options

- Serial Issue
- Standing Order Part
- Subscription Check In
- Standing Order Part Check In

Labels can be printed as you catalog each item, or you can catalog multiple items and print labels in batch. If the profile **Labels: Automatically generate label for each item created** is set to **Yes** in Polaris Administration, a label is generated automatically when you create and save a new item record.

To print labels, set up your printing preferences on the computer where you are doing the cataloging or serials processing. The label printer must be set up in Microsoft Windows, and it must be connected to the workstation or the same local area network as the workstation.

By default, Polaris uses the Andale Mono font, which is available at no cost from the Microsoft Web site. The default size is 12 points. On an SL4 label sheet, this font allows eight characters and spaces per line (total of eight lines) on the spine label and 28 characters per line on the pocket labels (total of four lines). The label stock size and label size can be changed but you cannot change the number of labels per page or per label group for the system-defined label types (Spine, SL4, SL6, SLB and Serials). See <u>Standard Label Types</u>.

After you generate your labels, you can preview them in the Label Manager and use the right-click context menu to edit this particular page of labels. You can copy, paste, delete, insert text, change the font, or select diacritics to insert into the labels.

See also:

- <u>Standard Label Types</u>
- <u>Computype Spine Labels</u>
- Label Content
- <u>Set up existing label types</u>
- Define the label content

Standard Label Types

All the standard label types have three sections of content. Label sets contain different label styles. You can configure existing label types, see <u>Set up existing label types</u>.

Spine sheets - Spine label sheets contain 50 labels per sheet. Each label is 1.5 inches (3.81 cm) wide and 1 inch (2.54 cm) high. They can have five text lines of 11 characters each.

SLB sheets - SLB label sheets contain 12 label sets per sheet. Each label set has a spine label and a pocket label. Polaris SLB spine labels have nine text lines of eight characters each. Polaris SLB pocket labels have nine text lines of 28 characters each.



Serial sheets - Serial label sheets contain 20 labels per sheet. Serial labels are 4 inches (10 cm) wide and 1 inch (2.54 cm) high. They have five text lines of 34 characters each.

SL4 sheets - SL4 label sheets contain 12 label sets per sheet. Polaris creates SL4 spine labels with nine text lines of eight characters each. The pocket labels have four text lines of 28 characters each.



SL6 sheets - SL6 label sheets contain eight label sets per sheet. Polaris SL6 spine labels have nine text lines of seven characters each. The other labels in the set have six text lines of 28 characters each.



Computype Spine Labels

The following types of labels are offered by Computype and supported by the Polaris Label Manager. You cannot change Computype labels in Label Manager.

- Single Label 1 inch wide and 1.5 inches high
- Single Label 1.125 inches wide and 1.25 inches high
- 2 Label Set
- Label 1 0.875 inches wide and 1.375 inches high
- Label 2 2.875 inches wide and 1.375 inches high
- 3 Label Set
- Label 1 0.9 inches wide and 1.5625 inches high
- Label 2 2.9 inches wide and .8125 inches high
- Label 3 2.9 inched wide and .8125 inches high

Label Content

The label may include information from the item record, the serial issue/part record, or the linked bibliographic record. See <u>Define the label content</u>.

• Call Number - If **Library of Congress** is selected in the shelving scheme on the Item Record workform, each part of the call number will be printed on a separate line on the label. If **Dewey Decimal** is the shelving scheme, all parts of the call

number are printed on different lines based on the **Carriage return after Dewey decimal** and **Prime mark to generate carriage return**. For all other shelving schemes, a new line is printed for each part of the call number.

- Author The author information comes from the 1xx tag and subfields in the bibliographic record linked to the item record. If there is no 1xx field, the space remains blank on the label. The information is printed in the same order as the subfields in the MARC 21 record. The text wraps within this section, but there is a break before the bottom section.
- Title The title information comes from the 245 tag and subfields in the bibliographic record linked to the item record. The information is printed in the same order as the subfields in the MARC21 record.
- Collection The label content can include the collection or the collection abbreviation from the item record.

Set up Existing Label Types

You can set up label types in Polaris Administration or from the Polaris Shortcut Bar. To configure spine, pocket, serial, or custom label types:

Important:

If your library uses Computype® printers, you can use only the Computype label types listed in Settings & Content, and none of the settings can be changed for Computype labels. These label types are not enabled at Polaris installation, so your library will need to enable them. Also, be sure to indicate a Computype label type as the default Cataloging label. For the measurements of Computype labels, see <u>Computype Spine Labels</u>.

- 1. In the Administration Explorer tree view, expand the folder for the organization or workstation.
- 2. Select **Profiles** and select the **Staff Client** tab.
- 3. Select Labels: Options.

The Label Configuration window appears with the Settings tabbed page displayed.

Tip:

Navigate between cells using the arrow keys or **Tab** (to go forward) and **Alt+Tab** to go back. Expand the dialog box by dragging the bottom right corner. To see more of a column's content, select the column's left or right rule in the heading, and drag to expand the column.

4. On the **Settings** tab, select the check box in the **Enabled** column next to the label types you want to make available.

When the label types are enabled, they appear in the **Label** menu in the Label Manager.

Tip:

The page size must be larger than the label size.

- 5. Change the page size, margins, or text alignment on the page of labels as follows:
 - a. Right-click in the **Page Size** cell associated with the label type and select **Open**, or tab to the cell and press **Enter**.

The Page Details dialog box appears.

Tip:

```
The measurements are in .Net units (1 unit = 1/100 inch).
```

- b. Type numeric values in the **Width** and **Height** boxes to specify the dimensions of the labels page.
- c. Type numeric values in the **Top Margin** and **Left Margin** boxes to determine the placement of the first label on the page.

Tip:

If you prefer using the keyboard, you can tab to the **Text Alignment** box and type **L** for left, **C** for center, or **R** for right text alignment.

- d. Select **Center**, **Left**, or **Right** in the **Text Alignment** box to align the text on the label page.
- e. Click **OK** to save your changes and return to the Label Configuration window.

Tip:

The label size must be smaller than the page size.

- 6. Change the label size, adjust the spacing, modify the text alignment on the label, or specify the label content as follows:
 - a. Right-click in the **Label Size and Content** cell associated with the label type and select **Open**, or tab to the cell and press **Enter**.

The Label Details dialog box appears.

- b. Type numbers for the label's dimensions in the **Width** and **Height** boxes.
- c. Type numbers in the **Vertical Spacing**, **Horizontal Spacing**, and **Indent** boxes to specify the white space between the label borders and the text in the label.
- d. Select the content type in the **Content** box.

Note:

The content type is determined by the selections on the Content tab. For information on specifying content for the label types, see <u>Define the label content</u>.

- e. Click **OK** to save the label details.
- 7. Modify the font as follows:
 - a. Right-click in the **Font** cell for the label and select **Open**, or tab to the column, and press **Enter** in the label row.

The Font dialog box appears.

- b. Select the **Font**, **Font Style**, **Size**, **Effects** and **Script** for the text on the label.
- 8. Click **OK** to save your changes and return to the Label Configuration dialog box.

Define the Label Content

To set up label content types:

Note:

To access the Label Configuration dialog box, select **Profiles**, **Staff Client**, **Labels: Options**.

1. Select the Content tab on the Label Configuration dialog box.

The Content tabbed page appears.

2. Select the type of label for which you want to define the content in the **Content type** box.

3. To add a new label content type, click and type a name for the new content type in the **Add new content type** box.

Note:

You cannot create a new label content type at the workstation level in Polaris Administration, but you can assign existing content to the label type.

Tip:

To remove fields from the label, select the fields in the **Top Section**,

Middle Section, or Bottom Section box, and click

4. Select the fields to include in the label from the **Options** list, and click

next to the **Top Section**, **Middle Section**, or **Bottom Section** box. The available selections depend on the content type you selected.

The text wraps within the label section, and breaks separate the sections. To change the position of fields within the sections on the label, select the field, and click the **Up** or **Down** button that corresponds to the section. To delete a content

type, select it and click 💌. You cannot delete the default label content types (Spine, Pocket, or Serial) or content types that are used in a label type.

5. Click **Save** to save the label.

Creating Custom Labels

If the available label types do not meet your library's needs, you can set up customized labels in Label Manager. Once the custom labels are defined, they are available in the drop-down list from the Label Manager and from the other areas where labels can be printed. Custom labels can be configured in the Label Configuration dialog box. When you close and reopen Label Manager, the custom label is retained, but the label displayed in the Label Manager window is the default label defined in Polaris Administration.

To define a custom label type:

1. From the Polaris Shortcut Bar, select **Utilities > Label Manager.**

The Label Manager window appears.

2. Select Tools > Design Custom Label.

The Customize Label dialog box appears.

Tip:

The limit for the label type name is 80 characters. The name should identify the library and the label stock, for example: OCPL Pocket.

- 3. Type a name for the label in the Label Type box.
- 4. Select the organization that owns the label in the **Owner** box.
- 5. Set the page dimensions, margins, and text alignment as follows:

Tip:

The page size must be larger than the label size.

a. Click the **Open** button in the **Page Size** row, or tab to the **Open** button and press **Enter**.

The Page Details dialog box appears.

b. Set the page dimensions by typing numeric values in the **Width** and **Height** boxes.

Note:

The measurements are in .Net units (1 unit = 1/100 inch).

- c. Set the page margins by typing numeric values in the **Top Margin** and **Left Margin** boxes.
- d. Select the text alignment in the **Text Alignment** box.
- e. Click **OK** to close the Page Details dialog box.
- 5. Set the label's dimensions, spacing, and content as follows:
 - a. Click the **Open** button in the **Label Size & Content** row, or tab to the **Open** button and press **Enter**.

The Label Details dialog box appears.

b. Set the label's dimensions by typing numeric values in the **Width** and **Height** boxes.

Tip: The measurements are in .Net units (1 unit = 1/100 inch).

- c. Set the amount of spacing between labels by typing numeric values in the **Vertical Spacing** and **Horizontal Spacing** boxes.
- d. Set the indent from the left edge of the label by typing numeric values in the **Indent** box.
- e. Select the content type for the labels in the Content box.

Note:

The content types are set in the Label Configuration dialog box. See <u>Define the label content</u>.

- f. Click **OK** to close the Page Details dialog box and return to the Customize Label dialog box.
- 6. Set the font for the custom labels as follows:
 - a. Click the **Open** button in the **Label Font** row, or tab to the **Open** button and press **Enter**.

The Font dialog box appears.

- b. Choose the font, font style, point size, and any other characteristics, and click **OK** to return to the Customize Label dialog box.
- 7. Click **Save** to save the custom label you created.

The custom label appears in the Label menu in Label Manager and in the list of enabled label types in the Label Configuration dialog box.

Setting the Default Label Printers

For each enabled label type, you can set a default label printer in Label Manager. To set a default label printer:

1. Select Utilities on the Polaris Shortcut Bar and select Label Manager.

The Label Manager appears.

2. Select **Tools > Set Default Printers**.

The Set Default Printers dialog box appears.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

3. For each label type that is enabled and appears in the **Label Type** column, select the default printer in the **Printer Name** column.

Note:

The choices depend on what printers have been installed on the workstation.

4. Click **Save** to save the printer selections.

Carousel Toolkit

With the Carousel Toolkit, libraries can copy a code "snippet" for a content carousel from the Polaris ILS and paste the code into an external web site to display the content carousel. When users visit the web site and click the content carousel, the search results page displays in PowerPAC (via a deep link). Each branch can have a content carousel that points to its own PAC configuration. Users can click on a title in the carousel to go to the search results page at the branch (or system) connection specified in the Carousel Toolkit dialog box.

The Carousel Toolkit provides the code for content carousels from a bibliographic record set or from one of the following system-supplied automatic web parts (dashboard elements):

- Book Sense best seller lists
- New Books
- New Large Print
- New Sound Recordings
- New Videos
- Most Circulated Titles
- On Order Titles

The Carousel Toolkit is licensed at the system level; branches that do not want to use the feature can manage access to the feature through permissions. To use the Carousel Toolkit, staff members must be assigned the Access Carousel Toolkit: Allow permission.

To display cover images in content carousels, enriched data must be set up in Polaris Administration. See the *Public Access Administration Guide*, Enabling Enriched Data. If cover images are not enabled in Administration, the carousels display the format icons and bibliographic information, but no cover images.

See also:

- Generating and Copying Content Carousel Code
- Placing Multiple Carousels on a Page

Generating and Copying Content Carousel Code

To generate and copy the content carousel code for a record set or dashboard element: Select **Utilities > Carousel Toolkit**.



The Carousel Toolkit dialog box opens.

	Carousel Toolkit	
arousel Options		
Create from record set	Create from Dashboard element	
Children's Illustrated	^	
Children's Interest		
Hardcover Fiction		
Hardcover Non-Fiction		
Mass Market		
Most Circulated Titles	×	
Get iframe code	Get source code	
AC context		
Community Library		V
ada.		
bue		
1		
Copy to clipboard	Preview	
	Class	
	Close Help	

Tip:

If the record set is modified after it is selected in the carousel toolkit, it can still be selected for the carousel.

Select one of the following options to create the content carousel:

Create from record set - Click **Find**. The Find Tool opens with bibliographic record set selected. Search for and select the record set.

P	Carousel Toolkit		- 🗆 🛛
Carousel Options Create from record set Create from Create from Create from record set Click the Find button to search a record set	rom Dashboard element		
Cataloging File Edit Tools Options Help General Settings Object: Record Sets Search by: Name Type: Exact match (implicitly truncated) Sort by: (None) For: v	Record Sets - Name Find Tool:2	Search Mode Normal Power SQL Count Only Help	~
For Help, press F1	Close on	Select	

Create from Dashboard element - Select a single dashboard element from the list.

	Carousel Toolkit	- 🗆 🗙
Carousel Options		
Create from record set	Create from Dashboard element	
Children's Illustrated	^	
Children's Interest		
Hardcover Fiction		
Hardcover Non-Fiction		
Mass Market		
Most Circulated Titles	×	
Get iframe code	Get source code	
AC context		
Community Library		×
Lode		

If you want to change the PAC connection branch where users will go when they click the title in the carousel, select a different branch in the PAC context drop-down list.

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

-P/	PAC context	
	Community Library	~

Note:

The **PAC context** box displays the branch for your user login, but you can select another branch or the system. The drop-down list contains the system PAC connection and all branches that are not suppressed in the system-level PAC profile setting **Suppress branches**.

After selecting the record set or dashboard element, select one of these options:

Get iframe code - The iframe code is displayed in the Code box.

Co	le	-
	<pre>cframe style="text-align:center;" src="http://QA-QUANTUM.polarislibrary.com/ContentXChange/Carousel/25/47116/2" width="758px" frameborder="0" ieight="350px"></pre>	
[Copy to clipboard Preview	

Get source code - The source code is displayed in the Code box.

Code	
<pre><!DOCTYPE html PUBLIC "-//W3C//DTD HTML 4.01 Transitional//EN" "<u> http://www.w3.org/TR/html4/loose.dtd" ></pre>	^
(nead) (meta name="vs_defaultClientScript" content="JavaScript" /> (meta http-equiv="X-UACompatible" content="IE=Edge" />] (script src="http://QAQUANTUM.polarisilibrary.com/ContentXChange/scripts/tgle.je" (type="text/javascript">(script src="http://QAQUANTUM.polarisilibrary.com/ContentXChange/scripts/tgle.je" (type="text/javascript">(script src="http://QAQUANTUM.polarisilibrary.com/ContentXChange/scripts/tgle.je" (type="text/javascript") <td>~</td>	~
Copy to clipboard Preview	

To see how the content carousel will look in the web page, click **Preview**.

To see the preview, a browser must be installed and accessible on the workstation.

When the source code or iframe code is displayed in the **Code** box, click **Copy to clipboard**.

Paste the code snippet into the code for a web page.

The content carousel is displayed in the web page.



When a user selects a title in the content carousel, the title is displayed in the Polaris PowerPAC for the branch (or the system) selected in the **PAC context** box.

				Community	Library			
	L		SEARCH V		MY ACCOUNT V	HELP V		
Save Search Related searches	ĸ	eyword search for: Search by: Limit by:	482596 Any Field All Items - All I	Libraries N	Using: [× .ocal Polaris PAC DB Select	Go!	
 Subjects Bildungsromans. 		1 - 1 of 1	N	More Search Options	3	Course reserve	e items only	Page: [1]
 Intringrants New York (N,Y.) Russian Americans Young men Authors Shteyngart, Gary, 1972- Other Searches Any Field Search Title Search Author Search Subject Search General Notes Search General Notes Search Series Search Series Search 		see reviews/add a review; 12 reviews (****)	1. The Russi by Shteyn Publisher, Dat Description: 45	ian debutante's h ıgart, Gary, 1972- e: New York : Riverh 52 p. ; 24 cm.	nandbook nead Books, 2002.		Ava Full I Place 2 Add to	lability Display Request 002 My List

Placing Multiple Carousels on a Page

To place multiple carousels on a page:

- 1. <u>Generate and copy carousel source code</u> into the HTML document for each carousel that you wish to place on the page.
- 2. Remove extra <DOC>, <HTML>, <HEAD>, and <BODY> tags. These should only appear in the HTML document once.

3. Rename additional DIV tags and references for each additional carousel after the first. For example, each carousel has a section of code similar to that shown below. For additional carousels 2 and 3, change the highlighted areas to div2 and div3.

```
classification
 var url = 'http://QA-QUANTUM.polarislibrary.com/ContentXChange/APICarouselToolKit/92/11/4?callback=?';
=$.getJSON(url, function (data) {
 var Div1 = document.createElement("div");
 Div1.id = "id-drawer-head-xri" + data.CarrouselUniqueID;
 Div1.className = "statichead";
 Div1.innerHTML = data.CarouselName;
 var Div2 = document.createElement("div");
 Div2.id = "id-drawer-body-xri" + data.CarrouselUniqueID;
 Div2.className = "drawer-body";
 Div2.innerHTML = data.Carousel_Str;
 $ ("#div1") .append(Div1) ;
$ ("#div1") .append(Div2) ;
  var DivName = "#" + data.CarrouselUniqueID
  var nItems = data.nCarLength
  if (nItems > 0)
₿ (
  jQuery(DivName).river({ scroll: 5, wrap: 'circular', size: nItems });
  else

  var Div3 = document.createElement("div");
  Div3.id = "id-drawer-body-xri" + "NoItemsFound";
  Div3.className = "drawer-body2";
  Div3.innerHTML = "No titles are available for display at this time. For more information, please consult with a lib:
 $("#div1").append(Div3);
  3
- });
 </script>
div id="divi">
 </div>
```

Cataloging Shortcut Keys

These charts list the keyboard shortcuts you can use with Polaris cataloging workflows.

- <u>Record Operations Shortcut Keys</u>
- Navigation Actions
- MARC Editor (Keyboard)
- Select Actions (Keyboard)
- Select Actions (Pointer) Shortcut Keys

Record Operations Shortcut Keys

FUNCTION	KEYS
Workform help	F1
Print current view	CTRL+P
Save record	CTRL+S
Check for duplic- ates	CTRL+I
Check headings	CTRL+J
Display MARC description	CTRL+L
Check MARC format	CTRL_M
Display Macros tool bar	ALT+F8
Display Find Tool with Item Records selec- ted	CTRL+ALT+F9
Display Find Tool with Bib- liographic	F12

FUNCTION	KEYS
Records selec- ted	
Check Authority headings	ALT+S
Check for linked records	ALT+C
Bulk change records	CTRL+B
Add records to record set	CTRL+E
Remove records from a record set	CTRL+R
Create record set of linked items from the Bibliographic Record Set work- form	CTRL+T
Create record set of linked items from the Item Record Set workform	CTRL+T
Print single labels from the Item Record workform	CTRL+ALT+L
Print multiple labels from the Item Record	CTRL+ALT+M

FUNCTION	KEYS
workform	

Navigation Actions Shortcut Keys

FUNCTION	KEYS
Move cursor up	up arrow
Move cursor down	down arrow
Move cursor left	left arrow
Move cursor right	right arrow
Go to beginning of word	CTRL+left arrow
Go to end of word	CTRL+right arrow
Previous sub- field	SHIFT+TAB
Next subfield	ТАВ
Next tag	CTRL+down arrow
Previous tag	CTRL+up arrow
Beginning of record	CTRL+HOME
End of record	CTRL+END
Beginning of line	НОМЕ
End of line	END
Previous screen	PAGE UP

FUNCTION	KEYS
Next screen	PAGE DOWN

MARCEditor Shortcut Keys

FUNCTION	KEYS
Insert blank line	ENTER
Insert subfield delimiter	CTRL+Q
Insert fill char- acter	SHIFT+I
Insert blank char- acter	Space
Sort fields	CTRL+N
Delete high- lighted text	DELETE
Delete character left	BACKSPACE
Delete character right	DELETE
Delete word left	CTRL+BACKSPACE
Delete word right	CTRL+DELETE
Cut highlighted text	CTRL+X
Copy highlighted text	CTRL+C
Paste text	CTRL+_V
Insert mode	INSERT

FUNCTION	KEYS
Undo last action	CTRL+Z
Redo last action	CTRL+Y
Unicode to char- acter	ALT+X

Select Actions (Keyboard) Shortcut Keys

FUNCTION	KEYS
Select all lines	CTRL+A
Select to end of word	SHIFT+CTRL+right arrow
Select to begin- ning of word	CTRL+SHIFT+left arrow
Select to end of line	SHIFT+END
Select to begin- ning of line	SHIFT+HOME
Select entire tag	SHIFT+CTRL+down arrow
Select multiple lines	SHIFT+down arrow
Select or extend a block of text	SHIFT+arrow keys

Select Actions (Pointer) Shortcut Keys

FUNCTION	N KEYS
Select the entire word	Double-click the word

FUNCTION	KEYS
Select the entire tag field	Double-click the tag number
Select the entire line	Triple-click the tag number
Select multiple lines	Drag the cursor along the left margin
Select a block of text	Drag the cursor over the text to highlight

Glossary

0

006 field

Fixed-length Data Elements - Additional Material Characteristics: This field contains 18 character positions (00-17) that provide for coding information about special aspects of the item being cataloged that cannot be coded in field 008 (Fixed-Length Data Elements). It is used in cases when an item has multiple characteristics. It is also used to record the coded serial aspects of nontextual continuing resources. The field has a tree structure, whereby the code given in 006/00 (Form of material) determines the data elements defined for subsequent character positions. Except for code s (Serial/Integrating resource), the codes in field 006/00 correspond to those in Leader/06 (Type of record). For each occurrence of field 006, the codes defined for character positions 01-17 will be the same as those defined in the corresponding field 008, character positions 18-34. Configurations of field 006 are given in the following order: books, computer files/electronic resources, maps, music, continuing resources, visual materials, and mixed materials.

007 field

Physical Description, Fixed Field - This field contains special information about the physical characteristics in a coded form. The information may represent the whole item or parts of an item such as accompanying material. The data elements in field 007 are positionally defined and the number of character positions in field 007 depends upon the code contained in 007/00. Character position 00 contains a code that identifies the category of material. The fill character (I) is not allowed in this position. The fill character may be used in any other character position when the cataloging agency makes no attempt to code the position. The categories of material for which field 007 is applicable in bibliographic records are presented in the following order in the field description: map, electronic resource, globe, tactile material, projected graphic, microform, nonprojected graphic, motion picture, kit, notated music, remote-sensing image, sound recording, text, videorecording, and unspecified.

008 field

Fixed-length Data Elements - General Information This field contains 40 character positions (00-39) that provide coded information about the record as a whole and about special bibliographic aspects of the item being cataloged. These coded data elements are potentially useful for retrieval and data management purposes. The data elements are positionally defined. Character positions that are not defined contain a blank (#). All defined character positions must contain a defined code; for some field 008 positions, this may be the fill character ()). The fill character may be used (in certain character positions) when a cataloging organization makes no attempt to code the character position. The fill character is not allowed in field 008 positions 00-05 (Date entered on file). Its use is discouraged in positions 07-10 (Date 1), 15-17 (Place of publication, production, or execution), and the 008 position defined for Form of item (either position 23 or 29 depending upon the 008 configuration). Character positions 00-17 and 35-39 are defined the same across all types of material, with special consideration for position 06. The definition of character positions 18-34 was done independently for each type of material, although certain data elements are defined the same in the specifications for more than one type of material. When similar data elements are defined for inclusion in field 008 for different types of material, they occupy the same field 008 character positions.

Α

added entry

A secondary entry to the main entry in a MARC record.

approval plan

An arrangement with a publisher or vendor to send materials automatically. With an approval plan, it is not necessary for the library to order each title individually, and titles that are not considered appropriate may be returned by the library. An approval plan with a vendor is usually an agreement that the library will receive current imprints selected for the library on the basis of a detailed profile.

ASN (Advanced Shipping Notice)

An advance shipping notice or advance ship notice (ASN) is an electronic notification of pending shipments that is provided by a supplier after an EDI order is received and processed. If the supplier has the capability to produce ASNs (X12 transaction set 856), the Polaris EDIAgent utility retrieves the shipment information, and loads the data into Polaris. This enables users to receive materials in Polaris by scanning the tracking barcode on the outside of the carton.

В

blanket plan

A blanket plan (also called a blanket order) is most commonly used for ordering all materials or a specific subset of materials that are published by an organization. In contrast with approval plans, blanket plans do not generally allow return privileges with simple deductions from the invoice. With blanket plans, quality is less important than comprehensiveness of coverage. Blanket plans can be as narrow as a specific publisher's series or as broad as a request to send all material of a particular type or on a particular subject.

blind reference

1) An authority link (see or see also - 4xx and 5xx respectively) which points to an authority heading that does not exist in the database. 2) An authority heading (1xx) to which no bibliographic records are linked.

С

cataloging source

A code stored in tag 040 \$a that tells who created the record. These codes are governed by the MARC code list for libraries.

chronology

The date(s) used by the publisher on a serially-issued bibliographic unit to help identify or indicate when it was published. The chronology may reflect the dates of coverage, publication, or printing.

content designators

Tags, indicators, and subfield codes in a MARC record.

D

delimiter

A separate character used in conjunction with a subfield code and introduces each subfield in a variable field.

deposit account

A deposit account is an account with a vendor that allows customers to pay all or a portion of the estimated annual billing in advance. Depending on the amount prepaid, the typical discount is from 1.5% to 4.5% more than with a regular plan, where invoices are paid after the receipt of titles.

diacritical mark

Any of various marks, such as a macron or cedilla, added to a letter or symbol to indicate its pronunciation or to distinguish it in some way.

Ε

enumeration

The designation reflecting the alphabetic or numeric scheme used by the publisher on an item or assigned when the holdings statement is created to identify the individual bibliographic or physical parts and to show the relationship of each unit to the unit as a whole.

express registration

Entering patron information during the check-out process as a service to new, unregistered patrons.

F

first available copy requests

Hold requests for specific issues of a serial title (such as the May 2015 issue of Horticulture Magazine) or specific parts of a multi-part title (such as the first season of a television series on DVD).

form subdivision

A division of a subject heading which brings out the form of the work. For example, in the headings: Internet (Computer network) - Periodicals Library technicians - Bibliography

free days

A value applied at normal and bulk check-in, renewal, and offline that allows you to omit a specified number of days from the overdue fine calculation.

G

geographic qualifier

The name of a larger geographic entity added to a local place name. For example, in the headings: Cambridge (Mass.) Toledo (Spain)

geographic subdivision

A subdivision which limits a topical subject heading to a specific geographic location. For example, in the headings: Women - Peru Libraries - New York (State)

Μ

monographic series

A group of monographs with a collective title in addition to their individual titles. The individual titles may or may not be numbered. The collective title is generally found on the title page or the cover of each monograph.

R

RTF

Requests-To-Fill or RTF processing sends hold requests to designated libraries in a specified order. A library chooses to fill or deny the request. The request is routed until it is filled, it expires, or every library denies it.

S

SICI

The colloquial name for Serial Item and Contribution Identifier. The SICI is the SISAC bar code. The SICI incorporates the ISSN and is used on scholarly, technical, medical and other subscription based serials.

SISAC

Serials Industry Systems Advisory Committee. This committee was instrumental in creating the supporting documentation for the NISO z39.56 standard.

standing order

An order placed with a vendor or the publisher directly for all publications in a series, all volumes in a set, or all publications of a single publisher.

Т

trapped

An item is said to be trapped for a hold when an item that fills a request is scanned at circulation and the system links the item to a specific request, either automatically or by displaying a message that prompts you for a decision.

Index

\$9

system-supplied 136

006 fixed field

entering data in 83

006 tag

bulk changing in bibliographic records 220

See also 006 fixed field 220

007 fixed field

entering data in 83

007 tag

bulk changing in bibliographic records 222

See also 007 fixed field 222

008 fixed field

editing 82

008 tag

bulk changing in bibliographic records 223

See also 008 fixed field 223

024 tag

setting duplicate detection in import profile 112

037\$a

Baker & Taylor eContent 270

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

\$

0
037\$n	
Baker & Taylor pre-pub titles 270	
040 tag	
used in determining overlay 155	
	1
13-digit ISBN	
searching for bibliographic records 76	
	3
3M eContent integration	
automatic processes 324	
creating vendor accounts 328	
integrating new records 334	
	~

8

852 tags

holdings information in 138

Polaris default (with item creation) profile 138

856 tags

display in PAC 9

preventing hold requests for bibs containing 411

Α

Acquisitions Bibs import profile

described 100

Ad hoc Bulk Change

changing items 227

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

```
added copies
  Axis 360 289
Advantage, See OverDrive Advantage 301
ampersand
  searching for titles using 21
  using in phrase and keyword searching 39
API consumer service
  described 375
articles
  in search text 38
assigned branch
  entering an item record's 183
authentication
  eContent vendors 257
Authorities Weekly
  authorities update service 14
authority control
  automatically search remote databases during import 136
  bulk changing bibliographic fields 216
  during import, searching remote database 108
  list and resolve unlinked headings 160
  local subject headings 159
  manually checking headings 158
  performing when importing 136
  See also authority records 13
  ZMARC automatic, described 160
```

```
Authority Create Links Queue
  viewing 165
authority records
  authority weekly updates service 14
  changing the Leader 81
  checking for duplicates 173
  checking linked headings before saving 165
  create links and update links queues 165
  creating 74
  creating links to other MARC records 163
  default data for Leader 81
  described 13
  importing with deleted status 137
  overlaying duplicates 173
  saving 75
  See also authority control 13
  setting up import profiles 117
  updating linked headings 164
  using remote database for updating 14
  viewing linked bibliographic records 164
Authority Update Import
  import profile 100
  ZMARC authority import profile 125, 127
Authority Update Links Queue
  viewing 165
```

authority weekly updates service described 14 auto-suggest keyword or phrase searching 47 searching for cataloging records 24 turning off and on 47 automatic authority control 108 searching remote database during import 136 automatic importing 3M eContent 334 import profile selected in Vendor Account 334 OverDrive eContent 311 automatic suggestions in keyword searches 49 availability displaying for OverDrive Advantage collections 301 Axis 360 eContent integration added copies 289 checking out from PowerPAC and Mobile PAC 292 creating an Axis 360 vendor account 272 eContent integration, overview 268 expired eContent 289 placing holds 292 setting up item templates 271 setting up Polaris 270

В

Baker & Taylor Title Source 3 MARC profile list 270 barcodes (item) assigning during bulk change 231 overriding invalid message 182 batch changing item records 227 label printing profile 433 bib control number changing on an item record 198 bibliographic bulk change changing display in PAC setting 216 checking the queue 224 fields under authority control 216 report 224 Bibliographic Bulk Change Job Queue viewing 224 bibliographic Leader creating 73 bibliographic record sets creating from item record sets 208 creating record set of linked items 208 bibliographic records 008 fixed field 82 bulk changing data fields 217

bulk changing leader 219 changing for item records 198 changing the Leader 81 checking authority headings 158 checking for duplicates 169 checking for errors 73 conditions that prevent deletion 251 creating a bound-with group 408 creating in staff client for Fusion 82 creating new 72 default Leader data 81 deleting 249 described 71 importing and overlaying duplicates 106 linking from item records 196 MARC Editor view described 71 replacing 169 resource entity view 263 saving 71, 73 saving with Display in PAC unchecked 74 searching by item's RFID tag 23 searching for non-print materials 25 shortcut key to open Find Tool 24 status 71 tags that cannot be bulk changed 217 updating when authority changed 164

using the preview window from the Find Tool 6 viewing circ stats for linked items 6 blank character inserting in MARC Editor 454 blank line inserting in MARC Editor 454 **Boolean operators** in power searching 53 bound-with groups characteristics of host bib 398 creating 408 branches 65 digital for eContent import 262 Find Tool tab, overview 64 browse searching by call number 45 by title 45 changing headings for 92 described 43 bulk change queue checking 224 bulk changing bibs, 006 tag in bibliographic records 220 bibs, 007 tag 222 bibs, 008 tag 223 bibs, checking the queue 224

bibs, data fields 217 bibs, fields under authority control 216 bibs, Leader 219 bibs, non MARC data 216 bibs, record owner 216 bibs, tags that cannot be changed 217 items, Ad hoc Bulk Change without record set 227 items, assigning barcodes 231 items, from the bib preview 6 items, in a record set or list 227 items, procedure 227 items, Use call number fields from bib record 229 permissions 227 report 224 statuses that prevent 224

С

call numbers

copying from bib records using bulk change 229

fields in new item records 179

specifying line breaks on spine labels 434

cataloging

import profile, copying 102

methods for adding new records 18

modifying an import profile 122

options on the shortcut bar 3

templates, about 15

templates, creating 94 cataloging bound-with materials overview 397 Cataloging label type selecting 200 Cataloging Processing, submenu Bibliographic Bulk Change Queue 224 Create Unlinked Authority Record Set 248 Create Unlinked Bibliographic Record Set 248 cataloging records accessing existing, overview 4 authority records, described 13 auto-suggest 24 creating new, overview 3 deleting bibs and items 249 described 5 export configuration 244 exporting 244 item records, described 11 promotions (overview) 386 purging 254 retrieving using record sets 211 starting automatic processes, overview 4 undeleting 253 cataloging shortcut keys cataloging reference 451

cataloging templates described 15 CCL Syntax error encountering in the Find Tool 33 changing headings in browse searches 92 changing the retrieval limit 30 changing the search timeout 30 changing the sort limit 30 character encoding selecting for export 245 characters entering in a MARC record 85 entering special in labels 202 Check for Linked Records Results dialog box displaying 165 Check Headings Assistant displaying 161 Check See Also From References Assistant displaying 161 checking out OverDrive eContent 316 checking out integrated eContent Axis 360 292 circulation history status changes that appear in item record 191 viewing an item's 191

circulation statistics viewing from the bibliographic record 6 circulation status entering for item records 180 new items created from embedded holdings 117 circulation transactions eContent 370 classification call number 179 cloudLink adding a preferred vendor account 347 collections 66 collections search overview 66 Common Command Language (CCL) See power searching 51 Community records cataloging overview 17 Computype printers setting up labels for 438 spine label measurements 437 consumer service, Polaris API described 375 content carousels placing multiple on page 449

42

copy number
entering for item records 180
Could not connect to Z39.50 search engine error message
count only
records in Find Tool 30
counting records without displaying them 30
course reserves
editing reserve item information 189
custom duplication detection rules
importing authority records 118
custom labels
creating 441
customizing by user 31
U

data conventions

embedded holdings data 138

data fields

bulk changing in bibliographic records 217

databases 68

displaying result sets 69

remote 76

searching remote 68

deleted cataloging records

restoring 253

deleting

item and bibliographic records 249

item records, conditions that prevent 251 deleting bibliographic records conditions that prevent 251 designation viewing a serial item in the Find Tool 22 diacritics entering characters in labels 202 entering in a MARC record 80, 85 inserting character code 88 selecting 85-86 digital branches setting up for eContent 262 digital collections coding the Leader 82 display heading changing for browse searching 92 display in PAC 9 item records 183 item records created from import 115 previewing from bibliographic record 8 series information 11 setting in item record 180 Web links 9 distribution information entering for multiple item records 181

Do not float option for item record 191 Do not overlay bulk changing setting 216 downloading OverDrive intergrated eContent 318 duplicate detection authority records 173 bibliographic records 169 cataloging administration settings 167 starting 173 when importing 106

Ε

eContent

3M automatic integration process 324 administration options for resource groups 261 checking out and downloading from PowerPAC 318 checking out and downloading OverDrive titles from Mobile PAC 319 checking out Axis 360 eContent 292 checking out Axis 360 titles in PowerPAC and Mobile PAC 292 circulation transactions in the staff client 370 digital branches 262 required licenses 257 using resource groups to manage patron access 260 eContent hold requests transactions in staff client 371

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

eContent integration required components 257 setting up for 3M 324 setting up Polaris for Axis 360 270 setting up Polaris for OverDrive 298 eContent items creating template for automatic import 327 searching in the staff client 366 setting up Axis 360 item templates 271 eContent PAC display restricting in search results 260 eContent records searching in the staff client 365 eContent vendor accounts, integrated setting up 3M 328 setting up for Axis 360 272 setting up OverDrive 300 suspending 376 eContent vendors authentication 257 electronic resources hold requests disabled in the PAC 411 embedded holdings circ statuses for new items 117 data entry conventions 138 defaults for creating item records 138

subfield formats 138 encoding levels defined 142 values that allow or disallow overlay during import 142 viewing from bibliographic record 142 Enriched EDI Orders import profile described 101 error messages 33 Find Tool 33 expired eContent Axis 360 289 exporting selecting character encoding 245 exporting cataloging records configuring the export 244 specifying the server 245 express importing described 124 using 125

F

Feature It

See also, promotions 386

fewer records than expected in results 33

fill character

inserting in MARC Editor 454

final
record status 71
Find Tool
getting a count of results 30
setting results set and search time limits 29
using 28
finding bibliographic or authority records 20
finding records
See searching 40
floating option
changing on an item record 191
fonts
changing existing label type 440
full import
using 127
н

headings

changing the display of 92

checking 160

hold requests

Axis 360 eContent 292

enabling on an item 181

OverDrive eContent 316

hold requests, eContent

transactions in staff client 371

holdable
items 181
holdings data
defaults for creating item records 138
holdings tag
defining in the import profile 114
honor resource groups
setting administration option 261
host bibliographic records
characteristics 398

L

implicitly truncated searches
using wildcard characters before 39
Import Jobs Queue
printing an import report from 132
viewing progress of jobs 129
Import Profile Manager
printing a profile 121
import profiles
Authority Update Import 100
copying an existing 102
default with item record creation 101
defining duplicate detection rules 112
deleting 123
embedded holdings tag 114
Enriched EDI Orders 101

Integrated ebook Bibs 334

list of read-only PolarisExec 99

modifying 122

overview 97

Polaris Default 101

Polaris Default (with item creation) 101

printing 121

seting up, overview 98

setting authority record options 117

settings for acquisitions 100

importing

creating item records during 113

custom authority duplication detection rules 118

defaults for invalid subfields and indictors 135

defaults for item record creation 138

deleting import jobs from the queue 129

Display in PAC for item records 115

express import option 125

full import option 127

MARCXML files 128

printing a report on an import job 132

processing time 125

protecting incoming records from overlay 106

retaining tags from incoming records 111

retaining the UPC or ISBN 112

setting up template for eContent items 327

shelving scheme used for item records 117 specifying source file location 124 subfield formats for holdings 138 viewing the jobs queue 129 ZMARC authority import profile 125, 127 importing authority records deleted status 137 setting options in import profile 117 weekly updates 100 importing bibliographic records automatically search remote authority database 136 automatically searching remote database for authority records 108 default profile 101 options for 106 overlaying on-order items 101 performing authority control 136 profile defined overlay retention tags 112 setting deduplication rules for the 024 (Other standard identifier) 112 importing, automatic, 3M eContent default profile selected in the Vendor Account 334 importing, automatic, OverDrive eContent default profile selected in the Vendor Account 311 indexed fields bibliographic and item records 49 indexed MARC fields title searching 36

initial articles ignoring in searches 21 in search text 38 Input Method Editor keyboard entering diacritics using 85 Integrated ebook Bibs import profile default import profile selected for OverDrive 311, 334 described 334 interlibrary loan requests allowing in item records 181 international characters entering in a MARC record 80 invalid item barcodes overriding message 182 ISBN searching for MARC records by 76 setting as retained tag in importing 112 item barcode range entering 181 item bulk change refresh record set or list view 233 item record sets creating bibliographic record set 208 creating from bibliographic record sets 208 Item Record workform notes and blocks 188

notes icon color 188 opening view 175 item records 198 allowing interlibrary loan requests 181 call number fields 179 changing 197 changing bib control number 198 changing floating option 191 changing multiple 227 circulation history, viewing 191 conditions that prevent deletion 251 creating 176 creating during import 113 creating from embedded holdings 138 creating multiple for same title 177 creating single 182 creating subordinate (child) record 194 creating using system assigned barcodes 181 default shelving scheme 176 deleting 249 deleting serial 248 described 11, 175 display in PAC setting 180 displaying in PAC 183 do not float option 191 editing course reserve information 189

enabling holds 181 entering owning and assigned branches 183 entering renewal limit 180 entering the circulation status 180 entering the copy number 180 entering the distribution information 181 entering the price 180 link to items with same bib 196 linking to the bibliographic record 196 non-circulating 180 overriding invalid barcode message 182 permissions to bulk change 227 price 180 printing labels 200 purchase order and fund 188 searching by RFID tag 23 searching for temporary shelf location 60 selecting templates 181 setting up label printing 432 shortcut keys to open the Find Tool 24 status changes in circulation history 191 statuses that prevent bulk change 224 using Ad hoc Bulk Change 224 using templates to create multiple 181 viewing linked from bibliographic record 6 viewing the designation for serials in the Find Tool 22 item records, eContent staff client 366

Κ

Keep MARC tags

profile defined overlay retention tags 112

keyboard shortcuts

cataloging reference 451

MARC Editor 454

keyboards

changing 85

keyword searching

automatic suggestions 49

indexed fields for 49

procedure 49

L

label files

opening saved 205

Label Manager

entering special characters 202

opening a saved label file 205

permissions 431

saving a label file 205

setting opening view 432

starting 202

label printing profile

batch 433

on demand 432

quick print 433

label requests

described 435

label types

changing the font 440

select for Cataloging 200

standard, dimensions 435

labels

Computype, measurements 437

configuring 438

creating custom 441

defining content types 440

editing 202

entering diacritics 202

multiple sets 204

printing from an item record 200

recommendations for setting up 431

saving a label file 205

setting options 433

setting serials type 433

setting the default printer 443

setting up cataloging and serials 431

setting up Computype printers 438

setting up label types 438 specifying call number line breaks 434 specifying cataloging print method 432 specifying cataloging type 432 specifying serials print method 433 languages limiting by in the Find Tool 39 LDR see Leader 81 Leader bulk changing bibliographic records 219 creating a bibliographic 73 default data for authority record 81 default data for bibliographic record 81 Library of Congress **URL 71** licenses eContent integration 257 limit by 41 entering values 39 Find Tool 41 linked records checking for 165 linking to a different bibliographic record 198 links

publish a link to a record set in the PAC 212

local subject headings

authority control 159

log

purge processing 256

Μ

macros in MARC Editor

changing 91

deleting 92

recording 89

using 91

MARC 21

adding tags 83

bib format, Library of Congress link 71

changing the Leader in a bib 81

codes determining type of material 411

editing the 008 fixed field 82

entering non-Roman characters 85

MARC Editor

bibliographic record view 71

deleting a macro 92

displaying field descriptions 80

inserting a blank character 454

inserting a blank line 454

inserting a fill character 454

inserting a subfield 84

inserting character code 88

© 2021 Innovative Interfaces, Inc.

keyboard shortcuts 454

selecting an international character 85-86

using macros 91

MARC fields

displaying descriptions 80

indexed for title searching 36

MARC profile list

Title Source 3 270

MARC records

displaying remote 76

MARC validation

described 165

MARCXML files

importing 128

merging

duplicate bibs during importing 106

Mobile PAC

checking out and downloading OverDrive eContent 319

Mobile PAC, eContent

managing access using resource groups 260

multi-part titles

creating an item record for 179, 185

multi-volume sets

holds placed for on-order 101

Ν

New Item Record Options call number fields 179 non-print materials searching for 25 notes and blocks view item record workform 188 notes icon color in item record workform 188 number sign finding titles that include 57

0

on-order item records

automatically overlaying on import 101

on demand

label printing option profile 432

Other Standard Identifier

searching by 25

setting profile-defined duplicate detection rules 112

OverDrive Advantage

specifying the availability display 301

OverDrive eContent

changed patron barcodes 323

checking out 316

checking out and downloading from Mobile PAC 319

checking out and downloading from PowerPAC 318 creating OverDrive vendor accounts 300 import profile selected in vendor account 311, 334 overview 296 placing holds 316 setting up Polaris 298 overlaying records bibliographic records 169 duplicate authority records 173 overview 28 owning branch entering item record's 183

Ρ

PAC display

856 tags 9

bulk changing bibliographic records 216

preview the bibliographic record 8

permissions for seeing results 34

phrase searching

described 50

using wildcard characters 50

Polaris API consumer service

checking the status 375

described 375

Polaris Default (with item creation) import profile

described 101

holdings tag 138

Polaris Default import profile

described 101

PolarisExec import profiles

overview 97

popularity

viewing circ stats from bib record preview 6

power search 58

power searching

Boolean operators 53

described 51

finding titles that include the number sign 57

multiple ISBNs 58

proximity operators 54

relative operators 55

wildcard characters 56

PowerPAC

checking out and downloading OverDrive eContent 318

PowerPAC, eContent

managing access using resource groups 260

preferred vendor account

adding to the policy table 347

Preferred Vendor Accounts

using the policy table 347

prefix

call number 179

preview
bibliographic record 8
title display in PAC from bibliographic record 8
price
entering for item records 180
specifying an item's 180
printers
setting defaults for labels 443
setting up Computype label 438
printing labels
specifying method for cataloging 432
specifying method for serials 433
profile defined overlay retention tags
specifying in import 112
profiles (import)
creating from existing 102
default 101
modifying 122
Promotion records
cataloging overview 16
entering general information 389
finding in staff client 387
overview 386
See Feature it 16
promotions
triggers and PAC searches 393

provisional bibliographic records saving as final 210 provisional bibs bulk changing to final 216 proximity operators in power searching 54 public catalog displaying items in the 183 purge processing log printing 256 purging cataloging records procedure 254

Q

quick print

label printing profile 433

R

RBdigital eContent

patron access to 357

record sets

adding records to 209

creating bibliographic from item 208

creating for unlinked bib or authority records 248

linked item records from bibliographic 208

provisional cataloging records 210

retrieving records using 211

searching for cataloging 207 working with cataloging 15 record sets (authority) yellow broken link icon authority records yellow broken link icon in record set 207 record sets (cataloging) displaying titles in PAC 212 record sets (patron) adding records using a file 209 records adding to catalog, overview 18 records (cataloging) bibliographic records, described 5 creating an item record 182 creating authority 74 creating bibliographic 72 described 5 saved status 71 refresh item list view after bulk change 233 relative operators in power searching 55 relevance sorting by in the Find Tool 37 relevancy ranking searching 20

remote databases 67 searching for UPC number 67 renewal limit entering for item records 180 replacing bibliographic records from workform 169 reports (cataloging) bibliographic bulk change 224 import job 132 reserves see course reserves 189 resolving search issues 33 resource entities described 263 non-integrated ebook bibs 382 resource groups managing access to eContent 260 search results settings in administration 261 results list clearing 42 filtering 64 retaining search string for different object 41 retrieval limit changing the Find Tool 30 **RFID** tags searching for items or bibs by scanning 23

S

saved SQL searches using in Find Tool 61 saving an SQL search 61 scoping searching with 62 search by dates 41 search by option 35 search criteria 35 search results count only 30 filtered by permissions 34 search results settings, eContent honor resource groups 261 searching automatic suggestions for keyword or phrase 47 branches 65 browse 43 collections 66 criteria for 35 error messages in Find Tool 33 for records, overview 34 initial articles 38 phrase 50 power 58 remote databases 68
see also Find Tool 34 using a saved SQL search 61 using wildcard characters 39 searching by ISBN 76 searching for eContent 365 searching overview 67 searching remote database during import 108 searching remote databases described 20 searching remote databases for UPC number 67 select headings results using the dialog box 92 serial item records viewing the designation in the Find Tool 22 serial items deleting 248 series display information in PAC 11 server for exporting records 245 sets holds placed for on-order multi-volume 101 shelf-ready items holds placed for on-order multi-volume sets 101 shelving scheme default for item records 176

selecting 179 used in creating item records from embedded holdings data 117 shortcut key for bibliographic records 34 shortcut keys cataloging reference 451 shortcut keys for bibs and items 24 shortcuts MARC editor 454 sort by option in the Find Tool 37 sort by option 37 sorting by relevance 37 source files importing cataloging records 124 spine labels Computype measurements 437 specifying call number line breaks 434 SQL searching 59 Find Tool 59 permissions for 59 saving a search 61 using saved searches 61 SQL searching permissions 59 status changes circulation history of item record 191

subfield 9 and text system-supplied 136 subfields format for embedded holdings 138 inserting 84 shortcut for entering delimiter 454 suffix call number 179 system assigned barcodes using 181 using for new item records 181

Т

tab display 29

tags

adding to MARC record 83

templates

setting up for automatic eContent items 327

templates (cataloging)

creating 95

creating by copying a record 95

selecting for multiple items 181

uses in cataloging 15

using defaults for creating records 73

using to create multiple item records 181

temporary location

searching for item record with 60

timeout changing the search 30 title searching indexed MARC fields 36 Title Source 3 MARC profile list 270 TOM See type of material 411 triggers matching to PAC searches 393 truncation searching using wildcard characters 39 TS3, See Title Source 3 270 turning auto-suggest off and back on 47 type of material MARC codes that determine 411 multiple 428 U unauthorized headings resolving 160 undeleting cataloging records 253 unlinked records

creating a record set of 248

UPC

searching by 25

UPC number searching remote databases for 67 setting as retained tag in importing 112 setting deduplication rules in import profile for 024 112 usage statistics viewing from a bibliographic record 6 use initial articles 30 Use initial articles 30 Use initial articles check box on Find Tool options 30 user defaults setting the Find Tool 31 using saved SQL searches 61 using the bib preview window 6 UTF8 selecting character encoding for export 245

V

vendor accounts, integrated eContent

setting up Axis 360 272

setting up for 3M 328

setting up OverDrive 300

suspending 376

vernacular script

entering in a MARC record 85

volume

call number 179

volume number

entering for an item for a multi-part title 179, 185

•		,	
۱	N		

warning messages

changing item records 197

Web links 9

wildcard characters

number sign 56

using in keyword searches 49

using in phrase searches 50

using in power searches 56

Ζ

Z39.50 searching

error message in the Find Tool 42

overview 67

ZMARC

automatic authority control, described 160

copying records from 76

subscribing to 76